GITY OF SYDNEY ©

3 February 2021

At 5.00 pm

Local Planning Panel




Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Agenda

1. Disclosures of Interest

2. Confirmation of Minutes

3. Development Application: 2-12 Carrington St, Sydney - D/2020/959

4, Development Application: 23 Hughes Street, Potts Point - D/2020/950

5. Development Application: 397-399 Harris Street, Ultimo - D/2020/593



GITY OF SYDNEY &

As part of our democratic process, the City invites members of the community to speak directly to
Members of the Local Planning Panel (LPP) about items on a meeting agenda.

Webcast

In accordance with the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 and the City of Sydney
Local Planning Panel Operational Procedures, LPP meetings are audio visually recorded and
webcast live on the City of Sydney website at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.

Members of the public attending a LPP meeting may have their image, voice and personal
information (including name and address) recorded, publicly broadcast and archived.

Consent

By attending a LPP meeting, members of the public consent to this use of their image, voice and
personal information.

Disclaimer

Statements made by individuals at a LPP meeting, and which may be contained in a live stream
or recording of the meeting are those of the individuals making them, and not of the City/LPP. To
be clear, unless set out in a resolution, the City/LPP does not endorse or support such
statements.

The City/LPP does not accept any liability for statements made or actions taken by individuals
during LPP meetings that may be contrary to law, including discriminatory, defamatory or offensive
comments. Such statements or actions are not protected by privilege and may be the subject of
legal proceedings and potential liability, for which the City/LPP takes no responsibility.

To enable the LPP to hear a wide range of views and concerns within the limited time available,
we encourage people interested in speaking at meetings to:

1. Register to speak by calling Secretariat on 9265 9702 or emailing
secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au before 10:00am on the day of the meeting.

2. Check the recommendation in the LPP report before speaking, as it may address your
concerns so that you just need to indicate your support for the recommendation.

3. Note that there is a three minute time limit for each speaker and prepare your
presentation to cover your major points within that time.

4. Avoid repeating what previous speakers have said and focus on issues and information
that the LPP may not already know.

5. If there is a large number of people interested in the same item as you, try to nhominate
three representatives to speak on your behalf and to indicate how many people they are
representing.

At the start of each LPP meeting, the Chair may re-order agenda items so that those items with
speakers can be dealt with first.

LPP reports are on line at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.



http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/
mailto:secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/

Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Item 1.

Disclosures of Interest

In accordance with section 4.9 of the Code of Conduct for Local Planning Panel Members,
all Panel members are required to sign a declaration of interest in relation to each matter on
the agenda.

Pursuant to the provisions of Clause 15 of Schedule 4B of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979, members of the Local Planning Panel are required to disclose
pecuniary interests in any matter on the agenda for this meeting of the Local Planning Panel.

Panel members are also required to disclose any non-pecuniary interests in any matter on
the agenda for this meeting of the Local Planning Panel.

In both cases, the nature of the interest must be disclosed.



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Item 2.

Confirmation of Minutes

Minutes of the following meeting of the Local Planning Panel, which have been endorsed by
the Chair of that meeting, are submitted for noting:

Meeting of 16 December 2020



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Item 3.

Development Application: 2-12 Carrington Street, Sydney - D/2020/959

File No.: D/2020/959

Summary

Date of Submission:
Applicant:
Architect/Designer:
Developer:

Owner:

Planning Consultant
Heritage Consultant
Cost of Works:

Zoning:

Proposal Summary:

14 October 2020

Mike Russell, Brookfield Properties
MAKE / Architectus

Brookfield Properties

Sovereign Wynyard Centre Pty Ltd
Ethos Urban

GML Heritage

$9,401,000

B8 Metropolitan Centre - The proposed development is
defined as a food and drink premises (a pub operating as a
restaurant/bar) which is permissible with consent in the
zone.

Use and fit-out of Ground Floor, Levels 09 and 10 of the
existing 'Shell House' building as a food and drink
premises (pub) with indoor and outdoor seating, and
installation of awnings to the outdoor terrace at Level 09.
Proposed hours of operation are 24 hours Mondays to
Sundays for both the indoor and outdoor seating areas.
Patron capacities of 275 (Ground Floor), 315 (level 9) and
295 (level 10) are sought (total 885). The premises will
operate as a single tenancy with one operator.



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Summary Recommendation:

During the assessment of the proposal, alterations to the
design of the awnings to reduce the visual impact on the
heritage item have been made. In addition, the Acoustic
Report has been revised to include an assessment of a
residential building at 2 York Street, Sydney, following the
receipt of several submissions relating to the omission of
this property, which is 58m from the subject site. As the
revised Acoustic Assessment was considered acceptable,
it was not considered necessary to require renaotification.

The application was notified for 21 days from 26 October
2020 to 17 November 2020 with the incorrect proposed
hours of operation. The application was renotified, with the
correct proposed hours of operation for 21 days, between
28 October 2020 and 19 November 2020. 20 submissions
were received, one (1) in support, and two (2) from the
same objector. As such, 18 unique submissions are
considered to have been made. Issues raised in the
submissions have been addressed within this report, and it
is considered the revised documentation and conditions of
consent, where relevant, have adequately addressed the
issues raised in all submissions.

Subiject to conditions, the proposal is generally consistent
with the objectives and applicable planning provisions in
the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 and the
Sydney Development Control Plan 2012. The site is
considered an appropriate location for the proposed use,
and the use is unlikely to have significant adverse impacts
on the surrounding locality, as demonstrated in the
accompanying Plan of Management and Acoustic
Assessment.

As the application seeks to operate a new premises with a
hotel liquor licence, it is required to be reported to the
Local Planning Panel for determination.

The development application is recommended for
approval, subject to conditions.



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Development Controls:

Attachments:

(i)

(i)
(i)
(iv)

v)

w >

o 0O

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979;
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012;
Sydney Development Control Plan 2012;

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney
Harbour Catchment) 2005;

Central Sydney Development Contributions Plan
2013

Recommended Conditions of Consent
Revised Acoustic Report
Plan of Management

Selected Drawings



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Recommendation

It is resolved that consent be granted to Development Application No. D/2020/959 subject to
the conditions set out in Attachment A to the subject report.

Reasons for Recommendation

The application is recommended for approval for the following reasons:

(A) The proposal is consistent with the objectives of the B8 Metropolitan Centre zone
contained within the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012.

(B) The proposal is consistent with the objective of conserving the heritage significance of
the subject locally listed heritage item and demonstrates design excellence in
accordance with Clause 5.10 and Clause 6.21 of the Sydney Local Environmental
Plan 2012

(C) Subject to conditions, the development is consistent with the objectives of the Sydney
Development Control Plan 2012, in particular the Late Night Management area
objectives.

(D) Issues raised in submissions have been considered and where appropriate have been
addressed in the amended Acoustic Assessment and the conditions of consent.



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Background

The Site and Surrounding Development

1.

The site has a legal description of Lot 10 DP 595978, and is known as 2-12 Carrington
Street, Sydney. It is rectangular in shape with an area of approximately 1038sgm. It
has a primary street frontage to the west of Carrington St and a secondary street
frontage to the south of Margaret Street.

The site contains a building ‘Shell House’ and is within the Wynyard Place
development ('One Carrington St') approved as a concept approval and State
Significant Development. The Shell House site forms part of Stage 1 of the
development.

The surrounding area is characterised by a mixture of land uses, primarily being
commercial uses. The site is opposite Wynyard Train Station and various public bus
stands.

The site is a local heritage item (11691). It has aesthetic significance for its scale of city
streetscape prior to the ‘skyscraper era’ and use of glazed tiles for external wall
treatments during the Inter-war period.

The site is located within the 'Wynyard Park/Lang Park’ Special Character Area.

A site visit was carried out on 23 October 2020. Photos of the site and surrounds are
provided below:



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

hyardrPark 1

Wynyard

Figure 1: Aerial view of site (‘'Shell House') and surrounds



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Figure 3: Site viewed from Margaret Street facing south



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Figure 4: Site viewed from Carrington Street facing east

History Relevant to the Development Application
Development Applications

7.  The site is subject to a concept approval and State Significant Development approval
comprising two stages, outlined in summary in Figures 5, 6 and 7.

8.  The site is also subject to recent City of Sydney development applications, including:

(@) D/2018/318 - On 21 June 2018, consent was granted for fitout of the part of the
ground floor level to level 9 of the former Shell House and new 10 Carrington
Street commercial development for a commercial office use. This application was
modified on 24 June 2020 to amend the Carrington St entrance, café
rearrangement, and internal wall relocation.



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Margaret St

Pt1

1esm
TRANSPORT
HOUSE

Gyaey

DP1003146

24415

(-

Approved Concept Plan Site
D Stage 1 SSD application site

Wynyard
Park

—
S

Sl Lane
10
Shell

Wynyard

House : 285-287
George
T DP595978 Street
==
3 21
4 . 12 pr—
v 8 p |2 ° 2
’.‘ 1 g -4M -
A - 4 2
2t Menzies .
Rail Plan 2 Hotel S| 2
S _| £ |.| George
1024-41-781A | § 0™ L F| street
: D ’ v
% 3028 m2 "' 5 33 13 3 1
'.. | .
=. ; =
\ \ @
RI— O
] ‘ Wynyard
Lane
PITOF CONCOURSE
1o

Stage 1 SSD application extended of site area

/ building envelope

Figure 5: Existing site components and layout (source: SSD report for MP09_0076 mod 2)




Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Shell House

Commercial
Office Tower

Carrington Street

George Street ‘

Figure 6: Stage 1 development of '‘One Carrington St' - Shell House in context with tower at Wynyard
Place (source: DPIE SSD 5824 Mod 8 Assessment Rpt)

10



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

IIIIII/IIIIIII/"

CYRREIL S

YRR

“?,ﬂ‘ |...’# -::.

o

Wi o oignans BRGR

Figure 7: Photomontage of approved development of Shell House (site) and tower under MP09_0076
and SSD 5824

9.  The following State (DPIE) applications are relevant to the current proposal:

° MPQ9 0076 'CityOne Development' - On 3 April 2012, the Planning
Assessment Commission (PAC) granted consent for a Concept Plan for various
redevelopment of the site and surrounds including development of the former
Shell House, including refurbishments for the purposes of commercial and retail

use. The approval also included:

° Use of site for a mixed use development including commercial offices,
business premises, shops, general retail food and drink premises,
health/medical centre, public amenities, transport facilities and tenant car

parking;

. A planning agreement between the proponent and Transport for NSW for
the provision of a transit hall and through site link and associated public
infrastructure works to an equivalent value of $20 million and a payment of
$18.5 million towards works within the Wynyard Station Precinct.

11



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

. SSD 5824 ‘One Carrington Street’ — On 25 September 2015, State Significant
Development (SSD) consent was granted for the Stage 1 One Carrington Street
concept approval, consisting of demolition of the Menzies Hotel, and 301 George
Street, construction and use of a 27 storey commercial building on the land
between Carrington Street and George Street and public domain works. The
approval included refurbishment of 285-287 George Street and Shell House for
commercial and retail uses.

Mod No. | Summary of modifications Status
MOD 1 Design refinements Granted 11 August 2016
MOD 2 Stratum subdivision Granted 30 November 2016
MOD 3 Increase the extent of demolition works Granted 23 February 2017
to Shell House
MOD 4 Design refinements Granted 31 March 2017
MOD 5 Administrative changes Granted 28 October 2016
MOD 6 Inclusion of additional void zones within Granted 22 May 2018
four levels of Shell House
MOD 7 Amend the timing to establish the Withdrawn
footpath alignment levels within the
public domain plan
MOD 8 Design refinements Granted 27 June 2019
MOD 9 Design refinements and construction Granted 19 December 2019
hours extension
MOD 10 | Design refinements and floor levels Granted 24 September 2019
changes to support accessibility and
servicing requirements
MOD 11 | Reconfiguration of the tower lobby Granted 25 September 2019
including replacement of the previously
approved stairs and ramp with a new
revolving door; new awning; new sliding
door at the entrance of Wynyard Lane
bridge.

12




Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Amendments

10. On 19 November 2020 a meeting was held with the applicant and City staff to discuss
several items including the design of the roof terrace awnings and the items raised in
the submissions received.

11. A revised Acoustic Assessment was received on 23 November 2020. See Discussion
below.

12. On 21 December 2020, revised awning plans were submitted as discussed with
Council's Heritage Specialist. This issue is discussed elsewhere in the report.

Proposed Development

13. The application seeks consent for the following:

o use of the ground floor, Level 09 and 10 as a food and drink premises (pub) and
associated fitout works including new retractable awnings to Level 09 terrace,
internal kitchen, bar, coolrooms, and a new roof cowl over the level 10 kitchen
exhaust;

. outdoor seating to Levels 09 (112pp) and 10 (60 pp);

° proposed hours of operation are 24 hours per day for both indoor and outdoor
seating; and

. proposed total capacity of 885 split up as follows: 275 (ground floor), 315 (level
09), 295 (level 10).

The applicant intends to use the existing hotel licence for the Menzies Hotel (14
Carrington St Sydney) which was modified in January 2020 to suit the subject
application boundaries (See Discussion below).

14. Levels 09 and 10 of the pub are proposed to be accommodated within a 2 storey glazed
addition approved under development consent SSD 5824 (see History below). No
external works are proposed apart from the awnings in this application.

15. Plans and elevations of the proposed development are provided below.

13



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

]

{
it
£
i
#[

Figure 8: Proposed ground floor plan

14



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

® ®

DAVIT ARM ROUTE EXCLUEICH

DALY LOOSE FLRMTURE N THE AREA
x5

t——— RETANEQ EXSTING
5

310
EXBTNG FACPOLE
[ 10 BE REINSFATED

—
2EONMHENTRDON AREA

L

5000
RETANED EXIETNG FACALE ;
r AND CLOCK TOWER

®

v

CARRINGTON STREET

3/ DA-1008
9000
LNE OF VOD AEOVE

T
‘- RETAINEDEXETING

12000

]

EXETING FLAGROLE
70 6E AERSTATED

SP

Figure 9: Proposed Level 09 plan

15



3 February 2021

Local Planning Panel

ONINMY 03U¥3d.

MOT38 ONINMY
FNEVLOVHIIY

MOT3E ONINWY NOT3E ONINMY
F1BVLOVYLIY FNEVLOVALIS

MoT38——
e e L
l

MO8
| ONNMY 03Lv3Td |

Figure 10: Proposed Level 10 plan

16



3 February 2021

Local Planning Panel

z(p

W0O LSNWHX3 NIHOLIN M3N

| ONINWY ITBYLOVHIIY | = ONINIMY 31BVLOVELIY|
{

60 13AIT

O\ MO 30VaaL

17

Figure 11: Proposed Roof Plan showing awnings to Level 9



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

— — — SHRl -
RL7OT70
‘ — L]
i s 4 ‘ RETRACTABLE AWNING
|| wircren == T‘ i PLEATED SHADING
1 i LU L]
1 i e =
NE L = .,,T,A;‘,.A S T S | 35 3 B
v LI TERRACE [ 1 ‘
£ | | 1
MAIN DINING! DISPENSE & 11388 [ 121
y SHowl0s  wr
RL6225%0
/17 _PAVILION CROSS SECTION
U Soale: 1:100
Figure 12: Proposed section plan of top 2 floors
\ \ I Al |
8 et an no,
. I
= S i S A== ‘_'L_——l‘
=t El i e e —
| ] ] [

|

[
l
I
|

[
1
[
1
[
[
[

|
4F4|4T41444 T
|
I
|
|
|
|
)

I=Ef=EI=IE=0I=IE==I0|=
" o e g =
= 45 s x o T
S
b e
FIRE BOOSTER
ACCESS TO LEVEL 08 MARGARET STREET RETAIL ENTRY

RETAIL FACILITIES

Figure 13: Proposed East Elevation on right (To Wynyard Lane) and West Elevation (to Margaret St)
showing entries to premises

18



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Figure 14: Proposed photomontage (revised awning design)

Assessment

16. The proposed development has been assessed under Section 4.15 of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act).

State Environmental Planning Policies
Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney Harbour Catchment) 2005

17. The site is located within the designated hydrological catchment of Sydney Harbour and
is subject to the provisions of the above SREP. The SREP requires the Sydney Harbour
Catchment Planning Principles to be considered in the carrying out of development
within the catchment.

18. The site is within the Sydney Harbour Catchment and eventually drains into Sydney
Harbour. However, the site is not located in the Foreshores Waterways Area or adjacent
to a waterway and therefore, with the exception of the objective of improved water
quality, the objectives of the SREP are not applicable to the proposed development. The
development is consistent with the controls contained within the deemed SEPP.

19



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Local Environmental Plans

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012

19. An assessment of the proposed development against the relevant provisions of the
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 is provided in the following sections.

Part 2 Permitted or prohibited development

Land Use Table

Provision Compliance Comment
2.3 Zone | Yes The site is located in the B8 Metropolitan Centre
objectives and zone.

The proposal seeks development consent as a food
and drink premises (specifically defined as a 'pub' due
to the nature of the existing liquor license (hotel
license)) but will operate as a restaurant/bar.

During the preliminary assessment, the use was
clarified with the applicant, who confirmed the
proposed use is a restaurant/bar but specifically will
be defined as a pub as the use will utilise an existing
hotel license. It is considered to generally align with
the definitions of 'pub’ in the SLEP 2012 as follows:

'Pub’ means licensed premises under the Liquor
Act 2007, the principal purpose of which is the
retail sale of liquor for consumption on the
premises, whether or not the premises include
hotel or motel accommodation and whether or not
food is sold or entertainment is provided on the
premises.

It is noted that the following uses were approved in
the SSD application (SSD 5824) where it specifically
noted the following uses to Shell House were
approved:

- Retail at Carrington St;

- 'Retail (restaurant/bar) within the rooftop pavilion
(21037sgm) and

- Commercial at levels two to ten.

The proposed development is defined as a pub but
will operate as a restaurant/bar (food and drink
premises) and is permissible with consent in the zone
(both uses are permitted). The proposal generally
meets the objectives of the zone.

The use is generally consistent with the SSD approval
and the provisions of the SLEP 2012.

20




Local Planning Pan

el

3 February 2021

Part 4 Principal development standards

ratio

Provision Compliance Comment

4.3 Height of | Yes A maximum building height of 55m is permitted. The

buildings proposed awnings do not exceed the maximum height
as they are proposed at a height of approximately 51m.

4.4 Floor space | Yes No additional floor space is sought. The proposed

development complies with the maximum floor space
ratio development standard.

Part 5 Miscellaneous provisions

Provision

Compliance

Comment

5.10 Heritage
conservation

Yes

The site is a local heritage item known as ‘Former
Shell House and Interiors’ in the SLEP 2012. Works to
the building were approved under the approved base
building SSD, including the total removal of the
concrete floor slabs due to significant deterioration
whilst the building was used as a hotel. The SSD
approval then granted consent for the reconstruction
of the floors within the heritage building at a slightly
different height to better respond to the floor levels
within the new tower development. As such, the
remaining significant heritage fabric is limited to the
perimeter walls and clock tower.

The proposed internal fitout works are considered to
be sympathetic to the heritage fabric of Shell House
and will not have an adverse impact on any remaining
heritage fabric on the internal areas of the perimeter
walls.

The proposed awnings at Level 10 were reviewed
with the City’s Heritage Specialist and Urban Design
Specialist. Concerns were raised with the original
proposal due to the impact of the awning on the clock
tower and appearance of the heritage building.
Revised plans were received on 21 December 2020
which amended the design of the awnings.

The revisions were reviewed by the City's Heritage
Specialist. The proposal generally complies with the
relevant aims, objectives and controls of the LEP and
DCP, subject to conditions.

21




Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Development Control Plans

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012

20. An assessment of the proposed development against the relevant provisions within the
Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 is provided in the following sections.

Section 2 — Locality Statements

21. The site is located within the Wynyard Park and Lang Park Special Character Area. The
proposed development is in keeping with the unique character and the design principles
of the Wynyard Park/Lang Park special character area locality in that it is consistent with
the strong commercial uses in the area, whilst respecting the historic significance of
heritage buildings in their context.

Section 3 — General Provisions

Provision Compliance | Comment

3.9 Heritage Yes The site is a heritage item. See Clause 5.10 of SLEP 2012
discussion above. Subject to conditions, the proposal
adequately addresses the heritage provisions of the

SDCP 2012.
3.11 Transport | Yes The provision of additional bike parking or car parking is
and Parking not required by the SLEP 2012 or SDCP 2012. The site

is easily accessible by public transport as it is opposite
Wynyard Train Station, close to bus routes, and the light
rail.

In addition, the approved SSD application provides End of
Trip facilities in the basement level of the base build with
approximately 445 bicycle spaces and other locker and
shower facilities for the use of the commercial tenants in
the building, and car parking for 89 cars and seven service
vehicle parking bays.

3.12 Accessible | Yes The building can provide for equitable access, as it

Design contains lifts and adequate sanitary facilities. It is
considered to be able to comply with the relevant BCA
provisions.

3.13 Social and | Yes The proposal is consistent with CPTED principles and has

Environmental been accompanied by a Plan of Management outlining

Responsibilities security and management processes to adequately

minimise criminal behaviour at the premises, which is
proposed to operate for 24 hours. Sight lines to the lifts are
provided and the proposal is not considered to have
adverse impacts on the community. The NSW Police
commented on the proposal noting no objection subject to
conditions, which have been included where relevant.

22



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision

Compliance

Comment

3.14 Waste

Yes

A condition has been recommended to ensure the
proposed development complies with the relevant
provisions of the City of Sydney Guidelines for Waste
Management in New Development.

3.15 Late Night
Trading
Management

Partial
compliance

The premises is located in a Late Night Management
Area and the use is defined as a category A premises as
the capacity of the licensed venue is over 200. The
proposed trading hours are 24 hours Mondays to
Sundays, indoor and outdoor.

Indoor Trading Hours

The base hours permitted for Category A premises are
between 6am to 12am midnight for indoor seating. Hours
can be extended (as a maximum) to 24 hours per day,
for indoor seating only, on a trial basis.

Clause 3.15.4(8) of the SDCP 2012 outlines that
premises seeking extended trading hours may be
permitted up to two additional operating hours per trial
period if a previous trial period is considered by the
Council to have been satisfactory. Clause 3.15.4(6)
further notes that extended trading hours beyond base
hours may be permitted at the initial application stage,
but only where the Council has determined that the
premises have been or will be well managed, including
compliance with an approved Plan of Management.

As an adequate Plan of Management and Acoustic
Assessment have been submitted, there are no direct
residents immediately adjacent, and it is considered
there will be minimal adverse impacts as a result of the
development, a trial period for indoor seating between
6am and 2.00am (the following day) is recommended.
Following a 12 month trial period for these hours, an
additional 2 hour extended operating period can be
issued (i.e. until 4.00am) and if the premises can
demonstrate good management, after 5 years, 24 hour
trading can be granted.

23




Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision

Compliance

Comment

Outdoor Trading Hours

Provision 3.15 of the SDCP 2012 permits extended
outdoor trading hours in the Late Night Management
Area between 9am and 1lam (the following day), in 2 hour
increments, for a trial period of 12 months. Base hours
permitted are 10am to 10pm. As such, 24 hour trading for
the outdoor areas is not supported. A condition restricting
the permitted hours of operation to align with the SDCP
2012 is recommended, with a trial period recommended
between 9am to 12.00am midnight for a 12 month period.

The recommended hours of operation for outdoor trading
are 9.00am to 12.00am (midnight) and will be subject to
a 12 month trial as per Clause 3.15.4(8) of the SDCP
2012. It is considered permitting outdoor hours at 9.00am
is acceptable given it is not likely to have adverse noise
impacts.

Section 4 — Development Types

4.2 Residential Flat, Commercial and Mixed Use Developments

Provision Compliance | Comment

4.2.3 Amenity

4231 Solar | Yes The new awnings do not result in any significant

access overshadowing impacts to the public realm or any nearby
residential properties.

4.2.3.5 Partial The proposal does not entirely align with the approved

Landscaping compliance | SSD drawings in terms of landscaping, as the awning

was not approved in the overarching base consent.

To ensure no net loss of landscaping as per the
approved terrace plans, a condition is recommended to
require landscaping to the terrace levels in accordance
with the SSD approved plans.

See Discussion

24




Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

42311
Acoustic privacy

Yes

An Acoustic Report was provided with the application.
The proposal was referred to the City’s Health Team
who raised no concerns subject to conditions.

Following receipt of a number of submissions noting the
Acoustic Report failed to address the impacts of the use
on the residential building at 2 York St (‘Portico’
building), the Acoustic Report was revised to include an
assessment against the noise impacts to this building.
The City's Health Team are satisfied that, subject to
compliance with the acoustic report, the development
will not result in adverse acoustic impacts to apartments
at 2 York Street, which is located 58m away.

See Discussion

4.2.6 Waste and
recycling
Management

Yes

A condition is recommended to ensure the proposed
development complies with the relevant provisions of
the City of Sydney Guidelines for Waste Management in
New Development.

4. Section 5 — Specific Areas

Provision

Compliance

Comment

Central Sydney

Yes

Provision 5.1.2.1 of the SDCP 2012 requires new
additions above a heritage item to be setback at least
10m from the street frontage. The SSD permitted a
setback of 6m from the street frontage for the two storey
addition to Shell House.

During the assessment the applicant was requested to
amend the awnings, which were proposed with a nil
setback and with permanent posts that were within the
6m setback. The amended awning design addresses
this provision - refer Discussion below.

Discussion

Use and Noise Impacts

22. The proposed use is generally consistent with the SSD consent, where the use of Shell
House as a restaurant/bar within the rooftop pavilion was approved. Retail uses were
approved at the ground floor levels, and food and drink premises are a form of retail use
as defined in the Sydney LEP 2012. The fitout and operation of the proposed
restaurant/bar were to be the subject of separate future development applications.

25



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

23.

24,

25.

The subject application was accompanied by an Acoustic Report. As discussed
elsewhere in this report, the Acoustic Report did not originally highlight a residential
building 58m from the site at 2 York Street. A revised Acoustic Report was submitted
providing a noise assessment incorporating this property. The Acoustic Assessment
confirms there would be no adverse noise impacts to this property, subject to conditions.
The City's Health team have reviewed the Acoustic Report, application and
accompanying documents, and support the proposal, subject to conditions.

Outdoor seating at Levels 9 and 10 was also approved with the SSD consent. Within the
Secretary's Assessment Report dated September 2015 (Section 5.5.5) it was
considered that there would not be undue noise nuisance as:

(@) the terrace fronting Carrington/Margaret Street is located behind the existing
sandstone parapet of Shell House, which will act as a buffer to noise;

(b) the terrace located behind the Shell House clock plinth is enclosed on all four
sides, which will direct any noise upwards rather than outwards;

(c) the development will be operated in accordance with the Acoustic Assessment
submitted with the application;

(d) there are no sensitive receivers (residential and the like) nearby the site; and

(e) potential noise impacts will be considered in detail as part of the future
development application for the fit-out and operation of the roof top
restaurant/bar.

Given the above has been adequately addressed within the application and/or through
conditions of consent in relation to management and the like, the proposal, subject to a
12 month trial period for an extended two hour trading period (i.e. base hours plus two
extended hours) is supported. This is consistent with the SDCP 2012 provisions for
Late Night Trading Areas. Refer below.

Proposed Hours of Operation and Liquor Licencing

26.

27.

The proposed development includes licenced food/drink premise uses on Ground
Floor, Level 09 and Level 10. The premises will operate as a single tenancy with one
operator, the 'Point Group' who operate Bondi Icebergs and Bar in Bondi Beach as
well as five other Sydney venues. However, the premises will provide three 'outlets’ to
patrons over the three levels.

Further assessment on the relevant aspects of the proposal are discussed below.

Hours of operation

28.

29.

As per Provision 3.15 of SDCP 2012 the proposal is a Category A - High Impact
Premises and is within a Late Night Trading Area.

The application seeks consent to operate 24 hour both indoor and outdoor, with the
outdoor seating contained to levels 09 and 10 only.

26



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

As a Category A premises, the base permitted indoor hours are 6am to midnight and
extended indoor hours are 24 hours. The proposed hours comply with these
provisions, subject to successful trial periods as outlined in Clause 3.15.4 of the SDCP
2012

Permitted base outdoor hours are 10am to 10pm and extended outdoor hours are 9am
to 1am. The application seeks consent for 24 hour trading throughout the three levels
including outdoor seating on Levels 09 and 10, comprising capacities of 102 patrons
(level 09) and 60 patrons (level 10).

Though 24 hour trading is not consistent with what is permitted within the SDCP 2012
as a new premises, once adequate trial periods have been undertaken demonstrating
good management, indoor 24 hour trading may be permitted with consent subject to
an assessment of future Section 4.55 modification applications. Outdoor trading hours
are recommended to be restricted to the base hours plus an earlier opening time
(9am) and 2 hour trial for the evening hours to permit operating until 12am midnight,
consistent with the context of the premises as a CBD business and given the Acoustic
Report, reviewed by the City's Environmental Health team, raises no issues with the
use operating at 24 hour trading.

Until such time the following condition is recommended for the hours of operation:

(a) Atrial period for indoor and outdoor seating is recommended for 12 months for
the following hours;

()  Indoor: 6.00am to 2.00am (the following day)
(i)  Outdoor: 9.00am to 12.00am (midnight)

The above hours are recommended as the surrounding context is suitable for such
hours, and the hours align with the broader strategic objectives for the City of Sydney’s
late-night trading economy. In addition, a selection of nearby bars with approved
trading hours beyond midnight include:

(@) Pool Club — 320 George St - and Ivy Precinct — 330 George St

() D/2005/1977/Q - Approval to operate until 4.00am (including the outdoor
pool area) for trial period until 2025

(b) Angel Hotel - 125 Pitt St

() D/2005/1670/D - 8.00am to 2.00am (following day) Mondays to Saturdays
for trial period until 2025.

(c) York Lane —56 Clarence St

(i) D/f2011/1932 - 10.00am to 1.00am the following day (internal) and 8.30am
to 1.00am the following day (outdoors)

The proposal is therefore not inconsistent with the character of the surrounding area.
Further, the application has submitted a Plan of Management and Acoustic Report
which have been reviewed and supported by the City’s Environmental Health and
Licensed Premises teams with no major issues identified. Any renewal of extended
hours will be assessed against the SDCP 2012 Clause 3.15.4(14) and (15).

27



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Liquor Licence Type

36. The applicant has submitted a liquor licence in the name of ‘Menzies Hotel’ at 14
Carrington Street which was demolished as part of the SSD consent (see Figure 15
below). The liquor licence is a liquor-hotel (full hotel) licence and has 24 hour trading
permitted to certain areas. The licensee is the name of the applicant/owner of the
subject DA and site, Brookfield Commercial.

37. The use of the hotel licence for a restaurant/bar is acceptable and it has been clarified
with the applicant and Liquor and Gaming NSW that the proposed areas for licencing
can operate under the liquor licence subject to amendments with Liquor and Gaming
NSW. It is proposed to extend the liquor license to include all three levels subject to
approval from Liquor Gaming NSW.

Figure 15: Menzies Hotel at 14 Carrington St prior to demolition (Source: Google)

38. The City’s Licensed Premises team do not object to the proposal and noted
correspondence from Liquor Gaming NSW confirming that ‘licenses have been
granted over multiple tenancies before, as long as the relevant development consent is
in place’.

39. The proposal therefore complies with the provisions of the Liquor Act and the
provisions of the Sydney CBD Entertainment legislation.

Awnings

40. The site is a locally listed heritage item as discussed above, with the SSD consent
approving a two-storey glazed addition, setback 6m from the parapets.

41. Concerns were raised by the City’s Urban Design and Heritage team in relation to the
proposed awnings to the rooftop terrace (see figure 16 below). They were originally
considered to have adverse impacts on the heritage item in respect of their length,
which proposed a nil setback to the boundary. The applicant met with the City's
Heritage and Urban Design team to discuss an amended proposal for the rooftop level.

28



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

VARICSHADE PERGOLA

——— DAVIT ARM QUTLINE

Figure 17 - Original section of awning design (Superseded)

29



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Figure 19 - Revised awning system to L09

30



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

g O

N SHRoof
RL70.770

HELIOSHADE PERGOLA

PLEATED SHADING

DAVIT ARM OUTLINE

FIXING DETAIL SUBJECT TO
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

EXISTING FACADE

2454
2537

S09.11
TERRACE

W SHiswey.. . A IUEE SIS 5 S N | SE— N N S -
RLE2250

Figure 20 - Revised section plan of awning design

LOCATION & EXTENT OF FALLARREST
SYSTENIBINOCATNE CLY BPECFIC
REDUFMFNTA FXTNT 10 AF

Figure 21 - Proposed roof plan showing awnings in full extension

31



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

42. The awnings have been amended with pleated shades and a retractable awning,
proposed at a lower height, to improve the visual impact of the awnings as well as
alleviate the need for the originally proposed permanent awning posts. The pleated
shades cover approximately 50% of the outdoor area and are set in from the parapet
by 2m (see Figure 21 above).

43. The awnings appear lightweight and subservient in the context of the new glazed
addition and Shell House heritage item, and further, provide a more appropriate

complement to the outdoor seating, rather than creating additional 'all weather' seating
areas.

44. The proposal was referred to the City's Heritage team who noted they support the
proposal subject to conditions, included in the conditions of consent.

Landscaping / Outdoor seating

45. The terrace plans approved under the SSD 5824 consent show trees and planting in

the outdoor seating areas (see Figure 21). No awning structures were approved in this
consent.

46. To ensure no net loss of landscaping to the terraces, the proposal is supported subject
to a condition to this effect.

| |

WYNYARD LANE

|lnl- NN o3
I ) . «

o)
oo

2357

o T

....m.

II

o (=] m“"l"lml -
3

— l‘ ’lll"‘“

K=’

Jlll

~
KEY
1. Paving flush with internal FFL
2. Potential custom furniture + planters
3. Tree and mass planting in movable pots
4.Tree -+ Mass planting bed fitering views between office spaces
5. Potential seating to facade openings

Figure 22 - Approved landscape plan for terrace level 09 (Source: SSD 5824 Mod 4)

47. The approved plan for Level 10 shows outdoor seating to the indicated area proposed
in this application (see Figure 23).

32



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

|

WYNYARD LANE

KEY
1 1. Paving flush with internal FFL with movable seating to tennant

detail
= 2. Extensive green roof to pavilions

Figure 23 - Approved landscape plan for terrace level 10 (Source: SSD 5824 Mod 4)

Consultation

Internal Referrals

48. The application was discussed with the following internal units:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Council's Building Services Unit:

(i)

No issues raised noting the BCA report relates to the base building
SSD consent which would address relevant fire-safety compliance.

Environmental Health Unit;

(i)

(i)

The first referral noted no objection subject to recommended
conditions including standard food premises conditions and a
condition for the proposal to comply with the acoustic report.

After submissions raised the issue of omitting the residential building
at 2 York St Sydney (‘Portico’ units), discussions with the relevant
health officer were undertaken. Whilst generally not considered a
major issue, the officer recommended the applicant revise the
Acoustic Report to include this residential building, located 58m
away. A second referral was sent following the receipt of the revised
Acoustic Report. Again, no objection was raised, subject to the
inclusion of the recommended conditions and the 'Noise -
Entertainment' condition.

Licenced Premises;

(i)

No objection subject to recommended conditions of consent

Heritage and Urban Design

(i)

As discussed above, the awning design as revised addresses
heritage concerns raised. No further concerns subject to conditions;

33



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

(e) Waste Management unit

() The Waste Management team raised concerns with the proposal as
there was limited information on the larger scale waste strategies, as
the tenancy is part of a larger scale development with an approved
Waste Mgmt Plan as part of the base consent. Separate conditions of
consent on the base DA cover the waste management strategies,
locations and loading docks. Subject to standard conditions it is
considered that the building will operate waste collection through the
broader SSD consents and loading dock for the site as a whole.

External Referrals

NSW Police

49. The application was referred to NSW Police for comment.

50. A response was received raising no objections to the proposed development subject to
conditions, though it was noted the comment related to the original notification which
had the incorrect hours of operation (see Summary on Page 1 above).

51. A follow up email was sent on December 2, 2020, confirming the hours of operation of
24 hour trading, and further asking if any issues were raised. No response was
received. It is presumed no further objection/conditions are recommended.

52. The original conditions recommended by NSW Police have been included in the

Recommended Conditions of Consent.

Advertising and Notification

53.

54.

In accordance with the City of Sydney Community Participation Plan 2019, the
proposed development was notified for a period of 21 days between 26 October 2020
and 17 November 2020, and again between 28 October 2020 and 19 November 2020
following an error in the hours of operation in the notification as discussed above. A
total of 570 properties were notified and 20 submissions were received. Two
submissions were from the same person, and one was in support. Therefore, a total of
18 objections were received.

The submissions raised the following issues, listed in order of number of mentions:

° Issue: Noise impacts and 24 hour trading. The permitted hours should be
as per 'City Living Area'. A trial period should be imposed

34



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Response: The Acoustic Report was referred to the City’s Environmental Health
team who raised no concerns subject to conditions. On 23 November 2020 a
revised Acoustic Report was submitted (prepared by Acoustic Logic dated
23/11/2020 V 10) which outlines an assessment of the impacts to the residential
property at 2 York St (noted as R7 on Page 7). The revised report notes that
subject to the inclusion of various building and management controls including
facade glazing, internal music noise and management controls, outdoor speaker
limits, waste removals and delivery conducted from the basement, and vibration
isolating of the speakers and other noise generating equipment, the proposal can
comply with the relevant noise legislation and criteria. The revised report was
reviewed by the City’s Environmental Health team who recommended approval
subject to conditions. It is considered overall that the imposition of the noise
mitigation strategies in the Acoustic Report and the conditions of consent
imposed on the application would work in conjunction to mitigate any noise
impacts from the proposal .The site is in a commercial/CBD context, in character
with the surroundings, and is consistent with the objectives of the Late Night
Management Area provisions contained within the SDCP 2012. It is not within a
City Living Area therefore the permitted hours of operation are not required to
meet these controls. The recommended hours of operation of the base permitted
hours, plus two extended hours, is recommended for approval within the
conditions of consent. The trial period will enable Council to review the
management of the premises and if necessary, revert the hours of operating
back to the base permitted under the SDCP 2012.

° Issue: Noise impacts to Portico Apartments (2 York Street) are not outlined
in the Acoustic Report, the SEE or EIS.

Response: In regard to the omission of the subject property (2 York St) from the
Acoustic Report, the City’s Environmental Health Officer noted the property was
over 50m away from the site however for clarity the applicant was requested to
include this property in the Acoustic Assessment as discussed above. The
additional noise measurement carried out by Acoustic Logic at the boundary of
the proposed site to the relevant residence at 2 York Street shows that the
predicted noise level is satisfactory. This was reviewed by the City's
Environmental Health Officer and considered acceptable subject to standard
noise conditions which have been imposed on the recommended conditions of
consent.

As this issue has since been rectified, the concern has been addressed.
Amendments to the SEE and EIS are not required prior to consent being issued.

° Issue: The entry and exits of all these venues should have security to
ensure that patrons entering or exiting are monitored; a 24 hr contact
number of any operator should be supplied to local residents; 3 operators
for each venue could be an issue.

Response: Appropriate conditions of consent are recommendedto address
security concerns including a requirement to comply with the Plan of
Management submitted, which provides relevant information to address these
issues. The applicant has advised there will be one operator for the premises.
The Plan of Management was reviewed by the City's Licensed Premises team
with no major concerns noted subject to standard conditions relating to CCTV,
security, neighbourhood amenity, and recording of incidents. As also noted
earlier, NSW Police have not raised any significant concerns with the proposal
subject to conditions.

35



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

. Issue: Community consultation has not been undertaken by the applicant.
The notification time of 3 weeks is too short.

Response: There is no legislative requirement for community consultation to be
undertaken by the. The 3 week notification period is determined by the
Community Participation Plan 2019 and there is no requirement to notify for
longer. The City of Sydney notified the proposal correctly to residents/owners of
properties within a 50m radius.

. Issue: Our heritage listed building (2 York St) cannot install double glazing
to the first 6 floors for sound attenuation to deal with noise impacts.

Response: The Acoustic Assessment confirms that subject to conditions the
proposal will not have an unacceptable noise impact, including to this residential
building. There are no specific City of Sydney policies to restrict double glazing,
and the City's Heritage Specialist advises that double glazing may be permitted
with consent, unless the Conservation Management Plan for the building
specifically prohibits it.

. Issue: Concern the application proposes a different use of the Ground
Floor of Shell House from the use previously approved by the City of
Sydney for gallery and community use as part of the office fitout for NAB
(D/2018/318).

Response: The subject application is for the fit out and use of the Margaret
Street Ground Floor tenancy and L09 and 10 of Shell House which are outside of
the approved tenancy plans in D/2018/318. Due to the slope of the site, the
gallery use is the level above Upper Ground level (entry from Carrington St). The
Ground Floor in this application is accessed from Margaret St and is a different
level, approved for use as a restaurant in the SSD application. Refer Figure 24
and 25 below where the RL’s for the subject site entry are 16.330 and the
approved RL for the gallery is 19.680 (approximately 3.3m above). Also see
Figure 8 above for the elevations where the entry door to Carrington St is
demonstrated as being a level up from the entry door to Margaret St.

36



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

| | WYNYARD LANE
! ! RL 15057
L 1504
&— == o= == = = = =
1 " = o
| N I \\ W1 J
1 1ifif 5\
':| 1 N/
! STORE FDR / 0
g A
& i ' ! ! | T—
€ | I — : -
11 1 1 1
"l | | |
— I
Ll I 1 1 |
== | |
v A I |
= 1 | 1
(§N] E P
T | 6 o=
PL] id AL LI *
e 1 1 '.C 1 1
= | GALLERY ‘ g hFE _ i
. Hod- NER SHOMNCASHED, .
| — i .
\SC} [
[
. o

COMMUNITY

1
| . # lilf_=
| RL 18008 RL 18237
] | | SHELL HOUSE |
) ® © ©

Figure 24: Extract from Floor Plan — Carrington St — approved in D/2018/318 - note RL in red box

37



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

| MARGARET STREET
— TENANCY ENTRY
]

[T 11 || ~® <

[
‘/.
¢
2 / DA-1008

Figure 25: Proposed ground floor RL’s

. Issue: The thickest glazing should be required for all external windows on
the rooftop walls.

Response: The recommended glazing for the fagade as outlined in the Acoustic
Report will be required to be installed as a condition of consent.

. Issue: Pokies machines and a 24 hour venue would be detrimental to the
neighbourhood.

Response: The application makes no reference to gaming machines and there
are none shown on the application drawings.. Regardless, the City has no
jurisdiction over gaming machines as they are approved by Liquor and Gaming
NSW.. A response to the proposed operating hours is provided above.

° Issue: Proposal goes against the 'agent of change' principle

Response: The proposal is for a pub, to operate as a food and drink
(restaurant/bar) premises, which has been approved in principle by the
Department of Planning, Industry and Environment in the SSD consents. The
‘agent of change' principle requires new development to consider existing land
uses. It asks new development to manage noise impacts through the design and
construction of the building or the operations in the building. It is considered the
application has done this through the submission of the revised Acoustic
Assessment, Plan of Management and the conditions of consent which relate to
noise and amenity impacts. In addition, the CBD location of the venue, in the B8
Metropolitan Centre zone, is considered to provide justification for the use and
hours of operation. The site is not within a residential area. The proposal is in
line with the City's CBD 24 hour economy objectives outlined in 'OPEN Sydney
Strategy and Action Plan 2013-2030'.

38



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

. Issue: The Menzies Hotel is a different location and there are
inconsistencies with the liquor licence.

Response: The proposal intends to utilise the liquor licence for the Menzies
Hotel, at 14 Carrington St, demolished as part of the broader SSD consent to
which this site falls within. The relevant liquor licence was amended on 7
January 2020 to change the boundaries and minors area authorisation. A copy
has been provided to the City of Sydney.

The applicant has advised:

- Menzies Hotel incorporated the properties from 2-28 Carrington St, however
commonly was referred to as 14 Carrington St; and

- Brookfield are seeking to amend the liquor licence to have the Margaret St and
rooftop venues specifically referenced in the licence.

This will be undertaken as an application to Liquor and Gaming NSW.
Discussions with Liquor and Gaming NSW have been undertaken where it is
noted that the extension of the liquor licence to the rooftop levels can be
undertaken subject to a relevant planning consent. The City's Licensed Premises
team support the application subject to conditions.

° Issue: The proposal will have lighting impacts in terms of amenity

Response: Standard lighting emissions in association with the venue would not
be unreasonable in this instance, nor would this be a reason for refusal.

Financial Contributions

Levy under Section 61 of the City of Sydney Act 1988

55.

56.

The cost of the development is in excess of $200,000. The development is therefore
subject to a levy under the Central Sydney Development Contributions Plan 2013.

A condition relating to this levy has been included in the recommended conditions of
consent in the Notice of Determination. The condition requires the contribution to be
paid prior to the issue of a construction certificate.

Conclusion

57.

58.

59.

The application proposes a fitout and use of three levels of the existing heritage item
known as ‘former Shell House' at 2-12 Carrington Street, as a pub, operating as a
licensed restaurant/bar. Outdoor seating is proposed to the roof terrace levels.

The proposal subject to conditions is generally consistent with the objectives and
provisions of the Sydney LEP 2012 and Sydney DCP 2012. Instances where the
proposal varies with DCP controls have been assessed as acceptable subject to
conditions, including restricting hours of operation as per the provisions of the SDCP
2012 for Late Night Management Areas.

The proposed outdoor terrace awnings design have been revised to sympathetically
address the heritage item and visual impacts and are supported subject to conditions.

39



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

60. The premises is of a scale suitable to the B8 Metropolitan Centre zone and Late Night
Management Area; and subject to conditions will not cause adverse impacts on the
amenity of the surrounding area. The applicant has adequately addressed noise
impacts to the residential apartments discussed in the submissions in the revised
Acoustic Assessment.

61. The proposal is in the public interest and is recommended for approval subject to
conditions.

ANDREW THOMAS

Executive Manager Development

Amy-Grace Douglas, Senior Planner

40



Attachment A

Recommended Conditions of Consent

41




CONDITIONS OF CONSENT
SCHEDULE 1A

APPROVED DEVELOPMENT/DESIGN MODIFICATIONS/COVENANTS AND
CONTRIBUTIONS/USE AND OPERATION

Note: Some conditions in Schedule 1A are to be satisfied prior to issue of a Construction
Certificate and some are to be satisfied prior to issue of Occupation Certificate, where
indicated.

(1) APPROVED DEVELOPMENT

(&) Development must be in accordance with Development Application No.
D/2020/959 dated 14 October 2020 and the following drawings prepared

by Architectus:

Drawing Drawing Name Date
Number

DA-1002 | Margaret Street Tenancy Plan 10.09.2020
Issue 8

DA-1003 | Margaret Street Retail Sections 10.09.2020
Issue 6

DA-1004 | Pavilion — Level 9 Plan 16.12.2020
Issue 9

DA-1005 | Pavilion — Level 10 Plan 16.12.2020
Issue 9

DA-1006 | Pavilion — Roof Plan 16.12.2020
Issue 3

DA-1007 | Pavilion — Sections 16.12.2020
Issue 9

DA-1008 | Shell House Facades 16.12.2020
Issue 7

DA-1009 | 3D Images — Street Level 16.12.2020
Issue 7

DA-1020 | Pavilion - Pergola Details 16.12.2020
Issue 3

and as amended by the conditions of this consent.

(b) In the event of any inconsistency between the approved plans and
supplementary documentation, the plans will prevail.

(2) STAGED OCCUPATION
The occupation of the development may be carried out in stages, with the

relevant conditions being satisfied prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate
where specified in the conditions of consent for each stage as detailed below:

42



(9)

(10)

(3) Stage (4) Occupation
Certificate Area

(5) Stage (6) Ground Floor
1

(7) Stage (8) Levels 09 and 10
2

INDOOR HOURS OF OPERATION - SENSITIVE USES

The indoor hours of operation are regulated as follows:

(@)

(b)

(€)

The indoor hours of operation must be restricted to between 6.00am and
12.00am midnight Monday to Sunday.

Notwithstanding (a) above, the use may operate (indoors) between 6.00am
and 2.00am the following day for a trial period of 12 months from the date
of issue of the first Occupation Certificate. Council’s Health and Building
Unit is to be informed in writing of the date of commencement of the trial
hours. Email notification is to be sent to liquor@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au

A further application may be lodged to continue the operating hours
outlined in (b) above not less than 30 days before the end of the trial
period. Council's consideration of a proposed continuation and/or
extension of the hours permitted by the trial will be based on, among other
things, the performance of the operator in relation to the compliance with
development consent conditions, any substantiated complaints received
and any views expressed by the Police.

OUTDOOR HOURS OF OPERATION - SENSITIVE USES

The outdoor hours of operation are regulated as follows:

(@)

(b)

(c)

The outdoor hours of operation must be restricted to between 10.00am and
10.00pm Monday to Sunday.

Notwithstanding (a) above, the use may operate (outdoors) between
9.00am and 12.00am (midnight) for a trial period of 12 months from the
date of issue of the first Occupation Certificate. Council’'s Health and
Building Unit is to be informed in writing of the date of commencement of
the trial hours. Email notification is to be sent to
liquor@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au

A further application may be lodged to continue the operating hours
outlined in (b) above not less than 30 days before the end of the trial
period. Council’'s consideration of a proposed continuation and/or
extension of the hours permitted by the trial will be based on, among other

43


mailto:liquor@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au
mailto:liquor@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au

(11)

(12)

things, the performance of the operator in relation to the compliance with
development consent conditions, any substantiated complaints received
and any views expressed by the Police.

COMPLIANCE WITH BASE BUILDING CONSENT

Unless otherwise approved, all fitout and construction works approved in this
consent must be in accordance with all relevant approvals for the refurbishment
of Shell House as approved by the NSW Department of Planning, Industry and
Environment in application SSD MP11_0076 and SSD 5824.

SECTION 61 CONTRIBUTIONS PAYABLE - REGISTERED QUANTITY
SURVEYOR'S DETAILED COST REPORT - SUBMITTED AND VERIFIED
PRIOR TO ISSUE OF CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

A cash contribution comprising 1% of the total cost of the development is
payable to the City of Sydney pursuant to section 61 of the City of Sydney Act
1988 and the Central Sydney Development Contributions Plan 2013 in
accordance with the following:

(@) Prior to a Construction Certificate being issued, evidence must be provided
of Council’s written verification of the amount of the contribution as
required in (b) below, and then that the levy has been paid to the Council in
accordance with this condition. Payment may be by EFTPOS (debit card
only), CASH or a BANK CHEQUE made payable to the City of Sydney.
Direct debit, personal or company cheques will not be accepted.

(b) The contribution must not be paid to the City of Sydney until it is
accompanied by separate written verification by the City of Sydney of the
specific amount payable. In order to obtain such verification, the “City of
Sydney Registered Quantity Surveyor's Detailed Cost Report” indicating
the itemised cost of the development must be completed and submitted to
Council by the Accredited Certifier, together with copies of the plans the
subject of the application for the Construction Certificate. A copy of the
required format for the “City of Sydney Registered Quantity Surveyor's
Detailed Cost Report” may be obtained from the City of Sydney One Stop
Shop, any of the Neighbourhood Service Centres and the City of Sydney’s
website (www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au).

(c) The Council will consider the documentation submitted under subclause (b)
and determine the cost of the proposed development having regard to the
information submitted and to such other matters as it considers appropriate
and will notify the Accredited Certifier accordingly.

(d) The items to be included in the calculation of the cost of development are
demolition works, site remediation including decontamination, excavation
and site preparation, construction costs, fit out, professional fees as part of
the design (including design competitions) documentation and
implementation process, fixed building machinery, equipment and
appliances, kitchens and bar areas, car parking, air conditioning plant and
equipment, services (fire, mechanical ventilation, electrical, hydraulic),
ceilings, fire protection devices, installation of services (power, water,
sewer, telephone), lifts and other essential machinery, floor coverings,
Building Code of Australia compliance works, replacement of existing

44


http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/

materials, fixtures and fittings, construction related insurance, assessment
and construction related fees, charges and GST and any other matter not
expressly excluded in (e) below. Any item for which an exemption has
been granted is still to be included in the total cost of development,
together with an itemised value to enable the City to calculate the value of
the exemption.

(e) The items to be excluded in the calculation of the cost of development are
the cost of land, marketing expenses (excluding display suites etc), finance
and interest, building insurance after practical completion, drapery,
commercial stock inventory, loose furniture, loose equipment, loose
electrical appliances, minor maintenance of existing retained fixtures
(patching, repainting) and stamp duty.

Please contact Council's Planning Administration staff at
Planningsystemsadmin@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au to confirm the amount

payable, prior to payment.

(13) AWNING DESIGN

(14)

(@) The outer edges of the proposed retractable awnings must be set back
from the inner face of the heritage parapet by no less than 2m;

(b) The fixing of the proposed pleated shading to the heritage parapet must
minimize its impact on the heritage fabric and structure. Any embedded
fixings or anchors must use stainless steel to avoid corrosion.

(c) Materials for making good to the parapet must match existing.

MAXIMUM CAPACITY OF PERSONS

(@8 The maximum number of persons (including staff, patrons and performers)
permitted in the premises at any one time is 885, split into the following
areas:

(i)  Ground Floor = 275 persons;
(i)  Level 09 = 315 persons (maximum 156 outdoors)
(i)  Level 10 = 295 persons (maximum 74 outdoors)

(b) The capacity for each area shall not exceed the maximum numbers at any
given time.

(c) The manager/licensee is responsible for ensuring the number of persons in
the premises does not exceed that specified above.

(d) A sign in letters not less than 25mm in height must be fixed at the main
entry point to the premises alongside the Licensee’s name stating the
maximum number of persons, as specified in the development consent,
that are permitted in the building. Details are to be provided to the
satisfaction of the Principal Certifier prior to issue of a Construction
Certificate.

45


mailto:Planningsystemsadmin@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au

Note: Clause 98D of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Regulation 2000 requires a sign specifying maximum number of persons
permitted in the building to be displayed in a prominent position for the
following types of premises:

()  entertainment venue,

(i)  function centre,

(i) pub,

(iv) registered club,

(v) restaurant.

(15) COPIES OF CONSENTS AND MANAGEMENT PLANS

(16)

(17)

A full and current copy of all current development consents for the operation of
the licensed premises, and the Plan of Management and the Security
Management Plan must be kept on-site and made available to Police or Council
Officers, or Special Investigator upon request.

PLAN OF MANAGEMENT

The use must always be operated / managed in accordance with the Plan of
Management V02, prepared by Michael Rowe and dated December 2020 that
has been approved by Council. In the event of any inconsistency, the conditions
of this consent will prevail over the Plan of Management.

SECURITY AND QUEUING — CATEGORY A LICENSED PREMISES

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Security guards are to be provided at the premises on Fridays and
Saturdays from 8pm at a minimum ratio of 1 security staff member to 100
patrons or part thereof.

Security personnel shall remain at the premises for at least 30 minutes
after closing and shall assist in ensuring that patrons leave quietly.

All licensed security officers whilst employed at the premises are to wear
clearly identifiable security attire at all times, with the word “SECURITY”
clearly identifiable in bold print at least 200mm high, on the front and back.

Management staff at the venue shall ensure that a clear footway width of
1.5m is maintained at all times along all footpaths immediately adjoining
the premises. Patrons waiting to enter the premises shall queue along the
immediate frontage of the premises. The queue must not obstruct any fire
exit of any building or entrance to any other premises.

When more than one security guard is on duty, security officers and
management shall communicate by hand held radios at all times.

46



(18)

(19)

INCIDENTS — RECORDING AND NOTIFICATION

The manager/licensee must ensure that all incidents involving staff members
(including security personnel) are recorded in the incident register maintained on
site, including incidents involving physical contact between staff and patrons,
physical restraint of patrons and/or the ejection of patrons from the premises.

SURVEILLANCE CAMERAS

(@) CCTV surveillance cameras shall be strategically installed, operated and
maintained throughout the premises with particular coverage to:

(i)  principal entrance/s and exits;
(i)  all areas within the premise occupied by the public (excluding toilets);
(i)  staircases in multilevel premises; and

(iv) the area within a 10m radius external to the public entrance(s) to the
premise.

(b) Suitable and clearly visible signage shall be displayed at the principal
entrance(s) to the premise and in a prominent position on each floor
accessible to the public, in lettering not less than 50mm in height with the
words “Closed Circuit Television in use on these premises”.

(c) All CCTV recording equipment and cameras shall be of high grade digital
quality capable of establishing the population and identification of patrons,
offenders and incidents within the depth of field view of the cameras. In this
respect each surveillance camera shall be capable of recording a minimum
rate of 10 frames per second and at high resolution.

(d) CCTV recording discs or hard drive recordings shall be retained for 28
days before being re-used, destroyed or deleted. Time and date shall be
auto recorded on the disc or hard drive. The CCTV recording equipment
shall be capable of reproducing a CD, DVD, USB or other appropriate
digital copy of recorded footage on demand of Council or Police Officers
either immediately or within 12 hours of the request being made. Copy
discs must be handed to Council, Police Officer or Special Inspectors as
required.

(e) All CCTV recording devices and cameras shall be checked daily to ensure
the equipment is operating correctly. The Licensee shall record this daily
checking activity in the security/incident register book that meets the
standards required by the Licensing Police and Council. If it is discovered
at any time that the equipment is not in full operating order all reasonable
steps must be taken to repair the system as soon as practicable. Where
the system will not be functioning in full operating order for a period of
longer than 24 hours the manager/licensee is to notify the relevant Local
Area Commander of the NSW Police.

()  All CCTV recording devices and cameras shall be operated at all times
when the premises are open to the public and, where premises do not
operate 24 hours a day, continuously for at least 1 hour prior to opening
and closing times of the premises.

47



(20)

(21)

(22)

(23)

(24)

(@) The CCTV recording device shall be secured within the premises and only
be accessible to senior management personnel so as to maintain the
integrity of the recorded footage. When the premises is operating there
must be at least one staff member present at the premises who is
authorised to access the CCTV system and able to immediately review
recordings and produce copies.

(h) Camera views are not to be obstructed by temporary or permanent
structures, signage or other impediments.

NO SPRUIKING NOISE

No persons (such as those commonly known as spruikers) or recordings or other
devices which have the effect of spruiking are to be located on Council owned
property. Furthermore, the sound level of any spruiking generated within
privately owned land must not be audible on any adjacent property with a shared
boundary.

NOISE FROM GLASS REMOVAL

Glass must not be emptied or transferred from one receptacle to another
anywhere in a public place. All glass must be emptied / transferred inside of the
building on the premises and removed in containers.

GLASS CRUSHER

All glass bottles and other glass waste must be reduced to glass shards (by way
of a glass crusher located inside the premises) prior to the removal of such
waste from the premises.

REMOVAL OF GLASS

Patrons must be prevented from removing glasses, opened cans, bottles or
alcohol from the premises (except from any approved bottle shop area) or
approved outdoor dining area included in the boundaries of the licensed
premises.

NEIGHBOURHOOD AMENITY

(@) Signs must be placed in clearly visible positions within the licensed
premises requesting patrons upon leaving the premises to do so quickly
and quietly, having regard to maintaining the amenity of the area. The
signage shall be in bold letters not less than 25mm in height on a
contrasting background.

(b) The management/licensee must ensure that the behaviour of patrons

entering and leaving the premises does not detrimentally affect the amenity
of the neighbourhood.

48



(25) NSW POLICE REQUIREMENTS

In the interest of public safety the following NSW Police requirements must be
adhered to:

(@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

(€)

Crime Scene - Immediately after the person in charge of the Licensed
Premises become aware of an incident involving an act of violence causing
an injury to a person on the premises, the person must: i. Take all practical
steps to preserve and keep intact the area where the act of violence
occurred ii. Retain all materials and implements associated with the act of
violence in accordance with the crime scene preservation guidelines
issued by NSW Police iii. Make direct and personal contact with the Police
Area Commander or his/her delegate and advise the Commander or
delegate of the incident and Comply with any directions given by the
Commander or delegate to preserve or keep intact the area where the
violence occurred.

Security - On Friday and Saturday nights, one (1) security person will be
provided at the hotel from 8:00 pm until 30 minutes after close of
restaurant / bar area’s. Notwithstanding the above, whenever liquor is
available at a function after 8:00pm on Friday or Saturday nights, security
will be engaged at a ratio of 1:100 function patrons.

A Security guard will be provided on Level 9/10 after 8pm until 30 minutes
after close on Friday and Saturday nights when liquor is served or supplied
to that area by hotel staff.

Development Consent - A copy of the relevant development consent is to
be kept on the premises and made available for inspection on the request
of a police officer, council officer, Liquor & Gaming inspector, or any other
person authorised by the Independent Liquor & Gaming Authority.

Incident Register - The licensee must ensure that an incident register is
kept on the premises and; any incident involving any staff member and/or
security personnel; the physical contact and/or physical restraint; the
ejection of a member of the public from the premises; or when a patron,
staff member or security personnel is injured as a result of an assault; is
recorded in this register. The licensee must ensure the incident register
recorded the full names of the staff involved in the incident and produce
the register immediately upon request by members of the NSW Police
Force, or authorised officers of Liquor and Gaming NSW.

Neighbourhood Amenity - The management of the premises:

(i) shall ensure patrons do not crowd or loiter in the vicinity of the
premises in such manner that pedestrian movement is obstructed or
hindered;

(i)  shall ensure that the manner in which the business of the premises is
conducted and/or the behaviour of persons entering and leaving the
premises does not cause undue disturbance to the amenity of the
neighbourhood. In this regard, the management shall be responsible
for the control of noise and litter generated by persons and/or
premises operations. If so directed by Council, the Management is to

49



(f)

employ private security staff to ensure that this condition is complied
with;

(i) shall record in an Incident Register full details of any disturbance
complaints made by a person to management or staff in respect to
the manner in which the business of the premises is conducted
and/or the behaviour of persons entering or leaving the premises.
Such recording will include time, date, nature of the complaints and
any complainant details if provided; and

(iv) shall respond to any disturbance complaints in a timely and effective
manner. All actions undertaken by management / staff to resolve
such complaints shall be recorded in the Register.

Lighting

(i)  Adequate lighting must be provided to all entrances and exits of the
premises, to ensure the safety of all staff and visitors as they arrive,
use and leave the premises.

(26) NOISE - ENTERTAINMENT

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The Laiwo, 15 minue NOISe level emitted from the use must not exceed the
background noise level (Lago, 1sminute) in any Octave Band Centre Frequency
(31.5 Hz to 8 kHz inclusive) by more than 5dB between the hours of
7.00am and 12.00 midnight when assessed at the boundary of any
affected residence.

The Laio 15 minue NOiISe level emitted from the use must not exceed the
background noise level (Laso, 15 minute) in any Octave Band Centre
Frequency (31.5 Hz to 8 kHz inclusive) between the hours of 12.00
midnight and 7.00am when assessed at the boundary of any affected
residence.

Notwithstanding compliance with (a) and (b) above, noise from the use
when assessed as an Laio, 15 minue €Nters any residential use through an
internal to internal transmission path is not to exceed the existing internal
Lago, 15 minute (from external sources excluding the use) in any Octave Band
Centre Frequency (31.5 Hz to 8 kHz inclusive) when assessed within a
habitable room at any affected residential use between the hours of 7am
and 12midnight. Where the Laio, 15 minute NOISE level is below the threshold of
hearing, Tf at any Octave Band Centre Frequency as defined in Table 1 of
International Standard 1SO 226 : 2003- Normal Equal-Loudness-Level
Contours then the value of Tf corresponding to that Octave Band Centre
Frequency shall be used instead.

Notwithstanding compliance with (a), (b) and (c) above, the noise from the
use must not be audible within any habitable room in any residential use
between the hours of 12.00 midnight and 7.00am.

The Laio 15 minue NOISe level emitted from the use must not exceed the
background noise level (Laso, 15 minuwte) in any Octave Band Centre
Frequency (31.5 Hz to 8 kHz inclusive) by more than 3dB when assessed
indoors at any affected commercial premises.

50



(27)

(28)

Note: The Laio, 15 minute NOISE level emitted from the use is as per the definition in
the Australian Standard AS1055-1997 Acoustics — Description and measurement
of environmental noise. The background noise level Lago, 15 minue IS t0 be
determined in the absence of noise emitted by the use and be representative of
the noise sensitive receiver. Background noise monitoring must be carried out in
accordance with the long-term methodology in Fact Sheet B of the NPfl unless
otherwise agreed by the City’s Area Planning Manager.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACOUSTIC REPORT PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION
AND OR OCCUPATION CERTIFICATES

(@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

All relevant performance parameters (including but not limited to
requirements, engineering assumptions and recommendations) in the DA
Acoustic Report prepared by Acoustic Logic ref 20191184.1 titled
‘Environmental Noise Impact Assessment - Council Ref 2020/528193 must
be implemented in the development prior to the commencement of its use.

Prior to the issue of any relevant Construction Certificate, the final
construction drawings and final construction methodology must be
submitted to Councils Area Planning Manager for approval, assessed and
reported to be in accordance with the requirements of the DA Acoustic
Report in (a) above, with reference to relevant documentation. This must
be carried out by a Suitably Qualified Acoustic Consultant* (see definition
below).

Prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate, a Suitably Qualified
Acoustic Consultant* is to provide a written Acoustic Verification Report to
the satisfaction of the Principal Certifier that the development complies with
the requirements set out in the Report and in (a) and (b) above.

Note: Suitably Qualified Acoustic Consultant means a consultant who
possesses the qualifications to render them eligible for membership of the
Australian Acoustics Society, Institution of Engineers Australia or the
Association of Australian Acoustic Consultants at the grade of member.

All physical aspects of the building’s structure installed in order to meet
performance parameters in accordance with this condition must be
maintained at all times.

NOISE — COMMERCIAL PLANT / INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT

(@)

Noise from commercial plant and industrial development must not exceed
a project amenity/intrusiveness noise level or maximum noise level in
accordance with relevant requirements of the NSW EPA Noise Policy for
Industry 2017 (NPfl) unless agreed to by the City’s Area Planning
Manager. Further:

(i)  Background noise monitoring must be carried out in accordance with
the long-term methodology in Fact Sheet B of the NPfl unless
otherwise agreed by the City’s Area Planning Manager.

(i)  Commercial plant is limited to heating, ventilation, air conditioning,
refrigeration and energy generation equipment.

51


https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/noise/17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf
https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/noise/17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf
https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/noise/17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf

(b) AN Laeg,15 minute (NOIse level) emitted from the development must not exceed

(c)

the Lago, 15 minute (Dackground noise level) by more than 3dB when assessed
inside any habitable room of any affected residence or noise sensitive
commercial premises at any time. Further:

() The noise level and the background noise level shall both be
measured with all external doors and windows of the affected
residence closed.

(i)  Background noise measurements must not include noise from the
development but may include noise from necessary ventilation at the
affected premise.

Corrections in Fact Sheet C of the NPfl are applicable to relevant noise

from the development measured in accordance with this condition,
however duration corrections are excluded from commercial noise.

52


https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/noise/17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf

SCHEDULE 1B

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE/COMMENCEMENT OF WORK/HEALTH AND
BUILDING

(29) LANDSCAPING OF THE SITE

(@) A detailed landscape plan of the roof terraces, drawn to scale, by a
qualified landscape architect or landscape designer, must be submitted to
and approved by Council’'s Area Coordinator Planning Assessments prior
to the issue of a Construction Certificate for above ground building works.
The plan must include:

(i) location of existing and proposed structures on the site, including any
existing landscaping if already installed under SSD Consents;

(i) details of earthworks and soil depths including mounding and
retaining walls and planter boxes (if applicable). The minimum soil
depths for planting on slab must be 1000mm for trees, 450mm for
shrubs and 200mm for groundcovers;

(i)  location, numbers, type and supply of plant species, with reference to
NATSPEC (if applicable);

(iv) details of planting procedure and maintenance; and
(v) details of drainage, waterproofing and watering systems.

The amount of soft landscaping (trees, mass planting, planters) provided to
the terraces must be generally the same as that within SSD 5824 approved
plan L09/10 Terraces Rev G dated 23.09.2016 to the satisfaction of the
City of Sydney.

(b) Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate, a maintenance plan is to be
submitted to and approved by the Accredited Certifier. The maintenance
plan is to be complied with during occupation of the property.

(c) All landscaping in the approved plan is to be completed prior to any
Occupation Certificate being issued.

(30) CONSTRUCTION AND FITOUT OF FOOD PREMISES

The construction, fitout and finishes of the food premises must comply with
Standard 3.2.3 of the Australian and New Zealand Food Standards Code under
the Food Act 2003 and AS 4674 — 2004 Design, Construction and Fitout of Food
Premises.

Note: Copies of AS 4674-2004 may be obtained from the Standards Australia
Customer Service on telephone 1300 65 46 46 or by visiting the website
www.standards.com.au.

Copies of the Food Standards Code (Australia) may be obtained by contacting
the Food Standards Australia and New Zealand Authority on telephone (02)

53



(31)

(32)

(33)

6271 2222, email info@foodstandards.gov.au or by visiting the website
www.foodstandards.gov.au.

COOLROOMS

Coolrooms, refrigerated chambers and strong-rooms must be constructed in
accordance with G 1.2 of the Building Code of Australia, and:

(@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

(€)

The floor of the coolroom must be graded to the door and a floor trapped
waste outlet must be located outside the coolroom as near as possible to
the door opening.

All proposed shelving in the coolroom must be free-standing, constructed
of galvanised steel angle section or other approved material with the
lowest shelf at least 150mm clear of the floor.

The floor of the coolroom must be constructed of impermeable concrete or
coated, topped or otherwise finished with an impervious material to a
smooth even surface and coved at the intersections with the walls to a
minimum radius of 25mm.

Must be fitted with a door that can be opened at all times from inside
without a key.

An approved audible alarm device must be located outside the coolroom(s)
but controllable only from within the coolroom(s) and must be able to
achieve a sound pressure level outside the chamber or coolroom(s) of 90
dB(A) when measured 3 metres from a sounding device.

FOOD PREMISES - DETAILED PLANS

(@)

(b)

Detailed and scaled plans of all kitchen, bar, food preparation, waste and
storage areas, food handler toilets and all areas associated with the food
business must be prepared in accordance with the Australia New Zealand
Food Standards Code — 3.2.3 — Food Premises and Equipment under the
Food Act 2003 and AS 4674 - Design, Construction and Fit-out of Food
Premises.

Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate the plans required by (a) of
this condition must be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Accredited Certifier.

GREASE AND LIQUID WASTE TRAPS

(@)

A grease trap if required by Sydney Water must be installed in accordance
with Sydney Water requirements and:

(i) must be installed by a suitably qualified and licensed plumber in
accordance with the Plumbing Code of Australia;

(i) the grease trap must be not be located in any kitchen, food
preparation or food storage area;

54


http://www.foodstandards.gov.au/

(34)

(35)

(36)

(37)

(38)

(i)  be suitably constructed and installed in a location which allows it to
be easily and effectively cleaned and emptied; and

(iv) be suitably constructed and located as not to encourage the
harbourage of pests and be effectively pest proofed.

(b) In-sink and in-floor waste bucket traps must be installed in all sinks and
floor wastes in all commercial kitchens and food preparation areas and
must be carried out by a suitably qualified and licensed plumber in
accordance with the Plumbing Code of Australia.

HOT WATER SERVICE

The capacity of the hot water service must ensure that a constant supply of
hot water is provided to the premises at all times for all sinks and basins
including hand wash basin/s. The temperature of the hot water provided to
the sinks must be in accordance with AS4674 — Design, Construction and
Fit-out of Food Premises and the Australia New Zealand Food Standards
Code 3.2.2 - Food Safety Practices and general requirements.

NOTIFICATION OF CONDUCT OF FOOD BUSINESS

(@) The use shall not commence until the food business has notified Council
with their food business details in accordance with the Food Act 2003 and
The Australia New Zealand Food Standards Code — 3.2.2 — Food Safety
Practices and General Requirements, Clause 4.

(b)  An Occupation Certificate must not be issued until such notification has
been received by Council in accordance with Clause (a) of this condition.

Note:  Registration forms are available on  Council's  website
www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.

PERSONAL LOCKERS

Clothing lockers or change rooms for male and female staff must be provided in
the premises or a dedicated, separate and isolated space for personal items
must be provided in a separate location to the food handling and storage areas,
in accordance with AS4674 - Design, Construction and Fit out of Food Premises.

SANITARY FACILITIES — FOOD PREMISES
The sanitary facilities must be separated from all food handling areas via an

airlock, self-closing door or mechanical ventilation in accordance with the
provisions of the Building Code of Australia, Part F 3.1, 4.8 and 4.9.

TOILETS FOR FOOD HANDLERS
(a) Adequate toilet facilities must be available for food handlers working for the

food business. Toilets and associated facilities must be provided in
accordance with AS4674 — Design, Construction and Fit-out of Food

55


http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/

(b)

(c)

Premises and the Australia New Zealand Food Standards Code, 3.2.3 -
Food Premises and Equipment.

Details of the location of toilets which are provided exclusively for the use
of food handlers and staff working at the business must be submitted for
the approval of the Accredited Certifier prior to the issue of a Construction
Certificate.

The toilet(s) must be provided with a hand wash basin, with hot and cold
running water mixed through a common spout, hand wash soap, hygienic
hand drying facilities and hands-free taps.

(39) WASTE STORAGE AREA

(@)

(b)

To ensure the adequate storage and collection of waste from the food
premises, all garbage and recyclable materials emanating from the
premises must be stored in a designated waste storage area. The waste
storage area must be designed and constructed in accordance with AS
4674 — Design, Construction and Fit-out of Food Premises, Australia New
Zealand Food Standards Code 3.2.3 — Food Premises and Equipment and
comply with the Council Policy for Waste Minimisation in New
Developments, and must be:

(i)  provided with a hose tap connected to the water supply;
(i)  paved with impervious floor materials;
(i)  coved at the intersection of the floor and walls;

(iv) graded and drained to a waste disposal system in accordance with
the requirements of the relevant regulatory authority (Sydney Water);

(v) adequately ventilated (mechanically or naturally) so that odour
emissions do not cause offensive odour or air pollution as defined by
the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997 or a
nuisance;

(vi) fitted with appropriate interventions to meet fire safety standards in
accordance with the Building Code of Australia;

(vii) provided with the appropriate number and size of bins adequate for
the storage of waste generated by the business, including recycling;
and

(viii) appropriately managed so that it does not attract pests or create
litter.

Detailed plans and specifications for the construction of the waste storage
area must be submitted to and approved by the Accredited Certifier prior to
the issue of the Construction Certificate and must be constructed in
accordance with such plans and specifications prior to the issuance of any
Occupation Certificate.

56



(40)

(41)

(42)

(43)

MECHANICAL VENTILATION

(@) The premises must be ventilated in accordance with the Building Code of
Australia and AS1668.1 and AS1668.2 - The Use of Ventilation and Air-
conditioning in Buildings - Mechanical Ventilation in Buildings.

(b) Details of any mechanical ventilation and/or air conditioning system
complying with AS1668.1 and AS1668.2 - The Use of Ventilation and Air-
conditioning in Buildings - Mechanical Ventilation in Buildings, the Building
Code of Australia and relevant Australian Standards must be prepared and
certified in accordance with Clause A5.2(1)(e) of the Building Code of
Australia, to the satisfaction of the Accredited Certifier prior to the issue of
a Construction Certificate.

(c) Prior to issue of any Occupation Certificate and following the completion,
installation, and testing of all the mechanical ventilation systems, a
Mechanical Ventilation Certificate of Completion and Performance in
accordance with Clause A5.2(1)(e) of the Building Code of Australia, must
be submitted to the Principal Certifier.

FOOD PREMISES - ADDITIONAL MECHANICAL VENTILATION
REQUIREMENTS

(@) The cooking appliances require an approved air handling system designed
in accordance with AS1668.1 - The Use of Ventilation and Air-conditioning
in Buildings — Fire and Smoke Control in Buildings and AS1668.2 - The
Use of Ventilation and Air-conditioning in Buildings — Mechanical
Ventilation in Buildings, and must incorporate the following:

()  The discharge exhaust air must be directed in a vertical, or near
vertical direction above the roof, and

(i)  The cooking appliances must not burn any charcoal, wood or other
solid fuel.

(b) Details of the proposed system must be submitted to and approved by
Council's Health and Building Unit in writing prior to the issue of a
Construction Certificate.

ACCESS AND FACILITIES FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

The building must be designed and constructed to provide access and facilities
for people with a disability in accordance with the Building Code of Australia.

If, in complying with this condition, amendments to the development are
required, the design changes must be submitted to and approved by Council
prior to a Construction Certificate being issued.

BUILDING WORKS TO COMPLY WITH BCA - HERITAGE BUILDINGS OR
BUILDINGS WITHIN CONSERVATION AREA

Any building works required to ensure compliance with the BCA or new building

standards not specified in the submitted/approved plan must not damage
existing fabric and building features. If such upgrading works have impact or

57



(44)

(45)

potentially have impact on existing fabric and features, details of the works must
be submitted and approved by Council's Area Coordinator Planning
Assessments / Area Planning Manager prior to issue of any Construction
Certificate.

WORKS REQUIRING USE OF A PUBLIC PLACE

Where construction/building works require the use of a public place including a
road or footpath, a separate application under Sections 138/139 of the Roads
Act 1993 must be submitted to and approved by Council prior to the
commencement of work. Details of any barricade construction, area of enclosure
and period of work are required to be submitted to the satisfaction of Council.

APPLICATION FOR HOARDINGS AND SCAFFOLDING INSTALLED ON OR
ABOVE A PUBLIC ROAD AND OPERATING HOISTING DEVICES
INCLUDING BUILDING MAINTENANCE UNITS OVER A PUBLIC ROAD

(@) Where a hoarding and/or scaffolding (temporary structures) are proposed
to be installed on or above a road reservation (footway and/or roadway), a
separate application under Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993
and Sections 138/139 of the Roads Act 1993 must be submitted to and
approved by Council for such structures.

(b) Where an approval (Permit) is granted allowing the placement of temporary
structures on or above a public road the structures must comply fully with
Council’'s Hoarding and Scaffolding Policy; Guidelines for Hoardings and
Scaffolding; and the conditions of approval (Permit) granted including:

(i)  maintaining a current and valid approval for the full duration that the
temporary structure/s is in place;

(i)  maintaining temporary structure/s in a structurally sound and stable
condition for the full duration of installation (Clause 2.11.1);

(i) bill posters and graffiti being removed within 24 hours of their
placement (Clause 2.11.2);

(iv) maintaining temporary structures and the public place adjoining the
work site in a clean and tidy condition including repainting and/or
repair of graphics (Clauses 2.11.1, 2.11.4, 2.14.1 and 3.9.3);

(v) maintaining a watertight deck (Type B hoardings) to prevent liquids
including rainwater, falling onto the footway/roadway surfaces
(Clauses 3.9.1 and 3.9.4);

(vi) approved site sheds on the decks of a Type B hoarding being fully
screened from the public place (Clause 3.9.5);

(vii) material and equipment not being placed or stored on the deck of

Type B hoardings, unless specifically approved by Council (Clause
3.9.4);

58



(46)

(47)

(48)

(viii) providing and maintaining operational artificial lighting systems under
Type B hoardings including at high-bay truck entry points (Clause
3.9.9); and

(ix) ensuring all required signage, artwork or historic images are provided
and fully maintained to the City’s requirements (Clauses 3.4, 3.9.3,
3.9.6, 3.9.8, 3.10.1 and 4.2).

If it is proposed to operate a hoisting device including a building maintenance
unit above a public road which swings, hoists material/equipment and/or
slews/wind vanes any part of the device over the public road, a separate
application under Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993 and Sections
138/139 of the Roads Act 1993 must be made to Council to obtain approval.

Note: 'Building maintenance unit' means a power-operated suspended platform
and associated equipment on a building specifically designed to provide
permanent access to the faces of the building for maintenance (Work Health and
Safety Regulation 2017).

WASTE AND RECYCLING MANAGEMENT - MINOR

The proposal must comply with the relevant provisions of Council's Guidelines
for Waste Management in New Developments 2018 which requires facilities to
minimise and manage waste and recycling generated by the proposal.

WASTE AND RECYCLING MANAGEMENT - COMMERCIAL

(@) The Waste and Recycling Management Plan accompanying this
Development Application has not been approved by this consent.

(b) A Waste and Recycling Management Plan is to be approved by the
Accredited Certifier prior to a Construction Certificate being issued. The
plan must comply with the Council's Guidelines for Waste Management in
New Developments 2018. All requirements of the approved Building Waste
and Recycling Management Plan must be implemented during construction
of the development.

(c) Dedicated space to be provided within the development for the storage and
recycling of bulky waste, problem waste, strip out and food waste.

UPON COMPLETION OF THE DEVELOPMENT

(d) Prior to any Occupation Certificate being issued or the use commencing,
whichever is earlier, the Principal Certifier must ensure that waste handling
works have been completed in accordance with: the Waste and Recycling
Management Plan; other relevant development consent conditions; and
Council's Guidelines for Waste Management in New Developments 2018.

WASTE AND RECYCLING COLLECTION CONTRACT

Prior to any Occupation Certificate being issued and/or commencement of the
use, whichever is earlier, the building owner must ensure that there is a contract

59



(49)

with a licensed contractor for the removal of all waste. No garbage is to be
placed on the public way, e.g. footpaths, roadways, plazas, reserves, at any
time.

SYDNEY WATER CERTIFICATE (TAP-IN)

(@) The approved plans must be submitted to Sydney Water's "Tap-in" online
service to determine whether the development will affect Sydney Water's
sewer and water mains, stormwater drains and/or easements, and if further
requirements need to be met. Sydney Water's "Tap-in" online service is
available at www.sydneywater.com.au, (see Plumbing, Building &
Development and then Sydney Water "Tap-in").

(b) The Consent Authority or a Principal Certifier must ensure that Sydney
Water has appropriately stamped the plans before the commencement of
work.

60


http://www.sydneywater.com.au/

SCHEDULE 1C
DURING CONSTRUCTION/PRIOR TO OCCUPATION/COMPLETION

(50)

(51)

(52)

OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE TO BE SUBMITTED

An Occupation Certificate must be obtained from the Principal Certifier and a
copy submitted to Council prior to commencement of occupation or use of the
whole or any part of a new building, an altered portion of, or an extension to an
existing building.

HOURS OF WORK AND NOISE - CBD
The hours of construction and work on the development must be as follows:

(& All work, including demolition, excavation and building work, and activities
in the vicinity of the site generating noise associated with preparation for
the commencement of work (eg loading and unloading of goods,
transferring of tools etc) in connection with the proposed development
must only be carried out between the hours of 7.00am and 7.00pm on
Mondays to Fridays, inclusive, and 7.00am and 5.00pm on Saturdays, and
no work must be carried out on Sundays or public holidays.

(b)  All work, including demolition, excavation and building work must comply
with the City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise
1992 and Australian Standard 2436-2010 Guide to Noise Control on
Construction, Maintenance and Demolition Sites.

(c) Notwithstanding the above, the use of a crane for special operations,
including the delivery of materials, hoisting of plant and equipment and
erection and dismantling of on site tower cranes which warrant the on-
street use of mobile cranes outside of above hours can occur, subject to a
permit being issued by Council under Section 68 of the Local Government
Act 1993 and/or Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993.

Note: Works may be undertaken outside of hours, where it is required to avoid
the loss of life, damage to property, to prevent environmental harm and/or to
avoid structural damage to the building. Written approval must be given by the
Construction Regulation Unit, prior to works proceeding.

The City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 allows
extended working hours subject to the approval of an application in accordance

with the Code and under Section 4.55 of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979.

LOADING AND UNLOADING DURING CONSTRUCTION
The following requirements apply:

(@) All loading and unloading associated with construction activity must be
accommodated on site, where possible.

(b) If, it is not feasible for loading and unloading to take place on site, a Works
Zone on the street may be considered by Council.

61



(53)

(54)

(55)

(c)

(d)

A Works Zone may be required if loading and unloading is not possible on
site. If a Works Zone is warranted an application must be made to Council
at least 8 weeks prior to commencement of work on the site. An approval
for a Works Zone may be given for a specific period and certain hours of
the days to meet the particular need for the site for such facilities at various
stages of construction. The approval will be reviewed periodically for any
adjustment necessitated by the progress of the construction activities.

Where hoisting activity over the public place is proposed to be undertaken
including hoisting from a Works Zone, a separate application under Section
68 of the Local Government Act 1993 and Sections 138/139 of the Roads
Act 1993 must be submitted to and approved by Council.

NO OBSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC WAY

The public way must not be obstructed by any materials, vehicles, refuse, skips
or the like, under any circumstances. Non-compliance with this requirement will
result in the issue of a notice by Council to stop all work on site.

USE OF MOBILE CRANES

The following requirements apply:

(@)

(b)

(c)

Mobile cranes operating from the road must not be used as a method of
demolishing or constructing a building.

For special operations including the delivery of materials, hoisting of plant
and equipment and erection and dismantling of on site tower cranes which
warrant the on-street use of mobile cranes, permits must be obtained from
Council for the use of a mobile crane. The permits must be obtained 48
hours beforehand for partial road closures which, in the opinion of Council
will create minimal traffic disruptions and 4 weeks beforehand in the case
of full road closures and partial road closures which, in the opinion of
Council, will create significant traffic disruptions.

The use of a crane for special operations, including the delivery of
materials, hoisting of plant and equipment and erection and dismantling of
on site tower cranes which warrant the on-street use of mobile cranes
outside of approved hours of construction can occur, subject to a separate
application being submitted to and approved by Council under Section 68
of the Local Government Act 1993 and Sections 138/139 of the Roads Act
1993.

USE OF HIGH NOISE EMISSION APPLIANCES / PLANT

(@)

The operation of high noise emission appliances, plant and/or machinery
such as pile — drivers, rock breakers and hydraulic hammers and those
which are not listed in Groups B, C, D, E or F of Schedule 1 of the City of
Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 and Australian
Standard 2436-2010 Guide to Noise Control on Construction, Maintenance
and Demolition Sites is restricted to the hours of (EHO to specify hours)

62



(56)

(57)

(b) All reasonable and feasible steps must be undertaken to ensure that the
work, including demolition, excavation and building complies with the City
of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 and
Australian Standard 2436- 2010 Guide to Noise Control on Construction,
Maintenance and Demolition Sites.

ENCROACHMENTS — NEIGHBOURING PROPERTIES

No portion of the proposed structure shall encroach onto the adjoining
properties.

ENCROACHMENTS - PUBLIC WAY

No portion of the proposed structure, including gates and doors during opening
and closing operations, shall encroach upon Council’s footpath area.

63



SCHEDULE 2
PRESCRIBED CONDITIONS

The prescribed conditions in accordance with Division 8A of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 apply:

Clause 98 Compliance with Building Code of Australia and insurance requirements
under the Home Building Act 1989

Clause 98A  Erection of signs

Clause 98B  Notification of Home Building Act 1989 requirements

Clause 98C  Conditions relating to entertainment venues

Clause 98D Conditions relating to maximum capacity signage

Clause 98E  Conditions relating to shoring and adequacy of adjoining property

Refer to the NSW State legislation for full text of the clauses under Division 8A of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000. This can be accessed at:
http://www.legislation.nsw.gov.au

64



Attachment B

Revised Acoustic Assessment

65




ACOU STI C MATTHEW PALAVIDIS
VICTOR FATTORETTO
LOGIC MATTHEW SHIELDS

Wynyard Place, Maragret Street Tenancy and Level 9 and 10
(Shell House) Development Application

Environmental Noise Impact Assessment

SYDNEY ABN 11 068 954 343
9 Sarah St www.acousticlogic.com.au
MASCOT NSW 2020

(02) 8339 8000

The information in this document is the property of Acoustic Logic Consultancy Pty Ltd ABN 11 068 954 343 and shall be returned
on demand. It is issued on the condition that, except with our written permission, it must not be reproduced, copied or
communicated to any other party nor be used for any purpose other than that stated in particular enquiry, order or contract with
which it is issued.

[\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201 123GWA_R10_Environn@@tal_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx 1


http://www.acousticlogic.com.au/

Project ID

201911841

Document Title

Environmental Noise Impact Assessment

Attention To

Brookfield Properties

Revision Date Document Reference Prepared Checked Approved

By By By
0 24/10/2019 | 20191184.1/2410A/R0/GW GW GW
1 5/11/2019 20191184.1/0511A/R1/GW GW GW
2 11/11/2019 | 20191184.1/1111A/R2/GW GW GW
3 15/11/2019 | 20191184.1/1511A/R3/GW GW GW
4 19/11/2019 | 20191184.1/1911A/R4/GW KB KB
5 3/03/2020 20191184.1/0303A/R5/GW GW GW
6 10/03/2020 | 20191184.1/1003A/R6/GW GW GW
7 10/09/2020 | 20191184.1/1009A/R7/GW GW GW
8 6/10/2020 20191184.1/0610A/R8/GW GW GW
9 12/10/2020 | 20191184.1/1210A/R9/GW GW GW
10 23/11/2020 | 20191184.1/2311A/R10/GW GW GW

[\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201 123GWA_R10_EnviroanZtal_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx




TABLE OF CONTENTS

T INTRODUCTION .....ccuuiiiuiinininneicnisessuessscsssssesssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssssssssssssssses 4
2 SITE DESCRIPTION AND MAJOR ACOUSTIC ISSUES...........uuutiiirvericsccnnerccssneerccssnssncssnnnes 4

3 NOISE DESCRIPTORS .....uucouiiruininsuicsuicessaessscssssssnssssssasssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssess 9
4  NOISE EMISSION CRITERIA......cuuiiiiruinninenseccsaieassessacssstsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssness 10
4.1 REQUIREMENTS BY COUNCIL AND NSW OFFICE OF LIQUOR AND GAMING.......... 10
4.2 TO RESIDENTIAL RECEIVERS R3/R7/R8 BOUNDARY ........ccocerrurrrerruensurcrecsaessaccacsnenes 11
4.3 TO RECEIVER RT L R2 ......cuuieieeirineicencensuccnisessaessisssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssssns 11
4.3.1 Internal background NOISE [EVEl...........ccrciniiiecre e 11

44 TO COMMERCIAL RECEIVERS (R4 R5 & R6)- INDOOR SPACE..... .12

5 NOISE EMISSION ASSESSMENT .......cconiirinrensinrnicrensecsacsesssessscesassssssnsssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 13
5.1 ACTIVITY NOISE.........oiiiiininneiceeesetesecsstsssssssssssssssssssssstsssssssssssssssssssssssessssssases 13
5.1.1 OULAOOT SIEING NOISE.....oeieeeere sttt sttt ss s 13
512 Background MUSIC NOISE ... sssss sttt st st ssss s ssssssnsens 14
513 Internal Loud MUSIC + Patrons’ NOISE ..o sssesssesssesessenes 14

6  NOISE PREDICTION ......coouiruinerrenuinsansessaesssissesssessssssssssesssessasssssssessssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssas 14
6.1 PREDICTED NOISE LEVELS TO INTERNAL SPACE OF R1 .......cccoveruuerrccvcneerccsscnnecccnens 14
6.1.1 BEfOre MIANIGNT ..ottt ss bbbt 14
6.1.2 AFLEN MIANIGNT oot bbbt 15

6.2 PREDICTED NOISE LEVELS TO INTERNAL SPACE OF R2 ..........cccouereecrruerccrccnnneccnnee 15
6.2.1 BefOre Mid INIGNT ...ttt sssees 15
6.2.2 AFLEE MIANIGNT oo 15

6.3 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO RECEIVER 3 (R3) FACADE............ccricrcrerrccsccnneeccen 16
6.3.1 BefOre MIANIGNT ... ess s sbe e 16
6.3.2 AFLEN MIANIGNT oot 16

6.4 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO R4 INTERNAL SPACE ..........ccoericrrvvnreccrsrneeecsscenseecsans 16
6.5 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO R5 INTERNAL SPACE. ...........cccoveriurnnersruccnneccsncesescsncns 17
6.6 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO R6 INTERNAL SPACE...........cccovevurnsenssuccseccsnccsaercneens 17
6.7 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO RECEIVER 7 (R7) FACADE.................... 17
6.7.1 BEfOre MIdNIGNt ...ttt nnen 17
6.7.2 AFLEE MIANIGNT oottt st 18

6.8 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO RECEIVER 8 (R8) FACADE.............cccoverrvueerercruecsercncens 18
6.8.1 BefOre MIdNIGNt ..ottt sttt nnes 18
6.8.2 ATLEE MIANIGNT .ottt sttt 18

7 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DESIGN & MANAGEMENT .....cuueiiiiiiiiiiiinnnnneencccsssccnnnnneeens 19

8  CONCLUSION....cceiieiceiiseicsnecsetesatssstssssssstessssssssessassssesssstesssssssssssssssssessssssssessassssssssssenses 21

I\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201123GWA_R10_Environnk¥Btal_Noise_Impact_Assessment_.docx 3



1 INTRODUCTION

This report presents our assessment of the potential noise impacts associated with the proposed Restaurants
& Bars at Margaret Street Tenancy and Level 9 and 10 (Shell House).

In this report, we will:

. Identify noise sources associated with the use of the indoor and outdoor areas;

. Assess the potential operational noise impacts based on requirements by NSW Office Liquor and
Gaming and City of Sydney Council DCP; and

. If necessary, recommend management controls and building treatments to ensure noiseemissions

will comply with these guidelines.

2 SITE DESCRIPTION AND MAJOR ACOUSTIC ISSUES

The proposed restaurants and Bars are on Ground Floor (Margaret St); Level 9 and 10 (Shell House), Wynyard
Place. The tenancy will cater for up to 230 patrons across the external terrace areas as detailed in Figures
below.

[\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201 123GWA_R10_Environn@gtal_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx 4



NCY

IR B i
LEVEL 9 AND 10 TERANCY LIFT LOESY ACCESS
17 Dol 1008

Figure 1 Margaret Street

1:\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201123GWA_R1 O_Environrr?thaI_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx 5



Figure 2 Level 9

1:\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201123GWA_R1 O_Environn?eltaI_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx 6



CARRINGTON STREET

v @

o W o Ll

s
21 DA
MARGARET STREET

Figure 3 Level 10
Site investigation indicates that the nearest noise receivers are below:

e Receiver 1 (R1)- Travelodge Hotel with fixed facade at corner of York St and Margaret St.

e Receiver 2 (R2)- Amora Hotel with fixed facade located at 19 Jamison St.

e Receiver 3(R3)- Residential / commercial mixed-use development (under construction) at 280
George St. The horizontal distance is approximate 52m to the project boundary.

e Receiver 4 (R4)- Commercial office building located across Margaret St.

e Receiver 5 (R5)- Commercial office building located across Wynyard Lane (275 George St).

e Receiver 6 (R6)- Commercial office located directly underneath the terrace.

e Receiver 7 (R7)- Residential /commercial mixed use building at 44 Margaret St/2 York St. The
horizontal distance is approximate 58m distance to the project boundary.

e Receiver 8 (R8)- Residential /commercial mixed use building (Mantra) at 254 George St. The
horizontal distance is approximate 96m to the project boundary.

Detail site map is below:

1:\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201123GWA_R1 O_Environn?eztaI_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx



v w.uu!lllllu:rrlr_Ld

Sydney CED ‘E Y @ Mr
Q‘S‘ %"’ Hemmesphera
o &
Jarmison St Jamison s Jamison St Fitn
T —@— R
Goshu Ramen = = Mantra 2 Bonjl Street
@ - g RJamison Sydney Everything @
1 _ Party Supplies Cdfe Chicam
= = 763
Scopspredbyterian 265 268 Australia Post @
Churth Syfiney Woolworths Sydney
= Metcentre{M :
oy State Bank of India
o Crossfit Athletif Sydney . o
ty e Panzerotti Bistro %

2 Essence Pri
Bar Bellaccino

Managemel

Margaret St Starbucks Margaret St @
2 and Chaiko @ = P!
[y} @ = & &
1 @ 8 &
8 N2 Extreme Gelato B+ 5 R3 1014 The
a -1 280
5 19 = John Dunmore &)
= Lang Statue it
3 - | M T San Jose F’IaceApprOXimateE 85 _.
28030 @ ® 287 a 24
. ' : Project Site £
g . Roh't_lert's Shoe Repairs o o, ) n 5_ : = Daiso .Japan
= ) i
i Wynyard Station @9 | 283:307 i
g @ E'- Level 0 i b ﬁﬁ l 4720.481 308
% Subway - \ = a J ‘; George

Figure 4 Site Map and Noise Receiver Location

1:\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201123GWA_R1 O_Environn?estaI_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx



The major noise issues related to the proposed development is below:

e Outdoor patron noise emissions

e Noise emission from the patron’s talking and background music on terrace.
e Noise emission from plant service project building.

e Indoor music and patron noise emissions.

Detailed operation is below:
Table 1 - Operation Information

Location Noise Source
Margaret St BG music +265 Patrons
Level 9 Out Door BG music +156 Patrons
Level 9 Indoor Loud music (from 5pm) +139 Patrons
Level 10 Outdoor BG music +74 Patrons
Level 10 Indoor Loud music + 211 Patrons

3 NOISE DESCRIPTORS

Environmental noise constantly varies in level, due to fluctuations in local noise sources including noise from
nearby road traffic on surrounding roadways. Accordingly, a 15 minute measurement interval is normally
utilised. Over this period, noise levels are monitored on a continuous basis and statistical and integrating
techniques are used to determine noise description parameters.

In the case of environmental noise three principle measurement parameters are used, namely La1o, Lasoand

LAeq.

The Laioand Lago measurement parameters are statistical levels that represent the average maximum and
average minimum noise levels respectively, over the measurement intervals.

The La1o parameter is commonly used to measure noise produced by a particular intrusive noise source since
it represents the average of the loudest noise levels produced by the source.

Conversely, the Lago level (which is commonly referred to as the background noise level) represents the noise
level heard in the quieter periods during a measurement interval. The Lago parameter is used to set the
allowable noise level for new, potentially intrusive noise sources since the disturbance caused by the new
source depends on how audible it is above the pre-existing noise environment, particularly during quiet
periods, as represented by the Lag level.

The Laeq parameter represents the average noise energy during a measurement period. This parameter is
derived by integrating the noise levels measured over the measurement period. Laeqis important in the
assessment of traffic noise impacts as it closely corresponds with human perception of a changing noise
environment; such is the character of industrial noise.

[\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201 123GWA_R10_Environn?éﬂ'tal_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx 9



4 NOISE EMISSION CRITERIA

4.1

REQUIREMENTS BY COUNCIL AND NSW OFFICE OF LIQUOR AND GAMING

Standard Condition from City of Sydney is below, we use this requirements for both activities’ noise and
plant service project site:

(1) NOISE - COMMERCIAL PLANT / INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT

(@)  Noise from commercial plant and industrial development must not exceed a project
amenity/intrusiveness noise level or maximum noise level in accordance with relevant
requirements of the NSW EPA Noise Policy for Industry 2017 (NPfl) unless agreed to by the
City’s Area Planning Manager. Further:

(i)  Background noise monitoring must be carried out in accordance with the long-term
methodology in Fact Sheet B of the NPfl unless otherwise agreed by the City’s Area
Planning Manager.

(i)  Commercial plant is limited to heating, ventilation, air conditioning, refrigeration
and energy generation equipment.

(b) An LAeq,15 minute (noise level) emitted from the development must not exceed the LA90,
15 minute (background noise level) by more than 3dB when assessed inside any habitable
room of any affected residence or noise sensitive commercial premises at any time. Further:

0] The noise level and the background noise level shall both be measured with all
external doors and windows of the affected residence closed.

(ii) Background noise measurements must not include noise from the development but
may include noise from necessary ventilation at the affected premise.

(c)  Corrections in Fact Sheet C of the NPfl are applicable to relevant noise from the development
measured in accordance with this condition, however duration corrections are excluded
from commercial noise.

[\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201 123GWA_R10_Environn?eﬁtal_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx 10


https://apac01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.epa.nsw.gov.au%2F-%2Fmedia%2Fepa%2Fcorporate-site%2Fresources%2Fnoise%2F17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf&data=01%7C01%7Creception%40acousticlogic.com.au%7Cb6ee9df4387d405fae3208d69d1141af%7Cf63333762f8a4f17a96f7cf2b96dcd91%7C0&sdata=lGe2G5VgwNPU8GKfs0s2QeGGERYanR8ibCdhlFZpGHY%3D&reserved=0
https://apac01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.epa.nsw.gov.au%2F-%2Fmedia%2Fepa%2Fcorporate-site%2Fresources%2Fnoise%2F17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf&data=01%7C01%7Creception%40acousticlogic.com.au%7Cb6ee9df4387d405fae3208d69d1141af%7Cf63333762f8a4f17a96f7cf2b96dcd91%7C0&sdata=lGe2G5VgwNPU8GKfs0s2QeGGERYanR8ibCdhlFZpGHY%3D&reserved=0
https://apac01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.epa.nsw.gov.au%2F-%2Fmedia%2Fepa%2Fcorporate-site%2Fresources%2Fnoise%2F17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf&data=01%7C01%7Creception%40acousticlogic.com.au%7Cb6ee9df4387d405fae3208d69d1141af%7Cf63333762f8a4f17a96f7cf2b96dcd91%7C0&sdata=lGe2G5VgwNPU8GKfs0s2QeGGERYanR8ibCdhlFZpGHY%3D&reserved=0

(61) NOISE - LICENSED PREMISES

{a) The Laip noise level emitted from the use must not exceed the
background noise level (Laxw) in any Octave Band Centre
Frequency (31.5 Hz to 8 kHz inclusive) by more than 5dB between
the hours of 7.00am and 12.00 midnight when assessed at the
boundary of any affected residence.

{(b) The Laip noise level emitted from the use must not exceed the
background noise level (Lax) in any Octave Band Centre
Frequency (31.5 Hz to 8 kHz inclusive) between the hours of 12.00
midnight and 7.00am when assessed at the boundary of any
affected residence.

{c) Notwithstanding compliance with (a) and (b) above, the noise from
the use must not be audible within any habitable room in any
residential property between the hours of 12.00 midnight and
7.00am.

{(d) The L;; noise level emitted from the use must not exceed the
background noise level (Lgg) in any Octave Band Centre Frequency
(31.5 Hz to 8 kHz inclusive) by more than 3dB when assessed
indoors at any affected commercial premises.

{e) The use of the premise must be controlled so that any emitted
noise is at a level so as not to create an “offensive noise” as
defined in the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997 to
any affected receiver.

4.2 TO RESIDENTIAL RECEIVERS R3/R7/R8 BOUNDARY

This office has been engaged to prepare DA application of residential /commercial mixed-use development
at 280 George St and the following noise emission criteria has been detailed in DA report (reference number:
20151562.1/2511A/R1/TA)

Table 2 — Noise Emission Criteria to R3

Time of Day |31Hz|63Hz|125Hz|250Hz|500Hz| 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-Wt.

Day 72 | 71 70 68 66 63 59 52 41 68
(7am-6pm)
Evening 70 | 69 | 68 66 64 61 57 50 39 66
(6pm-10pm)

Before Mid Night

(10pm-Midnight | 66 | 66 | 6 | 63 | 6 58 | 54 | 47 | 36 | 63

After Midnight 65 63 62 60 58 55 51 44 33 60

4.3 TO RECEIVER R1 & R2
4.3.1 Internal background noise level

No access to the R1 & R2 is available, however noise measurement has been carried out within the
Castlereagh Boutique Hotel by this office previously which have been used as the bases of this assessment.

1:\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201 123GWA_R10_Environn?eﬁtaI_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx 11



The recorded background noise level within the hotel room detailed in the table below.

Table 3 - Measured Hotel Background Noise Level

Location Frequency (Hz) dB
31.5Hz | 63Hz | 125Hz | 250Hz | 500Hz | 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz A
Weight
Hotel Guest 41 41 35 34 32 27 23 21 18 33
Room

4.3.1.1 To Hotel Indoor Space (R1 & R2)

Before Midnight

Table 4 - Criteria for Hotel Receivers — Acoustic Objectives dB(A)L1o(15minutes) Internally
Before Midnight

F (Hz)

31.5Hz

63Hz

125Hz| 250Hz

500Hz

1kHz

2kHz | 4kHz

8kHz

A-wt

dB

44

44

38

37

35

30

26

24

21

36

After Midnight

Table 5 - Criteria for Hotel Receivers — Acoustic Objectives dB(A)L1o(15minutes) Internally
After Midnight

F (Hz) 31.5Hz | 63Hz | 125Hz| 250Hz | 500Hz | 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-wt
dB 41 41 33 34 32 27 23 21 18 33
4.4 TO COMMERCIAL RECEIVERS (R4 R5 & R6)- INDOOR SPACE
Table 6 - Criteria for Commercial Receivers Above - Acoustic Objectives
dB(A)L1o(15minutes) Internally
Location Time Period 31‘25"' 63Hz 1225"' 25:” soon 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-wt
Commercial . 51 51 45 44 42 37 33 31 28 43
. Day Time
Receivers

Criteria for the office space above is based on the measured internal background noise level of the office

space conducted by Acoustic Logic Consultancy for similar project with AC turned on. The background noise
levels are also equal to recommended criteria for office space based on Australian Standard AS2107-2016.

1:\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201123GWA_R1 O_EnvironnZeZtaI_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx




5 NOISE EMISSION ASSESSMENT

5.1 ACTIVITY NOISE

Primary noise sources associated with the proposed terrace, with the potential to cause impacts on
surrounding sensitive receivers are;

o Vocal noise of patrons within the terrace which will include up to 238 patrons across the external
terrace areas as detailed in Figure 1 above.

o The expected noise level from atmosphere within the facility includes the playing of recorded
amplified music.

5.1.1 Outdoor Sitting Noise

Typical patrons’ noise within reverberate space has been measured by this office and detailed below:

Table 7 — L1o Sound Power Level of a Patron outdoors

Noise Level dB - Frequency (Hz)

31.5 63 125 250 500 1k 2k 4k 8k A-wt

66 66 73 74 79 76 72 63 51 81

For the purpose of this assessment the following assumptions have been included in our assessment:
o The tenancy will be filled to capacity at any time of the proposed operational times.

. Acoustic treatments and management controls recommended in section 7 below.

1:\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201 123GWA_R10_Environn?egtal_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx



5.1.2 Background Music Noise

Typical background music within outdoor space has been measured by this office as below:

Table 8 - L1o Sound Pressure Level of BG Music

Noise Level dB - Frequency (Hz)

315 63 125 250 500 1k 2k 4k 8k A-wt
52 69 79 67 72 73 69 64 59 74

5.1.3 Internal Loud Music + Patrons’ Noise

The internal loud music and patrons’ noise measured within Northies Cronulla have been adopted to
simulate the operational noise levels within the proposed indoor areas. The sound pressure level is below.

Table 9 - L1o Sound Power Level of Internal Loud Music and Patron Noise

Noise Level dB - Frequency (Hz)

315 63 125 250 500 1k 2k 4k 8k A-wt
85 103 105 99 94 92 90 86 86 98

6 NOISE PREDICTION

6.1 PREDICTED NOISE LEVELS TO INTERNAL SPACE OF R1

Minimum 6mm thick glazing has been assumed for the facade of receiver, the predicted internal noise levels
are below.

6.1.1 Before Midnight

Table 10 - Predicted Noise Level to R1 dBL1o Before Midnight

Item 31Hz|63Hz | 125HZz | 250HZz | 500Hz| 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-Wt.

Predicted Combined

. 34 34 29 24 24 15 15 <10 <10 24
Noise Level
Criteria 44 44 38 37 35 30 26 24 21 36
Comply ? Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

1:\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201123GWA_R1 O_Environn?egtaI_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx 14



6.1.2 After Midnight

Table 11 - Predicted Noise Level to R1 dBL1o After Midnight

Item 31Hz|63Hz | 125HZz | 250HZz | 500Hz| 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-Wt.

Predicted Combined| 5, | 5, |, 13 | <10 | <10 | <10 | <10 | <10 | <20

Noise Level
Criteria 41 41 33 34 32 27 23 21 18 33
Comply ? Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

6.2 PREDICTED NOISE LEVELS TO INTERNAL SPACE OF R2

Minimum 6mm thick glazing has been assumed for the facade of receiver, the predicted internal noise levels
are below.

6.2.1 Before Mid Night

Table 12 - Predicted Noise Level to R2 dBL1o

Item 31Hz|63Hz | 125HZz | 250HZz | 500Hz| 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-Wt.

Predicted Combined

. 36 36 31 25 26 16 16 <10 <10 26
Noise Level
Criteria 44 44 38 37 35 30 26 24 21 36
Comply ? Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

6.2.2 After Midnight

Table 13 - Predicted Noise Level to R2 dBL1o After Midnight

Item 31Hz|63Hz | 125Hz | 250HZz | 500Hz| 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-Wt.

Predicted Combined| ;o | 35 | g 15 <10 | <10 | <10 | <10 | <10 | <20

Noise Level
Criteria 41 41 33 34 32 27 23 21 18 33
Comply ? Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

1:\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201123GWA_R1 O_Environn&QtaI_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx 15




6.3 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO RECEIVER 3 (R3) FACADE
6.3.1 Before Midnight

Table 14 - Predicted Noise Level to R3 dBL1o

Item 31Hz|63Hz | 125HZz | 250HZz | 500Hz| 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-Wt.

Predicted Combined

. 52 52 52 51 55 52 49 39 28 57
Noise Level
Criteria (Night) 68 66 65 63 61 58 54 47 36 63
Comply ? Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

6.3.2 After Midnight

Table 15 - Predicted Noise Level to R3 dBL1o

Item 31Hz|63Hz| 125Hz | 250Hz | 500Hz | 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-Wt.

Predicted Combined

; 52 52 49 38 30 26 23 <10 <10 36
Noise Level

Criteria (Night) 65 63 62 60 58 55 51 44 33 60

Comply ? Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

6.4 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO R4 INTERNAL SPACE

Minimum 6mm thick glazing has been assumed for the facade of receiver, the predicted internal noise levels
are below.

Table 16 - Predicted Noise Level to R4 dBL1o

Item 31Hz|63Hz | 125HZz | 250HZz | 500Hz| 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-Wt.

Predicted Combined 49 49 44 39 40 30 30 14 <10 39

Noise Level
Criteria 51 51 45 44 42 37 33 31 28 43
Comply ? Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

1:\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201123GWA_R1 O_Environn&n}taI_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx 16



6.5 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO R5 INTERNAL SPACE

Minimum Rw 35 glazing has been specified for the facade of receiver, the predicted internal noise levels are
below.

Jockey sash windows for Level 9 & Level 10 are required with additional 10.38mm glazing fixed internally.

Table 17 - Predicted Noise Level to R5 dBL1o

Item 31Hz|63Hz| 125Hz | 250Hz | 500Hz| 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-Wt.
Predicted Combined| g, | gy | 45 | 36 | 36 | 30 | 24 | <10 | <10 | 37
Noise Level
Criteria 51 51 45 44 42 37 33 31 28 43
Comply ? Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

6.6 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO R6 INTERNAL SPACE

Minimum 150mm concrete slab and jockey sash glazing have been used to receiver, the predicted internal
noise levels are below.

Table 18 - Predicted Noise Level to R6 dBL1o

Item 31Hz|63Hz| 125Hz | 250Hz | 500Hz| 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-Wt.
Predicted Combined| ), | 45 | 47 | 36 | 37 | 28 | 27 | 13 | <10 | 37
Noise Level
Criteria 51 51 45 44 42 37 33 31 28 43
Comply ? Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

6.7 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO RECEIVER 7 (R7) FACADE

6.7.1 Before Midnight

Table 19 - Predicted Noise Level to R7 dBL1o

Item 31Hz|63Hz| 125Hz| 250Hz | 500Hz| 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-Wt.
Predicted Combined| o, | o, | 5, 50 55 52 | 48 39 27 56
Noise Level
Criteria (Night) 68 66 65 63 61 58 54 47 36 63
Comply ? Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

1:\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201 123GWA_R10_Environn&taI_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx



6.7.2 After Midnight

Table 20 - Predicted Noise Level to R7 dBL1o

Item 31Hz|63Hz| 125Hz| 250Hz| 500Hz| 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-Wt.
Predicted Combined) o, | oy | 4q 38 30 25 | 23 | <10 | <10 | 35
Noise Level
Criteria (Night) 65 63 62 60 58 55 51 44 33 60
Comply ? Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
6.8 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO RECEIVER 8 (R8) FACADE
6.8.1 Before Midnight
Table 21 - Predicted Noise Level to R8 dBL1o
Item 31Hz|63Hz| 125Hz|250Hz| 500Hz| 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-Wt.
Predicted Combined) ;| | 47 46 51 48 | 44 35 23 52
Noise Level
Criteria (Night) 68 66 65 63 61 58 54 47 36 63
Comply ? Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
6.8.2 After Midnight
Table 22 - Predicted Noise Level to R8 dBL1o
Item 31Hz|63Hz| 125Hz|250Hz| 500Hz| 1kHz | 2kHz | 4kHz | 8kHz | A-Wt.
Predicted Combined| ;|47 | 44 33 25 21 19 | <10 | <10 | 31
Noise Level
Criteria (Night) 65 63 62 60 58 55 51 44 33 60
Comply ? Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

1:\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201 123GWA_R10_Environn%ghaI_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx




7 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DESIGN & MANAGEMENT

The following building and management controls are recommended,;

. Glazing on facades
Table 23 - Glazing Facades
Level Facade Glazing Details with seals
Ground All 6mm
L9 Indoor North/ South 9.14mm/12mm air gap/ 9.14mm
East 6mm /12mm air gap/13.52mm
West 6mm + Jockey Sash + 6mm
L10 Indoor North/ South 9.14mm/12mm air gap/ 9.14mm
East 6mm /12mm air gap/13.52mm
West 6mm + Jockey Sash + 6mm
. Internal Music Noise Controls:

Table 24 - Recommended Internal Music Noise Limit

Level Time Music Noise Limit

Ground Before Midnight 74 dB(A)L1o

After Midnight 74 dB(A)L1o

Level 9 Indoor Before Midnight 95 dB(A)L1o
After Midnight 85 dB(A)L1o

Level 10 Indoor Before Midnight 95 dB(A)L1o
After Midnight 85 dB(A)L1o

o Management controls should be utilised to manage patron departure particularly at night and at

closing times to ensure that patrons leaving development in a prompt and orderly manner.

o Outdoor speakers can play background music only with maximum Sound Pressure Level 74 dB(A) at
1m distance from the surface of speakers, the speakers should be positioned facing project siteonly.

o Management control will be carried out by the tenant to ensure that the operational noise to any
residential receivers satisfies the requirements by NSW Office Liquor and Gaming and City of Sydney
Council DCP at any time.

o All waste removal and deliveries will be considered in the existing waste management plan for the
site and can be conducted via the existing basement area.

. All speakers and other noise generating equipment are to be vibration isolated from the building
structure using Embelton NR or Supershear Flex mounts.

1:\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201 123GWA_R10_Environn&ﬂ'tal_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx 19



. Slab thickness shall be minimum 150mm, the tiled or timber floor finish shall achieve impact rating

of Latw 55. Footing of all furniture shall be isolate by rubber mounts. Kitchen bench should be isolated
by two layers of waffle pads with metal shim in between.

. New plant service project building shall be assessed at CC stage to ensure that the overall noise
emissions satisfy the requirements in Section 4.

[\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201 123GWA_R10_Environn&'ﬁtal_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx 20



8 CONCLUSION

Noise emissions have been predicted and assessed against requirements adopted by the City of Sydney
Council for the proposed Restaurants and Bars at Margaret Street Tenancy and Level 9 and 10 (Shell House).

Subject to the implementation of the acoustic mitigations in Section 7 of this report being adopted there is
no unacceptable noise impact associated with the proposed development in this report and the noise
emissions from the use will comply with the requirements of City of Sydney Council and NSW Office of
Liquor and Gaming.

We trust this information is satisfactory. Please contact us should you have any further queries.

Yours faithfully,

Acoustic Logic Consultancy Pty Ltd
George Wei

Associate Director, MAAS

[\Jobs\2019\20191184\20191184.1\20201 123GWA_R10_Environn&@tal_Noise_lmpact_Assessment_.docx 21



Attachment C

Plan of Management

87




Shell House Operational Plan of Management

88



Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION ...itiuiiiiiiiitiniitiniitiaiiieneiitensiitiesirtsesirtssiinessisteesistessistssssresssstessestsssestsssessassssanses 4

1.0 PURPOSE .....oiitiiiitiiiiiiitiniiniiiiiiiitieseiireeaasiesstessssiittessssisseessssesstrssssessesssssessessssssssessssssens 4
1.1 LOCATION....citttuuiiittttntiiitttaniiiitttnssiiitetassiitteesssestesssseseessssssssessssssstesssssssessssssssssnssssssesssssssses 4
1.2 COMPANY OVERVIEW ....ccuuuiiiriimnniiiiiinnniiiniiinniiiinimmisiiiiemssiiiimmsiiiisssssessssssmssssseessssns 5
2.0 OPERATIONAL DETAILS ....itituuiiiiiiinnniiniinnniiiniiinnsiiieiiassiitessssinsemsssissesssssssesssssssessssssssssnsses 6
2.1 HOURS OF OPERATION......cccttuuuiiiiinnniiiiiinnniiiniinnnsiiiinmsiiniinmssiniesssssissssnsssssstsnssssssesssssssssssnnes 6
87 A 7 Y Y O I I 6
2.3 PUBLIC TRANSPORT ...ceuutiiiiiinuniiitiinneiiiiinnasiiniinnasiiieismssisiissssistemmsssisstssssssessssssssssssssssssnsses 6
2.4 CRIME PREVENTION THROUGH ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN .....cceeuuiiiiiimnniiiiinnniiinienniineennnne 7
3.0 MANAGEMENT IMEASURES .....cccttuuiiiiimnniiiiiinniiiiiinniiiiiiemmsiiiiemsiiiiimssisiimsstessssssesssses 8
3.1 GENERAL AMENITY ..itieuuiiiiiinnniiiniinnniiniinnniiineemssiiiiiemsssiiniimssiiiieemsssiistessssisstessssisssessssssssssssses 8
3.2 THE RESPONSIBLE SERVICE OF ALCOHOL ....ccetuuuiiiriimnniiiinnnniiiiinnnniiieimmmsiiniemssineesssssesssne 8
3.3 COMPLAINTS AND THE INCIDENT REGISTER .......cccotrmuuuiiiimnnniiiiiinniinniinninninnnninneessseennaee. 9
3.4 TECHNICAL NOISE CRITERIA AND NOISE CONTROLS. .......ccevuuuiiiiimmnniiniinnniiiniinnnninennnnse. 10
3.5 SIGNAGE. .. ...ttt rrsaa s essas e s teasss s s asasss st eaaassssstanssssstaasssssssasnssssssnnnns 11
3.6 DELIVERIES......ieuuiieeiiiiiiiiiiieiiiieei et renesreae s s esesesese st eaassseasssesasesenesesennsesensssenes 11
3.7 WASTE MANAGEMENT ....itiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitiiieiireieieeis e sesesesesesesenesssessssssssesesasesesnsnees 11
3.8 CLEANING & MAINTENANCE .....cccttuiiiiimmniiiiiineeiiiiimneiiiienseiiiiiessiiiiessisiessssssssssseees 12
3.9 IMONEY HANDLING ....coceuiiiimiirtnniiiiniiitirieiirieirieirtssisttssiitsesisteesistssisessssressseresssesessssnes 12
3.10 SUSTAINABILITY IMEASURES ....cccciittuiiiimiiiiniiiiniiiiniiieeiniieiiieirieirimiesiesstsestsssnees 12
3.11 STAFF INDUCTION & TRAINING ....cccuciiiiimnniiiiiinnniiiiiiniiiiiiteiiiiiimmiiimssiieesstmmseeees 12
4.0 SECURITY MEASURES ......cttuuiriiuiiriiiiiiniiiiniiiiieinieeinieeinieiiteeisteeistsssistsssressistessestsssssssnse 14
4.1 GENERAL MEASURES........ccuuiiiiiimnniiiiiiniiiiiiineninniinaeninsssiinsissassssismsssssisssssssssssssssssnssses 14
4.2 SECURITY STAFF ..oieeiiiiiiiiiiiiitiiiitiiiiiiiinieisreaiistsesesesesestsssentaesstessstsssestsssestsnsestsssesensssnens 14
4.3 CRIME SCENE PRESERVATION.....cccccittmiiitniitiniirineiiriniinieiiiieiiieeiitieiiesismssinessseresesesesnns 14
4.4 CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION (CCTV) ..uuuuuniuinnnnnnnnnennnnnneeeeeeeeeeeeeeessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssns 14

2



4.5

5.0

5.1

5.2

Building Design and Safety ProCeAUIES ......c.ccevuueereerertencrteneeeeniereaneerenseerenseerensessnssessnsessnnes 15

OTHER RELEVANT MATTERS ....cuiiiitiiiiiiiiiiiniitiniiiiinneiinsinissiiiniesssssesssssssismsssssssssee 16
FIRE SAFETY AND ESSENTIAL SERVICES ........ccortimuniiiiiinnniiiiinnniiniininsiinninnasiimmssesmss. 16
AMENDMENT TO THIS PLAN......cotteiirrieiiiniiieinniiiesinrissssisssssasssssassssssesssssssessssssssssnsnes 16

90



INTRODUCTION

1.0 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Operational Plan of Management (the Plan) is to establish
performance criteria for the operations of Shell House, having regard to the relevant
matters under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 and the Liquor
Act 2017 (the Liquor Act) and any relevant Regulation under that legislation.

The Licensee must maintain an Operational Plan of Management.

The Operational Plan of Management should be systems based and address:

e Licence conditions and liquor laws compliance

Responsible service of alcohol
¢ Management of patrons and minimising disturbance to the neighbourhood

o Effective management and deployment of venue staff particularly addressing
security and patron safety, inductions and training

o Effective management of responses to any concerns raised

1) A copy of the current Operational Plan of Management will be maintained at the
licensed premises and made available for immediate inspection by members of
the NSW Police Force or Inspectors of the Office of Liquor Gaming and Racing.

2) The provisions of this Plan must be adhered to at all times during the execution of
the duty of all members of staff and security. Disregarding the provision of this
Plan may lead to on-the-spot dismissal.

3) Reference in this Plan to the Licensee is a reference to the most senior
management person on duty, even in the absence of the Licensee.

4) Reference in this Plan to the Security Manager is a reference to the mostsenior
security person on duty, unless the role of Security Manager has been delegated
by the Licensee.

5) An obligation or responsibility under this Plan assigned to a Duty or Security
Manager may be undertaken by another member of staff, as delegated by the
relevant manager.

11 LOCATION
Shell House is located above Wynyard Station, one of the country’s busiest

transport interchanges and occupies a key city block along George Street in
Sydney’s CBD.

91



E Ea <]

' 3’_:;.4« = —)_,;,
[ Thesite

Figure 1 Shell House location

It is proposed that a single operating licensed restaurant and bar
will be established within the two-level rooftop pavilion and ground
floor levels of Shell House.

1.2 COMPANY OVERVIEW

We have brought together a globally experienced and qualified team
comprised of The Point Group with our deep knowledge of
hospitality in Sydney heritage settings, the ground-breaking design
of Sydney architects Architectus and Woods Bagot, and one of the
nation’s foremost heritage architects GML Heritage.

The Point Group has five venues currently trading in Sydney and two restaurants in
Bali. We have an intimate knowledge of hospitality, most notably operating the
Icebergs Dining Room and Bar in Bondi Beach for the past 17 years. We also own
and operate two freehold, heritage listed hotels in Surry Hills — The Dolphin Hotel on
Crown Street and Hotel Harry on the corner of Wentworth Avenue and Goulburn
Street. Both have undergone significant heritage restoration work and our team
operate and maintain these buildings successfully.

We are highly motivated by this opportunity to make a significant

contribution to conserving and enhancing one of Sydney’s newest
developments.

92



2.0 OPERATIONAL DETAILS
The Shell House is to operate as a single tenancy by a single operator with one

management team, providing three outlets for patrons to provide a range of
experiences.

21 HOURS OF OPERATION

Shell House will be open on a daily basis, serving patrons for lunch, dinner and
drinks.

Shell House will operate 24 hours, 7 days a week in accordance with the Liquor
Licence.

It is intended that Shell House will operate 52 weeks of the year, every day
of the year, except for Christmas Day.

22 CAPACITY

There is a maximum capacity of 275 @ Margaret Street Level, 315 @ Level 9
and 295 @ Level 10 inclusive of staff, security, entertainers and patrons.

23 PUBLIC TRANSPORT

The site’s central location and range of public transport options lends itself
to travel by public transport and foot. The restaurant / bar will contain maps
that show the proximity of key destinations and the area's transport hubs for
patrons who may wish to visit using public transport.

93



24 CRIME PREVENTION THROUGH ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN

The PoM is consistent with the principles of Crime Prevention Through
Environmental Design (CPTED) by creating environmental and social
conditions that:

e Maximise risk to offenders (increasing the likelihood of detection,
challenge and apprehension);

e Maximise the effort required to commit crime (increasing the time,
energy and resources required to commit crime);

¢ Minimise the actual and perceived benefits of crime (removing,
minimising or concealing crime attractors and rewards); and

¢ Minimise excuse-making opportunities (removing condition that
encourage/ facilitate rationalisation of inappropriate behaviour).

The safety and security issues addressed in this PoM are consistent with
current policies that ensure the quiet amenity of neighbouring properties is
maintained at all times during the operation of the premises. All staff, as
part of the induction process, are required to be familiar with this PoM.

94



3.0 MANAGEMENT MEASURES
3.1 GENERAL AMENITY

1) The Licensee shall consider the amenity of neighbours and shall take all
reasonable measures to ensure the conduct of Shell House does not impact
adversely on the surrounding area.

2) Levels 9 & 10 will have a designated smoking area; smoking will not be
allowed anywhere else in the tenancy.

3) The Licensee will take all reasonable measures to ensure that the behaviour of
staff and patrons when entering or leaving the premises does not detrimentally
affect the amenity of the surrounding area.

4) Access to the site will be provided by Wynyard Lane and will be clearly
designated through signage as part of a future development application.

3.2 THE RESPONSIBLE SERVICE OF ALCOHOL

1) The sale and supply of liquor shall be exercised — at all times — in accordance
with the provisions of the Liquor Act and Regulation and the Restaurant Licence
(Appendix A).

2) The following operational policies for the Responsible Service of Alcohol shall
apply at all times:

l. All staff are to be trained with regards to the obligations, practices and
procedures of the restaurant / bar with regards to Responsible Service of
Alcohol.

Il. The management does not serve liquor to intoxicated patrons. As well,
intoxicated patrons are not allowed to remain on the premises, and due to
the nature of the area, this is, and will continue to be tightly controlled by
management.

lll. Management refuses entry to intoxicated persons coming from other
venues in order to reduce incidences.

IV. All staff, as part of the induction process, are fully briefed on how they
should address and caution potentially inebriated or unusually vocal
customers in order to minimise the likelihood of disturbing the quiet and
good order of the neighbourhood.

V. Customers making any noise are asked to leave quietly and quickly and
any customers loitering are asked to move on.

V1. Additionally, the safety and security issues addressed in this PoM have
been devised to ensure the quiet amenity of neighbouring properties is
maintained at all times during the operation of the premises.

VII. Staff are encouraged to assist with passive surveillance of all areas of the
development. Staff will be encouraged to call their Supervisor or Manager
if any difficulties arise to quickly "intercept" any potentially noisy, rowdy or
abusive patrons to attempt to calm them down as much as possible as
they leave.

8
95



3.3 COMPLAINTS AND THE INCIDENT REGISTER

1) The Licensee shall ensure that details of the following are recorded in the Shell
House Incident Register at all times:

l. Any incident involving anti-social behaviour occurring in Shell House;

Il. Any incident that results in a patron of the Shell House requiring
medical assistance;

lll. Any incident that occurred on the Shell House, which involved the
intervention of security;

IV. Any complaints made directly to the management or staff of the Shell
House by local residents, about the operation of the Shell House or the
behaviour of its patrons; and

V. Any visit by any NSW Police Officer or L&G Special Inspector noting their
agency or department, reason for the visit and result of the visit.

2) The Incident Register entry is to note under which of the above reasons the entry
is being made, including the details of any incidents, what action was taken by
security, the level of intoxication of any patrons involved and whether the Police
were called.

3) The Licensee shall make the Incident Register available to any NSW Police
Officer or Liquor & Gaming Special Inspector on request.

4) The following details of complaints made to the Shell House are to be recorded
in the Incident Register:

I. Date and time of the incident that led to the complaint;
Il. Nature of the complaint;

lll.  Address and contact details of the complainant;
IV. Any actions proposed to deal with the complaint; and

V. The actions taken and the time and date when that was reported to the
complainant.

VI. The Incident Register is to be reviewed regularly by the Licensee to

ensure that complaints, where possible, are being dealt with appropriately
and that sufficient details in relation to incidents are being recorded.

96



34 TECHNICAL NOISE CRITERIA AND NOISE CONTROLS

The new restaurant / bar will be managed to minimise the potential of
causing a nuisance. In accordance with the Environmental Noise Impact
Assessment prepared by Acoustic Logic and dated 5 November 2019, the
following measures will be implemented:

e Glazing on all facades in accordance with the glazing specifications
recommended by Acoustic Logic;

¢ Management controls to manage patron departures particularly at
night and at closing times to ensure patrons leave in a prompt and
orderly manner;

e QOutdoor speakers to play music with a maximum Sound Pressure
Level 74 dB(A) at 1m distance from the surface of speakers, the
speakers should be positioned facing the project site only;

¢ All waste removal and deliveries will be considered in the existing
waste management plan for the site and can be conducted via the
existing basement area;

e Management control will be carried out by the tenant to ensure that
the operational noise to any residential receivers satisfies the
requirements by NSW Office Liquor and Gaming, and the City of
Sydney Council DCP after midnight;

e Speakers and other noise generating equipment are to be vibration
isolated from the building structure in locations advised by Acoustic
Logic using mounts specified by Acoustic Logic;

e Floor slabs should be the appropriate thickness and achieve the
appropriate impact rating and footings of all furniture shall be isolated
by rubber mounts. The kitchen bench should also be isolated by two
layers of waffle pads with metal shim in between; and

¢ New plant services should be assessed at the Construction
Certificate stage to ensure the overall noise emissions satisfy the
specified noise emission criteria provided by Acoustic Logic.

Staff will be encouraged to minimise noise whilst on site and always report
any negative behaviour. Reports of all noise complaints will be documented
in a register and kept on site. Staff will be encouraged to ensure that
customers behave in an appropriate manner whilst on the site and do not
disturb the neighbourhood when exiting the premises late at night.

In addition, the premises will be operated in accordance with noise
conditions imposed by local authority as part of any development approval
as well as any requirements of the relevant licensing authority. All sound
emissions and noise management practices will comply with Council’s
requirements, the Protection of the Environment (Operations) Act 1997 and
NSW Office of Liquor, Gaming and Racing (OLGR).

Key initiatives to minimise noise on terraces during normal hours and after
hours include:

e Management and staff intervention;
e [nstallation of noise locks on doors to the terraces / balconies which

10
97



can be used as required;

o Management control will be carried out by the tenant to ensure that
the operational noise not be audible to any residential receivers
satisfies the requirements by NSW Office Liquor and Faming, and
the City of Sydney DCP after midnight;

e Noise limiting applications on sound systems and equipment;

e Passive Design noise barriers including screens and curtains.

3.5 SIGNAGE

1) The Licensee shall be responsible to ensure all signage required under the
Liquor Act and Regulation, is displayed and maintained in a prominent position, in
accordance with those legislative requirements.

3.6 DELIVERIES

All food and beverage will be delivered via the existing basement area. The
basement area will be capable of receiving all goods and managing the waste
collection process.

The basement is directly connected to the Back-of-House amenities of Wynyard
Place which enables a direct pathway for deliveries, storage and preparation. Ad-
hoc event equipment will be managed to ensure minimal disruption.

3.7 WASTE MANAGEMENT

All waste managing will be in accordance with the Waste Management Plan
prepared for the proposed development. Waste collection, storage and removal
from the site will be managed in accordance with the following principles:

1) All waste is to be stored on site in the designated internal waste area;

2) Staff will empty bins on a daily basis. Waste will then be collected from the
garbage room by a private contractor 7 days per week.

3) Waste removal trucks will access the site from the Wynyard Lane level and
travel down one level to the loading bays and central waste store areas. The
contractors will move the general waste bins or the recyclable waste bins to
the loading bays;

4) The waste management strategy for the development will be continually
evaluated by Building Management, to improve the service provided and to
achieve the NSW Government’s domestic and commercial waste reduction
targets;

5) Any rubbish spillage outside the garbage area is to be cleaned immediately by
the party responsible.

6) The management will ensure that areas surrounding the premises are
monitored on a continual basis to ensure that all fire escapes and stairways
are kept clear of objects at all times.

7) At the start and completion of each business day, a complete patrol will be
conducted of the immediate area surrounding the premises to ensure
premises is secure, all rubbish is cleared, and the loading dock area is clear
and clean.

8) As per Sydney City Council's policy the areas will comply with Council's Policy

11
98



for Waste Minimisation in New Developments 2005, which requires facilities to
minimise and manage waste and recycling generated by the proposal.

3.8 CLEANING & MAINTENANCE

1) The Licensee shall ensure Shell House is cleaned daily after close or more
frequently as the need arises.

2) Cleaning and maintenance regimes to protect and monitor the heritage fabric will
be guided by the Tenant Management outline determined in collaboration with
OEH and included here.

3.9 MONEY HANDLING

Management will remove money from cash points periodically as appropriate.

All appropriate safety alarms will be installed including back to base security which
involves the burglar alarm system being linked to the security company.

3.10 SUSTAINABILITY MEASURES

A full outline of sustainable operational practices that will be employed by the Shell
House are summarised in the Development Application.

3.11 STAFF INDUCTION & TRAINING

All staff will be inducted via an online training and induction platform, which records
their satisfactory completion of all mandatory modules prior to commencing
employment.

All relevant floor staff will have completed a valid RSA certificate prior to
commencing employment at Shell House.

Regular staff briefings will be held to discuss the operations of the venue and service
of alcohol at Shell House.

As part of the Venue training all staff members are required to read and refer back to
the following documents, which will be located within the Back of House.

Staff and Management to be aware of acceptable proof of age documents- NSW
Proof of Age Card, Drivers Licence, Passport, NSW Photo Card (or equivalent
interstate/ oversees documents).

Shell House Dining is committed to ongoing training of all staff in relation to RSA
information, updated venue procedures, initiatives, liquor laws and the significance
and history of the site.

RSA on the Frontline refresher training held frequently for all team members to assist
in compliance.

Managers and relevant staff members will be made aware of all requirements of the

12
99



liquor license, council approvals and the Alcohol Management Plan

Security Staff present must hold a valid RSA certificate and when present are
required to carry the valid RSA certificate on themselves.

Managers and Security staff are required to hold a briefing prior to any events to
discuss the protocols of handling RSA within the venue.

13
100



4.0 SECURITY MEASURES

Please note a full security management plan will be drawn up once pertinent
operational details are attained.

41 GENERAL MEASURES

1) The Security Manager shall require all security personnel employed at
Shell House to:

I. Be dressed in readily identifiable uniform so that they may be clearly
visible to patrons and displaying identification as a security guard.
Il. Report to the Security Manager and Licensee to obtain a briefing on any
specific duties to be addressed before commencing duty.
lll. Monitor Patrons and bring any issues of note to the Licensee or
Management Team.
IV. Prevent patrons from removing glass or alcohol from the Shell House.
V. Prevent patrons entering the Shell House with alcoholic drinks.
V1. In the event of an incident, clearly identify themselves as security belonging
to the Shell House and attempt to rectify the problem.

42 SECURITY STAFF

Once best practice operational security staffing is confirmed, schedule of security
staffing will be implemented in accordance with the Security Management Plan.

43 CRIME SCENE PRESERVATION

1) Immediately after the person in charge of the licensed premises becomes aware
of an incident involving an act of violence causing an injury to a person on the
premises or in the immediate vicinity, the person must:

l. Take all practical steps to preserve and keep intact the area where the act
of violence occurred, retain all material and implements associated with the
act of violence in accordance with the Crime Scene Preservation Guidelines
issued by the NSW Police; and

Il. Make direct and personal contact with the Local Area Commander or his/her
delegate, and advise the Commander or delegate of the incident; and

lll. Comply with any directions given by the Commander or delegate to
preserve or keep intact the area where the violence occurred.

44 CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION (CCTV)

1) CCTV cameras must be placed throughout the Shell House, comprising both

public and back of house areas. In general, the camera coverage is intended to
specifically record images of the following areas:

I. all public entrances and exits, whether or not in use at the time;

14
101



Il. all public accessible areas within the Shell House excluding toilets;

2) The correct time, date and camera identification must be automatically embedded
on all recordings and be able to be read when the image is played back on a
different system.

3) Recordings must be retained for a period of 30 days before being reused or
destroyed. The Licensee shall ensure that no person is able to delete or alter any
recordings within the 30 day period.

4) Immediate access to the CCTV system and the ability to review recordings on the
system is to be granted to NSW Police, OLGR Inspectors and other regulatory
officers upon request.

4.5 Building Design and Safety Procedures

The building has been designed to ensure the enjoyment and safety of guests. The
base build design including lifts and fire stairs will allow patrons to travel between
floors as required. Sprinkler protection of common areas will also be in place. All
building emergency systems will be periodically tested including lighting and smoke
detectors, sprinkler systems and air conditioning systems as part of normal
operational procedures.

A range of measures have been implemented into the design to minimise the impact
of noise from adjoining neighbours within the building and to surrounding land uses.
From an operational perspective, all patron behaviour will be supervised by
management and integrated security.

15
102



5.0 OTHER RELEVANT MATTERS

Other relevant matters we encounter as we proceed will be included here.
51 FIRE SAFETY AND ESSENTIAL SERVICES

1) The Licensee shall ensure that all essential services installed at Shell House are
certified annually and shall ensure that they remain in good working order at all
times.

2) In the event of any malfunctioning of any essential service the Licensee shall
ensure that it is rectified as quickly as soon as possible.

3) The Licensee shall ensure that lists of telephone numbers of all relevant
emergency agencies shall be kept in the office.

4) In the event of an emergency on the Shell House we will invoke the
specific Shell House Evacuation Plan.

Please refer to the BCA Performance Solution Plan & Fire Emergency Plan for
further details.

52 AMENDMENT TO THIS PLAN

1) If, in circumstances where better management or improved amenity outcomes
can be achieved by amendments to this Plan such amendments can be made.

2) This Plan and its attachments are also subject to legislative changes to the Liquor
Act 2007 and Liquor Regulation 2008. Where the publications of L&G are revised

or withdrawn from its website or where legislative changes occur from time to
time, the Plan is to be taken to reflect those changes.

Version: 2.0

Dated: December 2020

16
103



Attachment D

Proposed Drawings

104




S0T

architectus”

Architectus Group Pty Ltd is the owner of the copyright subsisting in these
drawings, plans, designs and specifications. They must not be used, reproduced
or copied, in whole or in part, nor may the information, ideas and concepts
therein contained (which are confidential to Architectus Group Pty Ltd) be
disclosed to any person without the prior written consent of that company

Do not scale drawings. Verify all dimensions on site.

Dimensions in millimetres unless otherwise stated.

Levels are in metres above Australian Height Datum unless ;001
otherwise stated. All discrepancies to be natified in writing to o~
Make +Architectus e

General Notes:

1. Design drawings are based on 3rd party survey information, prior to construction all set-
out dimensions and site and property boundaries are to be verified on site by a registered
surveyor. Notify the superintendent in writing of compliance to the drawings and / or any
discrepancies.

2. Do not scale from the drawings, use only figured dimensions. If in doubt obtain written

advice from the superintendent.
CARRI NGTON STRE ET 3. All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated. All dimensions are minimum

setting out requirements
4_The architectural documentation is to be in read in conjunction with all relevant
3 / DA-1008 cpntracts, arqhitectural _drawi_ngs, sqhedqles, reports _and specifications and_aII structural,
civil, mechanical, electrical, fire engineering, fire services, hydraulic, acoustic, landscape
@ v - @ and other relevant consultant drawings, specifications and reparts.

5. The architectural documentation is only allowed to be used for the purpose for which it
was commissioned. Unauthorised use of the documentation is prohibited

12000 9000 9000 [ 1 6310 6. Immediately report any discrepanci_es between architectural documgntat_ion an_d other
I 1 1 - consultant and/or project documentation to the superintendent for clarification prior to the
'""“'x,‘_w commencement of the affected works.
:---}_ '“‘\\ 7. Comply with all current BCA, Australian standards, work cover, occupational health and
27 T safety, and any other legislation relevant to the works.
\\ 8. Notify the superintendent prior to any works which may involve a variation to the
> contract
1—\\\ 9. Information pertaining to existing structures, planting, services, etc. indicated within the

documentation are not guaranteed as complete or correct and have been generated from
information supplied by authorities and third party consultants. The contractor is to verify all
existing information prior to the commencement of works as per item 1
| 10. The contractor is to verify all dimensions, existing levels, existing structure, services,
building fabric and site features on the site prior to the commencement of any works.
Written confirmation of the compliance between the drawings and the site is to be provided
to the superintendent. Any discrepancies are to be reported to the superintendent prior to
the commencement of warks.
I~ 11. Installation of systems and proprietary products to be strictly in accordance with
manufacturers recommendations
12_ Reduced levels (RL) datum is Australian height datum (AHD) co-ordinates are to
Australian map grid (MGA).

e

F=— = =

-
[ DA BOUNDARY
REDUCED RAMP LENGTH |

| R
ACHIEVEABLE WITH MAXIMUM
160mm RAISED FLOOR FOR
KITCHEN & AMENITIES.

ENGINEERED HANDRAIL
SOLUTION FOR STAIR & RAMP.

| —L —
nmvc =N TN 0 m -l T P — (1T
'F‘ () E
L
KITCHEN
1020 1020 — | =
: MARGARET STREET -
LLl
o TENANCY ENTRY o
1 | o [00] <
|| S = )
J\.Hm T m
A (™ < <
e | =
0 1 2 3 4 5
™~ i I e B e e g
m
DOOR KEPT OPEN DURING
OPERATION HOURS
issue reason for issue date checked
K 1 FOR CLIENT REVIEW 14.02.2020 DC
| A 2 DRAFT ISSUE 1 20.02.2020 DS
[T B VP 3 DRAFT ISSUE 20.03.2020 DC
‘ 4 DRAFT ISSUE 20.05.2020 DC
BAR ACCESS 5 DRAFT ISSUE 28.07.2020 DS
6 DRAFT ISSUE 05.08.2020 DS
7 DRAFT ISSUE 17.08.2020 DC
8 DA ISSUE 10.09.2020 DC

REDUCED RAMP LENGTH
BASED ON 190H RAISED

- KITCHEN FLOOR.
2
Brookfield
Saovereign Wynyard Centre Pty Limited or its nominee
N Level 22,135 King Street
¢ Sydney
NSW 2000
T+612 9322 82
architectus™”
MARGARET STREET TENANCY 4 Architectus Sydney
—L| | l ‘ | Level 18 MLC Centre

19 Martin Place

LEVEL 9 AND 10 TENANCY LIFT LOBBY ACCESS A” S F . ) SNz
F (61 2) 8252 8600

DINING 140 1/ DA-1008 syiney@arctecuscom au
BAR SEATING 41 Wynyard Place
BAR STANDING 84

drawing

Margaret Street Plan
STAFF 10

scale drawing no.

TOTAL 273 Joie
drawn DA'1 002

AC
paper size
A1
checked DC issue
project no 8

m: 958 a:120298.00

28-Aug-20 10:43:30 AM



90T

architectus*

Architectus Group Pty Ltd is the owner of the copyright subsisting in these
drawings, plans, designs and specifications. They must not be used, reproduced
or copied, in whole or in part, nor may the information, ideas and concepts
therein contained (which are confidential to Architectus Group Pty Ltd) be
disclosed to any person without the prior written consent of that company.

Do not scale drawings. Verify all dimensions on site

Dimensions in millimetres unless otherwise stated.

Levels are in metres above Australian Height Datum unless bsi.
otherwise stated. All discrepancies to be notified in writing to
Make+Architectus

General Notes:

1. Design drawings are based on 3rd party survey information, prior to construction all set-

out dimensions and site and property boundaries are to be verified on site by a registered

surveyor. Notify the superintendent in writing of compliance to the drawings and / or any

discrepancies

2. Do not scale from the drawings, use only figured dimensions. If in doubt obtain written

advice from the superintendent.

3. All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated. All dimensions are minimum

setting out requirements.

4. The architectural documentation is to be in read in conjunction with all relevant

contracts, architectural drawings, schedules, reparts and specifications and all structural,

civil, mechanical, electrical, fire engineering, fire services, hydraulic, acoustic, landscape

and other relevant consultant drawings, specifications and reports.

5. The architectural documentation is only allowed to be used for the purpase for which it

was commissioned. Unauthorised use of the documentation is prohibited

6. Immediately report any discrepancies between architectural documentation and other

consultant andfor project documentation to the superintendent for clarification prior to the

commencement of the affected works

7.Comply with all current BCA, Australian standards, work cover, occupational health and

safety, and any other legislation relevant to the works.

8. Notify the superintendent prior to any works which may involve a variation to the

contract

9. Information pertaining to existing structures, planting, services, etc. indicated within the

documentation are not guaranteed as complete or correct and have been generated from

information supplied by authorities and third party consultants. The contractor is to verify all

existing information prior to the commencement of works as per item 1

10. The contractor is to verify all dimensions, existing levels, existing structure, services,

building fabric and site features on the site prior to the commencement of any works.
FHR INTEGRATED INTO FITOUT SERVICES ZONE Written confirmation of the compliance between the drawings and the site is to be provided

to the superintendent. Any discrepancies are to be reported to the superintendent prior to

p y p p p p

(JOINERY CUPBOARD). the commencement of warks.

11. Installation of systems and proprietary products to be strictly in accordance with

manufacturers recommendations.

12. Reduced levels (RL) datum is Australian height datum (AHD) co-ordinates are to

Australian map grid (MGA)

SOFFIT28% L
RL 2700
FFL KITCHEN & AMENITIES
N __SH Margaret Street -
RL16.380
1:14 ACCESS RAMP ———— 240mm ACCESS FLOOR TO HOUSE TENANT
DRAINAGE, GREASE TRAP & OTHER SERVICES.
U Scale: 1:50
0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500
e t—F 71
mm
y OPPORTUNITY FOR COLUMNS TO BE INTEGRATED INTO : :
/ BAR DESIGN & PROVIDE SHELVING/DISPLAY. issue  reason for issue date  checked
CORRIDOR TO KITCHEN, BACK OF HOUSE AND LINK TO RAMP TO AMENITIES ] FOR CLIENT REVIEW 12.02.2020 oc
ELEVATORS (ACCESS TO LEVEL 09 & 10). ——————— RAISED BOOTHS 2 DRAFT ISSUE 1 20.02.2020 DS
3 DRAFT ISSUE 20.03.2020 DC
4 DRAFT ISSUE 20.05.2020 DC
5 DRAFT ISSUE 05.08.2020 DS
SOFFIT2850 R I 6 FINAL DRAFT 10.09.2020 DC
RL 2700 B B -
=
BARHEIGHT |
RL 1100
Brookfield
I L Sovereign Wynyard Centre Pty Limited or its nominee
%&am—m = e — Level 22.135 King Street
Sydney
8 NSW 2000
I = T +612 9322 82

LANDLORD INSTALLED WATERPROOFING MEMBRANE WITH SCREED OVER ] FLOOR EMF SHIELDING

EMF SHIELDING. TENANT TO APPLY FINISH WITHIN 50MM ZONE

architectus™
MARGARET STREET SECT'ON 2 Architectus Sydney

. . Level 18 MLC Centre
Scale: 1:50 19 Martin Place
Sydney NSW 2000
T (61 2) 8252 8400
F (61 2) 8252 8600

sydney@architectus.com.au
ABN 90 131 245 684

project
Wynyard Place
drawing . .
Margaret Street Retail Sections
scale drawing no.
1:50
drawn AC DA'1 003
paper size A1
checked DC Issue
project no 6

m: 958 a:120298.00

17-Aug-20 5:00:41 PM



L0T

12000




80T

TOTAL

295

12000

pr

oject

rawing



60T

12000




oTT

>ECTION




TTT

architectus”

Architectus Group Pty Ltd is the owner of the copyright subsisting in these
drawings, plans, designs and specifications. They must not be used, reproduced
or copied, in whole or in part, nor may the information, ideas and concepts
therein contained (which are confidential to Architectus Group Pty Ltd) be
disclosed to any person without the prior written consent of that company.

IS0

9001

Quality

Management
General Notes:

1. Design drawings are based on 3rd party survey information, prior to construction all set-
out dimensions and site and property boundaries are to be verified on site by a registered

surveyor. Notify the superintendent in writing of compliance to the drawings and / or any
2. Do not scale from the drawings, use only figured dimensions. If in doubt obtain written
advice from the superintendent.
3. All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated. All dimensions are minimum
setting out requirements.
4. The architectural documentation is to be in read in conjunction with all relevant
contracts, architectural drawings, schedules, reports and specifications and all structural,
civil, mechanical, electrical, fire engineering, fire services, hydraulic, acoustic, landscape
and other relevant consultant drawings, specifications and reports.
5. The architectural documentation is only allowed to be used for the purpose for which it
was commissioned. Unauthorised use of the documentation is prohibited.
6. Immediately report any discrepancies between architectural documentation and other
‘ | | consultant and/or project documentation to the superintendent for clarification prior to the
commencement of the affected works.
7. Comply with all current BCA, Australian standards, work cover, occupational health and

Do not scale drawings. Verify all dimensions on site.
Dimensions in millimetres unless otherwise stated.

Levels are in metres above Australian Height Datum unless
otherwise stated. All discrepancies to be notified in writing to
Make+Architectus.

RETRACTABLE AWINING RETRACTABLE AWNING safety, and any other legislation relevant to the works.
RL 71.034 RL 71.034 8. Notify the superintendent prior to any works which may involve a variation to the
F ﬁ contract.
N SHRoof SHRoof wr 9. Information pertaining to existing structures, planting, services, etc. indicated within the
RL70.770 ‘ ‘ RL70.770 documentation are not guaranteed as complete or correct and have been generated from

information supplied by authorities and third party consultants. The contractor is to verify all
existing information prior to the commencement of works as per item 1.
10. The contractor is to verify all dimensions, existing levels, existing structure, services,

? < I ? A > < > building fabric and site features on the site prior to the commencement of any works.
SH Level 10 SH Level 10 Written confirmation of the compliance between the drawings and the site is to be provided
¥ oR — 1 — — — 1 — — 7 — — 1 — T - — S E— —F — — | — — i i — I — — — — — — — — — — —sheve . W to the superintendent. Any discrepancies are to be reported to the superintendent prior to
RL66.510 T Y RLEG.510 the commencement of works.
11. Installation of systems and proprietary products to be strictly in accordance with
manufacturers recommendations.
12. Reduced levels (RL) datum is Australian height datum (AHD) co-ordinates are to
Australian map grid (MGA).
W _ SHlevel09 S - - - - - - o - - - - - e - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - SH Level 09
RL62.250 RL62.250
W SHlevel08 I - - - I - - 0 - - I - 1 - - o - - - - - - - - - - - ! - - - - - - - - SH Level 08
RL58.200 RL58.200
W _ SHlevel07 R - - - R - - ] - - R - R e - o - R - - - - - - R - - ] - - R - - - R - SH Level 07
RL54.380 RL54.380
W SHlevel06 I - - - L - - 0 - - L - 1 - - . - I - - - - - - 1 - - ] - - 1 - - - 1 - SH Level 06
RL50.730 RL50.730
W _ SHlevel05 L - - - R - - 0 - - R - 0 e - o - R - - - - - - R - - ] - - R - - - R - SH Level 05
RL47.080 RL47.080
w” SHlevel04 o - - - . - - _ - - . - . - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - SH Level 04
RL43.430 RL43.430
W SHLlevel03 L [ [ o R R N e e R ————————.—. | | -y SH Level 03
RL39.780 ‘ ‘ RL39.780
w” SHlevel02 N _ . _ I _ . 0 . _ I _ R - _ o _ R _ . _ . _ _ I _ . _ | . _ I _ . _ I _ SH Level 02
RL36.130 RL36.130
W SHlevel01 R - - - R - - ] - - R - R e - o - R - - - - - - R - - ] - - R - - - R - SH Level 01
RL32.180 RL32.180
issue reason for issue date  checked
1 FOR CLIENT REVIEW 14.02.2020 DC
. . 2 DRAFT ISSUE 1 20.02.2020 DS
w_ SHMegonine . 0 . . . . e - - _SHMezanne wr 3 DRAFT ISSUE 20.03.2020 DC
RL28.380 RL28.380 4 DRAFT ISSUE 20.05.2020 DC
5 DRAFT ISSUE 17.08.2020 DC
6 DA ISSUE 10.09.2020 DC
7 DA ISSUE 16.12.2020 DC
w_ SHUpperGround | - - - R - - ] - - R - R e - o - R - - - - - - R - - ] - - R - - - R ~ SHUpper Ground
RL24.630 RL24.630
W SHCarington Steget | . e e e - e e e e SHCarrington Street gz
RL19.680 RL19.680

- - N . SH Carrington Entrance Level g7

- | RL18.280 -
v swegmse L S Brookfield

RL16.380
SHlardlane — N I . I — B E— — — — — B — — T — —_—r — e — R —_— N S N - N - . - - - _ | _ SHWynardlLane wr Sovereign Wynyard Centre Pty Limited or its nominee
RL15.100 008 RL15.100 Level 22,135 King Street
FIRE B TER Sydney
NSW 2000
——— ACCESS TO LEVEL 09 MARGARET STREET RETAIL ENTRY T +612 9322 82
RETAIL FACILITIES

/17, WYNYARD LANE (EAST) ELEVATION /2™, MARGARET STREET (NORTH) ELEVATION /3, CARRINGTON STREET (WEST) ELEVATION architectus™

\:/ Scale: 1:200 \:/ Scale: 1:200 U Scale: 1200 Architectus Sydney
Level 18 MLC Centre

19 Martin Place
Sydney NSW 2000
T (61 2) 8252 8400
F (61 2) 8252 8600

sydney@architectus.com.au
ABN 90 131 245 684

project
Wynyard Place

drawing

Shell House Facades
scale 1200 drawing no.
aam s DA-1008
paper size Al
checked DC issue
project no 7

m: 958 a:120298.00

16/12/2020 8:29:07 PM



AN

architectus”

Architectus Group Pty Ltd is the owner of the copyright subsisting in these
drawings, plans, designs and specifications. They must not be used, reproduced
or copied, in whole or in part, nor may the information, ideas and concepts
therein contained (which are confidential to Architectus Group Pty Ltd) be
disclosed to any person without the prior written consent of that company.

IS0

9001

Quality

Management
General Notes:

1. Design drawings are based on 3rd party survey information, prior to construction all set-
out dimensions and site and property boundaries are to be verified on site by a registered
surveyor. Notify the superintendent in writing of compliance to the drawings and / or any
discrepancies.

2. Do not scale from the drawings, use only figured dimensions. If in doubt obtain written
advice from the superintendent.

3. All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated. All dimensions are minimum
setting out requirements.

4. The architectural documentation is to be in read in conjunction with all relevant
contracts, architectural drawings, schedules, reports and specifications and all structural,
civil, mechanical, electrical, fire engineering, fire services, hydraulic, acoustic, landscape
and other relevant consultant drawings, specifications and reports.

5. The architectural documentation is only allowed to be used for the purpose for which it
was commissioned. Unauthorised use of the documentation is prohibited.

6. Immediately report any discrepancies between architectural documentation and other
consultant and/or project documentation to the superintendent for clarification prior to the
commencement of the affected works.

7. Comply with all current BCA, Australian standards, work cover, occupational health and
safety, and any other legislation relevant to the works.

8. Notify the superintendent prior to any works which may involve a variation to the
contract.

9. Information pertaining to existing structures, planting, services, etc. indicated within the
documentation are not guaranteed as complete or correct and have been generated from
information supplied by authorities and third party consultants. The contractor is to verify all
existing information prior to the commencement of works as per item 1.

10. The contractor is to verify all dimensions, existing levels, existing structure, services,
building fabric and site features on the site prior to the commencement of any works.
Written confirmation of the compliance between the drawings and the site is to be provided
to the superintendent. Any discrepancies are to be reported to the superintendent prior to
the commencement of works.

11. Installation of systems and proprietary products to be strictly in accordance with
manufacturers recommendations.

12. Reduced levels (RL) datum is Australian height datum (AHD) co-ordinates are to
Australian map grid (MGA).

Do not scale drawings. Verify all dimensions on site.
Dimensions in millimetres unless otherwise stated.

Levels are in metres above Australian Height Datum unless
otherwise stated. All discrepancies to be notified in writing to
Make+Architectus.

issue reason for issue date checked
1 FOR CLIENT REVIEW 14.02.2020 DC
2 DRAFT ISSUE 1 20.02.2020 DS
3 DRAFT ISSUE 20.03.2020 DC
4 DRAFT ISSUE 20.05.2020 DC
5 DRAFT ISSUE 17.08.2020 DC
6 DA ISSUE 10.09.2020 DC
7 DA ISSUE 16.12.2020 DC

Brookfield

Sovereign Wynyard Centre Pty Limited or its nominee
Level 22,135 King Street

Sydney
NSW 2000
T +612 9322 82
n
architectus™
Architectus Sydney
Level 18 MLC Centre
19 Martin Place
Sydney NSW 2000
T (61 2) 8252 8400
F (61 2) 8252 8600
sydney@architectus.com.au
ABN 90 131 245 684
project
Wynyard Place
drawing
3D Images - Street Level
scale drawing no.
1:12000
arawn _ DA-1009
paper size
Al
issue
checked DC
project no 7

m: 958 a:120298.00

21/12/2020 9:59:07 AM



€Tt

”_ SHRoof
RL70.770
-
o
[Ye)
[Te)
N
o
©
(92
o
W SHLlevel 10
RL66.510
o
S
>
X
o
©
(92
o
” SHLevel 09
RL62.250

/1™ DETAIL SECTION

HELIOSHADE PERGOLA

\:/ Scale: 1:50

2454
2537

S09.11
TERRACE

PLEATED SHADING

DAVIT ARM OUTLINE

—
~a}

3500

FIXING DETAIL SUBJECT TO
i DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

-~ EXISTING FACADE

FOLDING ARM AWNING

PLEATED SHADING

FRAME COLOUR - DARK BRONZE

FABRIC COLOUR - BROWN

FABRIC COLOUR - BEIGE

architectus”

Architectus Group Pty Ltd is the owner of the copyright subsisting in these
drawings, plans, designs and specifications. They must not be used, reproduced
or copied, in whole or in part, nor may the information, ideas and concepts
therein contained (which are confidential to Architectus Group Pty Ltd) be
disclosed to any person without the prior written consent of that company.

IS0

9001

Quality

Management
General Notes:

1. Design drawings are based on 3rd party survey information, prior to construction all set-
out dimensions and site and property boundaries are to be verified on site by a registered
surveyor. Notify the superintendent in writing of compliance to the drawings and / or any
discrepancies.

2. Do not scale from the drawings, use only figured dimensions. If in doubt obtain written
advice from the superintendent.

3. All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated. All dimensions are minimum
setting out requirements.

4. The architectural documentation is to be in read in conjunction with all relevant
contracts, architectural drawings, schedules, reports and specifications and all structural,
civil, mechanical, electrical, fire engineering, fire services, hydraulic, acoustic, landscape
and other relevant consultant drawings, specifications and reports.

5. The architectural documentation is only allowed to be used for the purpose for which it
was commissioned. Unauthorised use of the documentation is prohibited.

6. Immediately report any discrepancies between architectural documentation and other
consultant and/or project documentation to the superintendent for clarification prior to the
commencement of the affected works.

7. Comply with all current BCA, Australian standards, work cover, occupational health and
safety, and any other legislation relevant to the works.

8. Notify the superintendent prior to any works which may involve a variation to the
contract.

9. Information pertaining to existing structures, planting, services, etc. indicated within the
documentation are not guaranteed as complete or correct and have been generated from
information supplied by authorities and third party consultants. The contractor is to verify all
existing information prior to the commencement of works as per item 1.

10. The contractor is to verify all dimensions, existing levels, existing structure, services,
building fabric and site features on the site prior to the commencement of any works.
Written confirmation of the compliance between the drawings and the site is to be provided
to the superintendent. Any discrepancies are to be reported to the superintendent prior to
the commencement of works.

11. Installation of systems and proprietary products to be strictly in accordance with
manufacturers recommendations.

12. Reduced levels (RL) datum is Australian height datum (AHD) co-ordinates are to
Australian map grid (MGA).

Do not scale drawings. Verify all dimensions on site.
Dimensions in millimetres unless otherwise stated.

Levels are in metres above Australian Height Datum unless
otherwise stated. All discrepancies to be notified in writing to
Make+Architectus.

issue reason for issue date checked
1 DRAFT ISSUE 17.08.2020 DC
2 DA ISSUE 10.09.2020 DC
3 DA ISSUE 16.12.2020 DC

Brookfield

Sovereign Wynyard Centre Pty Limited or its nominee
Level 22,135 King Street

Sydney
NSW 2000
T +612 9322 82
n
architectus™
Architectus Sydney
Level 18 MLC Centre
19 Martin Place
Sydney NSW 2000
T (61 2) 8252 8400
F (61 2) 8252 8600
sydney@architectus.com.au
ABN 90 131 245 684
project
Wynyard Place
drawing
Pavilion - Pergola Details
scale drawing no.
1:50
drawn DA-1020
DS
paper size
Al
issue
checked DC
project no 3

m: 958 a:120298.00

17/12/2020 5:56:14 PM



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Item 4.

Development Application: 23 Hughes Street, Potts Point - D/2020/950

File No.: D/2020/950

Summary

Date of Submission:
Applicant:
Architect/Designer:
Owner:

Planning Consultant
Heritage Consultant
Cost of Works:

Zoning:

Proposal Summary:

18 September 2020

Australian Urban Projects Pty Ltd

CK Design Group

The Trustee for the Bart Grandchildren Family Trust
Myriad Planning

Urbis

$2,662,000

The site is located in the R1 General Residential zone. The
proposed development is defined as a Boarding House
and is permissible with consent in the zone.

Approval is sought for the substantial demolition of an
existing contributory building, including all internal floors
and walls, to facilitate re-construction of the building for
use as a 20-bedroom boarding house. The proposal seeks
to retain only the north elevation of the building fronting
Hughes Street - with changes to window and door
openings - and front sections of the side walls and roof.

The proposal includes a 4-storey rear addition built to the
boundary of the right-of-way passage to the south of the
site off Hughes Place and reconstruction of all internal
areas and floors. The proposal will convert the site to a 20-
bedroom boarding house accommodating 33 lodgers, with
a separate manager's room; internal amenities, including a
new lift; and landscaping works within the front setback,
involving the removal of 5 existing trees.

The application is reported to the Local Planning Panel as
it seeks to vary the motorcycle parking standards under
State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental
Housing) 2009 by more than 10%.



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Summary Recommendation:

Development Controls:

Attachments:

The proposal will not provide any motorcycle parking
spaces. The Affordable Rental Housing SEPP 2009
requires four motorcycle spaces to be provided. A request
to vary the standard has been made pursuant to Clause
4.6 of Sydney LEP 2012, which is not supported.

The subject development proposal was previously subject
to Pre-DA discussions (PDA/2020/44) in May 2020, where
it was advised that the substantial demolition of a
contributory building would not be supported.

The current development proposal has been scaled down
from the proposal presented at Pre-DA stage, however the
application continues to propose substantial demolition
and fails to address the principal issue of the loss of
heritage fabric, whilst proposing unsympathetic additions
which are inconsistent with the existing character and
heritage context.

Moreover, it is considered that the proposal represents
overdevelopment of the site which consequently results in
unacceptable and inadequate level of amenity for future
occupants. In doing so, the development fails to achieve
the objectives of the R1 - General Residential zone as it

represents poor quality residential accommodation which
fails to provide for the housing needs of the community.

This proposal is recommended for refusal.

(i)  Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
(i)  Sydney Development Control Plan 2012

(i)  State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable
Rental Housing) 2009

(iv) State Environmental Planning Policy (Building
Sustainability Index: BASIX) 2004

A.  Selected Drawings

B. Clause 4.6 Variation Request - Motorcycle Parking



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Recommendation

It is resolved that consent be refused for Development Application No. D/2020/950 for the
following reasons:

(A)

(B)

©

No BASIX Certificate

The proposal is considered to be BASIX affected development in accordance with the
definition outlined under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation
2000.

The provisions of SEPP (BASIX) 2004 Clause(6)(1)(a) requires a BASIX Certificate to
accompany a development application for proposed BASIX affected development.

Council Officers informed the applicant that a BASIX Certificate should be submitted
on lodgement during Pre-DA discussions (PDA/2020/44) in May 2020.

The applicant has not submitted a BASIX Certificate and contends that one is not
required. Council does not support the applicant's assertion that a BASIX Certificate is
not required.

Inconsistent with zone objectives

The proposed development will provide an unacceptable level of residential amenity
for future occupants and is therefore inconsistent with dot one objective of the R1 -
General Residential zone in that it does not provide for the housing needs of the
community.

The proposed development is non-compliant with multiple residential amenity controls
of the Sydney DCP and results in poor quality residential accommodation with an
inadequate level of residential amenity which therefore fails to meet a housing need.
Fails to achieve Design Excellence

The proposed development fails to achieve the principles of Design Excellence in
accordance with Clause 6.21 of the Sydney LEP and fails to adequately address the
following provisions:

° (4)(d)(ii) any heritage issues and streetscape constraints;

° (4)(d)(v) the bulk, massing and modulation of buildings;

. (4)(d)(vii) environmental impacts, such as sustainable design, overshadowing
and solar access, visual and acoustic privacy, noise, wind and reflectivity;

. (4)(d)(viii) the achievement of the principles of ecologically sustainable
development;

. (4)(d)(xii) achieving appropriate interfaces at ground level between the building
and the public domain; and



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

(D)

(E)

(F)

(©G)

. (4)(d)(xiii) excellence and integration of landscape design.
Heritage impact

The proposed development is inconsistent with the provisions of Clause 5.10 of the
Sydney LEP, as it will result in the substantial demolition of a contributory building
which will have an adverse impact upon the significance of the heritage conservation
area.

The application is inconsistent with Section 3.9.7 of the Sydney DCP and does not
justify the substantial demolition of a contributory building.

The proposed additions are non-compliant with the provisions of Section 3.9.7(3)(a) of
the Sydney DCP as they are unsympathetic and do not respect the original or
characteristic built form.

Unacceptable level of residential amenity

The design of the development restricts natural ventilation and is nhon-compliant with
Section 4.2.3.9 of the Sydney DCP. A number of the bedrooms are deep, single
aspect rooms with fixed windows and will therefore have no access to natural
ventilation.

12 of the 20 bedrooms have been measured to be undersized as such the proposed
development does not comply with Section 4.4.1.2 of the Sydney DCP.

The proposed development offers an inadequate provision of communal indoor living
space and a poorly designed communal open space as such the proposed
development does not comply with Section 4.4.1.4 of the Sydney DCP.

The proposed stairs and lift lobbies have no access to daylight and the lift lobbies are
non-compliant with the 2m width requirement as such the proposed development does
not comply with Section 4.2.3.3 of the Sydney DCP.

The proposed development offers an inadequate provision of communal laundry and
drying facilities to serve the proposed number of residents of the boarding house
space as such the proposed development does not comply with Section 4.4.1.5 of the
Sydney DCP Clause 4.6 - Motorcycle Parking

The proposed development is non-compliant with Clause 30(1)(h) of the Affordable
Rental Housing SEPP 2009 which requires the provision of one motorcycle space
every five boarding rooms. The proposed development provides no motorcycle parking
representing a 100% departure from the development standard.

The Clause 4.6 request to vary the standard is not supported as the development is
inconsistent with the objectives of the R1 - General Residential Zone and therefore the
request cannot be supported as it does not comply with the provisions of Clause

4.6(4)(a)(ii).
Waste

The proposal to situate a bin storage area within the landscaped front setback will
have an adverse impact upon the streetscape as such the proposed development
does not comply with Section 3.14 of the Sydney DCP.



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

(H)

(1

()

Tree management

The proposed removal of Tree 1 and Tree 5 is not supported as they are identified as
trees of moderate to high landscape which make a positive contribution to the
streetscape, as such the proposed development does not comply with Section 3.5.3 of
the Sydney DCP.

Inadequate information for assessment

The applicant has provided inadequate information to facilitate thorough assessment
of the development proposal and its impacts, as follows:

o A BASIX Certificate has not been provided, nor has any other details of
sustainability commitments, to determine the development's compliance with
Section 3.6 of the Sydney DCP.

° The applicant has not undertaken an assessment of the development's impact
upon constraining solar access to the lightwell benefitting 25 Hughes Street to
determine whether the proposal will conflict with the provisions of Section 4.2.3.2
of the Sydney DCP.

. The applicant has not submitted any information or analysis of view loss to
determine the extent of any impact in accordance with Section 4.2.3.10 of the
Sydney DCP.

Public interest

The proposed development will adversely impact upon the heritage significance of the
site and proposes unsympathetic additions, whilst providing an unacceptable level of
amenity to future occupants and constraining the existing level of amenity to
neighbouring properties, and is therefore not in the public interest.



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Background

The Site and Surrounding Development

1.

The site has a legal description of Lot 8 DP 10682, known as 23 Hughes Street, Potts
Point. It is rectangular in shape with area of approximately 287.5sgm. It has a primary
street frontage to Hughes Street and a secondary street frontage to a right of way off
Hughes Place. The site is located close to the intersection of Hughes Street and
Tusculum Street.

The site contains a three-storey brick building containing 12 bedrooms and provides
backpacker accommaodation for up to 56 guests plus one on site manager. A
communal kitchen/dining room and outdoor terrace are located on the ground floor. A
right of way and easement measuring 1.5m in width extends across the rear of the
site.

The subject site can be characterised as an Inter-War residential flat building with later
non-original rear additions visible from Hughes Place.

The surrounding area is characterised by a mixture of land uses, primarily being
residential, with higher concentrations of commercial uses situated towards Macleay
Street and Kings Cross to the east of the site.

The site is not a heritage item but it is located within the Potts Point Heritage
Conservation Area (CA51). The site is identified as a contributing building.

The site is not identified as being subject to flooding.

A site visit was carried out on 3 December 2020 and photos of the site and surrounds
are provided below:



3 February 2021

Local Planning Panel

f: _'1(
i -
1

fanany 16U 7

251
126

> 9

Figure 2: Site viewed from Hughes Street



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Figure 3: Site viewed from Hughes Place with later additions to the rear visible



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

atriy -

Figure 4: Existing right of way passage fenced off from Hughes Place



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Figure 5: Residential uses to the rear along Hughes Place

10



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Figure 6: View looking west from the rear of the site down Hughes Place

11



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Figure 7: View looking west from the front of the site down Hughes Street

12



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Lz dndaguelclill

Figure 8: View from the front of the site looking towards the adjacent residential flat building to the
east of the site (25 Hughes Street)

History Relevant to the Development Application
Development Applications
8.  The following applications are relevant to the current proposal:

o D/2013/1110 — Development consent was refused on 29 May 2014 for
alterations and additions to existing backpacker accommodation, including
excavation to create a new basement, attic extension and construction of a new
roof terrace.

Pre-DA Advice
9.  The subject development proposal was previously subject to Pre-DA discussions

(PDA/2020/44) in May 2020, where it was noted that the proposed development
exceeded the LEP and DCP height controls.

13



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

10.

11.

The Pre-DA advice provided by Council Officers concluded that the development as
proposed:

“Is intrusive to the contributory building. The whole of the existing roof form
should be retained and additions confined to the rear and be sympathetic
to the building. A three-storey rear addition with a communal roof terrace
above may be the limit of the development potential for the site.”

Whilst it is acknowledged that the development proposal presented at Pre-DA has now
been scaled down and is compliant with the relevant height controls, the above
comments remain pertinent with regards to the site's limited development potential.

Current Development Application

12.

13.

14.

On 4 December 2020, a letter was sent to the applicant outlining Council officers’
concerns with regards to the proposed development. In this correspondence the
applicant was informed that the application was not supported in its current form and it
was recommended that the application be withdrawn.

Due to the significant and substantial issues associated with the proposed
development it was considered that any genuine attempt to address them would likely
result in a significantly different development proposal. As such the applicant was
invited to withdraw the application, with any unused application fees returned, and to
resubmit a new application which more adequately responds to and addresses the
issues raised during pre-application discussions (PDA/2020/44).

On 8 December 2020, the applicant wrote to Council stating they will not be
withdrawing the application and requested Council to finalise the assessment and
determine the application based upon current documentation.

Proposed Development

15.

Approval is sought for the following:

° Substantial demolition of the existing building including all internal floors and
walls;

. Retention of existing north frontage facing Hughes Street with changes to
window and door openings;

° Part-retention of front section of side walls and roof section towards Hughes
Street;

o Construction of new 4-storey rear addition built to the boundary of the right-of-
way passage to the south of the site off Hughes Place;

. Reconstruction of 3-storey internal areas and floors at the front of the building
with retained external walls;

. Construction of 20 boarding house rooms, and new internal boarding house
amenities including new bathroom and kitchen fit-outs and lift;

. Indoor communal living area and communal kitchen at ground floor level;

14



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

16.

17.

PR KING & SONS ARTIRA INCLINED ——
PLATFORM LIFT OR

f
AUTOMATIC SLIDING DOOR

Managers room and private open space at ground floor level;
Landscaped communal open space to replace existing front courtyard;

Refurbishment of existing front fence, including paint removal from brickwork and
new balustrade; and

Removal of 5 trees

Operational aspects of the boarding house include:

7 single rooms and 13 double rooms for a total of 33 lodgers.
On-site manager.

Outdoor communal area used only between 8am and 8pm (AEST) and 7am and
9pm (AEDT).

Visitors to the premises will only permitted until 20pm.
No alcohol consumption will be permitted in the communal areas of the building.
Smoking will not be permitted indoors.

No amplified music will be permitted at any time within the outdoor communal
areas.

Recorded and/or amplified music permissible indoors during daylight hours
between 8:00am and 8:00pm Monday to Thursday and between 8:00am and
10:00pm Friday to Sunday.

No pets will be allowed within the premises at any time.

Plans and elevations of the proposed development are provided below.

f P,
3/

\ } | 1
N NGL
™ o |
3 C 74
SIMILAR: iﬁh E@_@] ECLN-@ | 1 | = : B %
o = : Sy== e BTN A
L. -E_::_| - T AREA W:g;n E i
E::3 § UUﬁ‘ | . )
T I |
i - ShasDugal {7 Ml 7 b
7 I'i"! i
A A | E)
mIl: I -ALTOMATIC
p—— e (Ima _;mer_e:"l (: j_s_u_DNGuoore
mos o [J e 4
== iz Pl g
3 = E
ARNIE 2 |
/ SINGLEROOM| (=] f AREA-Z0Zqm R SPEE362
: 2 AREA: 17 2sqm| \REA-
i mEtiE i) g““ o : - 1 LINE OF EXISTING BUILDING
N 2 L~
i @) ;
e | \
T =
2
HIR NN

Figure 9: Proposed Ground Floorplan

15



Local

Planning Panel

3 February 2021

1
LINE OF EXISTING BUILDING

22)
b
\ Ee N J
\ 3 1\
I T : | B
i azadl 0 Bl ot 3
DOUBLEROCM | .y - DOUBLE ROOM
] AREA 21.0sgm - = AREA 16
H==IE=E | 1 =
[E[] T A @ [ = i | [
v 7
bl SLE oo g |
AREA: 20.5sqm B
| EEEAED LosgY LOBBY SINGLE ROOM
I H 2 FL41ITE. — — RO AREA: 18.0sqm
| [ pod J0 I AREA: 120sqm
T
- o= T WE]
B T
2 O oY RCEE z U | B
D s g I b g
- il 20.55qm
DOUBLE r—— 4D I8 16.0cqm |22
B ez - 5]
H A= i !
F
o 2 S
— & ;I
%
¥l
DP 71
|
4
|
4 ¥
—r——— e

AN

2| ) “2
5
e v
I 1\
N B :‘ |
|5 oI =
DOUBLEROOM | | | DOUBLE ROOM :
AREA 160sqm | - T - hREA B Dsm :
] 2 g -
“TAE [ U1 | == g uis| E d
T =
: 4
SINGLE ROCM LOEEY —— LOBEY SINGLE ROOM
AREA: 16/ 0 s AREA: 16.0sqm
M&]Z.ﬂ un 4$R'-“"‘" [){ 4714247 NU14 AREA 120gm
e E E| F| RoeE - roee] |r E | ETupy
B K | amov RoE \J I‘-/ | moeE
U1z B. B U3 | poustE RooM = SPeE 362
e L CH I~ N 82
s i }_ i : I L iINE OF EXISTING BUILDING
- .
ol [ g
il =< |
= - = - ; - %
= 4 2
— + ;[
‘ v
¥
DoP ¥l
¥l
)
- ]
4 " 5
=5 A

Figure 11: Proposed Second Floorplan

16



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

|
I/ X
&)

i B
_ I I -
i =h=
| ACCESS — = o
. 03 H B
il T
< AT
I
LOEBY == LosEY
‘ E{L(ﬂ, 3¢ RL 47.57
‘ uig =
A — ]
, @ 1550
5
e H

g
'S
; €l
e 2
7

Figure 12: Proposed Third Floorplan

g T I
& 5 S N N
- G VL & i e
1} P \_ e " _ 5’!:5: _ 188"2040" :}I =L1_ \ gkt P R TN
& & 00 FH o B Y- i oL

N
W,

IEEEEENNE e 748
|

EXETING RODE

=

=

CONCRETE

v ‘ ROOF | A |
BITUMEN SURFACE RL 50.67 HE
'$— = | |8

|
|
|

PR Y \\_‘_r

Figure 13: Proposed Roof Plan

17



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Mo 25

e o - 4 STOREY BRICK *

SUBJECT SITE

DWELLING

Figure 14: Proposed North Elevation

: ‘ MAYX HEIGHT 15m

AFL 5067

-EXISITING WINDOW TO BE DEMOL

& REFI‘LA[EDWTI'H.#\ SUDING DOC

-
s
A
/
r
b

Mo 21
s 2 STOREY SISTOME —
DWELLING

EXISITNG PORTION OF ROOF TO BE-
DEMOLISHED AMD MAKE GOOD, ‘d

EXISITMG WALL TO BE DEMOLISHED-
AND

e
7 Lo

/ //,/ %g//; ,/;
//// 7 / /L

___________ f.—:_

Figure 15: Proposed West Elevation

18



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

= J:DH )
RS

SOUTH FACADE - EX. vs PR. LEGEND
EXISTING BUILDING ENVELOPE

PROPOSED ADDITION

EXISTING WALL TO BE DEVOLISHED
AND MAKE GOCD |

PRLLEVEL 3/
f 47 57|
} ; } } y
£ =4
-4 &
=
5 || IS (S o e e e e ) EX.LEVEL 2w
] — 47|
Q
Z
g g
5 F=——|—DXISTING ROOF TO B2 DEMOLISHED 3
o] AND MAKE GOOD
2 |-
= EX.LEVEL i/
— .07
.
| EXISTING WINDOW TO BE DEMOLISHED 8
AND MAKE GOOD &
|
GROUND FL
,,,,, L = = & i
— 386

Figure 16: Proposed South Elevation

e = — —— ||

Figure 17: Proposed Side Section

19



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

PRROOF O _
067
U1
ESS i
PROLEVELS _ i _
TE7
=
| [
ERLEVELZ || oG R T
47
'I
1 08
EX.LEWELY | DOUBLE -
.07
=
U 01
SROUND FLOOR SINGLE [ —
iTes — R —
e ———

Figure 18: Proposed Rear Section

20



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

o i o g |
o |
=

2 2 Iy S D e )

{ 11
3 i
R - =
b 4 !
= - ) - -
H i
B =S
— o —

{ P
LEF R

T
ENpFwre]

_rEmada

Figure 19: Development viewed from Hughes Street

21



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Figure 20: Development viewed from Hughes Place

Assessment

18. The proposed development has been assessed under Section 4.15 of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act).

State Environmental Planning Policies
State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009
19. The aim of State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP) (Affordable Rental Housing) is

to provide a consistent planning regime for the provision and maintenance of
affordable rental housing and to facilitate the delivery of new affordable rental housing.

22



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Division 3: Boarding Houses

20.

Under Clause 29, compliance with any of the following standards must not be used to

refuse consent for a boarding house. An assessment of the proposed boarding house
against each standard is provided in the table below.

Clause 29 - Standards that cannot be used to refuse a boarding house

Provision Compliance | Comment

1 Density  and scale | Yes The application proposes a floor space

expressed as floor space ratio of 1.95:1 and complies.

ratio

AnFSR of upto 2.5:1 plus 0.5:1

is permitted.

2(a) Building height Yes The development will not exceed the

- : maximum building height of 15m.

The proposed building height ghelg

must not exceed the maximum

building height of 15m

permitted under the Sydney

LEP 2012.

2(b) Landscaped area Partial The front setback is retained however
. compliance the proposed development involves the

The front setback is to be removal of existing trees in the front

compatible with the setback to create a communal living

streetscape. space and a managers private open

space which will be separated by
fencing, in addition to a proposed bin
storage area.

It is considered that the proposed
changes to the front setback will have an
adverse impact upon the streetscape
presentation of the building.

The applicant has submitted an Arborist
Report and Landscape Plan which
provides details of trees identified for
retention and those proposed for
removal within the front setback. See
further details in ‘Discussion’ section
below.

23




Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision Compliance | Comment

2(d) Private open space No The only private open space provision is
) , in the front setback which is not

At least the following private supported

open space areas are to be '

provided (other than the front See further details under the

setback): ‘Discussion’ section below.

(i) One area of at least 20sgm

with a minimum dimension of

3m is provided for lodgers.

(i) If accommodation is

provided for an onsite

manager, one area of at least

8sgm with  a  minimum

dimension of 2.5m, adjacent to

the accommodation.

2(e) Parking No, but | The proposal does not involve the

. . , rovision of any car parking.

(i) 0.2 parking spaces provided acceptable P y P g

for each boarding house room Notwithstanding the above, the site is

for sites in an accessible area. situated in an accessible location and

N : . proposals for car-free developments are

(if) 0.4 parking §paces provided supported by the City within such areas

for each boarding house room of the LGA.

for sites not in an accessible

area.

(i) Not more than 1 parking

space for the on-site manager.

2(f) Accommodation size No Excluding kitchens and bathrooms, the

(i) Rooms intended to be used
by a single lodger are to have a
minimum GFA of 12sgm.

(i) Rooms intended to be used
more than one person are to
have a minimum GFA of
16sgm.

(excluding any area used as a
private kitchen/ bathroom)

application proposes the following room
sizes (the numbers in bold are rooms
that do not comply):

Boarding room 1 single — 11.8sgqm
Boarding room 2 double — 15.4sgm
Boarding room 3 double — 16.5sgm
Boarding room 4 double — 20.2sgm
Boarding room 5 double — 25sgm

Boarding room 6 double — 17sgm

Boarding room 7 double — 15.4sgm

24




Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision

Compliance

Comment

Boarding room 8 single — 11.2sgqm
Boarding room 9 double — 15.5sgm
Boarding room 10 double — 15.6sgm
Boarding room 11 single — 11.4sgm
Boarding room 12 double — 18.1sgm
Boarding room 13 double — 18.3sgm
Boarding room 14 single — 11.2sgm
Boarding room 15 double — 15.2sgm
Boarding room 16 single — 12.5sgm
Boarding room 17 single — 12.8sgm
Boarding room 18 double — 15.5sgm
Boarding room 19 single — 11.2sgm

Boarding room 20 double — 15.3sgm

21.

22.

The proposed development does not comply with the relevant provisions of clause 29.

Clause 30 states that a consent authority must not grant development consent to

which Division 3 applies unless it is satisfied of each of the following provisions.

Clauses 30 — Standards for boarding house

occupied by more than 2 adult
lodgers

Provision Compliance | Comment

1(a) At least one communal | Yes A communal living room has been
living room is to be provided. provided.

1(b) No boarding room is to | Yes All boarding rooms are less than 25sgm.
have a gross floor area

(excluding private kitchen or

bathroom facilities) of more

than 25m?

1(c) No boarding room to be | Yes The submitted Plan of Management

restricts the number of lodgers to no more
than 2 adult lodgers per room.

25




Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision Compliance | Comment

1(d) Adequate bathroom and | Yes The boarding house provides adequate

kitchen facilities available for bathroom and kitchen facilities for each

use of each lodger lodger in accordance with Section 4.4.1
of the Sydney DCP 2012.

(1e) A boarding room or on-site | Yes The proposed development includes a

dwelling to be provided for a manager's room on the ground floor for

boarding house manager if an on-site manager.

boarding house has a capacity

of 20 or more lodgers

1(g) If the boarding house is | Yes The land is zoned primarily for residential

zoned primarily for commercial development.

purposes, no part of the ground

floor that fronts a street will be

used for residential purposes

except where permitted under

an EPI.

1(h) At least 1 bicycle and 1 | No The proposed development includes the

motorcycle parking space to be
provided for every 5 rooms.

provision of 6 bicycle spaces which is
consistent with the requirement based
on the proposed number of lodgers.

No motorcycle parking spaces are
provided. A Clause 4.6 variation to the
motorcycle parking standard has been
submitted but is not supported.

See further details in the ‘Discussion’
section below.

23. The proposed development complies with the relevant provisions of clause 30.

Clause 30A — Character of the local area

24.

Clause 30A states that a consent authority must not consent to development for a

boarding house unless it has taken into consideration whether the design of the
development is compatible with the character of the local area.

25.

The site is located within a residential area and the proposed boarding house use is a

recognised form of residential accommodation representing a permissible use,
however the design of the development is not compatible with the character of the
locality and is not supported. Refer to discussion section below.

26




Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

State Environmental Planning Policy (Building Sustainability Index: BASIX) 2004

26. The proposal is defined as a BASIX affected development and therefore a BASIX
Certificate is required to be submitted. A BASIX Certificate has not been submitted
with the development application.

27. See further details under sub-heading ‘Sustainability’ of ‘Discussion’ section below.

Local Environmental Plans

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012

28. An assessment of the proposed development against the relevant provisions of the
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 is provided in the following sections.

Part 2 Permitted or prohibited development

Provision Compliance | Comment
2.3 Zone objectives and Land | No The site is located in the R1 General
Use Table Residential zone. The proposed use is

defined as a Boarding House and is
permissible with consent in the zone.

Notwithstanding the above, the
proposed development is inconsistent
with the objectives of the zone in
providing for the housing needs of the
community, as it will result in an
unacceptable level of amenity for future
occupants of the development.

The proposed development is non-
compliant with multiple residential
amenity controls of the Sydney DCP and
results in poor quality residential
accommodation with an inadequate level
of residential amenity which therefore
fails to meet a housing need. See further
details in the ‘Discussion’ section below.

27



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Part 4 Principal development standards

Provision Compliance | Comment

4.3 Height of buildings Yes A maximum building height of 15m is
permitted.
A height of 13.7m is proposed.
The proposed development complies
with the maximum height of buildings
development standard.

4.4 Floor space ratio Yes A maximum floor space ratio of 2.5:1 or

718.75sgm is permitted.

A floor space ratio of 1.95:1 or 561sgm
is proposed.

The proposed development complies
with the maximum floor space ratio
development standard.

4.6 Exceptions to development | No
standards

The proposal seeks to vary the
Motorcycle Parking development
standard under Clause 30(1)(h) of the
ARHSEPP. The request to vary the
standard is not supported.

See further details in the ‘Discussion’
section below.

Part 5 Miscellaneous provisions

Provision

Compliance

Comment

5.10 Heritage conservation No

The site is identified as a contributory
building and is situated within the Potts
Point Conservation Area (CA51).

The proposed development will have a
detrimental impact on the heritage
significance of the contributory building
and heritage conservation area.

See further details in the ‘Discussion’
section below.

28




Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Part 6 Local provisions — height and floor space

Provision Compliance | Comment

Division 4 Design excellence

6.21 Design excellence No The proposed development does not
demonstrate design excellence. See
further details in the ‘Discussion’ section

below.
Part 7 Local provisions — general
Provision Compliance | Comment
Division 4 Miscellaneous
7.14 Acid Sulfate Soils Yes The site is located on land with class 5

Acid Sulfate Soils. The application does
not propose works requiring the
preparation of an Acid Sulfate Soils
Management Plan.

Development Control Plans

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012

29. An assessment of the proposed development against the relevant provisions within the
Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 is provided in the following sections.

Section 2 — Locality Statements

30. The site is located within the Kings Cross locality. The proposed development is not in
keeping with the unique character and the design principles of the locality as it
represents unsympathetic alterations and additions to a heritage item which will have an
adverse impact upon the streetscape.

Section 3 — General Provisions

Provision Compliance | Comment

3.5 Urban Ecology No The proposed development will have an
impact on existing trees within the front
setback of the site, with 5 trees
proposed for removal.

29



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision

Compliance

Comment

The proposed scope of works and their
impacts have been reviewed by
Council’'s Tree Management Unit and
the removal of Tree 1 and 5 is not
supported.

See further details in the ‘Discussion’
section below.

3.6 Ecologically Sustainable
Development

No

A BASIX Certificate has not been
submitted with the development
application and no detail of sustainability
commitments have been provided.

See further details under sub-heading
‘Sustainability’ of ‘Discussion’ section
below.

3.9 Heritage

No

The site is identified as a contributory
building and is situated within the Potts
Point Conservation Area (CA51).

The proposed development will have a
detrimental impact on the heritage
significance of the contributory building
and heritage conservation area.

See further details in the ‘Discussion’
section below.

3.12 Accessible Design

Yes

The proposed boarding house provides
2 accessible rooms and is capable of
providing access for persons with
disabilities in accordance with the
provisions of the BCA.

Compliance would be assessed by the
appointed certifier at CC stage if approval
was recommended.

3.14 Waste

No

The development proposes to locate the
bin storage area adjacent to the
communal outdoor living area to the
front of the premises, which will have an
adverse impact upon the enjoyment of
this amenity space and is therefore not
supported.

30




Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision

Compliance

Comment

The City's Guidelines for Waste
Management in New Developments
requires waste storage areas to be
located so as to minimise odour and
noise. The proposed waste storage area
at the front of the premises is
inconsistent with the Guidelines.

The proposal offers no provision for
bulky waste storage as required by the
DCP.

See further details in the ‘Discussion’
section below.

Section 4 — Development Types

4.2 Residential Flat, Commercial and Mixed Use Developments

and floor to floor heights

Provision Compliance | Comment

4.2.1 Building height

4.2.1.1 Height in storeys and | Yes The site is permitted a maximum

street frontage height in storeys building height of 4 storeys with a
maximum street frontage height of 3
storeys.
The proposed development is 4 storeys
in height with a street frontage height of 3
storeys and complies.

4.2.1.2 Floor to ceiling heights | No The proposed development achieves the

minimum floor to floor height of 2.7m on
all levels, aside from the accessible
single rooms at the front of the building
on Level 3 (Units 16 and 17). These
accessible rooms have a floor to ceiling
height of 2.4m at the front of the
building.

A minimum 2.7m floor to ceiling height is
required for all habitable rooms and
therefore the development is non-
compliant with the control.

31




Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision

Compliance

Comment

4.2.3 Amenity

4.2.3.1 Solar access

Partial
compliance

The applicant has submitted shadow
diagrams and view from the sun
diagrams to assess solar access.

These diagrams demonstrate that the
proposed development will maintain at
least 2 hours direct sunlight to affected
windows and private open space areas
of neighbouring properties to the south
of site.

The diagrams also demonstrate that the
proposal will achieve at least 2 hours
direct sunlight to the living room windows
and communal open space areas at the
front of the subject development.

Notwithstanding the above, the proposed
development will part-enclose an existing
lightwell which provides solar access to
residential units within the neighbouring
property at 25 Hughes Street and is the
only source of daylight to living rooms
within the building.

The DCP requires that daylight access is
to be addressed where the consent
authority considers that the level of
daylight access to living rooms may be
inadequate, as is the case in this
instance.

The applicant has not provided a Daylight
Report to determine the extent of impact
to the living room windows of apartments
within 25 Hughes Street.

4.2.3.2 Lightwells

No

Lightwells are to be open to the sky and
provide a reasonable outlook from
residential flat buildings.

32




Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision

Compliance

Comment

The proposed development will increase
the length and height of the wall located
on the boundary adjacent to the lightwell
on the east side boundary of the site
which provides solar access to
apartments within the neighbouring
residential flat building of 25 Hughes
Street.

The lightwell is the only source of daylight
and solar access to living rooms within 7
units of 25 Hughes Street.

A Daylight Report to assess the extent of
impact to the living room windows of
apartments within 25 Hughes has not
been submitted by the applicant.

4.2.3.3 Internal common areas

No

Internal common areas, corridors and lift
lobbies are to have access to daylight
and an outlook. Common corridors are
to be at least 2m wide in front of lifts.

The proposed stairs and lift lobbies have
no access to daylight and the lift lobbies
are a non-compliant 1.5 in width on each
level.

4.2.3.5 Landscaping

No

A Landscaping Plan has been submitted
which has been reviewed by the City’s
Landscape Unit and is not supported.

See further details in the ‘Discussion’
section below.

4.2.3.6 Deep Soil

Yes

The development is required to provide
a minimum of 10% of its site area to
deep soil, which equates to 28.7sgm.

The proposed development indicates
38.5sgm will be provided for deep soil
provision and complies.

4.2.3.9 Ventilation

No

The DCP requires adequate natural
ventilation be provided.

33




Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision

Compliance

Comment

The proposed development provides
inadequate natural ventilation with many
of the boarding house rooms deep,
single aspect rooms with fixed windows
due to BCA fire separation requirements
as windows are situated within 3m of the
boundary. Consequently, these
bedrooms will have no natural
ventilation. The proposed configuration
of the rooms will significantly constrain
the level of amenity they offer.

See further details in the ‘Discussion’
section below.

4.2.3.10 Outlook

No

The proposed development involves
near full site coverage in a highly dense
urban area.

The only window openings to Units 03,
08, 09, 14, 15, 19 and 20 are setback by
1.57m to the rear boundary. These
bedrooms will have no outlook as the
adjacent building at 26 Orwell Street, to
the south, is built to the boundary and
therefore the windows will directly face a
blank wall.

It is considered that this is further
representation of the overdevelopment
of the site.

4.2.3.11 Acoustic privacy

Yes

A Noise Impact Assessment has been
submitted by the applicant and reviewed
by the City’s Environmental Health Unit.

The findings are the Noise Impact
Assessment are supported and a
condition requiring compliance with the
report is recommended, should the
development application be granted
approval.

34




Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

4.4 Other Development Types and Uses

4.4.1 Boarding houses and student accommodation

Provision Compliance | Comment

4.4.1.2 Bedrooms No Excluding kitchens and bathrooms, the
application proposes the following room
sizes (the numbers in bold are rooms
that do not comply):

Boarding room 1 single — 11.8sgm
Boarding room 2 double — 15.4sgm
Boarding room 3 double — 16.5sgm
Boarding room 4 double — 20.2sgm
Boarding room 5 double — 25sgm
Boarding room 6 double — 17sgm
Boarding room 7 double — 15.4sgm
Boarding room 8 single — 11.2sgm
Boarding room 9 double — 15.5sgm
Boarding room 10 double — 15.6sgm
Boarding room 11 single — 11.4sgm
Boarding room 12 double — 18.1sgm
Boarding room 13 double — 18.3sgm
Boarding room 14 single — 11.2sgm
Boarding room 15 double — 15.2sgm
Boarding room 16 single — 12.5sgm
Boarding room 17 single — 12.8sgm
Boarding room 18 double — 15.5sgm
Boarding room 19 single — 11.2sgqm

Boarding room 20 double — 15.3sgm

See further details in the ‘Discussion’
section below.

35



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision

Compliance

Comment

4.4.1.3 Communal kitchen
areas

No, but
acceptable

A communal kitchen is to be provided
measuring a minimum of 6.5sgm with
one sink for every 6 people and one
stove top cooker for every 6 people.

The proposed communal kitchen area
only measures approximately 2.3sgm
with 2x sinks and 1x 4-burner stove top
cooker which is insufficient for the
proposed resident population of the
boarding house.

Notwithstanding the above, the
proposed boarding houses offers a
kitchenette in each bedroom and
therefore a smaller communal kitchen is
considered acceptable in this instance.

4.4.1.4 Communal living areas
and open space

No

The proposed development offers an
inadequate provision of communal
indoor living space and a poorly
designed communal open space. This
is a poor amenity outcome and is not
supported.

See further details in the ‘Discussion’
section below.

4.4.1.5 Bathroom, laundry and
drying facilities

No

The proposed development offers an
inadequate provision of communal
laundry and drying facilities to serve the
proposed number of residents of the
boarding house.

See further details in the ‘Discussion’
section below.

4.4.1.6 Amenity, safety and
privacy

No

The proposed boarding house is non-
compliant with multiple controls as
outlined above and consequently will
result in a poor level of resident amenity.

See further details in the ‘Discussion’
section below.

36




Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision

Compliance

Comment

4.4.1.7 Plan of Management

Yes

A preliminary POM has been submitted
with this application with the objective to
maintain a high level of amenity for
neighbouring properties and for all the
residents living in the premises. The
POM details the responsibilities of
management and boarding house rules.
All noise complaints are to be handled
and recorded by the onsite manager.

The POM has been reviewed by
Council’'s Environmental Health Unit and
is acceptable.

Discussion

Clause 4.6 Request to Vary a Development Standard - Motorcycle Parking

31. Clause 30(1)(h) of the Affordable Rental Housing SEPP 2009 requires the provision of
one motorcycle space every five boarding rooms. The development includes twenty
boarding rooms and as such four motorcycle spaces are required.

32. The proposal provides for no motorcycle spaces, representing a 100% departure from

the standard.

33. A written request has been submitted to Council in accordance with Clause 4.6(3)(a)
and (b) of the Sydney LEP 2012 seeking to justify the contravention of the motorcycle
development standard by demonstrating:

(@) That compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary
in the circumstances of the case;

(b) That there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening

the standard;

Applicant's Written Request - Clause 4.6(3)(a) and (b)

34. The applicant seeks to justify the contravention of the motorcycle parking development
standard on the following basis:

(@) That compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary
in the circumstances of the case:

(i)  The applicant's statement refers to the first of the five tests established in
Wehbe v Pittwater Council [2007] NSW LEC 827 to demonstrate that
compliance with the numerical standard is unreasonable or unnecessary.
The test seeks to demonstrate that the objectives of the standard are
achieved notwithstanding non-compliance with the numerical standard.

37




Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

(b)

(ii)

(iii)

As the Affordable Rental Housing SEPP 2009 does not list specific
planning objectives for the motorcycle development standard in question,
the applicant's statement provides an assessment against the overall aims
of the SEPP pursuant to Clause 3. A summary of the applicant's
assessment against the aims of the SEPP are below:

The aims of the policy pertain to the provision, delivery and retention of
affordable housing. The proposal will contribute to meeting the high
demand for affordable housing in the area by providing 20 new boarding
house rooms.

While the Affordable Housing SEPP does not contain specific aims or
objectives relating to motorcycle parking, the SEPP is geared toward
reducing reliance on cars, and encouraging use of bicycles, motorbikes
and public transport.

The proposal includes bicycle parking in excess of the SEPP requirement.

It is considered that the site is located in an ‘accessible area’ for the
purposes of the ARH SEPP, being less than 400m from a bus stop. The
nearest bus stop is located less than 100m away on Macleay Street and
the nearest train station, Kings Cross Train Station, being located less than
500m away.

Furthermore, the site is within walking distance of a variety of shops,
restaurants, educational institutions and residential support services.

Accordingly, the site is in an ideal location for boarding house and will
enhance the efficiency of existing transport infrastructure and services.

On the basis of the site’s connectivity to public transport, and the
provisions for bicycle parking, residents of the proposed boarding house
will have adequate transport options available.

The statement also considers the provisions of the Sydney LEP 2012
which outlines maximum rather than minimum car parking provisions, with
the underlying objective of reducing car dependency and encouraging the
use of public transport. The subject site is ideally located near existing
public transport networks and provides compliant bicycle spaces. Providing
motorcycle spaces when car spaces are discouraged would thwart the
underlying objective of encouraging public and active transport.

That there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening
the standard:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The applicant’s statement contends that there are a number of
environmental planning grounds that justify not providing motorcycle
parking on the site in this instance, as outlined below.

As outlined above, the proposal is consistent with the objectives of the
Affordable Housing SEPP, which is the provision and retention of
affordable rental housing.

The site is also within an area that is highly connected by public transport
and is within close proximity to a range of businesses.

38



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

(€)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(Vi)

The proposal complies with the bicycle parking requirements and will
encourage active and public transport usage.

the site is located within the Potts Point Heritage Conservation Area and
the proposal seeks to retain as much of the existing building fabric as
possible. Any attempt to provide motorcycle parking would require the
demolition of parts of the original building, contrary to the heritage
conservation provisions.

The shortfall does not result in significant adverse impacts on adjoining
development or the locality in general.

Overall, it is considered that the non-compliance will not be inconsistent
with existing and desired future planning objectives for the locality. For the
reasons contained in this application, there are sufficient environmental
planning grounds to justify the minor variation to the development
standard, as required in Clause 4.6(3)(b).

That the proposed development is consistent with the objectives of the R1
General Residential zone, as follows:

To provide for the housing needs of the community.

The proposed boarding house development will provide more affordable
housing options in the Potts Point locality and provide for the high housing
needs of the community in a highly sought after area in close proximity to a
number of services, public transport options and the Sydney CBD.

To provide for a variety of housing types and densities.

The proposal will add to the variety of housing types in the area and will be
below the maximum permissible FSR and height for the site. The proposal
will provide a type of transition from the higher density residential flat
building further up Hughes Street to the terrace style housing further down
Hughes Street.

To enable other land uses that provide facilities or services to meet the day
to day needs of residents.

Not applicable.
To maintain the existing land use pattern of predominantly residential uses.

The proposal will not alter the existing land use pattern and will add to the
type of and nature of residential uses in the area.

Consideration of Applicant's Written Request - Clause 4.6(4) (a) (i) and (ii)

35. Development consent must not be granted unless the consent authority is satisfied

that:

(@)

The applicant’s written request has adequately addressed the matters required
to be demonstrated by subclause 3 of Clause 4.6 being that compliance with the
development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the circumstances of
the case, and that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify
contravening the standard; and

39



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

(b) The proposed development will be in the public interest because it is consistent
with the objectives of the particular standard and the objectives for development
within the zone in which the development is proposed to be carried out.

Does the written request adequately address those issues at Clause 4.6(3)(a)?

36.

37.

38.

39.

The applicant's written request has not adequately demonstrated that compliance with
the development standard is unreasonable and unnecessary in the circumstances of
the case.

The applicant's submission seeks to justify the provision of no motorcycle parking by
assessing the development against the objectives of the Affordable Housing SEPP
2009. In this regard, Section 3(a) of the SEPP states that the aim of the policy is to
provide a consistent planning regime for the provision of affordable rental housing.

The SEPP then goes on to outline standards for boarding houses, of which Section
30(1)(h) states that a consent authority must not consent to development unless at
least one motorcycle space will be provided for every 5 boarding rooms.

The proposed development's provision of no motorcycle parking is inconsistent
boarding house standards under Section 30 of the SEPP and by virtue presents a
development which is inconsistent with the planning regime for the provision of
affordable rental housing which the SEPP aims to put forward.

Does the written request adequately address those issues at clause 4.6(3)(b)?

40.

41.

42.

43.

The applicant has not adequately demonstrated that there are sufficient environmental
planning grounds to justify the contravention of the standard.

The applicant's assertion that any attempt to provide motorcycle parking would require
demolition of large parts of the building and would be contrary to the heritage
conservation provisions is not justified.

The existing building has a garage with access to Hughes Place, whilst the application
already proposes substantial demolition of the existing building, including all internal
areas.

The level of demolition proposed is separately not supported, however the applicant's
written justification is inconsistent with the scope of works proposed under the
application in this regard.

Is the development in the public interest?

44,

45.

46.

The provisions of Clause 4.6(4)(a)(ii) requires that development consent must not be
granted for a development that contravenes a development standard unless the
proposed development will be in the public interest because it is consistent with the
objectives of the particular standard and the objectives for development within the
zone in which the development is proposed to be carried out.

In this regard, the dot one objective of the R1 - General Residential zone is to provide
for the housing needs of the community.

The proposed development does not provide for the housing needs of the community

as it would deliver a poor standard of residential accommodation with an unacceptable
level of amenity for future occupants.

40



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Conclusion

47.

48.

49.

For the reasons provided above the requested variation to the motorcycle parking
standard is not supported as the applicant's written request has not adequately
addressed the matters required to be addressed by Clause 4.6 of the Sydney Local
Environmental Plan 2012 and the proposed development would not be in the public
interest because it is inconsistent with the objectives of SEPP.

As outlined above, the proposed development is not considered to be consistent with
the objectives of the R1 General Residential Zone and contravenes the provisions of
Clause 4.6(4)(a)(ii).

Consequently development consent cannot be granted for the proposal as it
contravenes the motorcycle parking development standard and the applicant's written
request for variation to the standard is not supported.

Design Excellence

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

The proposed development fails to achieve the principles of Design Excellence in
accordance with Clause 6.21 of the Sydney LEP and fails to address the following
provisions:

° (4)(d)(ii) any heritage issues and streetscape constraints;
° (4)(d)(v) the bulk, massing and modulation of buildings;

. (4)(d)(vii) environmental impacts, such as sustainable design,
overshadowing and solar access, visual and acoustic privacy, noise, wind
and reflectivity;

° (4)(d)(viii) the achievement of the principles of ecologically sustainable
development;

. (4)(d)(xii) achieving appropriate interfaces at ground level between the
building and the public domain; and

° (4)(d)(xiii) excellence and integration of landscape design.

It is considered that the proposed development and extent of proposed demolition will
have an adverse impact upon the building's existing contribution to the heritage
conservation area, whilst proposing unsympathetic additions which fail to respect the
original form and character of the building.

The applicant has not submitted a BASIX certificate and the application provides no
detail of sustainable commitments or measures to demonstrate how the proposed
development will achieve the principles of sustainable development.

The proposed development involves changes to the front entry and openings on the
front facade, as well as landscaping changes within the front setback, which will
adversely impact upon the building's interface with the public domain and its
contribution to the local streetscape.

The development's failure to achieve Design Excellence is explored further under the
focus sub-headings below.

41



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Heritage

55.

56.

EXIETING D00R TO BE
DEMIHLEHED AND MAKE
[ciele ]

EXIZTING WALL TS BE ——
RETAINED =

EXIETING W NOOW TO BE
DEMOLEHED AND MAKE
[cielen]

The proposed development involves substantial demolition of a contributory building
within the Potts Point Heritage Conservation Area (CA51), with only the front facade
and front section of the gabled roof and side walls retained. The demolition of all walls
and floors is proposed.

The extent of demolition proposed is evidenced the proposed demolition plans for
ground floor and at roof level, as shown by Figure 21 and Figure 22 below.

Figure 21: Proposed Ground Floor Demolition Plan

G000

EXETING ROOF TO BE
RETAINED

I I I - —
|
| _____ p—
— | o [T
EXIETING ROOF TO BE : e i i - |
DEMOLEHED AND MAKE ) S .
B |
_____ h R |
N : L\
| SN |
L a . L.

Figure 22: Proposed Roof Plan

57.

58.

Section 3.9.7 of the Sydney DCP recognises contributory buildings for the important
and significant impact to the character and significance of the heritage conservation
area.

Section 3.9.7 of the Sydney DCP also confirms that contributory buildings are to be
retained unless it is determined that the replacement is justified in exceptional
circumstances, whilst alterations and additions to contributory buildings are to respect
the original or characteristic built form and not alter their appearance, except to
remove detracting elements.

42



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

In this regard, the proposed scope of works represents substantial demolition rather
than limited to alterations and additions to the existing building, whilst the lack of the
retention of original fabric has not been justified.

Section 3.9.6(1) of the Sydney DCP requires that where a development application
proposes the full or substantial demolition of a contributory building, the Heritage
Impact Statement (HIS) is to demonstrate why the building is not capable for retention
or re-use.

The submitted HIS does not identify demolition of two thirds of the original roof form of
the contributory building in the description of the proposal and concludes that the
retention of the gable roof line on the front elevation is supported. The HIS does not
give any regard to the existing east-west ridgeline of the roof and does not justify the
arbitrary front setback provided for the top floor. The HIS does not assess the impact
of the addition on the roof form of the contributory building. This amount of roof
demolition is not supported.

Similarly, the HIS does not assess the impact of the new addition on the roof form of
the contributory building.

The overbearing top floor addition does not respect the roof form of the contributory
building and it is not sympathetic or compatible with the existing building form.

The complete internal demolition of the contributory building resulting in facade
retention is not supported. Insufficient information has been provided demonstrating
that the demolition works and new additions will not impact upon the structural integrity
of the existing fabric to be retained, namely, the facades and the existing roof.

Section 3.9.7 of the Sydney DCP requires alterations and additions to respect the
pattern, style and dimensions of original windows and doors.

The proposed development involves changes to the original front facade and changes
to door and window openings which are not supported.

In summary, the proposed development represents substantial demolition of a
contributory building and unsympathetic additions which will have an adverse impact
upon the building’s contribution to the heritage conservation area. Therefore the
proposal is not supported and is recommended for refusal.

Residential Amenity

68. The proposed development has been assessed against the boarding house control
provisions of the Sydney DCP and the Affordable Rental Housing SEPP (2009) related
to residential amenity and is non-compliant in relation to the following:

Bedrooms

69. The development proposes a 20-bedroom boarding house, of which 12 bedrooms
have been measured to be undersized in accordance with Section 4.4.1.2.

70. The only window openings to Units 03, 08, 09, 14, 15, 19 and 20 are setback by 1.57m

to the rear boundary. The BCA report concludes that these windows must be fixed
shut for fire separation as they are located within 3m of the boundary, and therefore
these rooms will not be naturally ventilated.

43



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

71. These bedrooms will also have no outlook as the adjacent building of 26 Orwell Street
to the south is built to the boundary and therefore the windows will directly face a blank
wall - as illustrated by Figure 23 below showing the narrowness of the right of way
passage.

s tria -

Figure 23: Existing right of way passage fenced off from Hughes Place and proximity to the
blank wall of 26 Orwell Street (right)

44



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

72.

73.

The poor level of amenity to bedrooms with fixed shut windows is not supported and
represents a poor development outcome.

The under sizing of bedrooms and lack of ventilation, due to bedroom windows
proximity to side and rear boundaries, are considered representative of the
overdevelopment of the site and will have an adverse impact upon the level of amenity
for future occupants.

Communal Living Space

74.

75.

76.

Section 4.4.1.3 of the Sydney DCP requires the development to provide 41.25sgm of
communal indoor living space based on a resident population of 33 lodgers, with a
minimum width of 3m.

The Statement of Environmental Effects indicates that the development provides
42sgm of indoor communal living space, however the communal living space is non-
compliant with an area of only approximately 33sgqm based upon the proposed ground
floor plan.

Further to the above, the irregular arrangement of the communal living space presents
multiple areas with a width of less than 3m and is therefore inconsistent with the
design controls outlined above and will restrict the usability and enjoyment of the
proposed living space.

Communal Open Space

77.

78.

79.

80.

81.

The communal open space is situated at the front of the property adjacent to Hughes
Street and does not provide adequate privacy or separation from the streetscape. It
must also be screened from the public domain in accordance with Section 4.4.1.4 of
the Sydney DCP.

The proposed location of the bin storage in the communal open space area represents
a poor amenity outcome and is not supported.

The site has capacity to house an internal bin storage room which would be screened
from the public domain. Any bin enclosure should be located to the rear and accessed
off Hughes Place.

The proposed privacy screen within the front yard to separate the two open spaces is
not supported as it will have an adverse impact upon the heritage conservation area.

The communal open space should be designed with more fixed amenity, including
seating and a table as a minimum. A screened area for clothes drying should be
considered somewhere within the development, whilst ensuring no detrimental impact
on streetscape.

Laundry

82.

83.

Laundry facilities are to be provided and include one 5kg capacity washing machine
and one domestic dryer for every 12 residents, which equates to three of each facility
in accordance with Section 4.4.1.5 of the Sydney DCP.

A laundry area is shown on plan which appears to show one washer and one dryer,
however no details have been provided to confirm the laundry provision.

45



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

84. Drying facilities, such as clothes lines located in a communal open space, are to be
located to maximise solar access and ensure that the usability of the space is not
comprised. No details have been provided of drying facilities.

Summary

85. In summary, the proposed development will provide an unacceptable level of amenity
to future occupants, is non-compliant with a number of amenity criteria controls of the
Sydney DCP and is therefore recommended for refusal.

Impact to neighbouring residential flat building

86. The proposed development will increase the length and height of the wall adjacent to
the existing lightwell to the east of site associated with 25 Hughes Street which is a
residential flat building, as highlighted on Figure 23 below.

il
i
§
i

e

Figure 23: Aerial photo with impacted lightwell highlighted in red

87. The lightwell is the only source of daylight and solar access to living rooms within 7
units of 25 Hughes Street. It is considered that the proposal has not been sensitively
designed to minimise amenity impacts to the neighbouring residential flat building.

88. Windows reliant upon solar access from the lightwell associated with 25 Hughes Street
are shown by Figure 24 below.

46



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

s/ RS
AT

Figure 24: Windows facing lightwell associated with 25 Hughes Street

47



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

View Loss

89.

90.

Concerns are raised that the development as proposed could result in view loss from
the adjacent rooftop area of 25 Hughes Street towards views of the city skyline, as
illustrated by Figure 25 below.

The applicant has not submitted any information or analysis of view loss to determine
the extent of any impact.

Figure 25: Existing view of the city skyline from 25 Hughes Street looking west towards proposed
development

Landscaping and Tree Management

91.

92.

93.

The proposed development involves landscape works in the front setback of the
subject site for purposes of converting the area to a separate communal and
managers private open space, with a bin storage area situated within the communal
open space along the west side boundary.

The applicant has submitted an Arborist Report and Landscape which provide details
of the proposed landscaping works and trees proposed for retention and removal.

These 2 documents have been reviewed by the City’s Landscape and Tree

Management Units who have flagged discrepancies in the proposed removal of trees
on site.

48



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

94.

95.

96.

97.

98.

The retention of Tree 5, a Bangalow Palm, and Tree 1, a moderate to high landscape
value Royal Palm, is detailed within the provided Arborist Report. However, they are
shown for removal on the submitted Landscape Plan. This appears to be due to the
impacts from a dedicated bin area and the installation soft landscaping.

Independent of the above point, the proposed bin storage within the front setback and
within the communal open space area will have an adverse impact upon both the
streetscape and level of amenity to future occupants and is therefore not supported.

Tree 2, a Dypsis palm, Tree 3, a Date Palm, and Tree 4, a Bird of Paradise, are
proposed for removal by the Arborist due to landscape works. These small trees of low
landscape value and should not be considered a constraint on the development.

Inadequate detail of landscaping works has been provided with a greater diversity of
planting and greater provision of fixed amenity within the communal open space
required.

The configuration of landscaping works and tree removal as currently proposed is not
supported as it will have an adverse impact upon the streetscape, urban ecology and
will offer a poor level of amenity for future occupants.

Sustainability

99.

100.

101.

102.

103.

The applicant has not submitted a BASIX certificate with the application and contends
that the development should be assessed against the Section J requirements of the
BCA at Construction Certification stage.

Advice submitted by the applicant’s BCA consultant contends that the proposed
development is not suitable to be assessed against BASIX provisions since it relates to
conversion of an existing building to a boarding house, rather than a new building.

The applicant's assertion is not supported as it is considered that the proposed
development should be treated as a new building due to the extent of demolition and
reconstruction proposed to convert the existing building to a boarding house.

The Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 includes the following
definitions:

(a) BASIX affected building means any building that contains one or more dwellings,
but does not include a hotel or motel.

(b) A dwelling, in relation to a BASIX affected building, means a room or suite of
rooms occupied or used, or so constructed or adapted as to be capable of being
occupied or used, as a separate domicile.

The proposal is consistent with the definition for a BASIX affected building, and the
application is recommended for refusal as a BASIX certificate has not been provided.

49



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Consultation

Internal Referrals

104. The application was discussed with Council’s Building Services Unit; Environmental

105.

Health Unit; Heritage and Urban Design Unit; Transport and Access Unit; Tree
Management Unit; Landscape Unit; Public Domain Unit and the Waste Management

Issues raised by internal referral comments are discussed under the Assessment
section above.

Advertising and Notification

106. In accordance with the City of Sydney Community Participation Plan 2019, the

proposed development was notified for a period of 28 days between 17 November
2020 and 9 December 2020. A total of 384 properties were notified and 17
submissions were received.

107. The submissions raised the following issues:

Issue: Objections related to existing issues of noise and disturbance of
residential amenity related to the existing backpacker’'s accommodation.

Response: The subject of this assessment report is related to the proposed
development for use as a boarding house. In general, boarding houses generally
result in fewer disturbances of residential amenity than backpackers
accommodation.

A Plan of Management has been submitted with the application to ensure the
effective management protocols are put in place prevent adverse impacts upon
the locality. The submitted POM has been reviewed by the City’s Environmental
Health Unit and is to be considered generally in accordance with the POM
provisions of the Sydney DCP.

The proposed development is recommended for refusal, however appropriate
conditions of consent, including adherence to the provisions of a supported POM
would accompany any consent to guide the use and safeguard residential
amenity.

Issue: Objections related to the proposed development’s impact upon view loss
from the rooftop area of 25 Hughes Street towards the city skyline.

Response: It is noted that the rooftop area of 25 Hughes Street provides a
rooftop amenity space which benefits all residents of the residential building, with
valued views towards the city skyline. The applicant has not submitted
information to assess the impact of view loss as a result of the development
proposal, however the development is not supported in its current form. A
thorough assessment loss is required for all developments proposals which may
have an impact upon view loss. See further discussion under sub-heading ‘View
Loss’ above.

50



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

. Issue: Objections related to enclosure of the lightwell associated with 25 Hughes
Street.

. Response: Council has reviewed the impact of the proposed development in
part-enclosing the existing lightwell located adjacent to the east side boundary
associated with 25 Hughes Street. It is noted that 7 apartments within 25 Hughes
Street benefit from solar access and ventilation provided by the lightwell, and
that for some apartments the lightwell is the only source of light to living room
windows.

The applicant has not provided sufficient information to determine the extent of impact in
constraining solar access and ventilation to these apartments, however the impact is
acknowledged and the development is not supported in its current form.

See further discussion under sub-heading ‘Solar Access and Ventilation’ above.

° Issue: Concerns related to inadequate information provided.

° Response: The applicant has not provided insufficient information to adequately
address Council’'s concerns and facilitate thorough assessment. The proposed
development is recommended for refusal.

° Issue: The proposed development will have an adverse impact upon the
heritage significance of the locality and the streetscape.

. Response: See discussion under sub-heading ‘Heritage’ above.

. Issue: Communal facilities appear to indicate a continuation of backpacker type
accommaodation.

° Response: Provision of communal facilities are a requirement for boarding
houses under the provisions of the Sydney DCP.

. Issue: The proposal provides inadequate detail of waste arrangements.

° Response: The waste arrangements are not supported as proposed and the
development is recommended for refusal.

o Issue: Objections related to communal living space at the front of the property
and associated noise impacts.

° Response: See discussion under sub-heading ‘Communal Open Space’ above.

Financial Contributions
Contribution under Section 7.11 of the EP&A Act 1979

108. The development is subject to a Section 7.11 development contribution under the
provisions of the City of Sydney Development Contributions Plan 2015.

109. Credits have been applied for the most recent approved use of the site, being a 12-
bedroom backpackers’ accommodation.

51



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

110.

A condition relating to this development contribution would be included in the
recommended conditions of consent in the Notice of Determination, if the development
application was recommended for approval.

Relevant Legislation

111.

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

Conclusion

112.

113.

114.

115.

116.

Having regard to all of the above matters, the proposed development will result in
adverse impacts on both the natural and built environment and the locality, is not
suitable for the site, and is not in the public interest.

The proposed development fails to achieve the relevant design excellence
requirements and will result in a development which will significantly diminish the
building's existing contribution to the heritage conservation area, whilst proposing
unsympathetic additions out of character with the surroundings and existing context.

The proposal as a whole represents overdevelopment of the site which consequently
results in unacceptable and inadequate level of amenity for future occupants of the
development. In doing so, the development fails to achieve the objectives of the R1 -
General Residential zone as it represents poor quality residential accommodation
which fails to provide for the housing needs of the community.

The proposed development does not satisfy the relevant provisions of the applicable
State Environmental Planning Instruments including the Sydney Local Environmental
Plan 2012 and Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and is not acceptable.

Issues raised in all submissions have been taken into account in the assessment.

ANDREW THOMAS

Executive Manager Development

Daniel Stanley, Planner

52



Attachment A

Selected Drawings

53




54



1-L8061

80-cV

Jequinu Bayg

Jaquin ek

b o]

INIOd §.110d ‘1S SIHONH £2
‘S83uaavy

£q paypsyo

61 AON

B

ar
Aq umaig

NOISIA MO
PN )

NOILONYLSNOD
HOd LON AHYNINITId

NV1d 4004 X3

NDOU UBSORO MMM 1M
norjeur UBEePYO@SUUD 13

888 2LT LIYO W -88BOYOBLZ 19+d
0F1 MSN YLLYWVIVd
°1S HD¥NHD O¥Z "2 TIATT

() steva + ubjsap

JSNOH DNIGHYOE NOLLVHINID M3N
om0 NOLLYIIddV LNINdOT3IA3Q

00L:L eV

Va ¥o4 g3nss!
uonduoseq

r Ll & -+ a4
v%.w. T m VIV GMIA0D P -
O 1 095205da
DTn,| ’ s
o T [a IR » JOVAUNS ALTHONOD
Hooda @ N &o
& 7’ @n% &
_ _ sg'8enL 92.8 o
A < 3125 A 01656
D AV
£
vl
! 3
: o
: s
iy L4
uw A *
L] \%
momwmm_Mm {aHv) srpe T
Q3Avd F0VMNS NIWNLE S NI IVN
A SIvi Honad
z
. g o
4
4
. W
&
8
— o
=
&
- €18 ) CEG Y | o um%w/w. %.«.uu
07.0Z.881 i =
TiaMLHON W
&
"
)&
&




1-L2061}

60-€V P
b o]

INIOd S.110d ‘1§ SIHONH £2 HOd LON AHYNINITIYd

61 AON VL

equInu Eeus Aq papeuo NOIS3A %D

SNV1d NOILIMOW3d

AEq Aq umaig
oSk L ey

JSNOH ONIQEVOSL NOILVYINID M3IN

¥ HO4 a3Nss! a

om0 NOLLYIIddV LNINdOT3IA3Q

uonduossq ‘ON

NDOU UBSORO MMM 1M
norjeur UBEePYO@SUUD 13
888 2LT LIYO W -88BOYOBLZ 19+d
0F1 MSN YLLYWVIVd
°1S HD¥NHD O¥Z "2 TIATT

() steva + ubjsap

A0

'SINTAWIHINDTY STLLNOHLAY NOLLOTLONH TYINIJWNOHIANT

MSN FHL HLIM SONVAHOOOV NI O 03804$1a 38 OL S IVRIALYIN Q3 LYNIAVINOD av31 TV
*LNIAWNIVINOD 31¥NDIAY LNOHLIM STRIVANNCE 3LIS IHL ANOA3E

QvIdS OL 1SNQA ISNYO AVYM LYHL SONIM HOIH ONIFNG 03WROSI3d 38 OL LON S| NOLLITON3a
"WILSAS HALYMNROLS

ONILSDAE FHL ¥3INT OL A3MOTTY 38 OL LON SI AVHdS INVSSTd4NS V §V a3sN H31VM

"AVHdS ¥ILYM

3NId ¥ A8 039S3UddNS 39 OL SI NHOM WO QALYIHD 1SNA ONY S30V-/NS 1SNa 1TV
"ATALYIHdOHdY ONY

ALINTIOIET 40 A3S0CSIA ANY BT (Va3H) HIV "SWALSAS HILVMANOLS ONV HILINS 133HIS
"AUVINOILHYd AONIIOI443 HOIH ¥ HUIM 03LLI4 WNNOVA TYIMLSNANI NV 40 3SN 3HL A8 G3AONTY
38 .LSNI ‘SAILIAVD TTYM ANV STIOA ‘SONITIZO "9'3) 1SNT 20 NOLLY TNWNDOY ONLLSIXE ANV
£002:9k41 SZN/SY OL ONIWHOINCD LNIWNINDI JALLDALOH MvIAM TIVHS

SIDNVLSENS ANV 1SNA SNOTHVZVH 40 TYAOWTY JHL NI G3ATOANI A1LITNIA SHOLIVHINGD TV
"ARIINDZ S| STUNSYIN MIHLO HO “SIOLLOVH YHOM I4vS ava1 LIm

8611612 SZN/SY ONV (F881 2101 DSHON) MHOM 1Y

"SNITHIS 400Ud LENA HSIW NI 40 38N JHL "LNIWNOHIANT SLVIGIANI

THL ILVNINYINOD HO 1S IHL WO¥A 34¥0S3 OL AIMOTTY 34 1LON LSNW 1SNA SNOMIVZVH
"SQYVYANVLS LNVAI 13 ¥3HLO ANV L00T - 1092SY

H.LIM SONVQOD0V NI NVd JRIOM SIHL LINGNS TIVHS INVOITddY SHL ‘NOLLITOWA OL HORId
“HIIHILYID GAUTIHOOV NV HO "ONIMSN SHOAIAUNS 50 ALNULSNI

THL WOHH .NOILYLIQTAIIY AHYNINITTA. HLIM SHOAIANNS AFHELSIOFY 40 ANVAWOD AJAMNS
¥ YO SHUOM TIAIO 40 NOLLONULISNOD SHL NI (43dN) NOLLYMLSIOTY ONIMIINIONT TYNOISSIHCHd
TYNOLLYN HLIA HIINIONT TIAID GIELHYHO ¥ A9 G3INOIS3A ONY G311v130 39 O S| *S3AUISTY
aVOH ¥O S3LNIJO DNINIONGY OL LNIOVIIY NOILYAVOXE ANV OL LHOddNS 40 QOHLIW JHL
"SAVMAVOH aNv

SHLVd 1004 ONIONNOMMNS OLNO J3.1HOdSNYML 38 OL LON SI TVIIALYIN TALYAYOX3 ANV TI0S
"SSIMHIHLO G3LON SSTINN QANIVLIY 38 OL NOILY.LIDIA SALLYN ONILSDE

“AUS NO SUDIHOM TTv 40 ALIJVS JANSNI OL NDIVL STUNSYIN ALIIVS

A1VIHdO¥ddY JHL HLIM ALIS NO 38 OL $1 STVIMILYIA ANV SA00D 40 DNIGVOTNN ANV ONIVOT 1TV
"SIILALLOY DNIATING WOYHA GALOALOM 39 OL THY SYIIY HLYd1004 ANY aQvOd 1TV

“31IS IHL NOXd $53493 ANV SS300V I4vS FUNSNI OL Y SHHOM TV

"LNISNOD 4O SNOLLIONOD SHL NI a31vINdUS

ATTYOIIO3HS SOHL HO SNOLLYINOI $TONNOD OL WRIOANOD TTWHS STWIL NOLLONMLSNOD 1TV
“SAVOY DI1aNd DONISSIDOV

ANV AUS JHL ONLLNVdIA OL HOlkd SAVOT HIFHL H3A00 OL QFUINDIY 38 TIM SHOMLL

TIV "NV1d INIWIOVNYI ZLSYM THL NO NMOHS TV SS300V HOMHUL 04 LIS NO SLNIOd AULNI
40 INJWLVIHL ANY NOLLYIO0T "AMENIHOVA ONISN SHONML ONIAVO1 A8 GIAOWIY 38 TTIM ALSYM
"LS¥I4 TYINALYIN SNONOSIOd ANY 40 TYAOWIN AB 34vS 3AvN

N339 SVH LI YaLAY AHINIHOVI ZLYIHdOUddY 38 LNO 31D 39 TIIM NOLLITOWSJ H40 Xing JHL
"SLNIWIHINDTH HIAOD MHOM HLIM IDNVITdNOD

NI GIAOWSY ANV 3LIS 440 GILHOLSNYNL 39 OL §1 1 'aNNO- S1 TVIMALYIA SOLSTasY i

013 “HALYAA ONINNNY

‘S1IMOL *STIHS "'l STLLINGHY AYVSSI0IN 1TV HUM dNI3S A13.LYN03AY 38 T1IM LIS IHL
"HOLOVYH.LNOO NOLLNOWIA Q3SNIDIT v 38 N0 J3IR-IVO

34 TIVHS (318V0INddY dI) YHOM NOLLVAVOXE N0 (318VIITddV I} 'YHOM NOLLIOWSA JHL

'NV1d LNSWIDYNYIN LSV JHL NO NMOHS SY a¥OX HO 30V1d *HIVd1004

OITENd ANV NO LON NV ALH3dOMd JHL NIHLIA ATIOHM LdDi 36 TIIM SUINIVINGD ALSYM
"ONIATING 3504 0dd JHL NI 3SNTH SHL O TVINALYW Q3LYAVDXA

HO AIHSIOWIA ANV OL ONIMOADTYH THL OL NIAID 38 TIM NOLLYHIAISNOD ‘TT8ISSOd THIHM
"SINLL 1TV 1V T34 NIWY3A Ld3D1 38 TIVHS LIS IHL

4 40

ALTIGISSOd IHL H0 NOLLNIATY SHL JHNSNI OL NDIVL 38 1T1M SNOILMYD3dd Juid 3.Lvn03ay
“133M1S NIVIA SHL WOXH INYNINON ANV Q3LO3H3

Y SONIAYYCH LNVYATTIY IHL TUNN 3LIS NO JONJWWOD TIIM NOILYAYOXT 40 NOILITOW3d ON
"HIATIOSLVHM LIS NO STYIHILVIA 440 ONINHNE ON 39 OL SI JHIHL

"S334L ANY O 3NIT dIHd SHL NIHLIM LON ONV HINNVIA AQIL ONY

13N ¥ NI 3HO0LS 38 OL 3V STVIMILYW JHL 3SvD THL S| SIHL 41 {ININHOTIAIA IHL NI a3Snay
38 OL 34V STVIMALVIA SSTINN HO ONILMAM NI TIONNOD A8 @LVINLLS ISIMMIHLO SSTTNN)
NOLLITOW3Q 40 SAVA 8 NIHLIM ALIS 3HL WOHd GIAONIY 38 TIVHS TVIRELVYA NOIUTOW3d TV
S3.LON NV 1d OM - NOLLTION3a

Q310344 LON 34V SIONIAISIH

ONIINNOHHNS 1IVHL ANV 31IS NOLLONYLSNOD JHL NIHLIM GINIVINOD SI LSNA TTW FUNSNI
"ONILLIHONOD NIHM TOMLNOD Dl44vHL 1IN AlddY OL STONIAISTE SHNOAHDIAN HLIM ISIVIT

"NV Id LNIWIOWNYIN HALVMAMOLS H3d SY STV.L30 1TV NIVLNIVN

“SAYMUELYM ONY SNIVHQ HALVMAUOLS OL IOYWYQ HO NOLLYNINYLINOD LNSATNd
‘NOLLONHLSNOD ONIMNA 3LS NO G3NIVLIY S1 3LIS ONIATING 3HL WOHL INJWIQIS FUNSNI

O8N TYHANTO JHL ANY S31LH3dCHd

ONINIOMIY NO 1SNA 40 LOVdiAl SHL ISINININ OL GINDISTA 38 LSNIW ONIONTH ¥ALTWINAd

"SHUOM NOLLONMULSNOD ONY NOLLYAYDXE ‘NOILITOW3d 0350d0¥d

V3N JHV ASHL FHIHM TTAISSOd HIATHIHM AI1DTLOUH 38 LSNIW SITFHL ONLLSIXT TV
‘NOILLVAYDX3 O HOMMd HIVAL004 NO S3DIANIS 31vD01 O1 (91 NOA 340438 ™a) 0011 Vi
“SALS NOILONH LSNOD NO JOLLOVYHd

QOO 40 340D ¥u ALINIWY ANV ALIVS DI1ENd SHL HLIM ONYAEODOY NI AVAMHLY O avOu IHL
1HQddNs GL aN9ISAA 39 LSNIN AVOX ¥ OL ALINIXONd 3S0T0 NI HO QL LNIOVIOY SNOLLYAVOXT
+53LIS NOLLONYLSNOD 1V 301 LDVHd 0009 40 3d00

V. ALINFAY GNY AL3=YS DI18Nd SHL HLIM SONVOHOIOV NI SHIRMEYE I1EV.LNS HLIM 03AIAOHd 38
1SN OIMENd 3HL OL QHVZYH ¥ ONLLNISId ALIALLDY HO NOLLYdNODO ANY VAMY NOILOMULSNOD
FHL ONISSIDIY WOU ONENd FHL INIATHd OL I TIVLSNI 36 1SN SHARMYE 31vND3IaY

'SOW1d NV SAVH SHHOM

WALV ANV FHOHTE SAIANNS NOLLYAIIYTIA LONANOCD ANV S133H1S ANV SINIWIAVd LOILO¥d
“SYIv DI1ANd

OL NOLLANYSIA INSARI OL SdALS ONIMOTIOL SHL VL ‘SNIE HSIFENY MO dIMS ONISN NSHM
"ATAIVIGIANI ATaivdTd

38 TIVHS AL34vS SISHOLON ANV S1SITOAD 'SNVIMLSIA3d LOVAWI AVIN LYHL SOVINVA ANV
“H3JOTIAIA FHL HO HIATND FHL SO ALITISISNOJSTH

JHL 1 SYNOM ONIATING HO NOLLITOWIA "NOLLYAYOXT WO SLINSTM 1WHL FUNLINMNA

13IS MO SNIVHA HALYMAUOLS "TANNVHD ‘S ‘GvOY 'HIVA 1004 SHL OL 3OVIAVA ANY
"HOAIANNS ONIATINAG LNYAT T IHL 40 NOILOVHSILYS 3HL OL ALHIdONd ¥O 3417 0L

HYADNVQA ¥ 3S0d LON 0T AFHL TILNN QIONZS 39 LSNIA SNOILYAVOXE YRIOM DNIYNG ANV 0438
“53LIS NOILONYLSNOD

1v 301L0vHd 00D 40 300D Vu ALNIWY ANV ALIIVS DITaNd HLUM JINVAHOOJY NI 03 LONULSNOD
HINNVE 1EVLINS ¥O DNICIVOH “SON34 SNONNILNOD ¥ A8 034ND3S 38 1NOHS ALIS IHL
ATHYINDFY GDIDIHO 36 OL FHY SdVRLL TONLNOD LNIWIQ3S

‘WELSAS HIALVMAHOLS JHL SNHILNT INIWIATS INJATH OL SHHOM

NOILONYLSNOD A 0319344V SNIVHA TTV ANNOHY A30V1d 39 1SN $HA17I4 ANV SdviL INSWIA3S
"S7V130 LOVINCD

ANV HIFNNN ZONZOIN 'SNVN SUAATING 3HL ONITIVLIA 3LIS 3HL NO G30v1d 36 LSNN NDIS VY
S3LON TV3NID

I T3A37 - NOILLITOW3AA

QIHSIMTOWAA 38 0L ONILSIX3
Q3NIVL3H 38 O1 ONILSIX3 m—

Qo0
VN ANV T3HSITOW3a

0L TIVM ONLLSIX3

Q3aNIV13H
A OL TTVM ONLLSIX3

Q3aNIV1aH

LR i

JOOTd ANNOHO - NOILITOW3A

y

NN

™\

-

" _ oo . 55' o

ENEH)

I I I

- - |_ 0E'LET

AREA

39 Q1 400H ONILSIX3

aooo
IV ANV GIHSITOW3a
39 01 MOANIM ONLLSIX3

QaNIvia™

Tt o yH0
[ [ a3avd

GARDEN

39 OL TIVM DNILSIX3

ao0o
IV ANV JIHSINOW3a
39 01 HOOd SNILSIX3

AT £ _

56




1-12061}

oL-€v s ok LINIOd S110d °LS STHONH €2
MO ‘883yaav

equInu Eeus Aq papeuo NOIS3A %D
61 AON VL ZINEITD

AEq Aq umaig
JSNOH ONIQEYOE NOILYYINID M3IN
opag NOLLYIIddV LNIJWdO13A3A

0GL:L eV

NOILONYLSNOD R T e sarma NDLOUUBSORD MMM M
HOd LON AHYNINITIYd w0V S e T AD"jeUr UBIEEPYO@SLYD 13
MOy 2 888 ZLT LIV N - 8880 Y0BLZ 9+ d

%ﬂdﬁaﬂ% 051Z MSN VLLYWVIVd
RS, “IS HOMNHD OFZ 'Z HAT1

SNV1d NOILITOW3Q | refgsmass

W | [T gleq uonduoseqg ON

() steva + ubjsap

A0

'SINTAWIHINDTY STLLNOHLAY NOLLOTLONH TYINIJWNOHIANT

MSN FHL HLIM SONVAHOOOV NI O 03804$1a 38 OL S IVRIALYIN Q3 LYNIAVINOD av31 TV
*LNIAWNIVINOD 31¥NDIAY LNOHLIM STRIVANNCE 3LIS IHL ANOA3E

QvIdS OL 1SNQA ISNYO AVYM LYHL SONIM HOIH ONIFNG 03WROSI3d 38 OL LON S| NOLLITON3a
"WILSAS HALYMNROLS

ONILSDAE FHL ¥3INT OL A3MOTTY 38 OL LON SI AVHdS INVSSTd4NS V §V a3sN H31VM

"AVHdS ¥ILYM

3NId ¥ A8 039S3UddNS 39 OL SI NHOM WO QALYIHD 1SNA ONY S30V-/NS 1SNa 1TV
"ATALYIHdOHdY ONY

ALINTIOIET 40 A3S0CSIA ANY BT (Va3H) HIV "SWALSAS HILVMANOLS ONV HILINS 133HIS
"AUVINOILHYd AONIIOI443 HOIH ¥ HUIM 03LLI4 WNNOVA TYIMLSNANI NV 40 3SN 3HL A8 G3AONTY
38 .LSNI ‘SAILIAVD TTYM ANV STIOA ‘SONITIZO "9'3) 1SNT 20 NOLLY TNWNDOY ONLLSIXE ANV
£002:9k41 SZN/SY OL ONIWHOINCD LNIWNINDI JALLDALOH MvIAM TIVHS

SIDNVLSENS ANV 1SNA SNOTHVZVH 40 TYAOWTY JHL NI G3ATOANI A1LITNIA SHOLIVHINGD TV
"ARIINDZ S| STUNSYIN MIHLO HO “SIOLLOVH YHOM I4vS ava1 LIm

8611612 SZN/SY ONV (F881 2101 DSHON) MHOM 1Y

"SNITHIS 400Ud LENA HSIW NI 40 38N JHL "LNIWNOHIANT SLVIGIANI

THL ILVNINYINOD HO 1S IHL WO¥A 34¥0S3 OL AIMOTTY 34 1LON LSNW 1SNA SNOMIVZVH
"SQYVYANVLS LNVAI 13 ¥3HLO ANV L00T - 1092SY

H.LIM SONVQOD0V NI NVd JRIOM SIHL LINGNS TIVHS INVOITddY SHL ‘NOLLITOWA OL HORId
“HIIHILYID GAUTIHOOV NV HO "ONIMSN SHOAIAUNS 50 ALNULSNI

THL WOHH .NOILYLIQTAIIY AHYNINITTA. HLIM SHOAIANNS AFHELSIOFY 40 ANVAWOD AJAMNS
¥ YO SHUOM TIAIO 40 NOLLONULISNOD SHL NI (43dN) NOLLYMLSIOTY ONIMIINIONT TYNOISSIHCHd
TYNOLLYN HLIA HIINIONT TIAID GIELHYHO ¥ A9 G3INOIS3A ONY G311v130 39 O S| *S3AUISTY
aVOH ¥O S3LNIJO DNINIONGY OL LNIOVIIY NOILYAVOXE ANV OL LHOddNS 40 QOHLIW JHL
"SAVMAVOH aNv

SHLVd 1004 ONIONNOMMNS OLNO J3.1HOdSNYML 38 OL LON SI TVIIALYIN TALYAYOX3 ANV TI0S
"SSIMHIHLO G3LON SSTINN QANIVLIY 38 OL NOILY.LIDIA SALLYN ONILSDE

“AUS NO SUDIHOM TTv 40 ALIJVS JANSNI OL NDIVL STUNSYIN ALIIVS

A1VIHdO¥ddY JHL HLIM ALIS NO 38 OL $1 STVIMILYIA ANV SA00D 40 DNIGVOTNN ANV ONIVOT 1TV
"SIILALLOY DNIATING WOYHA GALOALOM 39 OL THY SYIIY HLYd1004 ANY aQvOd 1TV

“31IS IHL NOXd $53493 ANV SS300V I4vS FUNSNI OL Y SHHOM TV

"LNISNOD 4O SNOLLIONOD SHL NI a31vINdUS

ATTYOIIO3HS SOHL HO SNOLLYINOI $TONNOD OL WRIOANOD TTWHS STWIL NOLLONMLSNOD 1TV
“SAVOY DI1aNd DONISSIDOV

ANV AUS JHL ONLLNVdIA OL HOlkd SAVOT HIFHL H3A00 OL QFUINDIY 38 TIM SHOMLL

TIV "NV1d INIWIOVNYI ZLSYM THL NO NMOHS TV SS300V HOMHUL 04 LIS NO SLNIOd AULNI
40 INJWLVIHL ANY NOLLYIO0T "AMENIHOVA ONISN SHONML ONIAVO1 A8 GIAOWIY 38 TTIM ALSYM
"LS¥I4 TYINALYIN SNONOSIOd ANY 40 TYAOWIN AB 34vS 3AvN

N339 SVH LI YaLAY AHINIHOVI ZLYIHdOUddY 38 LNO 31D 39 TIIM NOLLITOWSJ H40 Xing JHL
"SLNIWIHINDTH HIAOD MHOM HLIM IDNVITdNOD

NI GIAOWSY ANV 3LIS 440 GILHOLSNYNL 39 OL §1 1 'aNNO- S1 TVIMALYIA SOLSTasY i

013 “HALYAA ONINNNY

‘S1IMOL *STIHS "'l STLLINGHY AYVSSI0IN 1TV HUM dNI3S A13.LYN03AY 38 T1IM LIS IHL
"HOLOVYH.LNOO NOLLNOWIA Q3SNIDIT v 38 N0 J3IR-IVO

34 TIVHS (318V0INddY dI) YHOM NOLLVAVOXE N0 (318VIITddV I} 'YHOM NOLLIOWSA JHL

'NV1d LNSWIDYNYIN LSV JHL NO NMOHS SY a¥OX HO 30V1d *HIVd1004

OITENd ANV NO LON NV ALH3dOMd JHL NIHLIA ATIOHM LdDi 36 TIIM SUINIVINGD ALSYM
"ONIATING 3504 0dd JHL NI 3SNTH SHL O TVINALYW Q3LYAVDXA

HO AIHSIOWIA ANV OL ONIMOADTYH THL OL NIAID 38 TIM NOLLYHIAISNOD ‘TT8ISSOd THIHM
"SINLL 1TV 1V T34 NIWY3A Ld3D1 38 TIVHS LIS IHL

4 40

ALTIGISSOd IHL H0 NOLLNIATY SHL JHNSNI OL NDIVL 38 1T1M SNOILMYD3dd Juid 3.Lvn03ay
“133M1S NIVIA SHL WOXH INYNINON ANV Q3LO3H3

Y SONIAYYCH LNVYATTIY IHL TUNN 3LIS NO JONJWWOD TIIM NOILYAYOXT 40 NOILITOW3d ON
"HIATIOSLVHM LIS NO STYIHILVIA 440 ONINHNE ON 39 OL SI JHIHL

"S334L ANY O 3NIT dIHd SHL NIHLIM LON ONV HINNVIA AQIL ONY

13N ¥ NI 3HO0LS 38 OL 3V STVIMILYW JHL 3SvD THL S| SIHL 41 {ININHOTIAIA IHL NI a3Snay
38 OL 34V STVIMALVIA SSTINN HO ONILMAM NI TIONNOD A8 @LVINLLS ISIMMIHLO SSTTNN)
NOLLITOW3Q 40 SAVA 8 NIHLIM ALIS 3HL WOHd GIAONIY 38 TIVHS TVIRELVYA NOIUTOW3d TV
S3.LON NV 1d OM - NOLLTION3a

Q310344 LON 34V SIONIAISIH

ONIINNOHHNS 1IVHL ANV 31IS NOLLONYLSNOD JHL NIHLIM GINIVINOD SI LSNA TTW FUNSNI
"ONILLIHONOD NIHM TOMLNOD Dl44vHL 1IN AlddY OL STONIAISTE SHNOAHDIAN HLIM ISIVIT

"NV Id LNIWIOWNYIN HALVMAMOLS H3d SY STV.L30 1TV NIVLNIVN

“SAYMUELYM ONY SNIVHQ HALVMAUOLS OL IOYWYQ HO NOLLYNINYLINOD LNSATNd
‘NOLLONHLSNOD ONIMNA 3LS NO G3NIVLIY S1 3LIS ONIATING 3HL WOHL INJWIQIS FUNSNI

O8N TYHANTO JHL ANY S31LH3dCHd

ONINIOMIY NO 1SNA 40 LOVdiAl SHL ISINININ OL GINDISTA 38 LSNIW ONIONTH ¥ALTWINAd

"SHUOM NOLLONMULSNOD ONY NOLLYAYDXE ‘NOILITOW3d 0350d0¥d

V3N JHV ASHL FHIHM TTAISSOd HIATHIHM AI1DTLOUH 38 LSNIW SITFHL ONLLSIXT TV
‘NOILLVAYDX3 O HOMMd HIVAL004 NO S3DIANIS 31vD01 O1 (91 NOA 340438 ™a) 0011 Vi
“SALS NOILONH LSNOD NO JOLLOVYHd

QOO 40 340D ¥u ALINIWY ANV ALIVS DI1ENd SHL HLIM ONYAEODOY NI AVAMHLY O avOu IHL
1HQddNs GL aN9ISAA 39 LSNIN AVOX ¥ OL ALINIXONd 3S0T0 NI HO QL LNIOVIOY SNOLLYAVOXT
+53LIS NOLLONYLSNOD 1V 301 LDVHd 0009 40 3d00

V. ALINFAY GNY AL3=YS DI18Nd SHL HLIM SONVOHOIOV NI SHIRMEYE I1EV.LNS HLIM 03AIAOHd 38
1SN OIMENd 3HL OL QHVZYH ¥ ONLLNISId ALIALLDY HO NOLLYdNODO ANY VAMY NOILOMULSNOD
FHL ONISSIDIY WOU ONENd FHL INIATHd OL I TIVLSNI 36 1SN SHARMYE 31vND3IaY

'SOW1d NV SAVH SHHOM

WALV ANV FHOHTE SAIANNS NOLLYAIIYTIA LONANOCD ANV S133H1S ANV SINIWIAVd LOILO¥d
“SYIv DI1ANd

OL NOLLANYSIA INSARI OL SdALS ONIMOTIOL SHL VL ‘SNIE HSIFENY MO dIMS ONISN NSHM
"ATAIVIGIANI ATaivdTd

38 TIVHS AL34vS SISHOLON ANV S1SITOAD 'SNVIMLSIA3d LOVAWI AVIN LYHL SOVINVA ANV
“H3JOTIAIA FHL HO HIATND FHL SO ALITISISNOJSTH

JHL 1 SYNOM ONIATING HO NOLLITOWIA "NOLLYAYOXT WO SLINSTM 1WHL FUNLINMNA

13IS MO SNIVHA HALYMAUOLS "TANNVHD ‘S ‘GvOY 'HIVA 1004 SHL OL 3OVIAVA ANY
"HOAIANNS ONIATINAG LNYAT T IHL 40 NOILOVHSILYS 3HL OL ALHIdONd ¥O 3417 0L

HYADNVQA ¥ 3S0d LON 0T AFHL TILNN QIONZS 39 LSNIA SNOILYAVOXE YRIOM DNIYNG ANV 0438
“53LIS NOILONYLSNOD

1v 301L0vHd 00D 40 300D Vu ALNIWY ANV ALIIVS DITaNd HLUM JINVAHOOJY NI 03 LONULSNOD
HINNVE 1EVLINS ¥O DNICIVOH “SON34 SNONNILNOD ¥ A8 034ND3S 38 1NOHS ALIS IHL
ATHYINDFY GDIDIHO 36 OL FHY SdVRLL TONLNOD LNIWIQ3S

‘WELSAS HIALVMAHOLS JHL SNHILNT INIWIATS INJATH OL SHHOM

NOILONYLSNOD A 0319344V SNIVHA TTV ANNOHY A30V1d 39 1SN $HA17I4 ANV SdviL INSWIA3S
"S7V130 LOVINCD

ANV HIFNNN ZONZOIN 'SNVN SUAATING 3HL ONITIVLIA 3LIS 3HL NO G30v1d 36 LSNN NDIS VY
S3LON TV3NID

Q3IHSITONIA 38 OL ONILSIX3

Q3ANIVL3H 39 OL ONILSIXT m—

NV71d 4004 - NOILINMOW3d

QaNIviay
39 Ol 400 ONILSIX3

aooo
IV ANV GIHSITOW3a
348 Ol 4004 ONILSIX3

¢ 13A37- NOILINOW3a

Qoo
VYA ANV G3HSITOW3a
39 0L TTVM ONLLSIX3

J3aNIV13H
0L TTVM SNLLSIE

Qoo
MY ANV G3HSITOW3a
39 01 400 ONILSIX3

| S ——|

57




1-L2061

INIOd S§.110d ‘1S SIHDNH £2
‘S83uaavy

NOISIA MO
PN )

L€V J—
AD
Bquinu Eeyg £q paypsyo
61 AON ar
AEq Aq umaig
00k L &Y
e

JSNOH DNIGHYOS NOLLVHINID M3N
NOLLYIIddV LNINdOT3IA3Q

NOILONYLSNOD e e
O LON AHYNINITIYd o
BINGANRIS KL HLUIOLR, 028011 ¥auod a3anssl 8
NVid 3118 SEmaEans T,
29030 218 e 02-20-42] ALNIGYAYD YO8 H3d SV SINTWANIWY | Vi
e | [T areq uonduoseqg ON

NDOU UBSORO MMM 1M
norjeur UBEePYO@SUUD 13
888 2LT LIYO W -88BOYOBLZ 19+d
0F1 MSN YLLYWVIVd
°1S HD¥NHD O¥Z "2 TIATT

() steva + ubjsap

STIYM 0380d0Nd [

Q3IHSNMOW3a3aoLoNILsIXa [ - 7]

a3Nvi3y 3a o1 oNiLsix3 I

FUNSOTOND NIF AOVERVD

o |
S
: § 3 S
qu/w.w T < VIV GMIA0D & 4,
O . 095.05dd P .
on % » z 5 woe | o &
£ a e » JOV-HNS ALTHONOD I / . N
I 0vg s
\%_X%&\.«% ” W ] Hood & VIRV TREA0D _ _N;E\”n_J
g & & ! EC & ] 40
| P 2 . _ 66°8CD1 828 \
2 5 Es i e ovese .
= g &4 19N
mwﬁ|m._m_L,w. S9'2¢ T
[ OO0 wsgge: R
_ _ _ D D _H_Zmn_Om._w.ﬂnn_w‘EOO ..nlvl
A SIOVAS —— so2€ TP L oo 1 1
JT0A0IE Il oo
TYOLLNIAX 9 ~8901 A
a_. N L&L D _H_ D FOV4HNS NIWN.Lg
- |¢ — A
|| 08°LE T §9°/€ T LN3WdOT3AIA 3SNOH ONIGUvVOd oL, !
NOILVHINID M3N 03S0d0Hd ANV ©NIaTing OO0 ~
R e ONILSIXT OL SNOLLIAAY ® SNOLLWHILT PRI 4 0] 0] O e v )
dn Q\ 1 HIOVNYN
£ W__E _\H_ : P
. soze TP 1 B* E— %
TAr- ”@ T ” h Wb ¥00Q ONIAITS JILVAOLNY
i 5 = - v HVIINIS HO 1417 WHO4LYd
Il _ sgzeTa® || - | [sior G3NIONI VHILYY SNOS 8 ONIN H'd
— — . e 5
N m M .07.02.881 A N ’
TON TIEMIHOIN TON
2 ea.%
g
%v

A0




¥1-1€061
- NOILONULSNOD 1SUUB OO MMM ;
cl-ev g kg LINIOd S110d *LS STHONH £2 HO< 10N AMVNIWITINd eruBsepge L Teresuseep
) “S83uaaY 888227 LIYO'W-88B0Y0BLZ 19+d (D
5 Mn__._._.._ ®g - £q payosyo NOISIA MO mw. rmuﬁwuw _ﬁ.vwm z ._www_ 7z
L AON ] IN3ND " vauod aanss! —
- raag NV1d ANNOYED "Hd INGWELVIS O
00L 1 €Y JSNOH ONIAYYOE NOILYHINTD M3IN ALMIAVAYD 08 H3d SV SINTFWANTWY| 3
opag NOLLYIIddV LNIJWdO13A3A uonduoseq
€ :[EJ0} puein
QILOSNNODHILNI STIVM 0380d0yd (I D
4 lousp  |00L2 0o6L| 20 36 OL TV SWHVTV HOWS TIV'S WOOY ALINNWNOD
[ Jopepa |00l ooee|__to voa-40 - -
Wnoy | vopouny | WBEH | MR | W £1'20 1L ONY €10z-085% SV HuMATINDD | OSHSITONSa3goLoNusna Lo ]
SIPOUoS 1000 OL dRILS ONISON ANV SAVIUL HIVLS TIV ¥ WOOY | - WOOY SHIOVNYIN
. SONLLYY ONY NOLLYOIHIDdS ¥00d ANV a3NvLiZy 3g oL oNwsixa I
12 :[Bi0) puBIS MOGNIM TTv ¥Od LIMOdY I NOILOIS OL 343 €
uoponasuoD MeN| 009 [o0ez | <0 NOILYTIV.LSNI ONY
Topnasuoo MmNz [oosl JosL | +0 ONRINLOV-ANNYA O1 ¥ORId 3LISNO GIWHIINOD SIWOOY €1 = NOOY ONIQYVOd 319N0a _H_
38 0L SIS HOOd ANY SMOANIM TIV 'Z
uoRONgEUCD MeN| ¥ 03¥z_[000L | €0 .
VOB 40 ¥ZZa ISNVTO HLIM IONVAHODDV NI
UoHINAEUCY MeN|L 0oLz [oooL | 2o wwgz), NYHL JHON ON OL ONINTJO MOANIM FHL (SINOOY 319I1SSTDOV 2 ANV T1ONIS 6)
UOONASUOD MON| L 00gL__|000L | 10 LINIM OL IOIA3C ¥INNYE Y IAVH OL aFINOT SWOO0Y Z = WOOH ONIMYOd T1ONIS
pajBal) aseyd wno) [ wBieH [wpim | wew FYVY 13AITANNOUD JACEV WO'Z SMOANIM TV '}
310N
SINPaLUOS MOPUIM L , N \ ~/ 3
o L L + N B Pt 4
S0 ; N e
T VARV QIHEN0D g
< l‘n, @
09520540 Ié’ o
z 4 9 < S
JOV4HNS J1THONOD I / N )’ /Vﬁﬁrl ®
4058 g
;4 __ /_\MT __
Hooa %00 VYRRV ARFA0D V2 2vevd 00 %.%u v
¥ . B ®
L B — -4 BEBEDL HZ.8 \ %.
o 01652
3 g 17ie [l
A o = o
sozel <o iON 19N | D o
B\ 1N . /
0 @ U 380y ] E _ E E - ©
0z_o._5/m/_cz_._.m_xm 40 3NIT i _ 8 : w NHOLD! =
' — | |wbsgz) - 2l - 1 ;
N\l oy = et (8] CH S -
s | B a
zoe I NOGH oanoe 1| |woou m_._wz_m_‘o q 1l < | @ -
S a0 n Ml 7 wbgo'zy vaky 0 & @ $
4 WOOXNALINNKINOD a - N ki
i E E AN T0VdS —— O %@
I R Ag801 O (aHY) v
5 TvdiEaxe Wu__.ﬁ T
@ | | | G9'/E T S9'LE T E O 30vuNs Nawn | 1IN
0€°LE T | - = I u_ VN HON3d
¥00a ONIarns oy _ AgER1 ° )| | 3scu Ol 1
QUYROLNY=—— I Lo S~ nOoo 1
F . - / I whs 0&'g ) VANV
7/ %/@ﬂ 4 ] D i = (] wbspgy) VIRV U O 0 sgeds nado A~
: N s! N wbsQ'gl VIV N o MIOYNVIN
I T [ WOOY HIDVYNVIN 2 g
3 . | # T ] ]
m@ €N ] aaee : 8
P . EMM.C IV | T m_z. i . s
% A u 12 .(MM( i - —_— Tl A h
o5 o] —— ] [}
R | wooy snanoa T H_I\ - " = L.v = - L g < ¥00d ONIAIS JlLYWOLNY
- : ol M (
= ' SaaEH o - 2 HVTIWIS ¥O LT NHO4LYTd
_ | 'l _ ez GENITONI VLY SNOS B ONIX d'd
L N AHINI M i
5 & 4 *
L 0¥.03.58}
TON TI3M-LHDIT TON
2 .%.%.
2
_ ///y/ / %
O




el-ev

Jequinu Bayg

v1-2€061
Jaquini gekoug

b o]

Aq paypsyo

INIOd S.110d ‘1§ SIHONH £2
‘S83¥aAay

61 AON

ar

aEg

Aq umaig

NOISZA MO
PN )

00L:L eV
i

JSNOH ONIQEVOL NOILYVYINID M3IN
NOLLYIIddV LNINdOT3IA3Q

NOILONYLSNOD

HOd LON AHYNINITIYd

L 13A3T "Hd

¥ HO4 a3Nss!

NDOU UBSORO MMM 1M
norjeur UBEePYO@SUUD 13
888 2LT LIYO W -88BOYOBLZ 19+d
0F1 MSN YLLYWVIVd
°1S HD¥NHD O¥Z "2 TIATT

() steva + ubjsap
D
2}

\

uonduoseq

J

€ :[Ej0} puelsy

oueig

QILOINNOOAUILNI

STIYM Q3S0dOoYd [

ooLe

006l

Jouspg

oolz

ooee

uojoungy

JuBieH

WPiM

s|npeyss Joog

L2 :[Bj0) puei

UORINESLOD MBN

009

0022

S0

UOIONASUOD MeN

ook

s

hat]

UCHRNESLCD MeN

000k

€0

UOHONISLOD MON

2
Z
4 0s+2
L 0022

000L

20

uojangsuoD meN

1 oosl

000k

10

PajeaI) 9saud

wino) [ BieH

WPiM

Hew

8INPeLOS MOPUIM

3901 JHV SNHVTY DIOWS TV 'S

v¥og40

€1'20 371aVL ANV €102-9851 SV HLIM A1dWOD

Ol diRILS ONISON NV SAVIUL UIVLS TV ¥
SONILVY ANV NOLLYOIdID3dS H00a aNY
MOONIM TIV HOd 1HOd3Y M NOILOTS OL H3J3H '€
NOILVTTVLSNI ANV

ONRINLOVYANNYA OL HOld 3LISNO QIWHIINOD
38 0L S321S HOOA ANY SMOANIM TV 2

¥08 40 ¥2'2d 3SNYTD HLIM SONVQH0O0V NI
WWSZE NVHL 320N ON O1 ONINSJO MOONIM JHL
LIWIT OL 30IAIQ HFNEYE ¥V SAVH OL a3uIND3Y
THY 1FAITANNOHD FA0EVY WO'Z SMOANIM 1TV 'L

N\

ONITTING ONILSIX3 S0 3NIT

N

90

™

a3HSITOW3Q 3 OLONILSIX3 [ - ]
ganNiviTd 3g oL onLsixs I

KT

N

m whso'9) VIV L.
— NEC'NZ N =MY

whsQ'LZ VIHY

310N
4
o8
&
09520840
JOVHHNS J1LIHONOD
FOVRINS
a3anvd
- = ) piy - . A - - - I@
—F [ L — = = _ ]
.
0 <l - R
= wbsg '/, YTy
h=d 1 wbsp'2z WIHY =4 ]
whsprg) VIRV A WOO¥ T18noa
| whsg 0z VANV . !
. WOO 318N _un_
@l ¢ ~ Ml
] 1
AGNLS I==ll= .— '
=i —
@ wbsg'z) VIHY U I _ —
wbsp'9) YIUY .7 2 _
WOON TIONIS
o 7! ) wbsgrgz IRV | 4
g wbsg 6z VIHY L I
__.__ .\h_i N g WOOY F18n0a
(N
_ Aanis E )
_ s B D] |
_ —
o S —

NOOYH ALINNWNOD

WOOHY | - NOOY SHMIOVNVYN

SWOOY €1 = NOOY ONIQYvO4d 319n0d

(SWOOY F19ISSIVDY Z ANY ITONIS §)
SWOOY £ = NOON ONMVYOT TTONIS

o0 ot f
2 woouTEnoa |

\& /%// \

tHbsg 9z Y
NOOY 319n0a

TIEM-LHDN

60




1-L2061

rl-ev —

poe]
sequinu Eeug

INIOd S.110d ‘1S SIHDNH £2
‘S83¥aAay

Aq paypsyo

61 AON ar
Eq

NOISIA MO
PN )

Aq umaig

00L:L eV

s

JSNOH DNIGHYOS NOLLVHANID M3N
NOLLYIIddV LNINdOT3IA3Q

NOILONYLSNOD
HOd LON AHYNINITId

Z 13A31 ¥d

NDIS U UBISSPYD MMM I\ (1) siopap + uBgap

Nojeur UBEePYO@SUYD 13

888227 LIYO'W-88B0Y0BLZ 19+d (D

ow_«3m2<_.—<2<~_m<n_
°1S HD¥NHD O¥Z "2 TIATT "z

\

¥ HO4 a3Nss!

uonduosaq E -J

€ :[Ej0} puelsy

oueig

ooLe

006l

Jouspg

oolz

ooee

uojoungy

JuBieH

WPiM

s|npeyss Joog

L2 :[Bj0) puei

UORINESLOD MBN

009

002 | se

UOIONASUOD MeN

ook

s hat)

0s+2

000k €0

)
Z
UoKRNESLCD MeN| ¥
UOHONGSLOD MeN|L

0022

000L 20

uojlaNgsUOD MEN | L

oosl

000k 10

pajea) 9saud | junog [ uBRH

WPIM | e

8INPeLOS MOPUIM

Q3LOINNOOYILNI

3901 UV SWHVTV DIOWS TIV 'S

Vo840

£1'20 37aVL ANV £102-988F SV HUM AIdWOD

01 diHLS ONISON ONV SAVIHL HIVLIS TV ¥
SONILYY ANV NOLLYOIID3dS ¥00a ANV
MOANIM TIV ¥O4 1HOd3H ' NOILOIS OL ¥343d e
NOILYTTV.LSNI ANV

ONIINLOVANNYA OL ¥ORd 3LISNO 3WHIINOD
39 0L SIS HOOU ANV SMOANIM TV 2

V08 40 ¥2'2¢d ISNVTO HLIM SONVQRE000V NI
WWSZL NVHL 380N ON O1 ONINTdO MOAONIM JHL
LIWIT 01 30IA3Q HIRXYE ¥V JAVH O1 a3HIN03Y
TV 13A3T ANNOYD JA0AY WO'Z SMOANIAM 1TV 'L
310N

STTYM 03S0doyd [
gaHsnowaaagoloNLsxa [ DD ]

[(ENENEETJLINIEYCIN |

\\ks

ONITTING ONILSIX3 40 3NIT

N

90

N

4

S
9

Pea

3OV4HNS 31IHONOD

096105840
4

AVE)

ANOOY ALINNWWOD
WOOHY | - NOOY SHMIOVNVYN

SWOOY €1 = NOOY ONIQYvO4d 319n0d

(SWOOY F19ISSIVDY Z ANY ITONIS §)
SWOOY £ = NOON ONMVYOT TTONIS

Hooa & VERY QRIIN0O

T

12 2heivd 30VRNS

6eoe aanvd

- = -

1.,

)|

62

TG44

wbsQ'6l VAHY
wbsg'Z VAUV
WCOH 319n0a

wbsQ'Z) VAUV
wbsQ'gl VAUV
WOOY TIONIS

1 /U

wbsg 6l ¥IHY
wbsg'¥Z YUY
WOO0Hd 318noa

wbsQgL

—

g
__ whsp'o) vIHY
[ | wbsg'pz vy

wbsa
S

m WOOX 318N0a

TIEM-LHDN

wbsQ'Z} VAHY
wbsp'9} VIYY
WOOY TTONIS

WOO0Y 31anoa

61




¥1-1€061
§lL-€v Loquinu yekoig LNIOd S110d ‘LS STHONH £Z
MO ‘S83HAaY
PquIn eus fq ppeno NDISIA O
61 AON ar IN3ITD
aEq Aq umaig
oL ey ISNOH ONIAHYOE NOLLYHINID MaN
opag NOLLYIIddVY LNFWNdOT3AIA

NOILONHLSNOD ooz PSR

HO4 1ON ANYNINIINd TS

z . PG
€ T3A3T ¥d Ci i

NDIS U UBISSPYD MMM I\ (1) siopap + uBgap
No*jeur UBEBPYO@SUUD 3
888227 LIYO'W-88B0Y0BLZ 19+d (D
0F1 MSN YLLYWVIVd wn
Tz va 04 G3nss! 4 1S HOMNHD OvZ 'Z HAT1 iy
INJWELYLS (V)]
02-10-42| ALIGYdVD YO8 H3d SV SINTWANTNY| hid
aleqg uonduossq ‘ON J

ANOOY ALINNWWOD
WOOHY | - NOOY SHMIOVNVYN

SWOOY €1 = NOOY ONIQYvO4d 319n0d

(SWOOY F19ISSIVDY Z ANY ITONIS §)
SWOOY £ = NOON ONMVYOT TTONIS

S

._Wu.__n/w., _

wbsp'Z} vIUY
wbsg'g} vAHY
NOOY TTONIS

L L

i

€ :[Ej0) pueI) A3LOIANNODHILNI STIYM Q3S0dOoYd [
4 louepx3 | 00kz 006L| 20 3801 34V SWSVTY DHONS TV 'S
[ Jopepa |00l 00gE]_10 Vo940 T
R R TR e b I ——
SinpsLog Joog _ SONILVY ONY NOLLYJIHID3dS ¥00a NV G3NIV1TH 38 01 ONILSIX3
12 :[Bi0) puBIS MOGNIM TTv ¥Od L4OdSY I NOILOIS OL ¥343M '€
uoponasuoD MeN| 009 [o0ez | <0 NOILYTIV.LSNI ANV
UORONISLOD MeN[Z 008l 052 | +0 ONRINLOVANNYA OL HORId FLISNO G3WIINOD
39 OL S3ZIS OO ANV SMOONIM TIV 2
“Mﬁe_““oo 14 09¥¢_|000L | €6 V08 40 bZ'20 ISV HLIM JONVQHOODY NI
HONGSLOD MEN| L 00lz |000b | 20 wwsz) NYHL THON ON O1 ININIAO MOANIM THL
UOJONASUCO MaN[Z 008L_[000L | 10 1IN OL IOIA3A HANNYAY JAVH O aFHINDIY
pajBal) aseyd wno) [ wBieH [wpim | wew TV 13ATT ANNOYD FAOEY WO'2 w>>0n_z_>>.._._< ‘b
GINPEUSS MOPUIM 310N
S
VIHVY QIHIA0D )AW
09620840
z
JOVIHNS J1ITHONOD
yooa .
B — Y3V AHFA0D Vg Lvdvd
Im._l - 2L e —

1
— T ]
Nl =i

Q) ¢ < wbsgel vauv
Hnwm.wm mﬁm« wbsg")Z 'YV
SS300Y s 7 WOOY ITONIS

Wood 318noa m 0551 L

WEEEE

whsp'g) vIHY

A\

WOOY 37an0a

wheg'nz "Iy r
_
_
_




1-L2061)

INIOd S.110d ‘1S SIHDNH £2

9l-€v J——
o]
sBquinu Eeug Aq paypsyo
61 AON ar
AEq Aq umaig
001 L &Y

‘883yAaqY
NDIS3A MO @N
ANEITD

s

JSNOH DNIGHYOE NOLLVHINID M3N
NOLLYIIddV LNINdOT3IA3Q

NV1d 4004 "¥d

NOILONYHLSNOD couemaz o SPE
HOd LON AMYNINITIYd

YO NI INEEREY G

028011

¥ HO4 a3Nss!

aleq

uonduoseq

"ON

NDOU UBSORO MMM 1M
norjeur UBEePYO@SUUD 13
888 2LT LIYO W -88BOYOBLZ 19+d
0F1 MSN YLLYWVIVd
°1S HD¥NHD O¥Z "2 TIATT

086.06dd
[

TOVRINS ILTONOD

iz,

&

01652

L9705 ._mmm

4004
JLI™WONOD

21'08 ._m_ﬂ

€

569°9

0Z-881 09Z€

TIEMLHOIT ON

o NN
8T Lo
9N

|
&
Q|

AULNT IN0EY
H00d | ONILSIXT

W %..%
2 P
o
e
_ 4
(aHY) gv
30VMNS NIWN. au
_ﬁ vy
&
%@
<3y
&
5
o
5
£

pE T
NI TivN
HON3g

HUGHES STREET

63




1-1£061
Loqun koI INIOd SL1Od ‘LS S3HONH €2

!0 ‘S83HAaY
ssquinu jsayg £q paxpsyn NDIS3IA MO

FA A

61 AON ar LINAMD

DETEAIPU 5y A= I 38N0OH ONIGHVOE NOLLVAANTD MaN
o "s NOLLYOIddY INIWJOT3A3d

NOILLONYLSNOD
HOd LON AHYNINITIYd

NOILVATT3
HLHON "dd

NDIS U UBISSPYD MMM I\

() steva + ubjsap

Nojeur UBEePYO@SUYD 13

¥ HO4 a3Nss!

uonduoseq

988222 LIYO W 8880 70BLZ 19+3d (D
0513 MSN VLIYWY2IEVd

“IS HOMNHO OVZ 'Z BATT 7z

a

-

4004 3L HLIM
ONITT3IMA ONITTIMA
INOLS/S AqH0ol1Ss ¢ INOLS/S A3HOLS ¢
61°ON LCON

4008 7L HLIM

HOO0Q ONIQITS ¥ HLIM 30V1d3¥ B
Q3HSITON3A 38 OL MOANIM ONLLISIX3

ONIATING d3S0d0dd

~4004 I1IL HLIM

ONITI3IMA

alls 1o3rans

MOIIE ATHOLS ¥
PN

NOILIQAaV a3s0d0ud

3dOTAANT ONIQTINEG ONILSIX3
AN3IO3T "Hd sA X3 - 3AvOV4d LSv3

| I I e DL

HOOTd ANNOYD

L HOO0d SNIAINS ¥V HLIM 30V1d3 2
re———(03HSITON3A 38 O1 HO0A ONLLISIX3

o ey W

13A3T1 X3

S
«
R e | e e s & Y " 4 4 A

[AELELRC]

S | |Isaseeasesamamill B | asae) me el |8 eemsnsssie = R/
€73A37¥d

1908,

400¥ "¥d

’ Y oove

H ooLe

ooLe




glL-oy 1-1£061 NOILONYLSNOD

gy ok INIOd SLLOd ‘18 STHONH €2 HO= 1ON AMVNINITZN T ™ () vowow + uBop
!O ‘883yAaqY

i 898 ZZT LIVO W -8880Y0RLZ L9+d (]

s s apeeee NSISIa >0 gommtmae " (
OF NN g oy NOILYAZ3 1SV3 "¥d _ o
PoIEOIPUl SY JSNOH ONIGYVOL NOILVYIANIO MaN ; T F L E ] 5

opag NOLLYIIddV LNIJWdO13A3A uonduoseq

ONITINg d3s0d0oud

ONIQTING A343AN3Y
31Is 103rdans 1S TTaMHO0 - 0e-8¢

16°2¢

1 | WW\“I
YCOTd ANNOHO

| RETERRE]Y

| = £
o
| I
7
- SN e e e ] . w
Z13A37 X3 [
4 7
Q009 IYW ONY 7
Q3HSITOW3A 38 OL TIVM ONLISIX3 2
S | -
g —— I s
= ! £ 13AT1 ud [
] -
=
. -~ @
Q009 YW ANV L N ]
Q3HSITOW3A 38 0L 400 40 NOLLHOd ONLISIX3 S
7 |
P 1908
- - - - - - Y Y Y Y _YY 0 N v - ﬂ
NOILIAaY a3sodoyd 2905 ¥ 100X ud
o T T IEOTIANT-ONIGING ONLLSIXT
. = —— - —_—
ANI9DT1 '"dd sA X3 - 3AVYOVd 1Sv3a C— . . - - - - - - -




_ 178061 NOILONYISNOD T — oo
6l-ev o pofoig INIOd SLLOd ‘1S SFHONH €2 04 LON ANVNINIZNd el ictop e kg by

!O ‘883yAaqY -3 988 NNMW_. [§2¢] nwz -88B0V0BLT 19+ d :U
BTAON A NoIS3aNo0 NOILYAS13 g’ ()
BSTEOIPUI S fauea 3SNOH ONIQYYOS NOILYYANTO M3N HLNOS ¥d i 01 G rw

opag NOLLYIIddV LNIJWdO13A3A , uonduoseq

ONIdTING 43S0d0¥d

400U FULHLIM H400d TUL HLIM 400d FTIL HLIM
S ONMTEMA. o VOSSO s ONITIIMA ONIT1IMA
ooMaARMOLS Y Py T 3NOLS/S ATHOLS T 3NOLS/S ATHOLS T
> g s LZ'ON 6L°ON

— HEH
_

Qo0 IVIN ANV
® ao09 IV aNY F|>|om:m_40§mo 38 01 TIVM ONLLSIX3
b Q3HSIOWI 39 OL MOTNIM ONUSIXE—————= | | — |
H !
[EE | ) B | I N -
wiw B nae e - D ey | e
AN 1EATYa =
Q00D IVIN ANV ©
® A3HSITOW3A 38 OL S00M ONILSIXT c
8 B
= o]
@ O
T
A i R R R R R R R IR - m . 0 eI
“AzEATa nHu
] I —
3, 2
8 3
oe.w.vn_m_mm
e A = e e e T = —
“AATET3AT ud = NOILLIJavy a3sOdoud
f IdOT3ANT ONIATING ONILSIX3
m AN3O3IT "dd SA X3 - 3avVOVv4d HLNOS
© |
G ||
T R T ¥ T 1V o L | - ﬁ

= . _

|
(0




1-1£061

= NOILONYLSNQD oaINUIERL 0 SaEHD -Lou - . u
0c-€v gy ok INIOd S110d ‘18 STHONH €2 HO LON AMVNINIMZN o AR T [ ewawi s uBpap
o o ] D
61 \ﬂ_hcmm._m ar fappesd ZG_mmn_Fw_mwu NOILVAT3 Hﬂﬁhlhm:m%%u%ﬁ!% 1S HOMNHD OVZ ‘Z TAAT1 B
BSOS A= I 38N0OH ONIGHVOE NOLLVAANTO MaN 183M "ud it [www vasoIGIss] o
T opos NOILLVIIddV LNIWNdOT3IAIA samsas | | eleq uonduaseq "ON -J
ONIQTINgG d38Cd0¥d
\ \\\\\\ \\\\\\\\\\\\\ 77 \ \ \
\\OZ_Q.__Dm HOg
\ \ 18 ._._m_% 9g, §
L \ ’
§ e = _—seuue—
Oﬂ%m_ﬁm DNIaTINg , |.| .r| , E: :moo._"_ aNnozo [
MO SATHOLS ¢ | ¥
STHMNO 6z LS TIEMMO 2 | I | ::_:; _
LS TIZMYO 92 | | j E B
N e B e B e I e e '
7‘ | i i o
| M\\\\’I\\\\\\\u
_ J,L||I,l||||||f|||||||||||l|||| e 0|
T | _ RETEIRE]” 9
I I | ‘
O — | @ @ £
- (=]
| : ©
S
N e e e e e .HI|I|I|I|I|I=..$ ©
| Q00D I¥YW aNY FRETE E]> N
5 Q3HSITONAA 38 OL TIVM ONLISIX3
_ @
| 1 g
| ek Q00D IV ANV GIHSITONIA
38 0L 400Y 40 NOILHOd ONLISIX3 150
- T _————————————— - o A TTEAT I A
|
| «@
8
NOILIAdv d3S0d0dd =
3Id0OT3ANT ONIATING DONILSIX3 R IR EN SRR EEEEENE ||||||,||||||I|||||||I||Bm
1906 ¥ J00Y dd A
ud A

AN3D3T ™d SA X3 - 3AVOVH 1S3M

L1

L I

B l/m@L

ONIATING d3¥3ANTAH
1S T1IM™EO0 - 0€-8¢

- B

wgl 1HOIFH XV

400d I11L HLIM

ONITTIMA MOIdg AJHOLS v

GZ'ON




Jaquini paakog

MO

sBquinu Eeug Aq paypsyo

INIOd SL1Od 'LS S3HONH £2

S8THAAY

61 AON ar

AEq Aq umaig

NOIS3A XD

SIN3IND

00L:1l ev

s

ISNOH ONIQHVYOd NOILVYIANID M3N
NOLLYIIddV LNINdOT3IA3Q

NOILONYLSNOD
HOd LON AHYNINITIYd

NCILO3S

¥ HO4 a3Nss!

uonduoseq

NDOU UBSORO MMM 1M (1) siopap + uBgap
norjeur UBEePYO@SUUD 13

988222 LIYO W 8880 70BLZ 19+3d (D
0513 MSN VLIYWY2IEVd

“IS HOMNHO OVZ 'Z BATT 7z

a

-

Wooy F1anoa
€on

WOO0d 31anoa
60N

WOOY 37anoa
Sk N

WOOY 319n0a
ozn

NOOYH HIDVYNVIN

Ve NOOH 371anoa
== ¥on

NOOY 3718N0a

== okn

17

L
HIA0H AMLNG ||

00} 1 €V O
¥ NOILLD3S

[~

SR

[ {0074 ANNOHD [

f
}
0zre

L0y,

o
w
=
i)
)
><-|
il

L'vy;,

’(68 0ove

ooLe

i8'Ly

]
=
w
>
w
=
m‘ ‘
o

ooLe

19°05

'S
3
[
£
o




NNIW( v1-1£061 NOILONYLSNOD NDJOUUBSERYD MMM 1M

g ooy INIOd S110d ‘LS SIHONH €2 HO< LON AMVNINITN holeuuBhepropaAp s Ll e

!O ‘883yAaqY -3 988 LT LIFO W -8880 YOBLZ 19+d _\._U
equn P Kpopei NOIS3A X0 AL AV
6LAON _ & “NEnD NOILD3S 2]
AMwq umelq 1
ST Sy 3SNOH ONIQUYOS NOLLYYANTD MIN : Voo rw

opag NOLLYIIddV LNIJWdO13A3A uonduoseq

0041 €Y
g NOILO3S

7

592
4 @ 1 41 J1ONIS ¥OOTH aNNous [
i
AVYLIA ALANION TvIIdAL ] on
w
T ' ' b
_ I Ll o
© |l zodmd | 201
=] AQNLS JOVHOLS NIAO = _ Mvd _ alm odlzeca B~ ~ T T Tmaak |
= B0 N
_ | ]
= R ®
N
~ dODIOOD  MINIS . mww
Q JAYMOHOIIN
3 Loy
\ woou Henba B ||~ zaAmvxala |
- ., ! ]
. . . s
e , N AMLNVd =
o e . I _ 1 Y X 1.
wodh T1bNs € TaAT1 ud [ |
. - - - 1g)ss3ho
. Al . s
D w
[=]
o
* ¥ L ==
00€L 004Lc -
T T T T T 300M Hd A




INIOd SL1Od 'LS S3HONH €2

NOIS3A XD

- v1-1£061

0e-ev o kol

MO
sBquinu Eeug Aq paypsyo

61 AON Vi
AEq Aq umaig

S'1I'N

)

ISNOH ONIQHVYOd NOILVYIANID M3N
NOLLYIIddV LNINdOT3IA3Q

J3NIv13H 3901
HHOMMOIKE ONILSIXT

(1°0esL SY OL 319I1LSNAN0D
-NON) TWOOUYHO
Q3a1vOJHIMO SNV
HOOAd ANV MOANIM

TIVM
J1FHONOD WHO4-440

(1°0£81 SY OL 3791LSNEWOD
-NON) TVOONVHO
J3a1vooHaImMAaod SALYD
3avsivd 8 SNv3g 1331s

(L'0gsL SYOL
37911SNANOD-NON) ALIHM
031LYODHIMOd STNVHS
HOOd ANV MOANIM

(1'0e5t SV OL I191LSNANOD
-NON) LLYW LNIJWNNOW
- ONIQAV1D WYIS ONIAONVLS

NDOU UBSORO MMM 1M
norjeur UBEePYO@SUUD 13
888 2LT LIYO W -88BOYOBLZ 19+d
0F1 MSN YLLYWVIVd
°1S HD¥NHD O¥Z "2 TIATT

HOd LON AHYNINITIYd

40 37NA3HOS




- v1-1€061 NOILONYLSNOO b ey ) Jou A
Leev squn ot INIOd S110d ‘1S SFHONH €2 HOS LON AUVNINITZNd - OB e

MO fq Ss3uady _.!_sﬁ:i% 988 ﬁwwp_wﬁ m_n wﬂm,w-f«w_w@ m 19+:d (D
sequinu Eeus pexpsu0 s n e s
6L AON ar ZG_mmn_ Fw_mwu 13341S nm.mhﬂfliw%s%mmm 1§ HOMNHO 0¥ 'Z AT B )
*a faunea 3SNOH ONIQYYOE NOILYYANID M3IN SIHONH-3FOVNIAE || " i | —www vaveTees 8 0

opag NOLLYIIddVY LNFWNdOT3AIA "SR SRR sjeq uonduossq 'ON -J

arLf

SRSFCRER

H!-.-F,E:l!ﬂrp‘
| |

f

7. L7

]

E. 1y
& 3

N

L, . U o =] Y L\_M
: { S E
=Eo=Eal = =
[ [ un
=R Nk L
53] i == N
Bl ==8 =LA
Bl t nu
Sl =gl e=ll SN
§ \ R
=AM =,y
== =TT
i

N\

7 /7

Ve e

Ll

=
v,

7 /2

-
1.
]

R
—
el

= =
L
po oo D




Attachment B

Clause 4.6 Variation Request — Motorcycle
Parking

72




73



Myriad Consulting

PO Box 2104

Rose Bay North NSW 2030

0414 402 203
enquiries@myriadconsulting.com.au

myriadconsulting.com.au
ABN 40211831976

19 August 2020

Ref: 2019137 (Version: 1.0)

General Manager
City of Sydney
GPO Box 1591
Sydney NSW 2001

CLAUSE 4.6 VARIATION (MOTORCYCLE PARKING) IN RELATION TO THE CO-LIVING
(BOARDING HOUSE) DEVELOPMENT AT 23 HUGHES STREET, POTTS POINT

1. INTRODUCTION

The following Clause 4.6 Variation request has been prepared on behalf of Australian Urban
Projects Pty Ltd in support of the proposed variation to motorcycle parking requirements
pursuant to Clause 30(1)(h) of State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental Housing)
2009 in relation to the proposed co-living (boarding house) development at 23 Hughes Street,
Potts Point.

Clause 30(1)(h) of the ARH SEPP relates to provision of bicycle and motorcycle parking. The
clause requires the provision of one bicycle and one motorcycle space per five boarding rooms.

The proposed twenty room boarding house development generates demand for five bicycle and
five motorcycle spaces. The development provides six bicycle spaces and complies with the ARH
SEPP in this regard, however no motorcycle spaces are provided, which contravenes the
development standard.

The proposal seeks flexibility in the application of the motorcycle parking development standard
to the development in the circumstance of this particular case as the subject site is exceptionally
well serviced by public and active transport networks.

The site is located within the Potts Point Heritage Conservation Area and, in order to retain as
much existing building fabric as possible, motorcycle parking cannot be provided on the site.

The proposal provides much needed affordable housing near the Sydney CBD and utilising the
site efficiently for accommodation is considered more desirable than motorcycle spaces.

It is noted that no car spaces are required as Council is trying to reduce vehicle dependency.

This Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards has been prepared in accordance with the
most recent case law and in our opinion, the variation achieves the objectives of the zone, the
Council parking requirements and the Affordable Housing SEPP provisions, and has
demonstrated there are sufficient environmental planning grounds.

This written request justifies the contravention of the development standard by demonstrating
that compliance is unreasonable or unnecessary in these circumstances; and there are sufficient
environmental planning grounds to justify the non-compliance.




Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards — Motorcycle Parking Page 2 of 7
23 Hughes Street, Potts Point

2. CLAUSE 4.6 EXCEPTIONS TO DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

Clause 4.6 Exceptions to Development Standards of the SLEP 2012 provides a mechanism by
which a development standard can be varied.

The objectives of Clause 4.6 seek to provide appropriate flexibility to the application of
development standards in order to achieve better planning outcomes both for the development
and from the development.

In the Court determination in Initial Action Pty Ltd v Woollahra Municipal Council [2018] 236
LGERA 256 (Initial Action), Preston CJ notes at [87] and [90]:

Clause 4.6 does not directly or indirectly establish a test that the non-compliant development
should have a neutral or beneficial effect relative to a compliant development...In any event,
Clause 4.6 does not give substantive effect to the objectives of the clause in Clause 4.6(a) or
(b). There is no provision that requires compliance with the objectives of the clause.

The objectives of this clause as outlined in Clause 4.6(1) are:

a) to provide an appropriate degree of flexibility in applying certain development standards
to particular development, and

b) to achieve better outcomes for and from development by allowing flexibility in particular
circumstances.

Clause 4.6(2) provides consent may, subject to this clause, be granted for development even
though the development would contravene a development standard imposed by this or any
other environmental planning instrument.

The NSW Land and Environment Court decisions of Wehbe v Pittwater Council (2007) LGERA
446; and Four2Five Pty Ltd v Ashfield Council [2015] NSWLEC 1009 provide assistance on the
approach to justifying a contravention to a development standard.

3. CLAUSE 4.6(3)(A): UNREASONABLE OR UNNECESSARY

The case of Wehbe provides examples of how a variation to a development standard can be
shown to be unreasonable or unnecessary (as required by clause 4.6(3)(a). In Wehbe v
Pittwater Council (2007) 156 LGERA 446 (Wehbe), Preston CJ established five potential tests for
determining whether a development standard could be considered unreasonable or unnecessary.
This is further detailed in Initial Action where Preston CJ states at [22]:

These five ways are not exhaustive of the ways in which an applicant might demonstrate that
compliance with a development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary; they are merely the
most commonly invoked ways. An applicant does not need to establish all the ways. It may be
sufficient to establish only one way, although if more ways are applicable, an applicant can
demonstrate that compliance is unreasonable or unnecessary in more than one way.

Although this case related to a variation of development standards under SEPP 1, it has been
adopted as being of continuing relevance to variations under clause 4.6.
The examples provided in Wehbe are:

1. The objectives of the standard are achieved notwithstanding non-compliance with the
standard

2. The underlying objective or purpose of the standard is not relevant to the development
and therefore compliance is unnecessary

Myriad Consulting 0414 402 203
Town Planning and Development Consultants enquiries@myriadconsulting.com.au
PO Box 2104 75 myriadconsulting.com.au

Rose Bay North NSW 2030 ABN 40211831976



Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards — Motorcycle Parking Page 3 of 7
23 Hughes Street, Potts Point

3. The underlying object or purpose of the standard would be defeated or thwarted if
compliance was required and therefore compliance is unreasonable

4. The development standard has been virtually abandoned or destroyed by the Council’s
own actions in granting consents departing from the standard and hence compliance with
the standard is unnecessary and unreasonable

5. The zoning of the particular land is unreasonable or inappropriate so that a development
standard appropriate for that zoning is also unreasonable and unnecessary as it applies
to the land and compliance with the standard would be unreasonable or unnecessary.
That is, the particular parcel of land should not have been included in the particular zone.

3.1 The Objectives of the Standard are Achieved Notwithstanding Non-compliance
with the Standard

The standard the applicant seeks to vary is Clause 30(1)(h) in State Environmental Planning
Policy (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009.

Clause 30 Standards for boarding houses states:

30 Standards for boarding houses

(1) A consent authority must not consent to development to which this Division applies
unless it is satisfied of each of the following—

(a) if a boarding house has 5 or more boarding rooms, at least one communal living
room will be provided,

(b) no boarding room will have a gross floor area (excluding any area used for the
purposes of private kitchen or bathroom facilities) of more than 25 square
metres,

(c) no boarding room will be occupied by more than 2 adult lodgers,

(d) adequate bathroom and kitchen facilities will be available within the boarding
house for the use of each lodger,

(e) if the boarding house has capacity to accommodate 20 or more lodgers, a
boarding room or on site dwelling will be provided for a boarding house
manager,

() (Repealed)

(g) if the boarding house is on land zoned primarily for commercial purposes, no
part of the ground floor of the boarding house that fronts a street will be used
for residential purposes unless another environmental planning instrument
permits such a use,

(h) at least one parking space will be provided for a bicycle, and one will be
provided for a motorcycle, for every 5 boarding rooms.

(2) Subclause (1) does not apply to development for the purposes of minor alterations
or additions to an existing boarding house.

The Affordable Housing SEPP does not contain specific objectives relating to the provision of
motorcycle parking. The aims of the Affordable Housing SEPP are also not considered to be
directly relevant to the provision of motorcycle parking.

Myriad Consulting 0414 402 203
Town Planning and Development Consultants enquiries@myriadconsulting.com.au
PO Box 2104 76 myriadconsulting.com.au

Rose Bay North NSW 2030 ABN 40211831976



Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards — Motorcycle Parking Page 4 of 7
23 Hughes Street, Potts Point

The aims of the policy pertain to the provision, delivery and retention of affordable housing. The
proposal will contribute to meeting the high demand for affordable housing in the area by
providing 20 new boarding house rooms.

While the Affordable Housing SEPP does not contain specific aims or objectives relating to
motorcycle parking, the SEPP is geared toward reducing reliance on cars, and encouraging use
of bicycles, motorbikes and public transport.

The proposal includes bicycle parking in excess of the SEPP requirement.

It is considered that the site is located in an ‘accessible area’ for the purposes of the ARH SEPP,
being less than 400m from a bus stop. The nearest bus stop is located less than 100m away on
Macleay Street and the nearest train station, Kings Cross Train Station, being located less than
500m away.

Furthermore, the site is within walking distance of a variety of shops, restaurants, educational
institutions and residential support services.

Accordingly, the site is in an ideal location for student accommodation and will enhance the
efficiency of existing transport infrastructure and services.

On the basis of the site’s connectivity to public transport, and the provisions for bicycle parking,
residents of the proposed boarding house will have adequate transport options available.

3.2 The Underlying Objective or Purpose would be Defeated or Thwarted if
Compliance was Required and Therefore Compliance is Unreasonable

While the Affordable Housing SEPP does not contain specific aims or objectives relating to
motorcycle parking, the SEPP is geared toward reducing reliance on cars, and encouraging use
of bicycles, motorbikes and public transport, ultimately providing affordable housing options in
accessible location.

Enforcing strict compliance would require substantial demolition of the original heritage
significant building and an extensive redesign of the existing building.

The financial burden of undertaking these works would make the provision of a boarding house
unviable and thwart the underlying objective of providing affordable accommodation.

In addition, the design parameters are constrained by the existing building, requiring substantial
demolition. This would be inconsistent with the objectives of the Potts Point Heritage
Conservation Area and the current attempt to retain as much of the existing built form as
possible.

The Sydney LEP 2012 also provides maximum rather than minimum car parking provisions, with
the underlying objective of reducing car dependency and encouraging the use of public
transport. The subject site is ideally located near existing public transport networks and
provides compliant bicycle spaces. Providing motorcycle spaces when car spaces are
discouraged would thwart the underlying objective of encouraging public and active transport.

Myriad Consulting 0414 402 203
Town Planning and Development Consultants enquiries@myriadconsulting.com.au
PO Box 2104 77 myriadconsulting.com.au

Rose Bay North NSW 2030 ABN 40211831976



Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards — Motorcycle Parking Page 5 of 7
23 Hughes Street, Potts Point

3.3 Consistency with the Zone Objectives

The proposed building form is consistent with the objectives of the R1 General Density
Residential zone, as follows:

= To provide for the housing needs of the community.

The proposed boarding house development will provide more affordable housing options in the
Potts Point locality and provide for the high housing needs of the community in a highly sought
after area in close proximity to a number of services, public transport options and the Sydney
CBD.

= To provide for a variety of housing types and densities.

The proposal will add to the variety of housing types in the area and will be below the maximum
permissible FSR and height for the site. The proposal will provide a type of transition from the
higher density residential flat building further up Hughes Street to the terrace style housing
further down Hughes Street.

= To enable other land uses that provide facilities or services to meet the day to day needs of
residents.

Not applicable.
= To maintain the existing land use pattern of predominantly residential uses.

The proposal will not alter the existing land use pattern and will add to the type of and nature of
residential uses in the area.

4. 4.6(3)(B): SUFFICIENT ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING GROUNDS TO JUSTIFY THE
CONTRAVENTION

There are a number of environmental planning grounds that justify not providing motorcycle
parking on the site in this instance.

As previously outlined, the proposal is consistent with the objectives of the Affordable Housing
SEPP, which is the provision and retention of affordable rental housing.

The site is also within an area that is highly connected by public transport and is within close
proximity to a range of businesses.

The proposal complies with the bicycle parking requirements and will encourage active and
public transport usage.

In addition, the site is located within the Potts Point Heritage Conservation Area and the
proposal seeks to retain as much of the existing building fabric as possible. Any attempt to
provide motorcycle parking would require the demolition of parts of the original building,
contrary to the heritage conservation provisions.

The objects identified correlate to Objects 1.3(c) and (d) in the current EPA Act which state:
(c) to promote the orderly and economic use and development of land,

(d) to promote the delivery and maintenance of affordable housing,

Myriad Consulting 0414 402 203
Town Planning and Development Consultants enquiries@myriadconsulting.com.au
PO Box 2104 78 myriadconsulting.com.au

Rose Bay North NSW 2030 ABN 40211831976



Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards — Motorcycle Parking Page 6 of 7
23 Hughes Street, Potts Point

The shortfall does not result in significant adverse impacts on adjoining development or the
locality in general

Overall, it is considered that the non-compliance will not be inconsistent with existing and
desired future planning objectives for the locality. For the reasons contained in this application,
there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify the minor variation to the
development standard, as required in Clause 4.6(3)(b).

5.  4.6(4)(A)(11): THE PUBLIC INTEREST

Clause 4.6(4)(a)(ii) requires that consent must not be granted for development that
contravenes a development standard unless the consent authority is satisfied that the proposed
development “will be in the public interest because it is consistent with the objectives of the
particular standard and the objectives for development within the zone in which the
development is proposed to be carried out”.

The proposed development is consistent with the objectives of the Affordable Housing SEPP
development standard, and the objectives of the zone, for the reasons discussed above.

6. 4.6(1): OBJECTIVES OF CLAUSE 4.6

The proposed variation to the motorcycle parking standard, for the reasons explained above, is
clearly consistent with the objectives of clause 4.6, which are:

a) to provide an appropriate degree of flexibility in applying certain development standards to
particular development, and

b) to achieve better outcomes for and from development by allowing flexibility in particular
circumstances.

7. SECRETARY’S CONCURRENCE

Clause 4.6(4)(b) of the SLEP 2012 requires the concurrence of the Secretary (of the Department
of Planning, Industry and Environment) before the consent authority can exercise the power to
grant development consent for development that contravenes a development standard.

Under Clause 64 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000, the Secretary
has given written notice dated 21 February 2018, attached to the Planning Circular PS 18-003
issued on 21 February 2018, to each consent authority, that it may assume the Secretary’s
concurrence for exceptions to development standards in respect of applications made under
Clause 4.6, subject to the conditions in the table in the notice. Since the conditions in the table
do not apply in this case, the concurrence of the Secretary can be assumed.

Nevertheless, the matters in Clause 4.6(5) should still be considered when exercising the power
to grant development consent for development that contravenes a development standard (Fast
Buck$ v Byron Shire Council (1999) 103 LGERA 94 at [100] and Wehbe at [41]). In deciding
whether to grant concurrence, the Secretary is required to consider the following:

a) whether contravention of the development standard raises any matter of significance for
State or regional environmental planning, and

b) the public benefit of maintaining the development standard, and

c) any other matters required to be taken into consideration by the Secretary before granting

concurrence.
Myriad Consulting 0414 402 203
Town Planning and Development Consultants enquiries@myriadconsulting.com.au
PO Box 2104 79 myriadconsulting.com.au

Rose Bay North NSW 2030 ABN 40211831976



Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards — Motorcycle Parking Page 7 of 7
23 Hughes Street, Potts Point

The proposal is not considered to raise any matter of significance for State or regional
environmental planning.

The motorcycle parking non-compliance will facilitate an enhanced design and encourage the
use of public and active transport, without adversely impacting neighbouring properties.

The public benefit of maintaining the development standard is not considered significant given
that, regardless of the non-compliance, the proposal will be well serviced by existing public and
active transport networks.

Accordingly, the proposal is consistent with the matters required to be taken into consideration
before concurrence can be granted. The non-compliance contributes to a quality development
which is consistent with the desired character of the precinct and is, in our opinion, in the public
interest.

There are no other relevant matters required to be taken into account by the Secretary.

8. CONCLUSION

This written request has adequately demonstrated that compliance with the development
standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the circumstances of the case and that there are
sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening the development standard.

We are of the opinion that the consent authority should be satisfied that the proposed
development will be in the public interest because it is consistent with the objectives of the
Affordable Housing SEPP and the development objectives of the R1 General Residential zone
pursuant to the SLEP 2012.

On that basis, the request to vary Clause 30(1)(h) of the Affordable SEPP should be upheld.
Should you have any queries or require clarification on any matters please do not hesitate to

contact me on 0414402203.

Yours sincerely,

rT

Craig Schulman
Director

Master of Urban and Regional Planning
Bachelor of Science (Resource and Environmental Management)

Myriad Consulting 0414 402 203
Town Planning and Development Consultants enquiries@myriadconsulting.com.au
PO Box 2104 80 myriadconsulting.com.au

Rose Bay North NSW 2030 ABN 40211831976



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Item 5.

Development Application: 397-399 Harris Street, Ultimo - D/2020/593

File No.: D/2020/592

Summary

Date of Submission:

Applicant:
Architect/Designer:
Owner:

Planning Consultant
Heritage Consultant
DAPRS

Cost of Works:
Zoning:

Proposal Summary:

1 July 2020, amended plans received 6 November and 23
December 2020

J Uzabeaga

Beta Solutions Architects

C Uzabeaga, J Uzabeaga

GSA Planning

Heritage 21

15 September 2020

$367,400.00

B4 Mixed Use, proposal permissible with consent

The application proposes alterations to an existing two
storey building and use for a nine bedroom boarding house
over two levels.

The application includes a proposed variation to the
motorcycle parking development standard contained in
State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental
Housing) 2009. The application proposes no motorcycle
parking rather than the required two spaces and is
therefore referred to the Local Planning Panel for
determination.

The application was notified between 8 July 2020 and 30
July 2020. No submissions were received in response.



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Summary Recommendation:

Development Controls:

Attachments:

The application was considered by the Design Advisory
Panel Residential Subcommittee on 15 September 2020.
The panel made recommendations to improve the amenity
of boarding rooms and common areas. The proposal was
amended to address issues raised by the panel and
Council staff with amended plans received on 6 November
2020 and 23 December 2020. The amended plans are
considered to have addressed the key issues raised
except in relation to the poor amenity of room 4 on the
ground floor. To address this an additional amendment is
recommended to improve the amenity of the ground floor
dining / kitchen area with the deletion of room 4 on the
ground floor boarding room due to poor amenity.

The development application is recommended for
approval, subject to conditions.

(i)  Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
(i)  Sydney Development Control Plan 2012

(i)  State Environmental Planning Policy No. 55 -
Remediation of Land

(iv) State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable
rental Housing) 2009

(v) State Environmental Planning Policy (Building
Sustainability Index: BASIX) 2004

(viy Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney
Harbour Catchment) 2005

A. Recommended Conditions of Consent
B. Selected Drawings

C. Clause 4.6 Variation Request - Motorcycle Parking



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Recommendation

It is resolved that:

(A)

(B)

the variation requested to the motorcycle parking development standard required
under State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Housing) 2009 in accordance
with Clause 4.6 'Exceptions to development standards' of the Sydney Local
Environmental Plan 2012 be upheld; and

consent be granted to Development Application No. D/2020/593 subject to the
conditions set out in Attachment A to the subject report.

Reasons for Recommendation

The application is recommended for approval for the following reasons:

(A)
(B)
(©

(D)

The proposal is consistent with the objectives of the B4 Mixed Use Zone.
The proposal generally satisfies the relevant controls relating to boarding houses.

The proposal, subject to conditions, satisfies the provisions of clause 6.21 of Sydney
LEP 2012.

Based upon the material available to the Panel at the time of determining this
application, the Panel is satisfied that:

() the applicant’s written request has adequately addressed the matters required to
be demonstrated by clause 4.6(3) of the Sydney LEP 2012, that compliance with
the motorcycle parking development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary
and that there are sufficient planning grounds to justify contravening clause 30
(1)(H) of SEPP Affordable Rental Housing 2009; and

(i)  the proposal is in the public interest because it is consistent with the objectives
of the B4 Mixed Use zone and the motorcycle parking development standard.



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Background

The Site and Surrounding Development

1.

The site is identified as being part of Lot 101 in DP 736009 and is located at 397-399
Harris Street, Ultimo. Lot 101 includes the building at 397-399 Harris Street and the
adjoining building (an existing boarding house) at 401-403 Harris Street. The site has a
combined area of 371sqm. The subject building has a frontage of approximately
10.4m to Harris Street, a side frontage to Fig Street of 18.7m and a site coverage of
193.7sgm.

The site contains, at 397-399 Harris Street, a two storey commercial building built to
boundary. The frontage of the building has been modified with ground floor openings
that reflect a previous shop use. At 401-403 Harris Street is a two storey commercial
building with an approved boarding house use. The building has a similar appearance
at the street frontage.

The surrounding area is characterised by a mix of uses and building forms. To the
north the site adjoins Fig Street, an elevated pedestrian walkway and the Western
Distributor overpass. To the east across Harris Street at 390-422 Harris Street is
located a six storey commercial building. To the south the site adjoins a row of two
storey terrace buildings including both residential and commercial uses. To the west
at 8-14 Ada Place is a three to four storey residential flat building.

The site is located within the Ultimo Heritage Conservation Area.

A site visit was carried out on 25 August 2020. Photos of the site and surrounds are
provided below.

Figure 1: Aerial view of site and surrounds



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Figure 2: Site viewed from Harris Street looking west.

Figure 3: Site viewed from Harris Street looking south.



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

'“W i w‘\( n* A

Figure 4: Site viewed from elevated pedestrian walkway along Fig Street.



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

2

Figure 5: Internal views of existing building.



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

History Relevant to the Development Application
Development Applications
6.  The following applications are relevant to the current proposal:

o D/2007/851 — Development consent was granted on 11 July 2007 for 'Alterations
and additions to the existing building to create an additional dwelling and convert
the existing retail space into three retail units' for 397-399 and 401-403 Harris
Street, Ultimo. The approved plans for 397-399 Harris Street are for two
commercial tenancies fronting to Harris Street and a residence at the rear
ground floor with four bedrooms on the first floor. The existing site conditions
within the subject building largely reflect these approved plans.

° D/2011/1055 — Development consent was granted on 19 September 2011 for
'‘Conversion of an existing dwelling to an eight room boarding house for a
maximum of 11 occupants. Undertake internal and external alterations' for 401-
403 Harris Street, Ultimo (adjoining building on the same allotment). It is
understood that this use is currently operating.

° D/2013/1634 — Development consent was granted on 24 April 2014 for
'Alterations and additions to construct an additional storey to an existing two
storey building for use as a boarding house and a café at ground level' for 397-
399 Harris Street, Ultimo. It is understood this consent was not activated and
lapsed.

Compliance Action

7.  The site has previously been subject to compliance action in July 2019 where orders
were given to cease using the site as a boarding house and the use ceased.

Amendments

8. The application was considered by the Design Advisory Panel Residential
Subcommittee (DAPRS) on 15 September 2020. The key recommendations from the
Panel were:

(@) The planning layout and circulation provide poor amenity, in particular for the
kitchen and laundry on the ground floor;

(b) The extent of roof cover to the courtyard should be reduced,;

(c) A new opening to the northern wall of the courtyard would improve ventilation
and light;

(d) The amenity of ground floor Room 4 is unsatisfactory in terms of size,
configuration, ventilation and privacy;

(e) Overlooking and privacy between the common area and boarding rooms needs
to be addressed:;



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

(f)  Thefirst floor study room is a habitable space and requires source of natural light
and ventilation; and

(g0 BCA compliance should be confirmed.
9.  Amendments in response to the DAPRS comments and Council staff feedback were
received on 6 November 2020. Following further feedback from Council staff, further

amendments to plans were received on 23 December 2020. Room 4 was retained in
the amendments which did not address the above recommendations.

Proposed Development

10. The application seeks consent for the following:

(@) Alterations to the existing two storey building including reinstatement of
traditional features to the front face;

(b) Internal alterations and fit out works for a boarding house containing nine
boarding rooms. Parking provided for two bicycles.

11. Plans and elevations of the proposed development are provided below.

o+ T A, Tt A 1

__ Privagy lowvres ,)Exisling foldaway {
A0 "fi,f,l(fﬁ.ﬁ,)’v_ ,\f,:-éTﬁL.'{ .VGQ)?‘LM Ly n® 4o G
= = 3] H 1 L 5 [
| e af Ol :
i = i ] A : ~:A— ] g2
Y || NTH (R e MITF ] o o [} 2
D Y __[_| rPiEL S-S | Ac ESTSH LE HACCESSIBLE @
A ARgREES ~F'"1—,!5&y | |\\FA__ Foowuz £
= % I L (g ! — — A Al
| H IL /’ 3. o /oo XE|| !
: i LI f E_‘ T {jl - —
| T Aﬁ - B | \_\ | =
ENS3 ; A\ gy Froer @S B ;
N MR RSh ==l = i
™ H e —| — > REfE 1S B
Highignt “—3 ot —— ot
window ovee " 1
L m ~ e LR RA-20 l .
D ' [5] = ol
HOM 4 FLOOR = =
. ] S
I —t @«
“% |
{ ————
* / - = B
£
) ‘ 0 3 4 w‘?/’r = - g
we| 7l ’\5; ; ] &
) e% n T
sT @ - = E ] STAR
: nlak o 1070‘]\TT (177, N 398 S A

Figure 6: Proposed ground floor plan



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

A AR A

L RUMPUS ROOM
x FFL19.84 £
2 3
s 8
o S
L3 2
HE ]

1495 T 156 |

Figure 7: Proposed first floor plan

Figure 8: Proposed front elevation plan

10



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

b
i {
v'-T&i' = .c.....li.ﬁ
I |‘.ir e

% Relocated ar condenser units 10
_ & mechanical contractor's dotais
AT A A A A A -~

g e
Now s60mm high frosted restriced {
{connng:wm:bv: 1

T A o T i — e e [ -l |

AALALAALALALA AN A

Figure 9: Proposed north elevation

RUMPUS

Figure 10: Proposed section plan

Assessment

12. The proposed development has been assessed under Section 4.15 of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act).

11




Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

State Environmental Planning Policies
State Environmental Planning Policy No 55 - Remediation of Land

13. The aim of State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP) No 55 is to ensure that a
change of land use will not increase the risk to health, particularly in circumstances
where a more sensitive land use is proposed.

14. The proposed works include alterations to the existing commercial building with
previous residential uses and approvals for the site. The site is considered to be
suitable for the proposed use subject to routine investigations for any hazardous
materials during construction.

State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009
15. The aim of State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP) (Affordable Rental Housing) is
to provide a consistent planning regime for the provision and maintenance of

affordable rental housing and to facilitate the delivery of new affordable rental housing.

Division 3: Boarding Houses

16. Under Clause 29, compliance with any of the following standards must not be used to
refuse consent for a boarding house. An assessment of the proposed boarding house
against each standard is provided in the table below.

Clause 29 - Standards that cannot be used to refuse a boarding house

Provision Compliance | Comment

1 Density  and scale | Yes The application proposes a floor space
expressed as floor space ratio of 1.54:1.

ratio

An FSR of up to 1.5 plus 0.5:1
is permitted.

2(a) Building height Yes Existing building height 8m retained.

The proposed building height
must not exceed the maximum
building height of 9m permitted
under the Sydney LEP 2012.

2(b) Landscaped area Yes The predominant character of the
buildings along the western side of Harris
Street in this location is nil street setbacks
with no front landscaping.

The front setback is to be
compatible with the
streetscape.

12



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision Compliance | Comment

2(c) Solar access No Due to the existing building configuration,

If more than one communal tEe propo;ed O<|:<f3.mmﬂunal I|v.||rllg areas .on

living area is provided, at least :he grourl ;n I'rSt 00rs Wl:I) .not Irecetlvg

one of the rooms is to receive a ) eh_re;llu'fe solar access, elng ocz e

minimum of 3 hours direct e”m an existing two storey boundary

sunlight between 9:00am and wail.

3:00pm in mid-winter. The amenity to the provided communal
living area on the ground floor is
recommended to be improved
Clause 29(4) notes the consent authority
may consent to the development whether
or not the development complies with the
standards in clause 29(2).

2(d) Private open space Yes An outdoor space of 23.5sgm with a

: fatl 5 minimum dimension of greater than 3m

(|). One are.a of at gast .Osqm is provided.

with a minimum dimension of

3m is provided for lodgers. No onsite manager proposed or required.

(i) If accommodation is

provided for an onsite

manager, one area of at least

8sgm with a  minimum

dimension of 2.5m, adjacent to

the accommodation.

2(e) Parking No Five spaces allowed, no spaces

(i) 0.2 parking spaces provided provided.

for each boarding house room Clause 29(4) notes the consent authority

for sites in an accessible area. may consent to the development whether

(i) 0.4 parking spaces provided otr n%t thde qlevclelopme;r;t ;:omplles with the

for each boarding house room standards in clause 29(2).

for sites not in an accessible The reduced provision of no parking is

area. supported.

(i) Not more than 1 parking

space for the on-site manager.

2(f) Accommodation size Yes Proposed single rooms are greater than

(i) Rooms intended to be used
by a single lodger are to have a
minimum GFA of 12sgm.

12sgm. Double rooms are greater than
16sgm.

13




Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision

Compliance

Comment

(i) Rooms intended to be used
more than one person are to
have a minimum GFA of
16sgm.

(excluding any area used as a
private kitchen/ bathroom)

17.

Clause 30 states that a consent authority must not grant development consent to

which Division 3 applies unless it is satisfied of each of the following provisions.

Clauses 30 — Standards for boarding house

dwelling to be provided for a
boarding house manager if
boarding house has a capacity
of 20 or more lodgers

Provision Compliance | Comment

1(a) At least one communal | Yes Communal living rooms provided on

living room is to be provided. ground and first floor.

1(b) No boarding room is to | Yes All boarding rooms are less than 25sgm.

have a gross floor area

(excluding private kitchen or

bathroom facilities) of more

than 25mz2

1(c) No boarding room to be | Yes Rooms are designed as single and

occupied by more than 2 adult double rooms.

lodgers

g The submitted Plan of Management

restricts the number of lodgers to no more
than 2 adult lodgers per room.

1(d) Adequate bathroom and | Yes The boarding house provides adequate

kitchen facilities available for bathroom and kitchen facilities for each

use of each lodger lodger.

(1e) A boarding room or on-site | Yes The boarding house will have fewer than

20 lodgers, therefore manager's room not
required or provided.

14




Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

motorcycle parking space to be
provided for every 5 rooms.

Provision Compliance | Comment

1(g) If the boarding house is | Yes The land is zoned mixed use and
zoned primarily for commercial residential use is permitted on the ground
purposes, no part of the ground floor.

floor that fronts a street will be

used for residential purposes

except where permitted under

an EPI.

1(h) At least 1 bicycle and 1 | No Two bicycle parking spaces are required

and provided.

Two motorcycle spaces are required, no
motorcycle parking is proposed.

A request to vary the standard pursuant
to cl 4.6 has been submitted to justify the
variation and is discussed within the
report under the heading 'Discussion'.

Clause 30A — Character of the local area

18.

Clause 30A states that a consent authority must not consent to development for a

boarding house unless it has taken into consideration whether the design of the
development is compatible with the character of the local area.

19.

The site is located within an area that contains a range of uses and building forms

including other approved boarding houses. The proposed boarding house is
compatible with the character of the surrounding area and is consistent with clause

30A.

State Environmental Planning Policy (Building Sustainability Index: BASIX) 2004

20.

21.

A BASIX Certificate has been submitted with the development application.

The BASIX certificate lists measures to satisfy BASIX requirements which have been

incorporated into the proposal. A condition of consent is recommended ensuring the
measures detailed in the BASIX certificate are implemented.

State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure) 2007

22.

of the development application.

The provisions of SEPP (Infrastructure) 2007 have been considered in the assessment

Division 17, Subdivision 2: Development in or adjacent to road corridors and road reservations

Clause 101 — Development with frontage to classified road

23.

Street, which is a classified road.

15

The application is subject to Clause 101 of the SEPP as the site has frontage to Harris




Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

24.

The proposed development satisfies the provisions of Clause 101 subject to conditions
of consent, as access to the site is not provided from the classified road and the safety,
efficiency and ongoing operation of the classified road will not be adversely affected by
the development, subject to the recommended conditions of consent.

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney Harbour Catchment) 2005

25.

26.

The site is located within the designated hydrological catchment of Sydney Harbour and
is subject to the provisions of the above SREP. The SREP requires the Sydney Harbour
Catchment Planning Principles to be considered in the carrying out of development
within the catchment.

The site is within the Sydney Harbour Catchment and eventually drains into Sydney
Harbour. However, the site is not located in the Foreshores Waterways Area or adjacent
to a waterway and therefore, with the exception of the objective of improved water
guality, the objectives of the SREP are not applicable to the proposed development. The
development is consistent with the controls contained within the deemed SEPP.

Local Environmental Plans

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012

27.

An assessment of the proposed development against the relevant provisions of the
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 is provided in the following sections.

Part 2 Permitted or prohibited development

Provision Compliance | Comment
2.3 Zone objectives and Land | Yes The site is located in the B4 Mixed Use
Use Table zone. The proposed development is

defined as a boarding house and is
permissible with consent in the zone. The
proposal generally meets the objectives

of the zone.
Part 4 Principal development standards
Provision Compliance | Comment
4.3 Height of buildings Yes A maximum building height of 9m is
permitted.

The existing building height of 8m is
retained.

16



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision

Compliance

Comment

4.4 Floor space ratio

Yes

A maximum floor space ratio of 1.5:1 is
permitted under the LEP.

A floor space ratio of 1.54:1 is proposed
and permitted in accordance with the 0.5
SEPP bonus that applies and prevails
over the LEP standard.

4.6 Exceptions to development
standards

Yes

The proposed development seeks to
vary the motorcycle parking standard
prescribed under SEPP Affordable
Housing 2009. A request to vary the
standard pursuant to cl 4.6 has been
submitted with the application.

See further details in the ‘Discussion’
section below.

Part 5 Miscellaneous provisions

Provision

Compliance

Comment

5.10 Heritage conservation

Yes

The site is located within the Ultimo
Heritage Conservation Area.

The application as amended includes
works to the building facade as
recommended by Council's Heritage
Specialist to reinstate traditional door
and window openings that match the
works done to the adjacent building at
401-403 Harris Street.

The works will conserve the significance
of the heritage conservation area.

Part 6 Local provisions — heigh

t and floor space

Provision Compliance | Comment
Division 4 Design excellence
6.21 Design excellence Yes Subject to conditions to address the

recommendations of DAPRS the
proposal addresses the relevant
provisions.

See further details in the 'Discussion’
section below regarding design.

17




Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Part 7 Local provisions — general

Provision Compliance | Comment

Division 4 Miscellaneous

7.14 Acid Sulfate Soils Yes The site is located on land with class 5
Acid Sulfate Soils. The application does
not propose works requiring the
preparation of an Acid Sulfate Soils
Management Plan.

Development Control Plans

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012

28. An assessment of the proposed development against the relevant provisions within the
Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 is provided in the following sections.

Section 2 — Locality Statements

29. The site is located within the Ultimo locality. The proposed development is in keeping
with the unique character and the design principles of the locality. The proposed two
storey building form is retained with restoration works to the building frontage that will
improve the relationship within the heritage conservation area.

Section 3 — General Provisions

Provision Compliance | Comment

3.2. Defining the Public Domain | Yes The proposed works to the frontage
facade will improve the public domain
relationship.

3.5 Urban Ecology Yes The proposed development does not

involve the removal of any trees and will
not have an adverse impact on the local
urban ecology.

3.6 Ecologically Sustainable Yes The proposal satisfies BASIX and
Development environmental requirements.

3.7 Water and Flood Yes The site is not identified as being subject
Management to flooding.

18



Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Provision

Compliance

Comment

3.8 Subdivision, Strata
Subdivision and Consolidation

N/A

Subdivision is not proposed as part of
the subject application.

No strata subdivision of boarding houses
is permitted under SEPP Affordable
Housing 2009.

3.9 Heritage

Yes

The site is located within the Ultimo
Heritage Conservation Area. The
building is identified as a contributing
building.

The proposal includes works to the front
building fagade as recommended by
Council's Heritage Specialist to reinstate
traditional door and window openings
that match the works done to the
adjacent building at 401-403 Harris
Street.

The works are supported as they
remove previous unsympathetic
alterations and reinstate traditional
building openings.

3.11 Transport and Parking

Yes

Bicycle parking is provided on the
ground floor.

3.12 Accessible Design

Yes

Compliant access to be provided.

3.13 Social and Environmental
Responsibilities

Yes

The proposed development provides
adequate passive surveillance and is
generally designed in accordance with
the CPTED principles.

3.14 Waste

Partial
compliance

The proposal includes a dedicated bin
area for waste and recycling.

Council's waste unit recommends
additional space be provided as well as
a dedicated area for bulky goods waste.

As part of the recommendation to delete
Bedroom 4 on the ground floor for
amenity reasons, additional space would
be available for a bulky waste area at
the rear of the building. A condition is
recommended to require these
amendments.

19




Local Planning Panel

3 February 2021

Section 4 — Development Types

4.4 Other Development Types and Uses

4.4.1 Boarding houses and student accommodation

Provision Compliance | Comment

4.4.1.1 Subdivision Yes No strata subdivision proposed or
permitted.

4.4.1.2 Bedrooms Yes One ensuite 2sgm, all others 3sgm or
larger.
All rooms sized 15sgm (single), 18sgm
(double) or larger.

4.4.1.3 Communal kitchen | Yes A communal kitchen area is provided on

areas the ground floor sized approx. 9sgm
adjacent to a communal living/dining
area.

4.4.1.4 Communal living areas | Partial Indoor:

and open space compliance

Indoor communal area of 12.5sgm
required.

Communal area on ground floor sized
10.5sgm provided (excluding access
ramp).

Communal area on first floor sized
25sgm provided.

The communal area on the ground floor
is adjacent to the kitchen and entry to
the outdoor common space. A large
proportion of the space would be used
as a thoroughfare.

It was recommended by DAPRS to delete
Room 4 which would provide additional
communal area in this space. This is
included as a recommended condition.

Outdoor:

An outdoor space sized 23.5sgm with a
minimum dimension of greater than 3m
is provided.

The area has some weather protection.

20




Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Provision Compliance | Comment

The area is located behind an existing
two storey north boundary wall and
would not receive two hours of solar
access to 50% of the area midwinter.

DAPRS recommended that additional
openings be provided to the wall to
improve sunlight and ventilation to this
space. These recommendations have
been included as part of the amended
plans.

Given the existing building configuration
the variation is considered to be
acceptable.

Private open space:

No private open space provided rather
than required 30%. Given the existing
building configuration within the heritage
conservation area the variation is
considered to be acceptable.

4.4.1.5 Bathroom, laundry and | Yes 1 washing machine and 1 dyer required
drying facilities and provided.

4.4.1.6 Amenity, safety and | Yes The building including communal areas
privacy are secure.

4.4.1.7 Plan of Management Yes An operational plan of management has

been submitted.

The plan addressed the key required
items and should be kept on site at all
times to be implemented and updated as
required.

Discussion

Clause 4.6 Request to Vary a Development Standard

30. The development is subject to a minimum motorcycle parking standard under
Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009. A minimum of 2
motorcycle parking spaces are required under clause 30(1)(h) of the SEPP. The
proposal does not provide any motorcycle parking spaces.

21



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

31. A written request has been submitted to Council in accordance with Clause 4.6(3)(a)
and (b) of the Sydney LEP 2012 seeking to justify the contravention of the development
standard by demonstrating:

a. that compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or
unnecessary in the circumstances of the case;

b. that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening
the standard,;

c. the proposed development will be consistent with the objectives of the zone;
and

d. the proposed development will be consistent with the objectives of the
standard.

Applicant's Written Request - Clause 4.6(3)(a) and (b)

32. The applicant seeks to justify the contravention of the motorcycle parking development
standard on the following basis:

a. That compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or
unnecessary in the circumstances of the case:

i. The objectives of the standard are achieved notwithstanding non-
compliance with the standard,;

ii. The SEPP does not state specific objectives relating to the provision of
motorcycle parking, however the overall objectives of the SEPP are to
reduce reliance on car use by encouraging the use of bicycles,
motorcycles and public transport;

iii. The proposal is consistent with this objective providing space for
bicycle parking and being located near to public transport including
buses and the light rail,

iv. The site is located within walking distance of a variety of shops,
restaurants and education institutions;

v. The underlying objective or purpose would be defeated or thwarted if
compliance was required and therefore compliance is unreasonable:

vi. The underlying objective of the SEPP is to provide affordable housing
in accessible locations;

vii. The proposal achieves this objective being in a highly accessible
location. The additional cost of providing motorcycle parking within the
existing building would increase the cost and make the proposal
unviable; and

22



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

viii. Requiring strict compliance would require significant building
interventions to the existing building which would not be in keeping with
the desired character of the heritage conservation area.

b. Thatthere are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening
the standard:

i. The site is located in a highly accessible location with good access to
public transport;

ii. Bicycle parking is provided for the development;

iii. The existing constraints of the site do not readily allow for the provision
of onsite motorcycle parking. This includes the proximity to the
intersection of Harris and Fig Streets including the pedestrian overpass;
the change in levels along Fig Street; and the existing building
configuration not allowing for an additional separate entry point. Any
design for motorcycle entry would not meet the requirement for good
design and amenity of the built environment;

iv. There are examples of variations to the control for other similar
developments within the local area including the adjoining existing
boarding house at 401-403 Harris Street; and

v. Providing motorcycle parking within the site in such a small
development would result in a loss of amenity for residents.

c. The proposed development will be consistent with the objectives of the zone;

i. The proposal contributes to the mixture of land uses within the mixed
use zone;

ii. The proposal is in an accessible location within walking distance of
shops, restaurants and educational uses and public transport options;
and

iii. The proposal will contribute economically to the local area.

d. The proposed development will be consistent with the objectives of the
standard

i. Whilst the standard does not have specific objectives, the proposal
achieves the overall objectives of providing affordable accommodation
in accessible locations.

23



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Consideration of Applicant's Written Request - Clause 4.6(4) (a) (i) and (ii)

33.

Development consent must not be granted unless the consent authority is satisfied that:

a. The applicant’s written request has adequately addressed the matters required
to be demonstrated by subclause 3 of Clause 4.6 being that compliance with
the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the
circumstances of the case, and that there are sufficient environmental planning
grounds to justify contravening the standard; and

b. The proposed development will be in the public interest because it is consistent
with the objectives of the particular standard and the objectives for
development within the zone in which the development is proposed to be
carried out.

Does the written request adequately address those issues at Clause 4.6(3)(a)?

34.

The submitted request is considered to demonstrate that compliance with the
development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the particular circumstances
of this case. The motorcycle parking standard does not include specific objectives,
however the written request has demonstrated that the overall aims of the SEPP are
achieved. The proposal provides onsite bicycle parking and is located in an
accessible location close to public transport and a range of shops and services

Does the written request adequately address those issues at clause 4.6(3)(b)?

35.

The applicant's written request has adequately demonstrated there are sufficient
environmental planning grounds to contravening the development standard. The written
request and advice from Council's Heritage Specialist and Transport Unit has confirmed
that providing onsite motorcycle parking is not readily feasible for the subject building
given its location within a heritage conservation area and the local street network

Is the development in the public interest?

36.

37.

The proposal is considered to be in the public interest as it is consistent with the
objectives of the SEPP (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009 and the objectives of the B4
Mixed Use Zone.

The proposal provides a permissible boarding house use that is compatible with the mix
of uses in the locality and the B4 Mixed Use Zone. The site is located in an accessible
location and includes the provision of bicycle parking on the site to promote both walking
and cycling. The use will contribute to the viability of nearby shops and services

Conclusion

38.

For the reasons provided above the requested variation to the motorcycle parking
standard is supported as the applicant's written request has adequately addressed the
matters required to be addressed by clause 4.6 of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan
2012 and the proposed development would be in the public interest because it is
consistent with the objectives of the standard and the SEPP and the B4 Mixed Use Zone.

24



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Design

39.

40.

41.

The application was considered by the Design Advisory Panel Residential
Subcommittee (DAPRS) on 15 September 2020. The key recommendations from the
panel in response to the proposal were:

(@) The planning layout and circulation provide poor amenity, in particular for the
kitchen and laundry on the ground floor;

(b) The extent of roof cover to the courtyard should be reduced;

(c) A new opening to the northern wall of the courtyard would improve breezes and
light;

(d) The amenity of ground floor Room 4 is unsatisfactory in terms of size,
configuration, ventilation and privacy;

(e) Overlooking and privacy between the common area and boarding rooms needs
to be addressed,;

(f)  The first floor study room is a habitable space and requires a source of natural
light and ventilation; and

() BCA compliance should be confirmed for proposal.

Amendments in response to the DAPRS comments and Council staff feedback were
received on 6 November 2020. Following further feedback from Council staff, further
amendments to plans were received on 23 December 2020. The amended plans
include the following changes:

(a) revised front fagade to Harris Street with door and window positions to match
those at 401-403 Harris Street;

(b) reduction in extent of existing roof cover;
(c) new openings provided to northern wall for light and ventilation;

(d) privacy louvres provided to boarding room windows orientated towards the
internal outdoor common area;

(e) study room located on first floor deleted and area available as internal common
space; and

(H BCA compliance report provided.

The revised plans have been assessed by Council staff including Heritage and Urban
Design specialists. The amended plans and information are considered to address a
number of the above issues. The amended plans retain Room 4 on the ground floor
which is considered to result in both a boarding room of low amenity and a constricted
communal living area and dining space within the kitchen area. An extract from the
ground floor plan is shown below:

25



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

N

|

I
T o OO 2 it
’,ffc»l:lé—}

’ l ROOM 3

e

ENs3' > W\ FrL1eT7
\ N o
IR _
= . T i | 7_,,,—?Réfe'r'r6;'(
\ [ L ! T4 RAMP ; BCA B¢
Highlight = o ass = —7—ropart
window over - ‘hinged
door ;
D /- e O TIMBER .\ UOJ
Gt FLOOR > % |
F 1| &
I 7 =
I & |
v /’ I
2 S
AR i o g |
o — Y [ ,{é/f 1 1 9 |
wc‘ L I\ 1 7S | ACCESSI
/ LAUNDRY A KITCHEN/ > TH
! £ i 3 i Ty | T—
ST Iz B == — STAR | BE )
|
|
K PN /N

Figure 11: Extract of ground floor plan

42. Room 4 is considered to provide poor amenity in terms of configuration, natural light,
and ventilation; and the provided dining area would primarily serve as a thoroughfare
to the kitchen and stairs. It is recommended that Room 4 be deleted and the area be
reconfigured as additional communal living/dining space and to provide a bulky goods
storage space as recommended to be provided by the City's Waste Unit. This
recommended design amendment is included as part of the conditions in Attachment
A.

Consultation

Internal Referrals

43. The application was discussed with Council's Building Services Unit, Heritage and
Urban Design Unit, Transport and Access Unit, Waste Management Unit, and
Landscaping Unit. The provided advice is discussed within the assessment above and
recommended conditions are included in Attachment A.

Advertising and Notification

44. In accordance with the City of Sydney Community Participation Plan 2019, the proposed
development was notified for a period of 21 days between 8 July 2020 and 30 July 2020.
A total of 492 properties were notified, and no submissions were received.

26



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

Financial Contributions
Contribution under Section 7.11 of the EP&A Act 1979

45. The development is subject to a Section 7.11 development contribution under the
provisions of the City of Sydney Development Contributions Plan 2015. The calculated
contributions is $50,495.34. Credits have been applied for the most recent approved
use of the site, under D/2007/851.

46. A condition relating to this development contribution has been included in the
recommended conditions of consent in the Notice of Determination. The condition
requires the contribution to be paid prior to the issue of a construction certificate.

Contribution under Section 7.13 of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012

47. The site is located within the Ultimo/Pyrmont affordable housing contribution area. As
the proposed development includes additional floor space, a contribution is required at
a rate of $31.90 per square metre of total residential floor area 358.9 sqm totalling

$11,448.91. A condition of consent is recommended requiring payment prior to the
issue of a construction certificate.

Relevant Legislation

48. Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

Conclusion
49. The application for alterations to the existing two storey commercial building for use as

a nine room boarding house at 309-399 Harris Street, Ultimo has been assessed
against the relevant planning controls.

27



Local Planning Panel 3 February 2021

50.

51.

The application includes a proposed variation to the motorcycle parking development
standard contained in State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental
Housing) 2009. The application proposes no motorcycle parking rather than the
required two spaces. A written request pursuant to cl 4.6 of SLEP 2012 has been
considered and is supported in the circumstances of the application.

The proposal was considered by the Design Advisory Panel Residential Subcommittee
and amended in response to the feedback of the panel and Council Staff. The
amended plans are considered to have addressed the key issues raised, with an
additional amendment recommended to improve the amenity of the ground floor dining
/ kitchen area with the deletion of one ground floor boarding room (Room 4) with low
amenity (resulting in an 8 room boarding house). This area would be available for
additional useable communal living/dining and storage area improving the overall
amenity and functionality of the boarding house use. This is included as part of the
recommended conditions for approval of the proposal

ANDREW THOMAS

Executive Manager Development

Shannon Rickersey, Senior Planner

28



Attachment A

Recommended Conditions of Consent

29




SCHEDULE 1A

APPROVED DEVELOPMENT/DESIGN MODIFICATIONS/COVENANTS AND
CONTRIBUTIONS/USE AND OPERATION

Note: Some conditions in Schedule 1A are to be satisfied prior to issue of a Construction
Certificate and some are to be satisfied prior to issue of Occupation Certificate, where
indicated.

(1) APPROVED DEVELOPMENT
(@) Development must be in accordance with Development Application No.

D/2020/593 dated 1 July 2020 and the following drawings prepared by Beta
Solutions Architects:

Drawing Number | Drawing Name Date

DAOO5 Rev B External Finishes Schedule 14.12.20
DA100 Rev C Site Plan 14.12.20
DA101 Rev C Existing Ground Floor Plan 14.12.20
DA102 Rev C Existing First Floor Plan 14.12.20
DA103 Rev C Proposed Ground Floor Plan 14.12.20
DA104 Rev C Proposed First Floor Plan 14.12.20
DA201 Rev B Proposed East Elevation 27.10.20
DA202 Rev C Proposed North Elevation 14.12.20
DA301 Rev C Proposed Section A 14.12.20
DA302 Rev C Proposed Section B 14.12.20
DA500 Rev B Typical Room and Communal 27.10.20

Kitchen and Laundry
DA600 Rev B Proposed Landscape Plan 14.12.20

and as amended by the conditions of this consent.

(b) In the event of any inconsistency between the approved plans and
supplementary documentation, the drawings will prevail.

(2) DESIGN MODIFICATIONS
The design of the building must be modified as follows:

(@) Room 4 on the ground floor is to be deleted and the area is to be combined
with the adjoining communal living/dining area.

30



(3)

(4)

(b) A bulky goods storeroom is to be provided on the ground floor.

The modifications are to be submitted to and approved by Council’'s Area Planning
Manager prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING CONTRIBUTION - ULTIMO PYRMONT - PAYMENT
IN LIEU OF FLOOR SPACE CONTRIBUTION

The Affordable Housing Contribution is as follows:

(@) Prior to a Construction Certificate being issued and pursuant to Sydney LEP
2012 and the adopted City West Affordable Housing Program, the applicant
must pay a monetary contribution towards the provision of affordable
housing. The contribution is $11,448.91. If the contribution is paid after 30
June of the year in which this consent is granted, the amount of the
contribution must be indexed in accordance with the adopted City West
Affordable Housing Program.

(b) To make payment contact Councils Planning Assessment Unit email:
planningsystemsadmin@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au who will index the
amount, then provide you with written confirmation of the amount payable
and details of how to make the payment at the NSW Department of Planning,
Industry and Environment.

(c) Payment can be made either by bank cheque to the value of the required
contribution (made in favour of City West Housing Pty Ltd) or alternatively a
satisfactory bank guarantee is to be provided to the value of the required
contribution. Evidence of payment or lodgement of a bank guarantee must
be provided to the Accredited Certifier prior to issue of a construction
certificate.

(d) Prior to issue of any Occupation Certificate being issued or the use
commencing, whichever is earlier, the applicant must provide evidence to
the Principal Certifier that the bank guarantee referred to in (c) above has
been redeemed as payment of the contribution.

Note: All affordable housing contribution payments (and lodgement of bank
guarantees) for Ultimo-Pyrmont are paid at the NSW Department of Planning,
Industry and Environment.

SECTION 7.11 CONTRIBUTIONS PAYABLE - CONTRIBUTION TOWARDS
PUBLIC AMENITIES — CITY OF SYDNEY DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS
PLAN 2015 — WEST PRECINCT

Council has identified the development will increase demand for public amenities
and facilities. Pursuant to Section 7.11 of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended), and the City of Sydney Development
Contributions Plan 2015 the following monetary contributions are required towards
the cost of public amenities.

Contribution Category Amount
Open Space $37, 939.32
Community Facilities $12,479.36

31



(5)

(6)

Traffic and Transport $76.66
Stormwater Drainage $0.00
Total $50,495.34

The City of Sydney will index the above contribution for inflation at the time of
payment using the following formula.

Cpayment = Cconsent x (CPlpayment + CPlconsent)

Where:

Cpayment = |Is the contribution at time of payment;

Cconsent = Is the contribution at the time of consent, as shown above;
CPlpayment = Is the Consumer Price Index (All Groups Index) for Sydney

published by the Australian Bureau of Statistics that applies at
the time of payment; and

CPllconsent = Is the Consumer Price Index (All Groups Index) for Sydney at
the date the contribution amount above was calculated being
—116.8 for Sep 2020.

The contribution must be paid prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate in
relation to this development.

Please contact Council’s Planning Administration staff at
planningsystemsadmin@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au to request a letter confirming
the indexed contribution amount payable.

Once the letter confirming the indexed contribution is obtained, payment may be
made at any of the City’s Neighbourhood Service Centres or the One Stop Shop
at Town Hall House. Acceptable payment methods are EFTPOS (debit card only),
cash (up to 10K only), Credit Card (up to 50K only) or a bank cheque made
payable to the City of Sydney. Personal or company cheques will not be accepted.

COMPLIANCE WITH SUBMITTED MATERIALS AND SAMPLES BOARD

The design details of the proposed building facade including all external finishes,
colours and glazing must be in accordance with the materials schedule and
sample board, and specifications prepared by Beta Solutions Architects dated
December 2020.

NO SPEAKERS OR MUSIC OUTSIDE

Speakers and/or noise amplification equipment must not be installed and music
must not be played in any of the outdoor areas associated with the premises
including the public domain. Speakers located within the premises must not be
placed so as to direct the playing of music towards the outdoor areas associated
with the premises.

32



(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

NOISE — COMMERCIAL PLANT / INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT

(@) Noise from commercial plant and industrial development must not exceed a
project amenity/intrusiveness noise level or maximum noise level in
accordance with relevant requirements of the NSW EPA Noise Policy for
Industry 2017 (NPfl) unless agreed to by the City’s Area Planning Manager.
Further:

()  Background noise monitoring must be carried out in accordance with
the long-term methodology in Fact Sheet B of the NPfl unless
otherwise agreed by the City’s Area Planning Manager.

(i) Commercial plant is limited to heating, ventilation, air conditioning,
refrigeration and energy generation equipment.

(b)  An Laeg1s minute (NOISe level) emitted from the development must not exceed
the Lago, 15 minute (background noise level) by more than 3dB when assessed
inside any habitable room of any affected residence or noise sensitive
commercial premises at any time. Further:

(i)  Thenoise level and the background noise level shall both be measured
with all external doors and windows of the affected residence closed.

(i)  Background noise measurements must not include noise from the
development but may include noise from necessary ventilation at the
affected premise.

(c) Corrections in Fact Sheet C of the NPfl are applicable to relevant noise from
the development measured in accordance with this condition, however
duration corrections are excluded from commercial noise.

RESTRICTION ON STRATA SUBDIVISION

In accordance with the provisions of Clause 52 of the State Environmental
Planning Policy (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009 and the Sydney Development
Control Plan 2012, the student accommodation boarding house cannot be strata
subdivided.

RESTRICTION ON BOARDING HOUSE

The building must be used as a boarding house only.

BOARDING HOUSE - USE AND OPERATION

The use and operation of the premises must comply with the requirements of
Schedule 2 (Standards for Places of Shared Accommodation) of the Local
Government (General) Regulation, 2005 under the Local Government Act 1993,
the Public Health Act, 2010, the Boarding Houses Act 2012 and regulations
thereunder and the Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 — 4.4.1.

PLAN OF MANAGEMENT

(@) Prior to the issue of any occupation certificate, the Plan of Management
prepared by GSA Planning Ref: 20057, dated June 2020, is to be updated

33


https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/noise/17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf
https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/noise/17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf
https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/noise/17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf
https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/noise/17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

to reflect the development as approved and submitted to Council’'s Area
Planning Manager for approval.

(b) The use must always be operated / managed in accordance with the
approved Plan of Management in part (a) above. In the event of any
inconsistency, the conditions of this consent will prevail over the Plan of
Management. A copy of the plan is to be kept on site by the site manager.

ACCOMMODATION - REGISTRATION AND CARETAKER

Prior to the issuing of an Occupation Certificate or occupation with an Interim
Occupation Certificate (whichever is earlier), Council's Health and Building Unit
must be advised in writing of the business name, address, owner or company
name, 24 hour contact details for the site manager, and the number of occupants
approved for the premises. A caretaker/manager must be contactable 24 hours a
day.

SIGNS - SEPARATE DA REQUIRED

A separate development application for any proposed signs additional to those
approved as part of this consent (other than exempt or complying signs) must be
submitted to and approved by Council prior to the erection or display of any such
signs.

NO AIR CONDITIONING UNITS TO FACADE OF BUILDING

Approval is not granted for the installation of individual air conditioning units to the
facade of the building.

COST OF SIGNPOSTING

All costs associated with signposting for any kerbside parking restrictions and
traffic management measures associated with the development shall be borne by
the developer.

ASSOCIATED ROADWAY COSTS

All costs associated with the construction of any new road works including kerb
and gutter, road pavement, drainage system and footway shall be borne by the
developer. The new road works must be designed and constructed in accordance
with the City’s “Sydney Streets Technical Specification” including amendments
and “Sydney Streets Design Code”.

34



SCHEDULE 1B

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE/COMMENCEMENT OF WORK/HEALTH AND

BUILDING

17)

(18)

(19)

(20)

HERITAGE CONSERVATION WORKS

(a) Prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate, a schedule of conservation
works for the front building facade to be undertaken concurrent with the
works is to be submitted to Council’s Area Planning Manager for approval.

(b) The schedule is to be supported by detailed architectural sections,
elevations and plans at 1:10 for the door and windows. The details should
incorporate any structural and/or building services design for the building.

BASIX CERTIFICATE — DETAILS TO BE LODGED WITH A CC

A copy of the required completed BASIX certificate accepted as part of this
Development Consent with respect to the proposed residential building works,
must be lodged with an application for a construction certificate and the items
nominated as part of the subject BASIX certificate must be specified on the plans
submitted with the construction certificate application. — See Note.

IMPORTANT NOTE:

Any requirement detailed in the accompanying BASIX Certificate, MUST be
included as a specific notation or inclusion on any future Construction Certificate
plans and specification in accordance with Part 3 of Schedule 1 of the EP&A
Regulation, 2000.

BICYCLE PARKING AND END OF TRIP FACILITIES

The minimum number of bicycle parking spaces and end of trip facilities to be
provided for the development must comply with the table below.

User Number of bicycles | Requirements
to be
accommodated
Boarding House 2 Class B bicycle parking facility
in accordance with AS2890.3

The layout, design and security of bicycle facilities must comply with Australian
Standard AS 2890.3:2015 Parking Facilities Part 3: Bicycle Parking Facilities and
Council DCP. The details must be submitted to and approved by the Certifying
Authority confirming prior to the Construction Certificate being issued.

CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN

(@ A Construction Traffic Management Plan must be submitted to and
approved by Council prior to a Construction Certificate being issued.

35



(21)

(22)

(23)

(24)

(25)

Construction Traffic and Pedestrian Management Plans are to be prepared in
accordance with Standard Requirements for Construction Traffic Management
Plan on the City’s website
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/business/business-responsibilities/traffic-
management/construction-traffic-management-plans

DILAPIDATION REPORT — MINOR

Subject to the receipt of permission of the affected landowner, dilapidation report/s
of adjoining buildings are to be prepared by an appropriately qualified practising
structural engineer and submitted for the approval of the Accredited Certifier:

(@) prior to the commencement of demolition/excavation works; and
(b) on completion of construction demolition/excavation works.
EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL - LESS THAN 250SQM

Where less than 250 square metres are being disturbed, no formal plan is required
however, the site is to be provided with sediment control measures and these must
be implemented so that sediment, including soil, excavated material, building
material or other materials cannot fall, descend, percolate, be pumped, drained,
washed or allowed to flow to the street, stormwater system or waterways.

SYDNEY WATER CERTIFICATE (TAP-IN)

(@) The approved plans must be submitted to Sydney Water's "Tap-in" online
service to determine whether the development will affect Sydney Water's
sewer and water mains, stormwater drains and/or easements, and if further
requirements need to be met. Sydney Water's "Tap-in" online service is
available at www.sydneywater.com.au, (see Plumbing, Building &
Development and then Sydney Water "Tap-in").

(b) The Consent Authority or a Principal Certifier must ensure that Sydney
Water has appropriately stamped the plans before the commencement of
work.

CLASSIFICATION OF WASTE

Prior to the exportation of waste (including fill or soil) from the site, the waste
materials must be classified in accordance with the provisions of the Protection of
the Environment Operations Act 1997 and the NSW DECC Waste Classification
Guidelines, Partl: Classifying Waste (July 2009). The classification of the material
is essential to determine where the waste may be legally taken. The Protection of
the Environment Operations Act 1997 provides for the commission of an offence
for both the waste owner and the transporters if the waste is taken to a place that
cannot lawfully be used as a waste facility for the particular class of waste. For the
transport and disposal of industrial, hazardous or Group A liquid waste advice
should be sought from the EPA.

TREES ON NEIGHBOURING LAND THAT MUST BE PROTECTED

(@) The existing trees detailed in Table 1 below must be protected in accordance
with the conditions of consent throughout the construction and development.

36


http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/business/business-responsibilities/traffic-management/construction-traffic-management-plans
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/business/business-responsibilities/traffic-management/construction-traffic-management-plans
http://www.sydneywater.com.au/

(26)

(27)

Table 1 — Trees to be protected:

Tree No | Botanical/Common Name Location

Platanus acerifolia/Plane Tree Street Tree on Harris Street

TREE PROTECTION PLANS

(@)

All detailed architectural, building, engineering (structural, stormwater and
drainage services) and landscape documentation submitted for the
Construction Certificate shall clearly show on all drawings the retention of
trees as required by these conditions of consent, the position of their trunks,
full diameter of their canopies, Structural Root Zones (SRZs) and Tree
Protection Zones (TPZs).

STREET TREE PROTECTION

All street trees directly outside the site must be retained and protected in
accordance with the Australian Standard 4970 Protection of Trees on
Development Sites. All street trees must be protected during the construction
works as follows:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Tree trunk and major limb protection must be undertaken prior to the
commencement of any works. The protection must be installed and certified
by a qualified Arborist (AQF level 3) and must include:

(i)  Anadequate clearance, minimum 250mm, must be provided between
the structure and tree branches, limbs and trunks at all times;

(i)  Tree trunk/s and/or major branches, must be protected by wrapped
hessian or similar material to limit damage, and

(i)  Timber planks (50mm x 100mm or similar) must be placed around tree
trunk/s. The timber planks must be spaced at 100mm intervals, and
must be fixed against the trunk with tie wire, or strapping. The hessian
and timber planks must not be fixed to the tree in any instance, or in
any fashion,

(iv) Tree trunk and major branch protection is to remain in place for the
duration of construction and development works, and must be
removed at the completion of the project.

All hoarding support columns are to be placed a minimum of 300mm from
the edge of the existing tree pits/setts, so that no sinking or damage occurs
to the existing tree setts. Supporting columns must not be placed on any tree
roots that are exposed.

Young street trees shall be protection by installing three (3) wooden takes
around the edge of the tree pit. Hessian shall be wrapped around the stakes.
If existing stakes are already in place, these shall suffice as tree protection.

Temporary signs, or any other items, shall not be fixed or attached to any
street tree.

37




(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Materials or goods, including site sheds, must not be stored or placed:
(i)  around or under the tree canopy; or
(i) within two (2) metres of tree trunks or branches of any street trees.

Any excavation within in any area known to, or suspected of having street
tree roots greater than 40mm diameter must be undertaken by hand.

Any trenching works for services / hydraulics / drainage etc must not be
undertaken within four metres of any street tree. Alternative installation
methods for services, such as directional boring/drilling, or redirection of
services shall be employed where large woody roots greater than 40mm
diameter are encountered during the installation of any services.

Existing sections of kerbs adjacent to any street tree must not be removed
without approval from the Council’'s Tree Management Officer.

Any damage sustained to street tree/s as a result of construction activities
(including demolition) must be immediately reported to the Council’s Tree
Management Officer on 9265 9333. Any damage to street trees as a result
of construction activities may result in a prosecution under the Local
Government Act 1993 and the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act
1979.

(28) STREET TREE PRUNING

(@)

(b)

The consent from Council's Tree Management Officer must be obtained
prior to the undertaking of any street tree pruning works including tree roots
greater than 40mm diameter. Only minor pruning works will be approved by
Council.

Any pruning that has been approved by Council, must be carried out by a
qualified Arborist (AQF3), and must be in accordance with AS4373
Australian Standards 'Pruning of Amenity Trees'.

(29) WASTE AND RECYCLING MANAGEMENT

(@)

(b)

(€)

The Waste and Recycling Management Plan accompanying this
Development Application has not been approved by this consent.

A Waste and Recycling Management Plan is to be submitted to and
approved by Council's Area Coordinator Planning Assessments / Area
Planning Manager prior to a Construction Certificate being issued. The plan
must comply with the Council's Guidelines for Waste Management in New
Developments 2018. All requirements of the approved Waste and Recycling
Management Plan must be implemented during construction of the
development.

The building must incorporate designated areas or separate garbage rooms
constructed in accordance with Council’s Guidelines for Waste Management
in New Developments 2018, to facilitate the separation of commercial waste
and recycling from residential waste and recycling.

38



(30)

(31)

(d)

The path of travel between the bin storage areas and the designated
waste/recycling collection point is to have a minimum 1200mm wall-to-wall
clearance, be slip-proof, of a hard surface, be free of obstructions and at no
point have a gradient exceeding 1:14. The maximum travel distance
between the storage point and collection point shall be no more than 10
metres.

UPON COMPLETION OF THE DEVELOPMENT

(e)

Prior to an Occupation Certificate being issued or the use commencing,
whichever is earlier, the Principal Certifier must ensure that waste handling
works have been completed in accordance with: Waste and Recycling
Management Plan; other relevant development consent conditions; and
Council’s Guidelines for Waste Management in New Developments 2018.

WASTE/RECYCLING COLLECTION

(@)

(b)

The collection of waste and recycling must only occur during the designated
zone collection times to avoid noise disruption to the surrounding area.

Residential and commercial waste and recycling bins and bulky waste must
not be placed on the street for collection, services must be conducted as
wheel-out/wheel back service from the bin holding room. Commercial waste
storage and service collections arrangements must be conducted in
accordance with the City’s Waste Policy — Local Approvals Policy for
Managing Waste in Public Places (2017).

WASTE AND RECYCLING MANAGEMENT - GENERAL

The proposal must comply with the relevant provisions of Council's Guidelines for
Waste Management in New Developments 2018 which requires facilities to
promote the efficient storage, separation, collection and handling of waste to
maximise resource recovery and provide safe and healthy spaces for people to
live and work in.

39



SCHEDULE 1C

DURING CONSTRUCTION/PRIOR TO OCCUPATION/COMPLETION

(32)

(33)

(34)

BASIX

All commitments listed in each relevant BASIX Certificate for the development
must be fulfilled prior to any Occupation Certificate being issued.

LANDSCAPING

Tree planting within the property must be undertaken in accordance with the
approved plans and following conditions prior to the issuing of the Occupation
Certificate:

(@) One small tree is to be planted within a large pot within the common
courtyard space, and one other planting within a pot outside the window of
Room 3 at the completion of all construction works;

(b) The large pot size is to be sized at least: diameter 600mm, height 2000mm

(c) Any newly planted tree that fails to establish within 2 years of the initial
planting date must be replaced with a tree of comparable qualities.

HOURS OF WORK AND NOISE - OUTSIDE CBD
The hours of construction and work on the development must be as follows:

(@) All work, including building/demolition and excavation work, and activities in
the vicinity of the site generating noise associated with preparation for the
commencement of work (eg. loading and unloading of goods, transferring of
tools etc) in connection with the proposed development must only be carried
out between the hours of 7.30am and 5.30pm on Mondays to Fridays,
inclusive, and 7.30am and 3.30pm on Saturdays, with safety inspections
being permitted at 7.00am on work days, and no work must be carried out
on Sundays or public holidays.

(b)  All work, including demolition, excavation and building work must comply
with the City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992
and Australian Standard 2436 - 2010 Guide to Noise Control on
Construction, Maintenance and Demolition Sites.

(c) Notwithstanding the above, the use of a crane for special operations,
including the delivery of materials, hoisting of plant and equipment and
erection and dismantling of on site tower cranes which warrant the on-street
use of mobile cranes outside of above hours can occur, subject to a permit
being issued by Council under Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993
and/or Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993.

Note: Works may be undertaken outside of hours, where it is required to avoid the
loss of life, damage to property, to prevent environmental harm and/or to avoid
structural damage to the building. Written approval must be given by the
Construction Regulation Team, prior to works proceeding

The City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 allows
extended working hours subject to the approval of an application in accordance

40



(35)

(36)

(37)

(38)

with the Code and under Section 4.55 of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979.

ENCROACHMENTS - PUBLIC WAY

No portion of the proposed structure, including gates and doors during opening
and closing operations, shall encroach upon Council’s footpath area.

OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE TO BE SUBMITTED

An Occupation Certificate must be obtained from the Principal Certifier and a copy
submitted to Council prior to commencement of occupation or use of the whole or
any part of a new building, an altered portion of, or an extension to an existing
building.

LOADING AND UNLOADING DURING CONSTRUCTION
The following requirements apply:

(@) All loading and unloading associated with construction activity must be
accommodated on site, where possible.

(b) If it is not feasible for loading and unloading to take place on site a Works
Zone on the street may be considered by Council.

(c) A Works Zone may be required if loading and unloading is not possible on
site. If a Works Zone is warranted an application must be made to Council
at least 8 weeks prior to commencement of work on the site. An approval for
a Works Zone may be given for a specific period and certain hours of the
days to meet the particular need for the site for such facilities at various
stages of construction. The approval will be reviewed periodically for any
adjustment necessitated by the progress of the construction activities.

(d)  Where hoisting activity over the public place is proposed to be undertaken
including hoisting from a Works Zone, a separate approval under Section 68
of the Local Government Act 1993 and Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993
must be obtained.

NO OBSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC WAY
The public way must not be obstructed by any materials, vehicles, refuse, skips or

the like, under any circumstances. Non-compliance with this requirement will result
in the issue of a notice by Council to stop all work on site.

41



SCHEDULE 2
PRESCRIBED CONDITIONS

The prescribed conditions in accordance with Division 8A of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 apply:

Clause 98 Compliance with Building Code of Australia and insurance requirements
under the Home Building Act 1989

Clause 98A  Erection of signs

Clause 98B  Notification of Home Building Act 1989 requirements

Clause 98C  Conditions relating to entertainment venues

Clause 98D Conditions relating to maximum capacity signage

Clause 98E Conditions relating to shoring and adequacy of adjoining property
Refer to the NSW State legislation for full text of the clauses under Division 8A of the

Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000. This can be accessed at:
http://www.legislation.nsw.gov.au

42



Attachment B

Selected Drawings

43




a soova 00v6}

uorsinol Bumeia qor

v r 020z 1equisdeq [

powoau0 wneig aweq aeos

3TNA3HOS STHSINI4 TWYNYILXT
133 BV 1L ONIMVED

SLO3LIKDYY
suolnjos elag

42020594 NOV.
0002 MSN Aoupfs
15 SouBIEID 08 L one] q

000 Aoupks

S103LHOHY

ezoqez abior

Naro
1002 MSN Ol 19215 SUIEH 665-L68
ONIATNG TYIDHINWINOD ONILSIX3
OL SNOILYH3LTY ANV SNOILIaay
"3SNOH ONIAYYO0d d3S0d0dd
103roud
swewalnba)
ro 10UNoY Jad Se papusWwY 02022} ¥ 1 a
suswaunbel
zr 10UN0 Jad SE papusWwY 02020442 v
A8 NOLLIHOS3a ava NOISIAZY

103UY2IY uoRINAISUO [ 199(01d O AoyIne ssaidxe

210130 91 U0 PIXIID 3q 01 SUOISUSP Y+
‘SBuMEIp WoJ) 9[eas 10U 0Q -

HLHON 153rodd :S3LON INVLHOANI

Bulpjing uadelpe Jo smopuim
yodlew o} MoE|g, xnng o} Jejluls -
sl juled
smopuim sbujuado pajollisal paisol)
» Buny a|buIg - aWel} UBPOOM MOPUIAL

lojeoLqey
AqQ pepuswooal Se SsauNoIy] .
sse|bJeg) .
sse|B mopuIp

loyeolqge)

AQ papuswooal Se SSauNdIY]
sse|b pa1soi{ -

sse|f mopuim palso.4

Buiping uade(pe jo Joop Buip|ing waoelpe jo apedey
yodlew o} Moe|g, xnng o} Jejiuls . yorew o} Buidl], xning o} JejwIS -
ysiuy jured . ysiuy ureq .
Joop abejiay USPOOM PJRUIWION s|jem palapuay

*Aluo aAileoIpUl SI uoneluasaidal oydelb ay |
‘s|elayew Josixa pasodoud ayy Jo anijejuasaidal s aled Buimolo) ay L

31NA3HOS STHSINIA TVYNY3ILX3

44




o] 00tva

uorsiny Bumeia

00v6}

v AL} 0202 Jequadeq 00z}

poosuD wneig aweq aeos

NY1d 3LIS
133 BV 1L ONIMVED

9692 6126 2 19+ SLO3LIKDYY
N2 W0 SUONNOSEIADSIBIOIE SuoIIn|og elog

ONIATING A3HOLS 2

ONIATING AFHOLS ¢
€0 'ON 91 'ON

NeWooSuONOSEIaq AW

:Zwemﬂzﬁ
Sﬁimzigm
_mmswioadgﬂ
YA |

g8
S103UHOUY

SlddVH

ezoqez abior

2

Naro
Y31N3O Viva
£00Z MSN 0wl 192415 SWIBH 66€-L6€ 22y-06€ ON

Id vav

ONIATNG TYIDHINWINOD ONILSIX3
OL SNOILYH3LTY ANV SNOILIaay
"3SNOH ONIAYYO0d d3S0d0dd

o T8 o

o 54
soaroua

0 ¥

NOILYOITddV SIHL 40 14Vd LON
d3137dOD | FOVLS

QHVALHNOD &
¥y

swewalnba)
10UN0Y Jad Se papUsWY 02022} ¥ 1 o

1334d1S

suswaunbel
founog Jod se papusLly 02020422 a
NOLLIHOS3a ava NOISIAZY

ONIATING 343AN3H XOIL8
AJHOLS €
PH8ON

S

“10Uine 2} o AHAAOId 3} PUE 1YBAGOD S| BUMEIP SIYL «
“souasajeid
pue sbupeip ajeas JobieT -

13341S

Bk

o
210130 91 U0 PIXIID 3q 01 SUOISUSP Y+
‘SBuMEIp WoJ) 9[eas 10U 0Q -

(4004 TV.13N)
ONIQTING AFHOLS 2
66€-L6€ ON

HLHON 153rodd :S3LON INVLHOANI

S|[219p S,1010B.1UOD [BOJUBLIBW
un e pajeoojey

‘SNOISNINIa
31VHNOIV ANV S13A37 HO4 SONIMYHA ASAHNS OL H343d @

"ONIMVHA ASAHNS V LON SISIHL 'V
‘310N

45

230

o

EL I
e @?rw% i
pell]]
a0 ,ie - -
o & -
o O 3

you ¥

o &

13341S 14

4 H3ad/dnN




o] Lokva 00v6}

uorsinol Bumeia qor

v AL} 020z 1equisdeq [

powoau0 wneig aweq aeos

"OO0T4 ANNOYD ONILSIX3
133 BV 1L ONIMVED

SLO3LIKDYY
suolnjos elag

:

42020594 NOV.
0002 MSN Aoupfs

15 SouBIEID 08 L one]
000 Aoupks

S103LHOHY

ezoqez abior

Naro
1002 MSN Ol 19215 SUIEH 665-L68
ONIATNG TYIDHINWINOD ONILSIX3
OL SNOILYH3LTY ANV SNOILIaay
"3SNOH ONIAYYO0d d3S0d0dd
103roud
swewalnba)
ro 10UN0Y Jad Se papUsWY 02022} ¥ 1 o
suswaunbel
zr 10UN0 Jad SE papusWwY 02020442 a
A8 NOLLIHOS3a ava NOISIAZY

1031y uoRINAISUOD (199(01d Jo Aioyine ssaidxe
u) 10U pasn 10 paidod ‘paulela: 8q ou 1snu pue
“10Uine 2} o AHAAOId 3} PUE 1YBAGOD S| BUMEIP SIYL «

HLHON 153rodd :S3LON INVLHOANI

woos mau pasodoid

woou Buysixgy _H_

BaJe 99.)-9|981Sq0 m H u

qeys/|lem mau pasodoid I
uonowap pasodoig WN@NM

aur Aepunog - -

JOOT4 ANNO¥D ONILSIXI\_t /

I o o
goL &% @E
> COE (4004 L3N
Qe ONIQTING d343IANTH
0 MO LS00 3ovas >mﬁm_wwm ¢ auvALEN0D
Eal
20 fewd _
L/ @%mr
n supm poszor ' . ONIQTING dIHIANIH MOIHg
Lk ‘sAemioop Bunsix: \
0995 \ Lo W0e AJdOLS €
. -g'0N
ok p1-8
yob ﬁ
R (o]
%) i ©
— I 0
RNV T 4
T ; i
® . 100
1 eg | |3
3 , 4 AKX N 100p Bulbuey I -
& 8 13 lugil | o
m Satt 4 e | , LN
W ' Wm \ — =T papusixe 7 X
|— ., J\ N ,r_ mopum Bunsixg i . m
W ! ,._\wwr
i | Aﬁ
W 5| _ & 2091744 | N
\ [LR% 2 2 ! 2 S8
¥0 @ | " A.o&
i 7
. ) Il \ %% PSS \ + T
. ¥ (@Q,o . | (SIS EE] \
Qv 18 o o Q&
YL ¥ A v
///\\VO L urnm.&/ ke ¥
M) S86L 0995 oo moDU Sr6e !
o ¥ S
oo
*

loeva




o] coiva 00v6}

uorsinol Bumeia qor

v AL} 020z 1equisdeq [

powoau0 wneig aweq aeos

HOO0T4 LSHI4 ONILSIX3
133 BV 1L ONIMVED

ooL -t 01V

SLO3LIKDYY
suolnjos elag

42020594 NOV.
0002 MSN Aoupfs
15 SouBIEID 08 L one] q

000 Aoupks

S103LHOHY

ezoqez abior

o
1002 MSN QWIN 19955 SUBH 668-L6E
ONIATNG TYIDHINWINOD ONILSIX3
OL SNOILYH3LTY ANV SNOILIaay
"3SNOH ONIAYYO0d d3S0d0dd
103roud
swewainbal
ro 10UN0 Jod SE PapUBWY 020221 Y ) 0
sweweinbes
2 1ounog Jad SE papUBWY 02020422 El
» NOLLIHOS3a ava NoISIAZY

103UY2IY uoRINAISUO [ 199(01d O AoyIne ssaidxe

41 4o uonuBNE au) 0} 1UBN0IG 9q
HiOm

210129 a1 U0 PaXI 3G
‘sBumesp

HLHON 153rodd :S3LON INVLHOANI

qeys/|lem mau pasodoid I
woou Buysixgy _H_ uonijowsap pasodoid WN@NM

aur Aepunog - -

woos mau pasodoid

BaJe 99.)-9|981Sq0 m H u

08l

09€eS

0v0e

NOILYOINddV SIHL 40 LHVd LON
Q3L137dWOD | 3DVLS

o SL61

00te

-

1454

861144 x

861144 x

(4JOOH L3N
ONIATING G34IANTY
AJHOLS 2
LOPON

(foevay

ayvALHNOD

LCICIEE Y

102744 x

JOOTd 1Sl ONILSIXI\_!

ONIQTING d343ANIH MOIdd
AFdOLS €
71-8'0N

47

KKK
Stotototete
Stotootetet
RRLIHIRKK,

o5
X

SehL




o] eotva 00v6}

uorsinol Bumeia qor

v AL} 0202 Jequadeq 004 -+

powoau0 wneig aweq aeos

09;%

H"OO14 ANNOYD 03S0d0Hd

133 BV 1L ONIMVED

9692 6.26

SLO3LIKDYY
suolnjos elag

s 7
Mol

sou0 heups

S103LHOHY

ezoqez abior

N3
1002 MSN OWIIN ‘1994 SUIEH 66E-L6E
ONIATNG TYIDHINWINOD ONILSIX3
OL SNOILYH3LTY ANV SNOILIaay
"3SNOH ONIAYYO0d d3S0d0dd
103r0ud
swewainbal
ro fiounog sed se pepuswy 020221 Y1 0
swewenbel
2 punog sad se papuswy 020204 L2 a
A8 NOLLAINOS3a awa NOISIAZY

1031y UoRIIISUOD /103 ouine ssaidxe

810120 ays o paxoay2 3G

lddVH

S

NOILYOINddV SIHL 40 LHVd LON
Q3L137dWOD | 3DVLS

S

SBumelp Wos 91e0s 10U 0g
HLHON 103r0Hd S3LON INVLHOAN
woos meu pasodold qejs/ilem mau pasodoly I

woou Buysixgy _H_ uonijowsap pasodoid WN@NM
‘eaJe 99.4-9081Sq0 m - u Bunsixg I

aur Aepunog - -

, 830
5008
HLva 0052

T ——

NEIRYRY

oo e e 2 s .1 520 o 2 st g, o o3 S AR i e
e S 03 o e S s e A LA o8 g s o

”~ ” 0 10000 uoiesad Kenre) o 0 o ormmR ey Ko
L ”~ U0 U L 1803 LOTEI) TG K U A U
o a 180 s s 100 TR0 PR 1 U ETPAPA WOOAGRG | I
omon|
0 0
»: L] ne B ot
ot S
L Zenon
\ Q3 ]

”
" " "

A il e 0 s £ O s o,
» ~ » om0 s e o, v

1655
H

5L

+

ovel

. olsr — 5997

L L N OfiHe

T 0001 o001 1 N

f - — T HE
378ISS300V _378I1SS500V

1 334 1S

1655

02134

K
+

830
HLlvd 05€2

3HOLS NIg 0Lbe

480

40014 ANNOYO A3sOdOdd \ L/

®%

|| oNIGlINg 3H3aNaY Yolkg
Wi AJHOLS €

e

i)
[

3OVHOLS

o | L opaumoanan ywoa—5y] ./ 4
T ST TR E= ) 94T |
=
IS P
A — [ 1
Il = -
, 52 = |
o
2 NOOY g /ﬁ [W/foEoias
£3718ISS300V+
= T E sos
of @ " ot

PoIOLIISal PalSOl) MON

P ——

il

YT [JLET
E;ZJ (2}

T

[F s [{E

(B3

smopuim sbujuedo

71-8'0N

48

SvSe

S,
275
Ty

-
SEHE

0662

\OY

saiAno| Koeaiid

Sese

~

0692 S9S1

vodal yOg/ssa00y 0} Jsjey




o] v0iva

uorsinol Bumeia

00v6}

v AL}

powoau0 wneig

0202 J8quiedaq

aweq aos

HOO14 1SHI4 a3S0d0dd

133 BV

1L ONIMVED

42020594 NOV.
0002 MSN Aoupfs

15 SouBIEID 08 L one]
sou0 heups

SLO3LIKDYY
suolnjos elag

:

S103LHOHY

ezoqez abior

N3
1002 MSN OWIIN ‘1994 SUIEH 66E-L6E
ONIATNG TYIDHINWINOD ONILSIX3
OL SNOILYH3LTY ANV SNOILIaay
"3SNOH ONIAYYO0d d3S0d0dd
103r0ud
swewainbal
ro fiounog sed se pepuswy 020221 Y1 0
swewenbel
zr ounog sod Se pepuawy 02020422 a
A8 NOLLAINOS3a awa NOISIAZY

1031y uoRINAISUOD (199(01d Jo Aioyine ssaidxe
u) 10U pasn 10 paidod ‘paulela: 8q ou 1snu pue
,as._uﬁ::_.aga..._e_.u.égng._?;:unfA

210130 91 U0 PIXIID 3q 01 SUOISUSP Y+
‘SBUMEIp W1} 9[eas 1ou 0g -+

HLHON 153rodd

:S3LON INVLHOANI

woos mau pasodoid

BaJe 99.)-9|981Sq0 m H u

wool Bu

qeys/|lem mau pasodoid I
uopowsp pasodoid WN@NM

Bunsixg I

aur Aepunog -

§
i
i
i
i
|
i
H
i
2

NEIR Y
>
>

0 » pmny

08ly

09€S

HLvE 0691

OM NOWWOD

HLlvg 022z

0€6

HLvE 002

13A3T LS¥I4 G3S0d0odd \_t J

NOILYOINddV SIHL 40 LHVd LON
Q3L137dWOD | 3DVLS

“____DD
I

ayvALHNOD

1ybleY Wy'| o}

,MOpUIM Pa}sol

H
L]

¢ Wood

1]

HLlva .—

€ Wood

\ 19A0 PIOA
Buiuado jooy

861744 x
INOOY sndind

Juson|sues)
Bunsixg

s ;
S92

SNdNNY 09%S
k
~

066
PR
0€01

+t

e
+

089}
001

ONIQTING d343ANIH MOIdd
AJHOLS €
71-8'0N

49

foeva,

~
L,

A+t
W

H#

Sovt

[A%4

009¢

i

5995

sauAno| Aoeaid Jaquirl

HLvd Geee

—~
osey

1724

Ghiv




a Loeva 00v6}
uorsiny Bumeiq qor
v AL} 0202 Jequadeq 004 -+
pawoauD wneig aweq aeos
NOILYAZT3 LSVY3 03SOd0Yd
133 BV 1L ONIMVED

9692 6.26 2 19+

N2 W0 SUONNOSEIADSIBIOIE
NeWooSuONOSEIaq AW
42020594 NOV.

0002 MSN Aoupfs

15 00URIEID 08 £ oA
sou0 heups

SLO3LIKDYY
suolnjos elag

:

S103UHOUY

0oL L Aoz

ezoqez abior

13331S SI3VH ‘NOIVAIT 1Sva\ |/

13341S SIHdVH 66€-L6€ 13341S SIddvH Loy

-
—

A”VANNO8

4

Naro
2002 MSN QUi 1991 SUIEH 665-L6E
ONIATNG TYIDHINWINOD ONILSIX3
OL SNOILYH3LTY ANV SNOILIaay
"3SNOH ONIAYYO0d d3S0d0dd
103roud
Swewanba)
zr 10UN0 Jad Se papusWwY 02020442 a
NOILYOI1ddV
W ININdOTIAIA 10} PaNSSI  0202'20'L2 v
A8 NOLLIHOS3a ava NOISIAZY

1031y uoRINAISUOD (199(01d Jo Aioyine ssaidxe
u) 10U pasn 10 paidod ‘paulela: 8q ou 1snu pue

“10Uine 2} o AHAAOId 3} PUE 1YBAGOD S| BUMEIP SIYL «

“souasajeid
94e) SUOISUBWIP BN puE SBUMEIp 3(E0S BBIET +

:S3LON INVLHOANI

woos mau pesodold

woou Buysixgy _H_

BaJe 99.)-9|981Sq0 ﬁ H u

qeys/|lem mau pasodoid I
uopowsp pasodoid WN@NM

aur Aepunog

5991 0

J00p PUE SMOpUIM
snoina.d pajesuies pasodold

E H

\\‘\‘\‘\‘\NW\‘\‘

¢ & &

el ] —

Paysijowap q 0}
Joop g Juoyydoys

861 d

Ajonneoipur Ajuo
umouys apeoe) Bunsix3

Ajeaneoipul Ajuo umoys
ssediano Bunsixg

< — | — =
62'v2 1d

puiyeq Id epy
1-8ON apeoe} jse3

AHYANNOG:

50




v AL} 0202 Jequadeq 004 -+

ooooooo wneig aweq aeos

NOILYAST3 HLHON d3SOdOdd

mwsey Tuuoumvaa
SLO3LIKDYY
asodo.d abueyo oN “AjoAleoIpul AJUO UMOYS UOHEAS|T :810] :
suoinjos elag P 4o ON “Aleaeaipul Al US UOIeASI3 910N 0O1 : | @
7 133318 Ol "NOILVAIT3 HIdON G
xxxxxxxxx
ezaqez( ebior smopuim sBuiuado
N3O paoLsal palsol) ybly Wwoge MoN
N owny
ONIATNG TYIDHINWINOD ONILSIX3
OL SNOILYH3LTY ANV SNOILIaay
"3SNOH ONIAYYO0d d3S0d0dd
uuuuu

o

zr

»

| I I T = — SIIE19P $,J010BIU0D [BOIUBLOBLT
1 | | | | I | T 0] SN J9SUBPUOD Jfe POJESDIeY
==_ L
e T ' =1 _
T ™ T /
| ™ L
3 == P AT FY =y =Ff==—+
woos meu pasodold qejs/ilem mau pasodoly I A M 4 Ll L _ _ _ _ _ _ — T 5=
i = == — W 1 _
==L 1 _ 1
wool Bupsxg _H_ uoljowsap pasodoid WN@NM ==L =4 _1 "_ i
- Y T T grrrtrrrrtrrrrirrrrer rir A = I
‘BaJR 991)-9|0ISqO m u Bunsixg N
— | 6272 1 Lo
aur Aepunog - - saull ysep ul

umoys ssedienQ

o
A”VANNOg
AdYANNOg

[




o] roeva 00v6}

uorsinol Bumeia qor

v AL} 020z 1equisdeq [

powoau0 wneig aweq aeos

¥V NOILO3S a3S0d0dd
133 BV 1L ONIMVED

SLO3LIKDYY
suolinjos eiag

42020594 NOV.
0002 MSN Aoupfs
15 SouBIEID 08 L one] q
000 Aoupks
S103LHOHY

ezoqez abior

Naro
1002 MSN Ol 19215 SUIEH 665-L68
ONIATNG TYIDHINWINOD ONILSIX3
OL SNOILYH3LTY ANV SNOILIaay
"3SNOH ONIAYYO0d d3S0d0dd
103roud
swewalnba)
ro 10UN0Y Jad Se papUsWY 02022} ¥ 1 o
suswaunbel
zr 10UN0 Jad SE papusWwY 02020442 a
A8 NOLLIHOS3a ava NOISIAZY

103UY2IY uoRINAISUO [ 199(01d O AoyIne ssaidxe
u) 10U pasn 10 paidod ‘paulela: 8q ou 1snu pue

“10Uine 2} o AHAAOId 3} PUE 1YBAGOD S| BUMEIP SIYL «
2oualsjid
2)4e) SUOISUBWIP BN puE SBUMEp 31205 JABIET
131y uoINASUO [ 199l01d

51 40 UOHUSNE 3} 0} 1UBNOIG 3G O} SAIDUETSIISIP 1Y -
1M J0 1UBWAUSWIIOD

210130 91 U0 PIXIID 3q 01 SUOISUSP Y+

‘SBuMEIp WoJ) 9[eas 10U 0Q -

:S3LON INVLHOANI

woos mau pasodoid

qeys/|lem mau pasodoid I
woou Buysixgy _H_ uonijowsap pasodoid WN@NM

aur Aepunog - -

BaJe 99.)-9|981Sq0 m _ u

JCe

T A osies
G991 ¥oep Jequil]

pasiel maN

‘o0l [IEWS yiim

10d abie| maN,

184 51g 2 Buibley junow jem,
SPUIKIOPUM BUITSH

U1l Sayiojd Aemepjol Bunsix3

Old

THOUIN-AON

100p Jeno mopuim 1yB1ybiy meN

T A T fenesipurAjud umoys
¥8'61 TH ainjonuys Bunsixgy
olred Bunsixg

Ajaaneoipul Ajuo umoys

ssediono Bunsix3

SIANO JoqUI} MON

J_EIEIHJ_S‘

1004 JSBd
‘paysijowap red
2q 0} ejobiad Bunsix3

SIIE1OP S,I010BIUOD.
[BOIUBYO3W O} ShUN
JBSUBPUOD Il PRJEOOjaY

Ajenieaipur Ajuo umoys
001 [elow Bunsixg
puyeq Id epy
¥1-8'0ON 9peoe}ise3

0592

ovle

~

0052

NOLLYQITddY SIHL
Jd Q3137dNO0)

ONIdUNa g

(300K Ty

A3HOL
({4

L'3DVILS

TET)
b3aNaY
52

N

d40'LHvd L1ON

AdYANNOg

ONIATING A343ANIH MOI1Hg
A3dOlS €
V1-8 'ON

00l 1
V NOILO3S

v/

52




o] coeva 00v6}

uorsinol Bumeia qor

v AL} 020z 1equisdeq [

powoau0 wneig aweq aeos

4 NOILO3S a3S0d0dd
133 BV 1L ONIMVED

SLO3LIKDYY
suolinjos eiag

:

S103LHOHY

42020594 NOV.
0002 MSN Aoupfs

15 SouBIEID 08 L one]
000 Aoupks

ezoqez abior

Naro
1002 MSN Ol 19215 SUIEH 665-L68
ONIATNG TYIDHIWNOD ONILSIX3
OL SNOILYH3LTY ANV SNOILIaay
"3SNOH ONIAYYO0d d3S0d0dd
103roud
swewalnba)
ro 10UN0Y Jad Se papUsWY 02022} ¥ 1 o
suswaunbel
zr 10UN0 Jad SE papusWwY 02020442 a
A8 NOLLIHOS3a ava NOISIAZY

103UY2IY uoRINAISUO [ 199(01d O AoyIne ssaidxe
oL pasn 1o pal

oyes suojsuawy

210130 91 U0 PIXIID 3q 01 SUOISUSP Y+
‘SBuMEIp WoJ) 9[eas 10U 0Q -

HLHON 153rodd :S3LON INVLHOANI

woos mau pasodoid

woou Buysixgy _H_

BaJe 99.)-9|981Sq0 m H u

qeys/|lem mau pasodoid I
wop pasodoig WN@NM

aur Aepunog - -

0011 /Zoev

A T T
S991 H

laHHVH

|

A
¥8'61 TH

LYHHLS

6cve o

T T

Avo._u \

g3 #Dmm?t

g NOILOIS\_ ¢

1827 LSV unm Aldwoo o} yipim
90UBJIESD 0S8 "UIN “PolBISUIal

H00T4
H3IGWIL a3sivd

89 0} J00p Anue snonaid
1'82% 1SV Yim Adwoo o} yipim

aouelEad 058 "UIN "lood

100]} J8quI} PaSte!
Joop pabuly e yim paoe|das

2q 0} Joop Bulpys Bunsixg
1]

0} |[em pue J0oQq
J00p

19A0 MopuIm JyBIyBIH

SNdnNd

sue|d Joojy pesodoid ayy
U0 umoys se pauoiyisodal
100p pue M\ "OM

Y N sueyd Joojy pasodoid ayj ul umoys

pL0g ]y S SOPIS Uiog O} [reipueH “duwes

ysiuly Joqui 4 8[qIsse0dy

oLve

~

paysijowsp Jooq

‘paufelureWw
suomsod |[em Bunsix3 ‘oM

S|ielop s J10B1U00 [edjuelodw

0} spun Jre pajesojey

“Alaneoiput
umoys Joou [ejaw Bunk

Kaniesiput

umoys Buijres bunsixg

fjoneoipur

XOVONNOS

AdvaNnog

umoys ssediano bunsixg

ONITING d343AN3H XOI1He
A3HOLS €
1-8 'ON




a 0osva 00v6}

worsinon Bumeia aor
05: 1 oSV
v W 0202 Jequedeq pejeoipul sy
R e o s AJANNYT ANY NIHOLM IYNAWWOD \ &/
, d13HSN3dO ~ dOOH . SlaNngvoavaHdano
AHANNYT ANY NIHOLIM ! 068 N 006 N ozt i
EMs oY YNNG ONY OO TvOIdAL T oNMvEG , N3O MAN sHIMwHA  siaNigvo  FOVdSHYITO0 SIANIEVO
4 4 4 A + A 4 4
009 009 009 096 599 058
SLOILIHIYY
suol}njog elag
+12.020 591 Nov + L
002 o fomis o | |
15 020010 08 2 f0r0
ooioms 4 2y . | f f
S1oaumHouY 2|° 7 i L B
N |
& I
ezoqez abior W R — = T r>/
Naro 3|8 4
3|° T oo -
B 66E-L6E A+ 7/ (abeuoys Aipune| pue Jouiqes
, [ M SUIS USYIMY ‘SIOMEID
ONIQTING TVIOYINNOD ONILSIXI 3 [ - u e 4 *Anued Buipnjou) aoeds
OL SNOILYY3LTY ANV SNOILIaY IS} 4 \ a \ | aBeI0}S |[BIOAD EWEY'E
"3SNOH DNIQHYO8 03S0dOdd o} \ | i o ° S
103r0Hd = |3 IL \ /
n
N 1 A}
m WweE N
N >
-a0eds 107001) W0 o NIHOL L el 9
Swoweinbel -00eds Jojesabljel EWOG' | 7 2l
zr uNg Jod Se papusWwY 02020442 a S 2|8
o
NOLLYOIddY m
NN INIWJOTIA3Q 40} panss| 0202°20°L2 v 7
o) NOLLGIHOS3a awa NOISIASH
*siame.p snid = m JOVHOLS +
uiano 005+
|94y UORANAISUOD | 19901 ine ssaidxa l
auy inou pasn Jo poidod ouiel 5 10U 15 pus
10uine U 10 AUSGOId o) PUE MUBLAOS 51 BUMED SULL - ‘siomesp snid
e suorsuowp uor
941 10 UONUSNE 3 01 BNOIG 24 ) SAOUBGELOP 1Y -
e
0199 a4 o poos a0 1 sursUaLAD Y - “SWO00J Usamjaq UORISURJ} Jej} B
ainsua 0} pajiejal Aipune| Bunsixg
HLHON 103r0Hd :SILON INVLHOAN!
“papiroid aq |im Jakip
1}SBLUIOP BUO PUE BUIYOBL
woou meu pasodoid qeys/|lem mau pasodoid I Buiysem onewoine byg
“auiyoew Buiysem
woo Bunsixg _H_ uonjowap pasodoid WN@NM PUE Jo£Ip Joj pensesol soeds
— 05: 1 e)
wmesnamo [ ] e [ INOAVT WOOH WOIdAL \A/
aur Aepunog - -
A+ +
5061 5992
— |lﬂ|._“| = [
“POTRUILIOU SB YSIUl} YSIUIy 100]} 31 _ 0051 ]
1827 1SV Uim Aidwoo ainsus ), / | __ g e
0} J3piing “wiooIyieq + ° |
,h L _L___ = |
I a 3
*SaUl| YSEp Ul UMOYS Spag Q/ Q/ P — — — S /‘ | 8 IN
8|BuISXZ IN0AR| BARUIBYY _ ® ozeh _ 8
- E—— 8 d 00€2
8 e — — —
& vl N | =V 0562
I Se pag usand i 7 L _ m
A 0004 @ 000} U | N — i —
L — — SR —
“SWI00J UBaMIeq LONISUB.} — = L / \ B
1e)} ainsus o} Japjing It | v
I 040« T . | _
/ M 3 5 4
@ — T
‘pajeuloU Se ysiuly 10o) 19die) — \\ _ 3 % —— -7
~ < & Iy
— \ - —
| o =T I |
I 2] o
I / g 2 ¢—
S \— g
N\ 7/ )—_| Wm? |_: osrt .~ _ g
N > RN - o
3 e _ S N
° I g - |
8 >
>s3a _I 1
i ) | )
+ A+ +
0s2} 068

54




a 0oova 00v6}

uorsinol Bumeia qor

v r 0202 Jequadeq 004 -+

powoau0 wneig aweq aeos

NY71d 3dVOSANY1 d3SOdOHd

133 BV 1L ONIMVED

SLO3LIKDYY
suolnjos elag

:

S103LHOHY

42020594 NOV.
0002 MSN Aoupfs

15 SouBIEID 08 L one]
sou0 heups

ezoqez abior

N3
1002 MSN QWIN 19955 SUBH 668-L6E
ONIATNG TYIDHINWINOD ONILSIX3
OL SNOILYH3LTY ANV SNOILIaay
"3SNOH ONIAYYO0d d3S0d0dd
103r0ud
swewainbal
ro liounog sed se pepuswy 020221 Y1 L]
swewenbel
2 punog sad se papuswy 020204 L2 v
A8 NOLLAINOS3a awa NOISIAZY

oL pasn 1o pal

“10Uine 2} o AHAAOId 3} PUE 1YBAGOD S| BUMEIP SIYL «
-souaiojeid

pue sbupeip ajeas JobieT -

el suojsuawp u
ou1 jo uonus

210/20 8)s U0 P32 2q O} SUOISUBWIP Y+
‘SBuMEIp WoJ) 9[eas 10U 0Q -

HLHON 153rodd :S3LON INVLHOANI

sayouaq pue a|qe} Jaquul]

SU9810S BIANO| [BOILISA JSQUILL

Buniosp sequi|

8o} |lews yym jod abre

31137vd 3dVOSANYT

00L: 1 Bo9vdy

JOOT4 ANNOYD - NV1d 3dvOSANYT A3SOdOdd \_ /

55

wA m&.m/EH_

loevd

H .&( ,w(
/>Ow. w % e m)
> W
E
H NOILYOITddV SIHL 40 LHvVd LON L
Q3131dWOD | 3DVLS 107 QHVALHNOD
mddd 3
H {oev '
v &Y
%wﬂ_q
0p © || oNiaIng g3u3anay ol
e AJHOLS €
: 71-8'ON
mﬁw_sn
Yo ﬁ
HIVLS — — X
12 . g
S | WOOH I
378ISS300V a4
s I v v m— A I
>
[0} P
— ! L - , - \ %o
g & 3 |
o« b= QL
X0 ") 3 : :
e 3 e v ooy
O] 109
_I_I_ oe'9r 144} M
.
foevd) €891 144 OIX3 IO ANVH 7 P ok Zii | 0w\
m & o | o = "\
oL ' 3 _
%
_ WL |
! P——
_\dwfn { =
oL oL 1 | £ WOOoH a&.&w
2 NOOH
379ISS300V 3501S
NIg Ll
o0
. ¥ @(@//yo
WO QW 7§ ‘61 TS 0B T £ QY
yor Vo & 501} jews ym lod abie ] Ui S5U1of0 sainol Aoend saquit
O i h Bunisy
o s o9 s § g
/>Ow‘ v ey oy pajoLIsal palsol) MaN
2 Buibuey unow jlep + s
* 0995 i
oL 168} .




Attachment C

Clause 4.6 Variation Request — Motorcycle
Parking

56




£33

SEPP (AFFORDABLE
RENTAL HOUSING) 2009
Clause 4.6 Exceptions to
Development Standards -
Motorcycle Parking

Proposed nine room boarding house development at

Nos. 397-399 Harris
Street, Ultimo

Prepared for:

Edsring Property Maintenance Pty Ltd
Suite 232, 1 Katherine Street
Chatswood NSW 2067

Prepared by:

GSA PLANNING

Urban Design, Environmental & Traffic Planners
(A.B.N 18 003 667 963)

95 Paddington Street, Paddington NSW 2021

p: 02 9362 3364
e: info@gsaplanning.com.au

JOB NO. 20057
June 2020

© GSA PLANNING 2020

A Planning

Institute

Australia
CERTIFIED PRACTISING PLANNER

57



mailto:info@gsaplanning.com.au

gsa

STATE ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING POLICY (AFFORDABLE RENTAL HOUSING) 2009
CLAUSE 4.6 EXCEPTIONS TO DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

APPLICANT'S NAME: Edsring Property Maintenance Pty Ltd

SITE ADDRESS: Nos. 397-399 Harris Street, Ultimo

PROPOSAL: Nine room boarding house development

1. ()  Name of the applicable planning instrument which specifies the development
standard:

State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009 (‘ARH SEPP’)
(ii)  The land is zoned:

B4 Mixed Use under the Sydney Local Environmental Plan (LEP) 2012
(iii)  The number of the relevant clause therein:

Clause 30(1)(h) is stated as follows:

(h)  at least one parking space will be provided for a bicycle, and one will be provided for a
motorcycle, for every 5 boarding rooms.

This Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards should be read in conjunction with
the Statement of Environmental Effects (SEE) prepared by GSA Planning

2. Overview

This Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards has been prepared in accordance with the most
recent case law and in our opinion, the variation achieves the objectives of the zone and the ARH SEPP,
and has demonstrated there are sufficient environmental planning grounds

3. Specify the nature of Development Standard sought to be varied and details of variation:

Clause 30(1)(h) of the ARH SEPP relates to provision of bicycle and motorcycle parking. The clause
requires the provision of one bicycle and one motorcycle space per five boarding rooms. The proposed
nine room boarding house development generates demand for two bicycle and two motorcycle spaces.

The development provides two bicycle spaces and complies with the ARH SEPP in this regard, however
no motorcycle spaces, which contravenes the development standard.

4.  Applicability of Clause 4.6

Clause 4.6(2) of the LEP states that it is applicable to a development standard “imposed by this or any
other environmental planning instrument”. The ARH SEPP is an environmental planning instrument and
therefore Clause 30(1)(h) is a development standard which can be varied pursuant to Clause 4.6 of the
LEP.

Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards — Motorcycle Parking Page 2
Nos. 397-399 Harris Street, Ultimo - Job No.20057 58



gsa

5. Consistency with Objectives of Clause 4.6

The objectives of Clause 4.6 seek to provide appropriate flexibility to the application of development
standards in order to achieve better planning outcomes both for the development and from the
development. In the Court determination in Initial Action Pty Ltd v Woollahra Municipal Council [2018] 236
LGERA 256 (/nitial Action), Preston CJ notes at [87] and [90]:

Clause 4.6 does not directly or indirectly establish a test that the non-compliant development should have a
neutral or beneficial effect relative to a compliant development...In any event, Clause 4.6 does not give
substantive effect to the objectives of the clause in Clause 4.6(a) or (b). There is no provision that requires
compliance with the objectives of the clause.

However, it is still useful to provide a preliminary assessment against the objectives of the Clause. The
objectives of Clause 4.6 and our planning response are as follows:

Objective (a) to provide an appropriate degree of flexibility in applying certain development standards
to particular development,

Objective (b) to achieve better outcomes for and from development by allowing flexibility in particular
circumstances.

The proposal seeks flexibility in the application of the motorcycle parking development standard to the
development in the circumstance of this particular case as the subject site is exceptionally well serviced
by public and active transport networks. The site is located within the Ultimo Heritage Conservation Area
(HCA) and, in order to retain as much existing building fabric as possible, motorcycle parking cannot be
provided on the site. The proposal provides much needed affordable housing near the Sydney CBD, and
utilising the site efficiently for accommodation is considered more desirable than motorcycle spaces. It is
noted that no car spaces are required as Council is trying to reduce vehicle dependency. The proposal
provides compliant bicycle parking spaces.

6. Justification of Variation to Development Standard

Clause 4.6(3) outlines that a written request must be made seeking to vary a development standard and
that specific matters are to be considered. The Clause states, inter alia:

3) Development consent must not be granted for development that contravenes a development
standard unless the consent authority has considered a written request from the applicant that seeks
to justify the contravention of the development standard by demonstrating:

(a) that compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the
circumstances of the case, and

(b) that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening the
development standard.

This written request justifies the contravention of the development standard by demonstrating that
compliance is unreasonable or unnecessary in these circumstances; and there are sufficient
environmental planning grounds to justify the non-compliance. These matters are discussed in the
following sections.

6.1 Compliance with the Development Standard is Unreasonable and Unnecessary in the
Circumstances of the Case

Clause 4.6(3)(a) requires the applicant to demonstrate that compliance with the development standard is
unreasonable or unnecessary in the circumstances of the case. In Wehbe v Pittwater Council (2007) 156
LGERA 446 (Wehbe), Preston CJ established five potential tests for determining whether a development

Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards — Motorcycle Parking Page 3
Nos. 397-399 Harris Street, Ultimo - Job No.20057 59



gsa

standard could be considered unreasonable or unnecessary. This is further detailed in Initial Action where
Preston CJ states at [22]:

These five ways are not exhaustive of the ways in which an applicant might demonstrate that compliance with
a development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary; they are merely the most commonly invoked ways.
An applicant does not need to establish all the ways. It may be sufficient to establish only one way, although if
more ways are applicable, an applicant can demonstrate that compliance is unreasonable or unnecessary in
more than one way.

It is our opinion that the proposal satisfies a number of the five tests established in Wehbe and for that
reason, the development standard is unreasonable and unnecessary in this instance. The relevant tests
will be considered below.

Test 1 - The objectives of the standard are achieved notwithstanding non-compliance with the
standard;

The ARH SEPP does not contain specific objectives relating to the provision of motorcycle parking.
The aims of the ARH SEPP are also not, in our opinion, directly relevant to the provision of motorcycle
parking. The aims of the policy pertain to the provision, delivery and retention of affordable housing.
The proposal will contribute to meeting the high demand for affordable housing in the area by providing
9 boarding house rooms catering for 12 lodgers.

While the ARH SEPP does not contain specific aims/objectives pertaining to motorcycle parking, the
SEPP is geared toward reducing reliance on cars, and encouraging use of bicycles, motorbikes and
public transport. The proposal includes bicycle parking, which complies with the ARH SEPP, and in
our opinion satisfies the demand. The site is located in an ‘accessible area’ for the purposes of the
ARH SEPP, being less than 400m from a bus stop. The nearest bus stop is located directly across the
road on Harris Street and services route No. 501 providing regular access to Central Station. This
provides access to the wider Sydney train network. It is also noted that the likely demographic should
be comfortable utilising these public transport links.

Furthermore, the site is within walking distance of a variety of shops, restaurants, educational
institutions and residential support services. This includes a variety of commercial and retail services
along Harris Street. Accordingly, the site is in an ideal location for student accommodation and will
enhance the efficiency of existing transport infrastructure and services. On the basis of the site’s
connectivity to public transport, and the provisions for bicycle parking, residents of the proposed
boarding house will have adequate transport options available.

Test 3 - The underlying objective or purpose would be defeated or thwarted if compliance was
required and therefore compliance is unreasonable;

While there are no objectives for the motorcycle parking development standard, in our opinion, the
underlying purpose of the ARH SEPP generally, and the standard specifically, is to provide affordable
house in accessible locations.

Enforcing strict compliance would require a substantial redesign of the existing building. The financial
burden of undertaking these works would make the provision of a boarding house unviable and thwart
the underlying objective of providing affordable accommodation.

In addition, the design parameters are constrained by the existing building. In order to provide
motorcycle parking which does not require access through the pedestrian accessway, a substantial

Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards — Motorcycle Parking Page 4
Nos. 397-399 Harris Street, Ultimo - Job No.20057 60



gsa

redesign would be necessary. This would be inconsistent with the objectives of the Ultimo Heritage
Conservation Area and the current attempt to retain as much of the existing built form as possible.

The Sydney Development Control Plan (DCP) 2012 provides maximum rather than minimum car
parking provisions, with the underlying objective of reducing car dependency and encouraging the use
of public transport. The subject site is ideally located near existing public transport networks and
provides compliant bicycle spaces. Providing motorcycle spaces when car spaces are discouraged
would thwart the underlying objective of encouraging public and active transport.

6.2 There are Sufficient Environmental Planning Grounds to Justify Contravening the
Development Standard

There are several environmental planning grounds that justify not providing motorcycle parking in this
instance. As discussed, the proposal is consistent with the primary objective of the ARH SEPP which is
the provision and retention of affordable rental housing. The subject site is also within an area that is
highly connected by public transport and is within close proximity to a range of businesses that provide
support services to residential development. The proposal complies with the bicycle parking requirements
and will encourage active and public transport usage. Further environmental planning grounds include an
improved design outcome and maintaining amenity for neighbours. These will now be discussed.

The site constraints prevent the provision of additional street access. These constraints include the
proximity to the intersection, the speed of traffic along Harris Street and the change in levels along Fig
Street. As additional street openings are not possible, any motorcycle parking would need to utilise the
same access corridor as will be used by lodgers, which could have adverse safety and amenity
implications. Accordingly, to enforce motorcycle parking would compromise access throughout the
development, and would be inconsistent with Object (g) of the EPA Act which is promote good design and
amenity of the built environment. As the development is located within a Heritage Conservation Area
(HCA) and the proposal seeks to retain as much of the existing building fabric as possible, there are less
opportunities for a redesign to accommodate motorcycle parking.

Council has granted numerous consents for boarding house developments without motorcycle parking,
especially in well-connected localities. In particular, Council has approved a previous 12-room boarding
house development on the subject site without a motorcycle space (D/2013/1634). The eight room
boarding house development operating next door at Nos. 401-403 Harris Street (D/2011/1055) also does
not provide any motorcycle parking. This was addressed in the Council Officer's Report as follows:

The lack of provision for motorcycle parking is acceptable given the small scale nature of this boarding house.

The proposal is for only one more room and one more lodger than the operational boarding house next
door. Accordingly, this assessment remains valid.

It is our opinion that the shortfall in motorcycle spaces is the result of improving operational provisions of
the site within a limited area, including accessibility and waste management and improving amenity on
the site. Providing motorcycle parking under the ARH SEPP would impact on the provision of
amenity/operational components of the development. In any event, on-street parking is available in the
direct vicinity of the site.

The Council Officer's Report for the approved boarding house development on the site (D/2013/1634)
also indicated that, despite a shortfall in motorcycle parking, the boarding house use was consistent with
other objects of the EPA Act as follows:

Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards — Motorcycle Parking Page 5
Nos. 397-399 Harris Street, Ultimo - Job No.20057 61



gsa

Parking is not a requirement of Council instead it promotes and engages with more sustainable transit, including
walking. The SEPP 1 objection [for motorbike parking] is approved on the basis that it is consistent with the aims of
the policy set out in Clause 3 and it is unreasonable given there is no parallel Council requirement and that the
application is consistent with Objects 5(i) and 5(ii) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

This assessment remains valid as the proposal is for the same use and also retains as much of the
existing building as possible. The objects identified correlate to Objects 1.3(c) and (d) in the current EPA
Act which state:

(c)  to promote the orderly and economic use and development of land,
(d)  to promote the delivery and maintenance of affordable housing,

The shortfall does not result in significant adverse impacts on adjoining development. In fact, a reduction
in vehicular noise down a driveway (or pedestrian walkway) in close proximity to residential developments
is desirable in respect of aural privacy.

Accordingly, in our opinion, the non-compliance will not be inconsistent with existing and desired future
planning objectives for the locality. For the reasons contained in this application, there are sufficient
environmental planning grounds to justify the minor variation to the development standard, as required in
Clause 4.6(3)(b).

1. Clause 4.6(4)(a) Requirements

Clause 4.6(4)(a) guides the consent authority’s consideration of this Clause 4.6 variation request. It
provides that:

4) Development consent must not be granted for development that contravenes a development standard
unless:
(a) the consent authority is satisfied that:
(i) the applicant’s written request has adequately addressed the matters required to be
demonstrated by subclause (3), and
(i) the proposed development will be in the public interest because it is consistent with the
objectives of the particular standard and the objectives for development within the zone
in which the development is proposed to be carried out

The applicant submits that the consent authority can be satisfied of each of the requirements of Clause
4.6(4)(a), for all the reasons set out in this request, and having regard to the site and locality.

In our opinion, the proposal is consistent with the underlying objective of the ARH SEPP (in lieu of any
specific development standard objectives), as already demonstrated; and the B4 Mixed Use Zone, as
discussed below:

Objective: To provide a mixture of compatible land uses.

Response: The proposal contributes to the mixture of land uses within the mixed use zone. The
proposal adjoins another boarding house and is therefore a compatible use. Other
uses in the mixed use zone include retail, business and residential. The land use can
be provided, notwithstanding the shortfall in motorcycle spaces.

Objective: To integrate suitable business, office, residential, retail and other development in
accessible locations so as to maximise public transport patronage and encourage
walking and cycling.

Response: The subject site is ideally located for a boarding house use, being within walking

distance of a number of shops, educational institutions, restaurants and services.

Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards — Motorcycle Parking Page 6
Nos. 397-399 Harris Street, Ultimo - Job No.20057 62



gsa

There is a bus stop across the road providing access to Central Station and the wider
Sydney Train network. The proposal will also provide compliant bicycle parking which
will encourage active transport, with designated cycle paths in the vicinity. The subject
site complies with the accessibility provisions of the ARH SEPP. The absence of
motorcycle parking is only likely to further encourage use of more sustainable modes

of transport.
Objective: To ensure uses support the viability of centres.
Response: The proposal will revitalise the subject site and provide accommodation for up to 12

lodgers. This is likely to bring a social and economic benefit to the area, contributing
to the ongoing viability of the mixed use area. The shortfall in motorcycle spaces will
not affect the viable of centres.

From this, we consider the proposal is in the public interest and should be supported.

8. Clauses 4.6(4)(b) and 4.6(5) Requirements

Clause 4.6(4)(b) of the LEP requires the concurrence of the Secretary (of the Department of Planning,
Industry and Environment) before the consent authority can exercise the power to grant development
consent for development that contravenes a development standard.

Under Clause 64 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000, the Secretary has
given written notice dated 21 February 2018, attached to the Planning Circular PS 18-003 issued on 21
February 2018, to each consent authority, that it may assume the Secretary’s concurrence for exceptions
to development standards in respect of applications made under Clause 4.6, subject to the conditions in
the table in the notice. Since the conditions in the table do not apply in this case, the concurrence of the
Secretary can be assumed.

Nevertheless, the matters in Clause 4.6(5) should still be considered when exercising the power to grant
development consent for development that contravenes a development standard (Fast Buck$ v Byron
Shire Council (1999) 103 LGERA 94 at [100] and Wehbe at [41]). In deciding whether to grant
concurrence, the Secretary is required to consider the following:

(a) whether contravention of the development standard raises any matter of significance for State or
regional environmental planning, and

(b) the public benefit of maintaining the development standard, and

(c) any other matters required to be taken into consideration by the Secretary before granting concurrence.

The proposal is not considered to raise any matter of significance for State or regional environmental
planning. The motorcycle parking non-compliance will facilitate an enhanced design and encourage the
use of public and active transport, without adversely impacting neighbouring properties. The public benefit
of maintaining the development standard is not considered significant given that, regardless of the non-
compliance, the proposal will be well serviced by existing public and active transport networks.

Accordingly, the proposal is consistent with the matters required to be taken into consideration before
concurrence can be granted. The non-compliance contributes to a quality development which is consistent
with the desired character of the precinct and is, in our opinion, in the public interest.

Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards — Motorcycle Parking Page 7
Nos. 397-399 Harris Street, Ultimo - Job No.20057 63



gsa

9. Conclusion

This written request has adequately demonstrated that compliance with the development standard is
unreasonable or unnecessary in the circumstances of the case and that there are sufficient environmental
planning grounds to justify contravening the development standard. This is summarised in the compliance
matrix prepared in light of Initial Action (see Table 1 on the following page).

We are of the opinion that the consent authority should be satisfied that the proposed development will
be in the public interest because it is consistent with the objectives of the ARH SEPP and the development
objectives of the B4 Mixed Use Zone pursuant to the LEP. On that basis, the request to vary Clause
30(1)(h) of the ARH SEPP should be upheld.

Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards — Motorcycle Parking Page 8
Nos. 397-399 Harris Street, Ultimo - Job No.20057 64



gsa planning

Table 1: Compliance Matrix

Para Section
(Initial Requirement of this Satisfied
Action) Report
10 Is it a development standard (s.1.4) 1 Yes
11 What is the development standard 1 Clause 30(1)(h) of the ARH SEPP
12 What is the control 1&2 | One bicycle and motorcycle space per five boarding rooms
14 First Precondition to Enlivening the Power — Both positive opinions can be formed as detailed below. YES
Consent authority must form 2 positive opinions:
15, 25 1st Positive Opinion — 6 The Clause 4.6 variation has adequately addressed both matters in Clause
That the applicant’s written request seeking to justify the contravention of the development 4.6(3) by providing a detailed justification in light of the relevant tests and YES
standard has adequately addressed the matters required to be demonstrated by Clause 4.6(3). planning considerations.
There are two aspects of that requirement.
16-22 First Aspect is Clause 4.6(3)(a) - 6.1 The proposal satisfies Tests 1 and 3 of Wehbe:
That compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the o The objectives of the standard are achieved notwithstanding the
circumstances of the case. Common ways are as set out in Wehbe. non-compliance with the standard; YES
8 o The underlying objective or purpose would be defeated or thwarted if
compliance was required and therefore compliance is unreasonable;
23-24 Second Aspect is Clause 4.6(3)(b) - 6.2 Sufficient environmental planning grounds include, inter alia:
The written request must demonstrate that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds o The proposal remains consistent with the underlying aims and
to justify contravening the development standard so as to enable the consent authority to be objectives of the ARH SEPP;
satisfied under Clause 4.6(4)(a)(i) that the written request has adequately addressed this o The subject site is well located near public and active transport
matter. The environmental planning grounds must be “sufficient” in two respects: networks;
a) The environmental planning grounds advanced in the written request must be sufficient e The proposal complies with the bicycle parking provisions;
“to justify contravening the development standard”. The focus is on the aspect or element e The site is located within an HCA, making large scale works to the YES
of the development that contravenes the development standard, not on the development existing building undesirable;
as a whole, and why that contravention is justified on environmental planning grounds. o The small scale of the proposed operation:
b) The enwropmental planning grounds advanced in the written request mugt justify thg o The proposal provides an improved design, amenity and safety
contravention of the development standard, not simply promote the benefits of carrying outcome for lodgers; and
out the development as a whole. o The shortfall in motorcycle parking will not result in amenity impacts
for neighbouring developments.
26-27 2nd Positive Opinion — 7 There are no objectives for the motorcycle parking development standard.
That the proposed development will be in the public interest because it is consistent with the The proposal is also consistent with the objectives of the B4 Mixed Use YES
objectives of the particular development standard that is contravened and the objectives for Zone.
development for the zone in which the development is proposed to be carried out.

Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards — Motorcycle Parking Page 9
Nos. 397-399 Harris Street, Ultimo - Job No. 20057



gsa

28-29 | Second Precondition to Enlivening the Power — As the relevant matters for consideration under Clause 4.6 have been
That the concurrence of the Secretary has been obtained [Clause 4.6(4)(b)]. On appeal, the Court satisfied as outlined above, the Council can grant development consent. YES
has the power to grant development consent, subject to being satisfied of the relevant matters
under Clause 4.6.
o))
o
© GSA PLANNING 2020

This document is and shall remain the property of Gary Shiels & Associates Pty Ltd (trading as GSA Planning). The document may only be used for the purposes for which it was commissioned and in accordance with the Letter of Instruction. Unauthorised
use of this document in any form whatsoever is prohibited

Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards — Motorcycle Parking
Nos. 397-399 Harris Street, Ultimo - Job No. 20057

Page 10




	Agenda
	1 Disclosures of Interest
	2 Confirmation of Minutes
	3 Development Application: 2-12 Carrington St, Sydney - D/2020/959
	Attachment A - Recommended Conditions of Consent
	Attachment B - Revised Acoustic Assessment
	1 INTRODUCTION
	2 SITE DESCRIPTION AND MAJOR ACOUSTIC ISSUES
	3 NOISE DESCRIPTORS
	4 NOISE EMISSION CRITERIA
	4.1 REQUIREMENTS BY COUNCIL AND NSW OFFICE OF LIQUOR AND GAMING
	4.2 TO RESIDENTIAL RECEIVERS R3/R7/R8 BOUNDARY
	4.3 TO RECEIVER R1 & R2
	4.3.1 Internal background noise level

	Table 3 - Measured Hotel Background Noise Level
	Table 4 – Criteria for Hotel Receivers – Acoustic Objectives dB(A)L10(15minutes) Internally Before Midnight
	Table 5 – Criteria for Hotel Receivers – Acoustic Objectives dB(A)L10(15minutes) Internally After Midnight
	4.4 TO COMMERCIAL RECEIVERS (R4 R5 & R6)- INDOOR SPACE

	Table 6 – Criteria for Commercial Receivers Above – Acoustic Objectives dB(A)L10(15minutes) Internally

	5 NOISE EMISSION ASSESSMENT
	5.1 ACTIVITY NOISE
	5.1.1 Outdoor Sitting Noise
	5.1.2 Background Music Noise

	Table 8 – L10 Sound Pressure Level of BG Music
	5.1.3 Internal Loud Music + Patrons’ Noise


	6 NOISE PREDICTION
	6.1 PREDICTED NOISE LEVELS TO INTERNAL SPACE OF R1
	6.1.1 Before Midnight
	6.1.2 After Midnight

	Table 11 – Predicted Noise Level to R1 dBL10 After Midnight
	6.2 PREDICTED NOISE LEVELS TO INTERNAL SPACE OF R2
	6.2.1 Before Mid Night


	Table 12 – Predicted Noise Level to R2 dBL10
	6.2.2 After Midnight

	Table 13 – Predicted Noise Level to R2 dBL10 After Midnight
	6.3 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO RECEIVER 3 (R3) FACADE
	6.3.1 Before Midnight


	Table 14 – Predicted Noise Level to R3 dBL10
	6.3.2 After Midnight

	Table 15 – Predicted Noise Level to R3 dBL10
	6.4 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO R4 INTERNAL SPACE

	Table 16 – Predicted Noise Level to R4 dBL10
	6.5 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO R5 INTERNAL SPACE

	Table 17 – Predicted Noise Level to R5 dBL10
	6.6 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO R6 INTERNAL SPACE

	Table 18 – Predicted Noise Level to R6 dBL10
	6.7 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO RECEIVER 7 (R7) FACADE
	6.7.1 Before Midnight


	Table 19 – Predicted Noise Level to R7 dBL10
	6.7.2 After Midnight

	Table 20 – Predicted Noise Level to R7 dBL10
	6.8 PREDICTED NOISE LEVEL TO RECEIVER 8 (R8) FACADE

	Table 21 – Predicted Noise Level to R8 dBL10

	7 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DESIGN & MANAGEMENT
	Table 23 – Glazing Facades
	Table 24 – Recommended Internal Music Noise Limit

	8 CONCLUSION

	Attachment C - Plan of Management
	Attachment D - Proposed Drawings
	Attachment Cover Sheet Template
	Architectural Plans - 2-12 Carrington Street, Sydney.pdf
	DA-1020 [3] - Pavilion - Pergola Details.pdf
	Sheets
	DA-1020 - Pavilion - Pergola Details


	DA-1008 [7] - Shell House Facades.pdf
	Sheets
	DA-1008 - Shell House Facades


	DA-1012 [2] - 3D Images - Level 09 Terrace 1.pdf
	Sheets

	DA-1013 [1] - 3D Images - Level 09 Terrace 2.pdf
	Sheets

	DA-1009 [7] - 3D Images - Street Level.pdf
	Sheets
	DA-1009 - 3D Images - Street Level


	DA-1010 [2] - 3D Images - Bird's Eye View 1.pdf
	Sheets

	DA-1011 [1] - 3D Images - Bird's Eye View 2.pdf
	Sheets




	4 Development Application: 23 Hughes Street, Potts Point - D/2020/950
	Attachment A - Selected Drawings
	Attachment Cover Sheet Template
	Attachment A - Selected Drawingsv2

	Attachment B - Clause 4.6 Variation Request
	Attachment Cover Sheet Template
	2020 411611  Clause 4.6 Variation (Motorcycle) (v1.0) - 23 Hughes St, Potts Potts_PAN-34438


	5 Development Application: 397-399 Harris Street, Ultimo - D/2020/593
	Attachment A - Recommended Conditions of Consent
	Attachment B - Selected Drawings
	Attachment B Selected drawings
	Attachment B Cover Sheet

	Attachment B Selected drawings A4

	Attachment C - Clause 4.6 Variation Request
	Attachment D Cover Sheet
	Clause 4.6 - Motorcycle Parkin~- 397-399 Harris Street Ultimo





